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China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320) is a leading
integrated pharmaceutical company in China. Our business spans across
manufacturing, distribution and retail of pharmaceutical and healthcare
products. Since the establishment in 2007, the Group has developed into one
of the fifth largest pharmaceutical manufacturers and the one of the third
largest pharmaceutical distributors (by revenue) in China. In October 2016,
the Company successfully completed its global offering in Hong Kong. Since
its listing, the Company has been included in a number of capital market
indexes such as MSCI China Index, FTSE Global Large Cap Index, constituent
stock of Hang Seng Composite Large Cap Index and Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index, reflecting a global recognition by the international capital
markets on the Group’s business performance, growth potential, market
capitalization, and share liquidity.

Our manufacturing business encompasses the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products. We manufacture more
than 540 products comprising chemical drugs, Chinese medicines and
biopharmaceutical drugs as well as nutritional and healthcare products,
covering a wide range of therapeutic areas including cardiovascular,
alimentary tract and metabolism, large-volume IV infusion, pediatrics,
respiratory system etc.. Besides, we own a series of strong, well-known brands
including “999", “Dong-E-E-Jiao (FRFAFIER)", “Double-Crane (¥88)", “Zizhu
(54T7)", and “Jiangzhong (T )",

We operate a national distribution network comprising 178 logistics centers
strategically across 28 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in
China. Leveraging our comprehensive product portfolio and wide distribution
networks, we directly distribute products to hospitals and other medical
institutions across the country. In addition, we operate one of the largest retail
pharmacy networks in China, comprising over 850 pharmacies under national
or regional premium brands — “CR Care (Z2/8%)", and “Teck Soon Hong (12
B17)".
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman and non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Chuncheng
(appointed as Chairman of the Board on 21 March 2019, ceased to
be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, re-designated as non-
executive Director and continue to serve as the Chairman of the Board
on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. HAN Yuewei
(appointed on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Vice Chairman

Mr. LI Xiangming
(appointed as Executive Director on 29 May 2019 and appointed as
Vice Chairman of the Company on 2 December 2019)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mdm. WENG Jingwen (appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019)

Executive Director
Mr. QIU Huawei
(appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22 October 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May 2019)
Mr. YU Zhongliang

Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019)
Mr. WANG Shouye

Mr. LYU Ruizhi

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian
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BRERNZL () Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne (Chairman)

R E (RZE-NEFRAZTNBEHME) Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May 2019)

BRELT(R_T—NFRAZTNBEZEE) Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019)
BEEEE Mr. LYU Ruizhi

2P B A Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

BiEETE Mr. FU Tingmei

SR ER S A Mr. ZHANG Kejian

EEBEILLE (F) Mr. FU Yuning (Chairman)

(MR- NF=A-+—HEID) (resigned on 21 March 2019)

THEWEAE (FE) Mr. WANG Chuncheng (Chairman)
RZZB-NF=ZA-T+—HEZERREELEZE (appointed as chairman of the Nomination Committee on 21 March
FERE) 2019)

BB+ Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

PR B e 4 Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

B4 Mr. FU Tingmei

SRITER A Mr. ZHANG Kejian

BN (FE) Mr. KWOK Kin Fun (Chairman)

BRREE R ZZE-NERAZTNBEE) Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May 2019)

BHEZT (R _ZE-NEFRAZTNLBEEZD) Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019)

BEIRA L Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

B4 Mr. FU Tingmei

SRITERSEAE Mr. ZHANG Kejian

HEESLE (F/E) Mr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)

E%W%E(F:f NFE+AZ+TZHEHE) Mr. WANG Chuncheng (resigned on 22 October 2019)

BRESERZE-NFTAZTZAEZD Mr. HAN Yuewei (appointed on 22 October 2019)

ﬁ%*ﬁi(ﬁﬁ_g NWEFE+BEBEERT) Mdm. WENG Jingwen (appointed on 5 July 2019)

FEIREE (RZE—NFEtAREEHD) Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019)

BRE M+ Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

FBaEELE Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

TR ERSEAE Mr. ZHANG Kejian
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Chuncheng (Chairman)
(resigned on 22 October 2019)
Mr. HAN Yuewei (Chairman)
(appointed on 22 October 2019)
Mr. LI Xiangming
(appointed on 29 May 2019)
Mr. QIU Huawei
(appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22 October 2019)

Mdm. WENG Jingwen (appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WANG Chuncheng (resigned on 22 October 2019)
Mr. HAN Yuewei
(appointed on 22 October 2019)
Mdm. WENG Jingwen
(appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter

LEGAL ADVISORS

Clifford Chance
Jia Yuan Law Offices

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

REGISTERED OFFICE

41/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4104-05

41/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Beisanhuan Sub-Branch Beijing
Banco Santander, S.A. Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank Beijing Railway Branch
China Merchants Bank Chang’an Street Sub-Branch Beijing
Credit Agricole CIB, Hong Kong Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Wangfujing Branch
ING Bank N.V.
Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
MUFG Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Natixis Hong Kong Branch
Overseas-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
Postal Savings Bank of China, Beijing
Weigoncun Sub-branch
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Westpac Banking Corporation

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Strategic Financial Relations Limited

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

http://Awww.crpharm.com

STOCK CODE
3320



Definitions

RAEHR - BXBESEHIEN
DA TR -

THFABREE
(RRBFARE]

IIAGM'I

(A==

“Articles of Association”

(g
“Board”
[TERBEEH ]
“BSCOMC”
[{E¥ER<rAl]

“CG Code”

[FEl]
“China” or “PRC”

NS

“Companies Ordinance”
[N\ 5 [FEHEesE]
“Company” or “CR Pharmaceutical”

[ BRT]

“CR Bank”

[Eek-2 0

“CR Double-Crane”

In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings unless the context indicates otherwise:

RRARRFAFRE

annual general meeting of the Company

ARNRRZE—RNFAAZTEEFIAZRREMBEEZERRAA (&R
BHERT)

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to
time), adopted by Special Resolution passed on 20 June 2016

o

board of Directors

ERBEEREEEER D -
WEZRR

State-Owned Capital Operation And Management Center Of Beijing (b
FEAEREEEEFL), a state-owned enterprise incorporated in the
PRC and our substantial Shareholder

—HERPEEMAINEERE - B

AR RIM S I FrE e (R B A <F A
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

hEARKMNE - fiAFHME - AEEEE  RFIRHITHREREREE

People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this annual
report only, Hong Kong, Macau SAR and Taiwan

AT (BB EGIE6228) (ETEHET)
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as
amended from time to time)

EHBESEER AR
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited

WHERRITROBEAR - —KRHPEXIHROERARL A K
BEBR NIRRT A ERT  RAFHREH  EFRMF/BBEEFL
70.28% 4%

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (BR/8Z BIEITRMDBR
A 7A]), a company limited by shares established in the PRC and a
municipal commercial bank headquartered in Zhuhai, in which CRI holds
approximately 70.28% interest as at the date of this annual report

FEHEREXROHARAR  FIBILREBREXROHBERAR  —FR
BERBUAEFMKZRR - ARGE HERHFX S B (R HRSE -
600062) * W RARR ZFEEENBAT

China Resources Double-Crane Pharmaceutical Company Limited (¥
HEREEENR (AR AT, formerly known as Beijing Double-Crane
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Jt REBEERHFR A F]), a company
incorporated under the laws of the PRC, the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code : 600062) and a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 7
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[EEEE]

“CR Health”

2 i

“CR Holdings”

[EER5 ]

"CRIH

[FERIPEE]

“CR Jiangzhong Group”

[#BHEE]

"“CR Leasing”

s T

“CR Pharmaceutical Commercial”
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EHREEEGRAFABAEHBREEERRAR)  —KREAT
MRZHBER AR AEREEN 2 ENE LR

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited ((E/HEEEBAER AT,
formerly known as EHEFEEEBRR AR, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings as at the date of this annual report

EH(EE)BRLAR  —KREBIMKILNERRAE - REERNE
FRAFI2EWE R R R R

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRI'and our controlling Shareholder

ERRMDERAR - —KRPEIK BN AR D E 2R MR AR
R

China Resources Inc., formerly known as China Resources Co., Limited,
a joint stock limited liability company established in the PRC and our
controlling Shareholder

ERIPHEEEFRETAR  FIMIALIPRE(EE)AREER
Al —HKRHRBIK IR E] - RITHEENERRER - WAKRARZIE
2EWEAT]

China Resources Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (Z
TrRRlEEB AR ET AR, formerly known as Jiangxi Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd CIFE IR & Z (EE) AR ET A
A]), a company established in the PRC, the controlling Shareholder of
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

EFHHEEARAT  —HKRPBIKINEREETAT - RAFHRBEE
EEROEEFAHE0%ER

China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd. GE/EATREHFRRAR]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, in which CRI holds 60% indirect interest
as at the date of this annual report

EHBEREEEARAR B RBEROHARARF - —FKR_Z
ZTF+ A+ RRBPEEZIMKIOAF - RARREZEN
&R A]

China Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial Group Company Limited
(s EEB AR AR, formerly known as Beijing Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. QL REZERHBFRAR]), a company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC on 27 December 2000 and a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company
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[EEEeEEERr

“CR Pharmaceutical Holdings”

[FEB=Nl

“CR Sanjiu”

[#BfEst]

“CR Trust”

[E=]

“Director(s)”

[SREFE

“Dong-E-E-Jiao”

[

"Group"

-
“Hong Kong”

L% |

“Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical”

EHBEERERAF - AIBF=NERERAR - —KBERBERE
A AT - BARRAIZEWNB AR
China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited (3 &8 %2
fEABR A F]), formerly known as New Sanjiu Holdings Co., Ltd (37 = L%
[&BMRAF]), a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

ER-NBEROHERAR  AIMZNABERMAERLT  —KRBRE
REDEET MM AR - ERMERINESFZ S P i (RGH KR
000999) * W RARR ZFEEEWNBAF

China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Company Limited (£
BN EERHBRAR]), formerly known as Sanjiu Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.(ZNE &R (HBMR AT, a company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code : 000999) and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company

ERHABRKRETEBERAR - —KRPBEKUHERETAR - RAER
BE - ERRMOFEEFRS1 %S

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (ZEERBEREEEAR AR, a
limited liability company established in the PRC, in which CRI holds 51%
interest as at the date of this annual report

ARBES

director(s) of the Company

SREE RN B R AR - ARSI R R B ER - LR R R (R E) iR
MERARRILURRMMWBROBRAGR - —RIBBHEVEZEFT ML
BAE] - ERMIRYIEFR S (RGARSE - 000423) - WAKRD
Bl EMB AT

Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (BEFIPTBREZ (D BBR A F]), formerly
known as Shandong Dong-E-E-Jiao Factory (lLiZR B FIFAE2[R), Shandong
Dong-E-E-Jiao (Group) Co., Ltd. (LU R (@) BB AR A A))
and Shandong Dong-E-E- Jiao Co., Ltd. (LR R BRMERAED), a
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC, the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code : 000423) and a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

RRRREK B AT

the Company and its subsidiaries

PEEBFRTITERR
the Hong Kong SAR of the PRC

TREERNERAR  —KRPEKIAAF] - HROE DEFEFR
S B (RHARSE - 600750) W RERTIHEE 22 EHE QA
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. CIFRZEEZ R M AR A F), a
company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code : 600750) and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Jiangzhong Group

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 9
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[Em#Ra]

“Listing Rules”

M7
“Model Code”

[BRER]
“Prospectus”

[ S HAR
“Reporting Period”

(3 RITHE
IISARII

[ &% R AERA
"SFO"

(B3]
“Share(s)”

[BRER
“Shareholder(s)”

(B 32 FRr

“Stock Exchange”

Bl 8%
“HK$" or “HKD"

[ARH]
“RMB"”

ES
"US$" or llUlel
(%]

ll%'l
REHRA - RPBERINABRER  ERIE

FREY P S A R SRR R AN (TSR - BERA
R AR -
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B A2 PEE 5 - T Bl (RS RRHERT)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as
amended from time to time)

FARAIM ST FrE ) BT ABRETESR ZHNIRLETA
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

RARRBAZE—AF+ATLAMNBRER
the prospectus of the Company dated 17 October 2016

HE_T-NF+-A=+—HILMBFE
the financial year ended 31 December 2019

B R RITTE R
Special Administrative Region, PRC

EBEDIEST EFESH LB GG T REEE])
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (as amended from time to time)

ZAN/NCIL ST
share(s) of the Company

ZN/NCTEO S GESTEUN
holder(s) of Shares of the Company

EEMERXZHMARRAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BT BEAEE!

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

AREETT - PEEAERH

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

x50 EBETEER
United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

Ekaisd

per cent

In the event of any inconsistency in the Chinese and English versions
of the names of the PRC established companies or entities, laws or
regulations in this annual report, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Chairman’s Statement

Mr. WANG Chuncheng, Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to all Shareholders
and stakeholders for their continuing support of CR Pharmaceutical.
As Chairman of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of CR
Pharmaceutical for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The past year has seen complex and profound changes in the international
situation. Increasing international trade and geopolitical frictions have
increased uncertainty of the outlook, with international economic
growth slowing and downward pressure mounting. China’s economy
has been affected by intensifying internal and external challenges, and
has embarked on economic transformation and restructuring, continuing
to deepen its reforms. With supply-side reform at their core, policies of
industrial upgrading and structural adjustment have been successively
implemented. For China’s pharmaceutical industry, policies were issued
and implemented one after another, the medical reform has entered a
deepening and assertive stage, the intensity of medical cost control and
regulation has increased unprecedentedly, and the industry has entered
a period of deepening adjustment and optimization, moving forward
along the track of high quality and refinement to further promote the
construction of a "healthy China’.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 11
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The year 2019 is a crucial year for the Group to fully implement its “13th
Five-Year Plan” strategy. Under the leadership of CR Group, the Group
has inherited CR Group's attitude of keeping stability in changes, and
has been actively responding to policy changes and market challenges,
deepening reform and innovation, and fully utilizing the advantages of
integrated business layout after experiencing the pains brought about
by environmental changes. The Group will further adjust its product mix,
improve its industrial layout, accelerate innovation in its research and
development (“R&D") system, continuously promote and deepen business
synergy and resource sharing, steadily expand its mergers and acquisitions
and international collaboration, and optimize its operation and control
system, so as to continue to strengthen its leading edge and become a
leader in the Chinese pharmaceutical industry.

During the reporting period, against the backdrop of intensifying external
challenges and the accelerated implementation of complementary policies
such as medical insurance cost control, the Group achieved total revenue
of HK$204,453.9 million in 2019, representing a year-on-year increase
of 7.8% (12.6% year-on-year increase in terms of RMB) and achieved a
healthy growth. Profit declined due to the impact of industrial policies,
the decline in Dong-E-E-Jiao's annual results and the impairment of
goodwill, resulting in a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$3,286.4 million, a decrease of 17.4% (13.7% year-on-year decrease
in terms of RMB) compared with that of 2018.

Looking ahead to 2020, it will be a crucial decade for global economy
to accelerate the transformation from old to new dynamics, with the
world situation evolving quickly and the risks of economic polarization
and even confrontation still worthy of caution. However, 2020 will
also be a key node for China’s economic restructuring and upgrading.
It is also an important period for the restructuring and upgrading of
China’s pharmaceutical industry and the reshaping of its competitive
landscape. The year as well is a convergence period between the
conclusion of the "13th Five-Year Plan’ and the beginning of the ‘14th
Five-Year Plan’. China’s pharmaceutical and health industry will enter a
period of accelerated transformation, with huge room for development,
a continuous trend of integration, increasing industry concentration,
from which the market leaders are getting stronger. The Group remains
optimistic about the long-term development of the pharmaceutical
industry in the PRC, as the aging population, health awareness and
disease spectrum changes have ensured the rigid demand for the
development of the pharmaceutical industry.
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RIE AARRREZS - BRAHRBEHNB
E-FRAKHENHKEERET  28KRE &
FRERAERHEAEENTEFRENRE
£ UREREREEBRCNFHE S -

The Group will continue to uphold its mission vision of “Protecting
Human Health and Improving Quality of Life”, actively face the new
developments and new trends, respond to new opportunities and
challenges, and seriously implement the working theme of “Reform and
innovation, quality and development” around the development objectives
of the "13th Five-Year Plan’ strategy, actively and firmly pushing forward
the effective implementation of various tasks. We will seize opportunities
arising from policies, observe the market development direction,
strengthen innovation and transformation, accelerate the cultivation
of new businesses and increase investment in R&D. We will focus on
creating business synergies and reinforcing resource integration, increase
outbound M&A efforts, enrich product introduction and international
collaboration, explore innovative breakthroughs in investment methods.
We will adjust the business structure, promote business transformation,
encourage model innovation, improve development quality, lay a solid
foundation for the development of the “13th Five-Year Plan” strategy,
continuously enhance the Group’s core competitiveness, and aspire
to become an integrator and innovator in China’s pharmaceutical
manufacturing and distribution industries, and bring greater value to the
pharmaceutical industry in the new era.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to once again express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders, customers and strategic partners
for their continued support and long-term trust in the Group, as well
as the management team and all staff for their hard work during the
challenging operating environment in the past year.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 13
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(AR EREBE2ETRAREREMKE TEREREE
B REENER S M ER 2mo)(EREFTRBIL) -
R ERBBNHELEMER—BIETE - FEENERS
TR (2mo) Rl MiE B ZBE — B AHE - AARZERR
KOTISHENMTSHET  TA-BMFERREELR Y
FHEBQLERXEELRGYE -

(9 January) CR Double-Crane’s wholly-owned subsidiary
China Resources Saike Pharmaceutical received the
Approval Document from the National Medical Products
Administration (“NMPA"”) on Drug Supplementary
Application for Terazosin Hydrochloride Tablets (2mg), which
approved the drug to pass the generic drug’s consistency
evaluation of quality and efficacy. The drug is the first of the
similar variety to have passed the consistency evaluation,
it will benefit to its future sales and competitiveness in the
market. It also helped in accumulating experience in passing
the consistency evaluation, and have positive impact on CR
Double-Crane’s future operating performance.

14 2019548 o EHBEEBERAT

(—A+8)E=BEmEs (R ARAR ([ EBEyEEEE]) H A K
PPMX(Perseus Proteomics Inc.)X B15 B RS (EtpaE o B 515
FEL BT B R B RIS A EEI T2 EA1E + MIIRPPMXTEH
BB MIFEHER - WSERRTIS - RS 5 EARN
BIFTIMBEYNEIE T BE - EHEMBEEUIEE AE1E

AT EE - FRERE B APPMXAZ ORI F & 1 TH R 451
P WEKEBBEEIMENRENNTE  TEEMKRM
& e

(10 January) China Resources Biopharmaceutical (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CR Biopharm”) signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with Japan’s Perseus Proteomics Inc. (PPMX).
Both parties will cooperate on the innovative research and
development (R&D) of antibody on oncology drug, accelerate
the R&D process of PPMX’s antibody drug in development,
introduce into the China market, and further explore the
establishment of the collaboration platform on innovative
antibody drugs. CR Biopharm will leverage the strategic
cooperation as a carrier to explore the use of PPMX's core
technology platform on developing antibody drug, in order
to form a new variety and platform on biological drug for CR
Pharmaceutical, and to improve the product portfolio.

PdPPmE
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—H JANUARY

__H FEBRUARY

(—AZT—R)EBRIMAKIERFMERE (10mgF25mg) &
BEREREBERR - RENE - WEABRS LA
RCRE EMEEm B RE) - RIFEAREY B & o KIFRIETEE
—HEFEYESER2UARNEED  BRAZEBRNTEHNE
A LB FRENMTIBANEES - IRETIHMmE R B EE
BE - BEEESIER BRI -

(21 January) The two specifications (10mg and 25mg) of
China Resources Zizhu Pharmaceutical’s Mifepristone Tablets
passed the consistency evaluation of quality and efficacy of
generic drugs, and were included in the China Marketed
Drugs Catalogs as referenced drug, and were included in
the National Drug Reimbursement List (NDRL). These will
enhance the core competitiveness and profitability of CR
Zizhu's major products, improve its brand awareness and
reputation, and consolidate its position in the reproductive
health industry.

(—AZT—R)ERBERAARELER B EABERR
IR DAL - AR B A BRI B E K D20
£ ERRARRULERBEE  REBRREBEAINEE
ERRAR AR KR

(21 January) CR Pharmaceutical was included in the Hang
Seng SCHK Mainland China Healthcare Index (HSSCHI).
The HSSCHI includes 20 constituents, and reflects the
performance of Chinese mainland companies in the
healthcare industry which are listed in Hong Kong and
eligible for trading via the southbound trading link of the
Stock Connect Scheme.

(CATAR) EEEEREE ERETERBARARNER
EXEERARAR(NRERE]) 25%M5E - mEEEE—
Rt REE « REE - EARIE - NS #IE R E R R
BEMOEER  TEBEEE RM  FMMKERPETS -
HARZEPRE-FEZLB(CARENTEERES &
RETEXHNBENE - BCARBETEM SN D HAT
EXBHHFEL

(19 February) CR Pharmaceutical acquired a 25% equity
interest in Tycoon Group Holdings Limited (“Tycoon
Group”) through China Resources Pharmaceutical Retail
Group Limited. Tycoon Group supplies a wide range of
proprietary Chinese medicines as well as health, personal
care, skin care and other healthcare products, in Hong
Kong, Macau, Singapore and China. The transaction will
further optimize the Group’s retail product portfolio, achieve
synergies with the Group's retail business, and strengthen
the Group’s competitive advantage in the distribution and
retail business in Hong Kong.

(CAZTR)ERBEREXERSMERAR ((EHEHRR
W) BEEXBRER(LE) ARAREIERBRZUMA(ER
# o REWE  EHBRESMERAZAKERETRERER
2EATHEEANRE B BHEEREYEEEEHRD
SERER - WARRRXBENGE £ TLETEHR
EmER B ESRMERR

(20 February) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial Medical
Devices Co., Ltd. (“CR Medical Devices”) signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Terumo Medical (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. in Beijing. By the agreement, CR Medical Devices
will become the national general agency for the entire
line of Terumo Medical’s regular hospital products, of
which angiographic catheter is an exclusive in the market.
The cooperation will further enrich CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial’s medical device product line.

TERUMO AND CR PHARMA COMM

ERE -FHEHRI
YU

FIVBATRATEGRE DOPERATION
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—_H FEBRUARY

(ZAZ+=H)EHBEER THER TR EEAUE - Wi
TR - EHEERE R TR EEMEREIPE343.03%
RIRRHE o TR EEATBEAHNOTCEREELE  £EE
AHREARSNRENEEMTISHEE  AIERE - Edam -
HE R HERESZAIFmEASEREEREERRR
BE BRRE—PRECERBARNSETREARDEER
FREEN R SR AL EF T

(22 February) CR Pharmaceutical completed its acquisition for
CR Jiangzhong Group. Upon completion, CR Pharmaceutical
through CR Jiangzhong Group, indirectly held a 43.03%
equity interest in Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical. The latter
is a leading China-based OTC production enterprise with
a high brand recognition and market share in terms of
gastrointestinal and oropharyngeal products. It will reach
synergies with the Group’s pharmaceutical business in
aspects such as brand, product, manufacturing, R&D and
sales channels, and will further strengthen and enhance the
Group's core competitiveness in the fields of CHC Consumer
Healthcare business and treatment and development of
TCM.

N\

(ZA+THRA)EHEEEEEEAfresa R EE B XBEMEA
TREIEMTE - NRGEBREE  SEFESaERERRK
miEER - KEEE  AFRBEIENED - KEKRRER
HIEEEIR RS - 25 MEBE  PERMELEREN
aiFElE -

(15 March) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial Group and
Alfresa Group entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement. The alliance aims to leverage the
parties’ respective advantages in distribution networks,
product variety and resources, operational management and
innovative services, and foster opportunities for collaboration
in areas such as hospital supply chain management services,
new models of pharmacy operation, and the import and
export of Chinese and Japanese drugs.
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I8 APRIL

EA-TR)EHEEREEEILRBETEEN KRS AR H
Eil%%fﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ@i\%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁlﬁE SR e g
TRARAFREDE BB AN RSB RERNRTAEREY
moRER B BRUR  BEEE  RPEEEIR
TERI - %ﬁﬁﬁ"%ﬁﬂ’]@t%ﬁ' BIEIRTS o R - 181577
BAAEMEEER ETRILAT  SHERRR  BERR
A - REFEFRIFENARE R - REZBERMEE
EBRNERREMEE - FEROEER -

(20 March) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial Group's
subsidiary Beijing Teck Soon Hong Pharmaceutical
Technologies and Betta Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd.
commenced a financial supply chain service project. The
project will leverage on CR Pharmaceutical Commercial
Group's online platform, CR Pharma e-store, to implement
the flows of goods, bills, capital and information, as well as
patient management, and Patient Assistance Program into
online and offline services in manufacturing, retail and credit
guarantee parties. In the future, Teck Soon Hong will use
access to internet medical, prescription sharing, medical and
commercial insurance to boost the popularity of innovative
drugs, provide low-cost and high-quality drugs, and
professional, convenient medical services to more patients.

(MAmB)EFIFEEEXENFERNSREERRKAS FiH
& BORAERBBEARET  BBZTl  ERIFNERN
%ﬂ‘%%‘%ﬂé\f’ﬁ CIERRRFESRES  BREFEKNLE

BB EAEC A - R B IR AT - B
/IEP’EIH#ZE DEBEMETERE  THARMNGE « A%
¥oh ) FERTmEREE  BXEHFETAEEELSE
REERNIIRE

(4 April) CR Jiangzhong Group and Meituan Dianping
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement in
Nanchang. In an environment of internet, both parties will
provide diverse and innovative cross-boundary business
support and cooperation to shape concepts of healthy
eating and build a new ‘Eat Well, Live Well and Digest Well’
consumer ecosystem. CR Jiangzhong Group will make full
use of the Internet platform to expand business, create new
momentum and continue to enhance its brand reputation
jointly with Meituan Dianping to create a healthy food and
beverage consumption pattern.

@®xaaw | PRERRA

%l...‘#&lul l "EE?E
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U8 APRIL

(MA+NE)E BB T B & AT 2P0 Mk A
8 XEERA B RSN R E LB CP0119%
LR A | ESMAERE GRS - REHE - = 78RR 2
VR — 58 N {REHICPO119 < THE ATEAR M A S5 HH
REGRGE - XEZCARYETIE - BiREHACPO1195E5
RABLHEMFENZERIER - MEE - BHERREEES
BRES - RIRTISBNERX °

(19 April) The National Institute of Pharmaceutical R&D
under CR Pharmaceutical, together with Nankai University
and Tianjin International Joint Academy of Biomedicine
have entered into a cooperative development agreement for
the Class | Chemical New Drug CP0119. The three parties
will jointly develop the new drug. The project’s initial stage
was designed by Professor Yang Cheng’s team at Nankai
University, where several researches was conducted. It was
proved that CP0119 was free from the various side effects,
drug resistance and incompatibility of the patients comparing
to existing drugs on the market, and showed great market
potential.

RERENESR AT
CREBSEEEFRF Ay -

(MA=ZTR)EHEBERMHAE - HAMEEEEHKEIB xR
mE B EE BRI R — FEAIAEREH (500mg) (%« &
M EREERELN)  RAEHEBEERE BHER
FEEBIRHEMENER B ENER

(30 April) CR Double-Crane’s wholly-owned subsidiary
Wanhui Double-Crane Pharmaceutical received the Approval
Document from the NMPA on Drug Supplementary
Application for Metformin Hydrochloride Sustained-Release
Tablets (500mg). The drug is the third that have passed the
generic drug’s consistency evaluation of quality and efficacy
after Yashida and Mashani under CR Double-Crane.

\_

(RAZ+mA) EHEEETAR EMARER=- N - #HE
#E - TR A PRl B2 49 A = B 2B 22 (FTSE Russel) 2 BRIEBIT IER A4
e EHBEEE TN = RAR AR BEREAABRREATS
BE2EE BEURELZGINEEENENSH - BEES
BRESMET  E—TEMEATSER -

(24 June) Three A-share listed companies under CR
Pharmaceutical — CR Sanjiu, CR Double-Crane and Dong-
E-E-Jiao — have been included in the FTSE Russell Global
Index. With three of CR Pharmaceutical’s subsidiaries were
included into the important indicators on the international
capital market, it is expected to attract more attention from
overseas investors, international funds, and to further release
value in capital market.

(RAZHN R EBEERmERERNEERETURAFERT -
R T RRDABREBRENTRE - FHB AR ARER
BEBMFRSELENIFAER LAITNRE  HBHRER
EMSHENGRBLNAR EHRNBERAED £
—SEERERRLRENR  RRERRSVOFEZEREK
R TREEMNEZIER -

(28 June) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with DYNE Pharma (i
A %), opening a new chapter in pediatrics therapy.
The agreement marked a new cooperation between the
manufacturing and distribution business sectors, and
will further promote the children’s drug market to a new
level. Both parties will use their respective advantages and
consolidate treatments of paediatric diseases, which will
play an important role in fostering the healthy growth of
youngsters in China.
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(LA ERBENEEEER AR NAGRARE11.26TH(E

BHRRBAIEHIINIREERERNDBRARZES - X5
BREABANRESE0.6EBIL(HEERBEL637388T) ' It
KRBT - EHBERES R RGSEESBERARKRA
20% o BEEEEANTESGEENESZEURBRAR EH
AR AERTNEBEBREEETS NG EBERE
DEMRAERBES BN AEEE-—THRESRBERE -
FELEBHR  FRREAASETEREHSNGEHT S

(July) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial acquired and
subscribed shares of Zhejiang Int’l Group Co., Ltd. at a
price of RMB11.26 per share, with a total transaction
value of approximately RMB560.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$637.3 million). Upon completing
the transaction, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial holds
20% of Zhejiang Int’l Group's total share capital. As
a leading pharmaceutical distributor in Zhejiang and a
domestic A-share listed company, Zhejiang Int’l Group
has a solid business foundation and cooperative platform.
The partnership between the two parties will bring
complementary advantages and strong alliances, which will
help the Group to further expand its distribution channels,
deepen its business layout, and enhance its competitiveness
in eastern China.

NANR) EBEMBEEILREFA RS LB (@Ent 7l
M) REEERmEEINERASR] AR 2BMEES - 708U
MREERAREERROFEANRNEGE - 8L HEXIEMESE
BB REzEMRERR T HENNRESS  dARIRRT B
EHREREENE  SUEKHEEENTELERBIE
THREERMMBET T RARSINERE - AREZNEF
B EBIDa B s it BN RASBRE 2B E A ERXR
) o

(8 August) CR Biopharm convened a nationwide seminar
for researchers focusing on the Phase Il Clinical Trial of
Reteplase (product name: Rui Tong Li) for the Treatment
of Acute Pulmonary Embolism project. More than 70
researchers and research institute representatives attended.
During the seminar, the project team gave a briefing
covering the project’s research background, the design of
the clinical trials, and key points and plans of the project’s
implementation. The experts also discussed about the plans
and issues potentially arising during the implementation
process. The seminar signified the formal launch of clinical
trials of Rui Tong Li in China for the treatment of acute
pulmonary embolism.

NA+=ZR)ERELREEBEBETERZTHHA D
T ZBRAFEERIHESREEENEMTATEDSE -
SEB(ComENREERMSRE  ERTBREY T RIENR
W B EAHRERIEE D TERTT - AR EHBERESE
B RBRBEPRNBEAE  E-FRABRSE &
B THBRROFERNMSEARERIEABEREN  BA
RERGREZAREN  EOHNEE -

(12 August) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial Group entered
into a strategic cooperation agreement with Mylan China.
The agreement will gradually introduce more premium
products into the China market, optimize the high quality
generic drugs structure, enhance accessibility to clinical
drugs, and lift capability of drug supply. In future, CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial will further enhance market
access and capacity of distribution coverage for urgently
needed and/or irreplaceable new drugs through strategic
cooperation with Mylan China, thus providing the public
with a wider choice and appropriate new drugs.

J
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NATRR)EBE=NERANARRAERREDL XA
ERGE  RRERESE - BER-NBERS BEEEREER
BELZNER L BHREARMOREMNEHERN  SREER
BERENIEE MR LR THEMAIRE - BEMA—
- HRRRWALHE - KOLFERFIEN  BREm+ZHE
VS REREEREBEE  REE-ARBNNLN 12
FHamRREREEST ©

(15 August) CR Sanjiu reached an strategic cooperation
agreement with Japan’s Ryukakusan Co., Ltd., which is
famous in oropharynx drugs. CR Sanjiu will leverage on its
advantages in the sales channel of traditional pharmacies
to further explore new channels and marketing modes,
including China Resources’s supermarket channels, online,
offline and other innovative channels. Together with
Ryukakusan, CR Sanjiu will continue to explore on online
marketing, such as promote via key opinion leaders, to
facilitate the tradition pharmacies channel, explore new sales
terminal and enhance ability in brand building.

(A= B) BEmER R EARE (5 8) ARAR (EARE
(BB) ) BFBTEMRREA FHE - BEAEHE - SR
i 3 4 BB 5 2 = 3%(0.25ug * 205) 1 2 BIAR AT 475 - 1B
BRI ATARSE (58 BRITROEEEE  BRLHS
B BRSO EE RAED - BRILRATE - BER
ST EATARE (B8 RIE EHE  BEE—SHRAR
EL TR

(20 August) CR Pharma e-Store (HZERE L) and CP
Pharmaceutical (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. (“CP Pharmaceutical
(Qingdao)”) entered into a retail market strategic
cooperation agreement. As per the agreement, CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial becomes the general national
distributor of Gaisanchun (0.25ug*20s) (“Haidewei”,
New Ossified Triol Capsules). Leveraging on the visualised
channel network built by CR Pharma e-store for CP
Pharmaceutical (Qingdao), it can reach sales terminal with
high efficiency and promote diversified campaigns. Based
on the cooperative agreement, CR Pharma e-Store not only
provides online distribution for CP Pharmaceutical (Qingdao),
but also further develops compliant marketing plans.

\_

NAZT B IEB NS aRERR AR EARE &
ZEUR)BRARME - BB ENEBEERSHPEM
BRETRMEEAR - B BRRER EMAFARHAEALTR
BFEAIE - WRAARBERBEF -NARENAIE - AJERRH
& HEHBRANEZEMZT HESUKROZESER
RS

(28 August) Zhejiang China Resources Sanjiu Zhongyi
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and Humanwell
PuraCap Pharmaceuticals (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. entered into
a production entrustment agreement in relation to a soft
capsule product under R&D development in the PRC market.
Both parties will cooperate in accordance with the Marketing
Authorization Holder of the pharmaceutical product. The
cooperation between PuraCap and CR Sanjiu marks a
powerful combination, and it is believed that the product
will be brought to the market at the greatest possible speed.
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1B SEPTEMBER

+H OCTOBER

(MWAZTRR)EEEBRMAE H2ETFARERERK
A TEREREEEERBENIEMUER A (5ma) (B m 7t 5
B c ZERNIA1BHAMBRREEREL - RERESR
ERBHHELTENFEYU—BUTENER - RREHLEE
BBHERZ Fr (Smo)IEFIE B —BUERHE - BB MR Z S m AR RE T
BHENTIZHT  HHARNKEREELRHTZE -

(25 September) CR Double-Crane’s wholly-owned subsidiary
China Resources Saike Pharmaceutical received the Approval
Document from the NMPA on Drug Supplementary
Application for Finasteride Tablets (5mg), which approved
the drug to pass the generic drug'’s consistency evaluation of
quality and efficacy. The drug is the first of the similar variety
to have passed the consistency evaluation, it will benefit to
its future sales and competitiveness in the market, as well
as to have positive impact on CR Double-Crane’s future
operating performance.

(tAZR)EHBEZABHE TS FREEMRRFEF O
B —SRAIETEY) — R IR AR (L (PF))R B — SRR #ENIP292
EESERRMEREEEERFDABRKARIE - WEEEE
T—HIBR IR A8 o bR IESE B [ R S5k BR 55 (IND) ] SR ¥R Th 2
BIFTEEYINIP292TH B eV E B B1208 - TR BB FEH T B
R EREER FBHNEZ—F  BREPEBERTEST
RmaEal # YT mEUS IR - WiGtESERE S
Fee N EE— TR -

(3 October) NIP292, an innovative new drug for the
treatment of idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis (IPF) developed
by The National Institute of Pharmaceutical R&D (an R&D
platform belonging to CR Pharmaceutical) obtained approval
for clinical trials by the US Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and conducted phase 1 clinical trials in the USA. The
successful ‘Investigational New Drug (IND)" application in
the USA is a significant milestone for the NIP292 project
and an important step in the development of Chinese
medical research on international new drugs, symbolizing a
breakthrough in the development of rare disease treatments
and innovation in Chinese medical research by CR
Pharmaceutical.

(tANR) EREBEHAE  HE2ETARERENEIN
PR SR B R R A EE B IE B ERBE P ORIMEF -
BWE TRREREEERERBRENT ZHFEF(0.59) &R
AR o ARRFEHEE 2R 7818 1 (0.59) B3B8 — B
AHE - BAFRZERRROTIZHENTSEHS - HHAR
MR EXBELBEGRE -

(8 October) CR Double-Crane’s wholly-owned subsidiary China
Resources Saike Pharmaceutical received the Approval Document
from the NMPA on Drug Registration for Levetiracetam Tablets
(0.5g), which approved the drug to pass the generic drug’s
consistency evaluation of quality and efficacy. Passing the
consistency evaluation will benefit to the drug’s future sales and
competitiveness in the market, and will have positive impact on
CR Double-Crane’s future operating performance.

J
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+H OCTOBER

+—H NOVEMBER

(TAZtTZR)ERBERHAE  BRELLEZE/ER
BENTES BFRITE BTREEIF  EXERZE
SREB RERERE -

(22 October) CR Pharmaceutical announced the appointment
of Mr. HAN Yuewai as an executive Director, chief executive
officer, chairman of the executive committee, member
of the corporate governance committee and authorized
representative of CR Pharmaceutical.

(tA-+=B)EB-NEAARMEEREEREATAELRE
EEFMBAlnaminEREERBTE - EE=-NSBERBEIX
MEREEFRAEFETSORECEREMEE - FSES
YR RE M E RS MBR B ESWmIER T A ELH.

(23 October) CR Sanjiu and Japan’s Takeda Consumer
Healthcare Company Limited signed a cooperation
agreement in Beijing on the exclusive distribution rights for
Takeda’s product Alinamin. CR Sanjiu will be responsible
for the commercialization and sales of Takeda’s well-known
Alinamin products in the China market. Both parties have
also reached a consensus on a future cooperation on other
products and cross-border e-commerce business.

(t—AZ+ER)EBR=NLM - BEEQREREEBR -
BERREMS  BEAFERE - ARFEBRBGERIKER
B HQBH-19618 H FTA BRI R R M3 ERE - LAREHABEE
FIET3% I 975 (88 B R A0 0 [ 7 35 A8 S R B M O RE R - R BB
BETAREIEL  BERFEARREEESD -

(27 November) CR Sanjiu announced its intention to
purchase all the technological achievements and intellectual
property rights of QBH-196 Project held by Shenyang
Pharmaceutical University, as well as rights to develop and
operate the product in countries and regions covered by
related patents. The total transaction value was RMB100
million, sourced from the Company’s own funds. The
purchase was implemented as part of the Company’s
business development strategy and will enrich product
portfolio and spur innovative development.

(T—AZ+ERER=NALRH BRI BEEFEZLES -
mEMERS  BRATBKAR  AREEREBEEGRE
B BRAR ([BEEEE])2F (BERORE (hE) BEER AR
ZBHEEBRAR)  HREEOEXFARE (TE)RESR
RAR([RwRE|HBERE ) 100% K o XX SHER
HFARMK142(B7L - E2RBRA/RRBFER -

(27 November) CR Sanjiu announced that, in view of
leveraging its core advantages, enriching brand and product
portfolio and realizing strategic objectives, it intends to
enter into an equity transfer agreement in relation to
Aonuo (China) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., with Harbin Gloria
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd ("Gloria Pharmaceutical”).
CR Sanjiu is to acquire 100% equity of Aonuo (China)
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Aonuo Pharmaceutical” or
“Target Company”). The total transaction value was
RMB1.42 billion, sourced from the Company’s own funds.

e =
=8
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+—H NOVEMBER

+_H DECEMBER

(t—A-tN\R) EBBEEMREE TOEYERBEY (BA
R ER]  BEEANABRERERABITLEY) BREEFDN
YRR EEIENEB2019FHRBRAE SFHH - BHAR
RERE -

(28 November) CR Pharmaceutical announced that its
biological drug Rui Tong Li (generic name ‘reteplase’,
Recombinant Human Tissue Plasminogen Activator
Derivatives (r-PA)) successfully passed negotiation to be
included on the 2019 National Reimbursement Drug List,
citing its excellent pharmacoeconomic value.

(tZAZE)ERBEETH IZH=NZRREGRA R
IEREREEEERRERENNTERAN(ERHITR
R REMBEBHHEESNES—HUE - EthE
MHRERZBARE _BBHRE-SETENDRE -

(3 December) Zhejiang China Resources Sanjiu Zhongyi
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. GiIEB=A
DB AR /AF]), a subsidiary of CR Pharma, obtained
approval from the NMPA of drug supplementary application
for Azithromycin Tablets. The drug passed the consistency
evaluation on generic drug quality and efficacy. The Group
was the second enterprise to pass the consistency evaluation
for this drug.

J
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(ZAZ+H)EHEELERY
EERGEAERKA(BDO)X
g EESRHBENE_ER
B e REARAKEIEHFP
BERKENERRE HeRE
JA(ESG)ETFESGFE A FIAHE
LM AR RIESGHRERSE
A& ZHOBRTHEERY
BB EATESG T HE MR IRA

7
AR e

(20 February) CR Pharmaceutical
received the 'ESG Report
of the Year Award (Newly Listed Companies)’ and ‘Best in
ESG Award’ at the ‘Second ESG Awards’ event organized
and hosted by BDO and co-organized by the South China
Morning Post, which fully reflects the public recognition of
its outstanding ESG performance.

(AAZ+ =)A= immh EHE RS EBEWPPIE TR T 5
F A FMillward BrownZ4i 72019/ & A B EHEMAE100
BIBE - EH=NBALEEWNESIM - AANEZEERN
PO S F AR MR 2 — o

(22 May) Millward Brown, an established market research
company under WPP, the global brand communications
and public relations group, released its ‘Top 100 Most
Valuable Chinese Brands' list for 2019. CR Sanjiu was again
featured with a ranking of 83, and was among the only four
pharmaceutical-related brands on the list.
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(5 June) CR Jiangzhong Group was cited as an advanced
collective in the ‘Second China Ecological Civilization Awards'’
at the global home events of World Environment Day. It
was the first such award won by a Chinese manufacturing
enterprise.

(GSAZ+7"A) Bt A REE = (World Brand Lab)E ## 85
FxfE Mt R R A S |34 720199 (R ES00& A EERE)
DTS o HE R B8 BEHE T 5R TP BB A SR AR (B (E313.958 0T - {1
F183fL ¢ FERII A & EAMEEE237.36187T « i151]248f1 -

(26 June) The 16th ‘World Brand Summit’, organized by
World Brand Lab, released the 2019 analysis report of
‘China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands'. Dong-E-E-Jiao under CR
Pharmaceutical ranked 183th on the list with its brand value
of RMB31.395 billion, while CR Jiangzhong Group ranked
248th with RMB23.736 billion.

(RAZHAB) ZHBEEEERA TR AR THNE
U [ A R 0 SR B 5 o AT B A A b
BHEEE | PEEEEBE—TREE AL REREEE
MEEES - E16RBEO LT - MBS A REE R 2
RO

(28 June) CR Pharmaceutical was again named as ‘Capital
Outstanding China Pharmaceutical Group’ at the ‘14th
Capital Outstanding Chinese Enterprise Achievement
Awards’ sponsored by Capital magazine, highlighting
the Group’s outstanding business performance and solid
development potential. Among the 16 award-winning
enterprises, CR Pharmaceutical was the only one in the
pharmaceutical and healthcare industry.

(L A+E)HER X BEMHB2019F (W =) P E50058 51T
B BE B EE59fL ©

(10 July) CR Pharmaceutical ranked 59th in the ‘Fortune
China Top 500 of 2019’ released by Fortune China.

(EATAR)EB-NENRISFEEFREEET E FHm] X5
BERPEPETOPI00EER » fIH|E=

(19 July) CR Sanjiu ranked 3rd in the ‘Top 100 Enterprises in
the China Pharmaceutical Industry of 2018".
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(11 August) CR Sanjiu again earned a place among the
‘Top 100 Chinese Main Board Listed Companies’ owing
to its steady operation and development and outstanding
corporate governance at the ‘Core Assets and Value
Oriented Listed Companies Value Summit Forum and
Awards Presentation’ organised by the Securities Times and
conducted by the China Listed Companies Development
Association. CR Sanjiu has won the award several times
since 2008, reflecting the capital market’s recognition of its
consistent competitiveness and investment value.
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(14 August) Various of CR Pharmaceutical products were
included on the ‘Healthy China — Brand List’ for 2019. On
the "Value List’, Dong-E-E-Jiao ranked 1st again with its
brand value of RMB15.379 billion, while 999 Ganmaoling,
Jiangzhong Jianwei Xiaoshi tablets, 999 Piyanping, 999
Xiao'er Ganmao granules, Yuting and Gold Yuting were all
listed. CR Sanjiu’s 999 Ganmaoling, 999 Xiao’er Ganmao
granules, 999 Piyanping, Lixuwang Xuesaitong soft capsules
were ranked in the top three in the ‘cold and flu drugs for
adult’, ‘cold and cough drugs for children’, ‘dermatological
drugs’ and ‘cerebral vascular drugs’ categories, respectively,
while CR Jiangzhong Group’s Lihuo Lactobacillus tablets
were ranked 1st among ‘digestives’. Dong-E-E-Jiao was
ranked 1st in ‘nutritional medicine’, and CR Zizhu's
Yuting and Golden Yuting were ranked 1st among ‘oral
contraceptives’. Moreover, CR Sanjiu’s 999 Jinweiduo and
CR Zizhu's propolis oral film were included on the ‘Rui Sub-
List" of the "Healthy China — Brand List” of 2019.

NAZ+HRB)EBEEAE2018FEFHBEET X TR E
B8 - [I5ERE o

(25 August) CR Pharmaceutical ranked 5th in the 'Top 100
Enterprises in the PRC Pharmaceutical Industry of 2018".
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(8 October) Several subsidiaries of CR Pharmaceutical
received awards in the 2019 competitiveness evaluation of
listed Chinese pharmaceutical companies organised by the
Chinese Pharmaceutical Enterprises Association and China
Medicinal Biotech Association and conducted by Healthcare
Executive magazine. CR Sanjiu was cited among the ‘Top
20 Competitive Listed Chinese Pharmaceutical Companies
of 2019’ and received an 'EHS Social Responsibility Award’,
while CR Double-Crane and Dong-E-E-Jiao received the
‘Product Safety and Social Responsibility Award'.

(TATR) ERTEBEE20RTER (B) @F B HRASRMN
[HEE705 BFFIRMRI2019FPRBHELER  BEKR &
BREAEBMTEX L 70FFEEERERKRT - FHE
BRE[PEEREEISRE] -

(10 October) CR Pharmaceutical was named as one of the
‘Top 35 Backbone Enterprises of China’ at the ‘Magnificent
70 Years and New Era for Striving — 2019 Conference of
Entrepreneurs, Scientists and Investors cum Development
and Achievement Exhibition of the Pharmaceutical Industry
on the 70th Anniversary of China’ event jointly held by 20
pharmaceutical industry associations and institutions.

(tA+R)  EHESETIRAMESEBMAMN2019F R B8 51T
¥FEESPE2019F RE B TESESRE 58 7KK - FEH
SR MEFATEEERNAEN2019PE L BRIETE T E 4
EREENERIBYR - @ LERG T [hRIEEBRETEES
Emmigl  EHEBETEk BRE B BEFE - #
Bk BEY - B0 WA - BFSER - EfER - NRE
FEEBIER9AA-) » FHZNHETI9EAF  /NEal)
HIPGEN - EHEMETSIED BIES MO BIEEZE
15 o

(10 October) CR Pharmaceutical was awarded “Top
10 China Pharmaceutical Enterprises 2019” at the
ChemPharm Annual Summit 2019 held in Nanchang, Jiangxi
Province, and CR Double-Crane and its subsidiary, China
Resources Saike, were awarded “Top 100 China Chemical
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Enterprises 2019". At
the summit, the “Outstanding Product Brands in China’s
Chemical Pharmaceutical Industry” was also announced.
The awards were given to CR Double-Crane’s Pitavastatin
Calcium tablets (Guanshuang), Valsartan capsules (Suiyue),
Amlodipine Besylate tablets (Yashida), Citicoline Sodium
tablets (Nuobaiyi), Metformin Hydrochloride Sustained-
release tablets (Buke), Calf Pulmonary Surfactant for
injection (Kelisu), BFS infusion, Large-volume IV infusion,
Pediatric Compound Amino Acid injection (19AA-I), and CR
Sanjiu’s 999 Piyanping, Pediatric Paracetamol, Atificial Cow-
bezoar and Chlorphenamine Maleate Granules, as well as
CR Zizhu's Levonorgestrel tablets (Gold Yuting), in each of
their sub-sectors.

oy 20197 BEESHBTUFZES

Wi#  ChemPharm Annual Summit 2019 |
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(16 October) CR Pharmaceutical was named ‘Pharmaceutical
Enterprise of the Year’ by the ‘2019 China Evergreen
Awards'.

(tAZ+=E2-1THmA)FTANETEERERFEHMT
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(22-24 October) CR Pharmaceutical’s subsidiaries
were named among the top enterprises in the ‘2019
Comprehensive Statistical Ranking of Chinese OTC Medicine
Manufacturers’ released at the 16th China Self-Medication
Annual Conference. CR Sanjiu again won first place on the
list, while Dong-E-E-Jiao, CR Jiangzhong Group and CR Zizhu
ranked 4th, 17th and 67th, respectively.

+H OCTOBER

The conference also revealed the ranking listing of the
2019 Comprehensive Statistical Ranking of OTC Products’
and various CR Pharmaceutical’s products were among
the top spots. CR Sanjiu’s 999 Ganmaoling granules/
capsules ranked 1st for the eighth consecutive year in the
cold and cough category (Chinese patent medicine), while
Compound Ganmaoling, Xiao'er Ganmao series , Piyanping,
Qiangli Pipalu, Banlangen granules, Sanjiu Weitai granules/
capsules, Qizhi Weitong granules, Zhengtian pellets, anti-
virus oral liquid, Gutong patch and Kangfute were listed.
CR Jiangzhong Group's Jiangzhong Jianwei Xiaoshi tablets
ranked 1st in the alimentary tract category (Chinese patent
medicine), with lactobacillus tablets and Caoshanhu
buccal tablets were also on the list. Dong-E-E-Jiao’s E-Jiao/
compound E-Jiao syrup was ranked 1st in the Qi- and blood-
supplementing category (Chinese patent medicine), with CR
Zizhu's Gold Yuting and Yuting also on the list.

(TA=Z+—B)EE=N EHEBENERTIPEEETIH
BETFH(PEZBEFR) BROE2E LTRSS FRBPES
[2018F E e+ HEIREBERE] -

(31 October) CR Sanjiu, CR Double-Crane and Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical under CR Jiangzhong Group were given
‘2018 Golden Bull Best Investment Value Awards’ at the 21st
Golden Bull Award for Listed Companies organised by the
China Securities Journal.
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(15 November) CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical was
included among the ‘Top Ten Supply Chain Enterprises’ at
the presentation ceremony for the '2018-2019 (the 3rd)
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Golden Award’ held at the 6th
China Pharmaceutical Logistics Industry Annual Conference.

(t—A+hB)EdamAY
KAREEEEIEE - (211t
Ao AS B SRE) EHEN 20197
BIAEREXES | FER
“NREEHESETERF
HRBEB NMNESFRKE - &
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(19 November) CR Sanjiu
received the ‘2019 China’s
Health Industry ‘Sunshine’

Award - Industry Benchmark Enterprise Award’ for its
outstanding social responsibility performance. The award
was bestowed by the 2019 China Health Industry Summit’
organised by the 21st Century Business Herald under the
direction of Southern Finance Omnimedia Corp.

(t—AZ+—H)ERREEE(EZH
PRI E TSR B [FE EH
©F¥2019/F1ED > BEREFE L
MR - AT R
b -

(22 November) CR Pharmaceutical
again won the ‘Listed Enterprise of
the Year’ award at the 2019 Listed
Enterprises of the Year’ ceremony

organised by Bloomberg Businessweek (Chinese version),
and was the only pharmaceutical enterprise to receive the
award.

\_

(tZAREB)EI2018-2019REFHEEE LB MIEIBEATAK
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(5 December) CR Jiangzhong Group's Jiangzhong Jianwei
Xiaoshi tablets and Jiangzhong Lihuo Lactobacillus tablets
were included on the '2018-2019 Top Brand List of Essential
Household Drugs — Gastrointestinal Category’, while
Jiangzhong Caoshanhu Buccal tablets was named on the
'2018-2019 Top Brand List of Essential Household Drugs —
Oral and Throat Category’ at the presentation ceremony for
the '2018-2019 Brand List of Essential Household Drugs'.

(tZAT=R) Ed LERFBEFPERNREERBEH L
A TME2019 LT RRIREERRBHBLE (S E 8] HREHA
B THRERKE2019FE [ EENFADAIE ] - AR
REBAMG LM ERRETPEXRMESREAE - 2E
ERRNAE °

(13 December) Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical received a
‘Golden Quality — Corporate Governance Award’ at the
2019 Listed Companies High-quality Development Forum
cum Golden Quality Award Presentation organised by
Shanghai Securities News and the China Securities Investor
Services Center. The award highlights capital market’s and
public recognition to Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical’s consistent
standardised governance and high-quality development.
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(17 December) At ‘The Chinese Brand of the Year 2019’
awards, Dong-E-E-Jiao was recognised as one of the ‘Chinese
Brand for the Year 2019’ and ranked No. 1 in the nutritional
and healthcare category for its solid strength and brand
reputation, reflecting its strong brand influence in the
nutritional and healthcare sector.

(tZA+ANB)EHETE
RS+ —E39R AT
BZIFErERAREESR
Bl ETEmI#E (T
RFEZE) B S B0 @
MR R A = 2 R SR
Bt FELBmEre
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BEE  tEHEXE NN
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(19 December) China Resources
Zizhu Pharmaceutical was
cited as ‘Corporate Citizenship
Practice Case of the Year’ on the 11th 39 Healthcare Annual
List, while its product Yuting (Levonorgestrel tablet) was
named ‘OTC Chemical Drug Brand of the Year for Internet
Impact’ in recognition of the brand’s strength and high
awareness among netizens. The awards reflect the wide
recognition from the market and industry on CR Zizhu's
brand value, corporate social impact and product strength.
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(25 December) CR Double-Crane’s Compound Reserpine and
Triamterene tablets (Hypertensive No. 0) was named as the
‘2019 Readers’ Recommended Household Antihypertensive
Drug’ by the Beijing Evening News. Developed in 1970s, the
product was the world’s first long-acting, small compound
antihypertensive drug with independent intellectual rights.
Users only need to take one tablet per day. Being a classical
prescription, and with its exact efficacy, high accomplishment
rate of target blood pressure and reasonable price, it is still
widely used clinically today, and there are over six million
patients using it on a long-term basis.

(tZAZ+HN\R) EHEBEAERNENRBEEMPHEEYE
MERmEMTEESEBRSBNNFEATEHEE2019
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E

(28 December) CR Double-Crane was named ‘2019
Benchmark Pharmaceutical Enterprise of the Year’ at the
4th annual ranking ‘Wisdom Growing Forum — 2019 Value
Pioneers of Pharmaceutical Industry’ organised by Sina
Pharmaceutical and China Medical Pharmaceutical Material
Association’s Food and Drug Industry Think Tank.



SIEE e

Financial Highlights

AEERBER AN BFRE 2 QEOES
BEABUARTIEMBLEMEIIRAOTD

A summary of the Group’s audited results, assets and liabilities and the
key financial ratios for the last five financial years is set out as follows":

=7
(restated)
FE(BEBT) For the year (in HK$ million)
g Revenue
T# Manufacturing 30,693 31,940 26,362 22,375 21,607
ok Distribution 167,094 152,151 141,826 130,313 121,191
TE Retail 6,463 5,455 4,244 3,914 3,651
Hit Others 204 143 100 103 119
“ay Total 204,454 189,689 172,532 156,705 146,568
eS| Gross profit 34,018 34,930 28,276 24,109 23,199
DEEE Segment earnings
I% Manufacturing 6,765 8,690 7,666 7,446 7,251
a3 Distribution 7,736 7,715 6,564 5,529 5,677
ZTE Retail 73 106 116 118 101
Hit Others 143 78 60 63 58
my Total 14,717 16,589 14,407 13,161 13,087
FNFIHE Profit for the year 5,098 7,572 6,867 5,968 6,082
NEEBNEETE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 3,286 3,978 3,483 2,821 2,850
M2B318 (BE#8T) As at 31 December (in HK$ million)
FRBEE Non-current assets 57,082 48,918 47,556 40,183 38,292
MEEE Current assets 132,943 127,266 113,199 93,802 88,857
BEE Total assets 190,025 176,184 160,755 133,985 127,149
ErE=E Non-current liabilities 13,772 12,357 5,883 8,699 15,079
RERE Current liabilities 106,672 103,358 91,734 70,985 72,224
BEKY Total debt® 39,018 50,936 36,875 25,711 37,218
#waiE Total liabilities 120,444 115,715 97,617 79,684 87,303
R Total equity 69,582 60,469 63,137 54,301 39,846
th= Ratios
EFil= Gross margin 16.6% 18.4% 16.4% 15.4% 15.8%
FREE Net profit margin 1.6% 2.1% 2.0% 1.8% 1.9%
FRE/EREY Net debt to total equity® 38.1% 56.7% 36.0% 21.6% 62.3%
REL R Current ratio 1.2 12 12 13 12
Bzt - Notes:

(1) BE-F-—AF+_A=+—HIFEHZEE - (1)
BEREARTEZNHILF IS EHRER -

The Group’s results, assets and liabilities and the key financial ratios for the
years ended/as at 31 December 2015 are extracted from the Prospectus.

(2) AEEFEIERITEN - A S HETERA (2)  Total debt refers to the sum of bank borrowings, short-term debentures and
AEF o bonds payable.

B FREFSRIRITENEE  RHBEFRENES  (3)
BEFRT T RADZEY -

Net debt equal to total bank borrowings, total debentures and total bonds
payable less cash and cash equivalents.
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Since 2019, the international environment has become increasingly
complex. Against the tough backdrop created by growing tensions
over Sino-US trade disputes and the prolonged uncertainty over Brexit,
global economic activity remained sluggish while the global economy
growth rate remained low, according to “World Economic Situation and
Prospects 2020 Guide"” published by the United Nations, world gross
product growth in 2019 was merely 2.3%, the lowest in 10 years, while
a modest uptick in global growth to 2.5% is forecast for 2020. Under the
complicated domestic and international circumstances where economic
downward pressure remained and trade protectionism resurfaced, the
resilience of China economy was demonstrated as it faced such external
impact. China’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) approached nearly
RMB100 trillion in 2019, an increase by 6.1% year-on-year, maintaining
stable and progressive momentum. As the main theme of China’s
economic development, supply-side structural reform was continued to
optimize economic structure constantly, drive economic development
with entrepreneurship and innovation, accelerate industrial upgrade,
unleash consumption potential and invigorate market vitality, in order to
converge strong momentum for high-quality development.

In recent years, China’s pharmaceutical industry is undergoing profound
changes driven by domestic pharmaceutical policies. On one hand,
pharmaceutical manufacturing companies which mainly produced
generic drugs face greater price pressure under the impact of centralised
procurement and cost control on the social medical insurance, industry
restructuring and concentration will continue. On the other hand, with
faster pace on new drug approval and dynamic changes on the National
Drug Reimbursement List (NDRL), suitable external environment for
innovation drug development will be gradually built up, and will lay
the foundation for local pharmaceutical companies’ transformation
development. In short term, there is still increasing pressure for the
industry to grow, but in long term, great development potential still lies in
China’s pharmaceutical and healthcare industry. Impacted by cumulated
factors of the macroeconomic restructuring, and social medical system
reform entering a deep-water zone, China’s pharmaceutical market
entered an adjustment period for slow growth, with the pharmaceutical
end-market’s growth rate predicted to be a mere 3% in 2020, forecast
the National Medical Products Administration Southern Medicine
Economic Research Institute (NMPA SMEI). According to statistics
from the National Bureau of Statistics, the revenue of pharmaceutical
manufacturing industries increased by about 7.4% in 2019, dropped 5.2
ppt year-on-year, while the NMPA SMEI forecast this revenue growth
to further slowdown to about 7.0% in 2020. As of the third quarter
of 2019, the pharmaceutical distribution industry’s revenue increased
by 8.8%. The revenue of retail pharmacies’ growth rate increased
1.0 ppt to 9.85% in 2019. With increasing healthcare consciousness
and consumption ability, demands for autonomous consumption of
pharmaceutical products and services showed rapid upward trend.
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As new technologies are constantly emerging, treatments are constantly
upgrading, product renewals are accelerating, technologies such as “+
internet” and artificial intelligence are widely used in pharmaceutical
and healthcare industry, business model was triggered to transform
constantly, the industry will face a lot of opportunities and challenges.

In view of the current drastic industrial and market changes, by virtue
of the '13th Five-Year Plan’ strategy-based development objectives, the
Group actively responded to the policy and market challenges, rapidly
established a biopharmaceutical platform, strived to enrich the research
and development (R&D) pipelines, efficiently completed the integration
and reviewed development strategy of CR Jiangzhong Group, reformed
the Group's R&D system, proactively promoted business model innovation,
forwardly explored and coordinated the synergetic development among
business sectors and constantly improved operational quality. Since our
listing on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Exchange in October 2016,
the Group has achieved remarkable results during the ‘13th Five-year
Plan’ period, and has developed a solid foundation for a leading industrial
position and long-term business development.

o By the end of 2019, the Group's business scale and total assets
growth rates were both higher than the strategic targets set in the
13th Five-year Plan’, ranking third in the industry, despite external
challenges.

o The Group spun off CR Biopharm (established in 2016) and directly
holds shares of China Resources Angde Biotech Pharma Co.,
Ltd. (“CR Angde Biotech Pharma”) (ZEH 3= 4 ¥)) and Beijing
Protgen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Protgen Ltd") (&7 5 2 %)
to optimise its layout in pharmaceutical manufacturing sector. The
Group established an organisational structure featuring innovative
R&D. The Group has 14 R&D projects in the pipeline and 3 products
launched on the market.

o The Group restructured its innovative R&D system, setting up a R&D
platform with substantial investment gradually increased year-on-
year. Strategic alliances were formed with more than 20 leading
R&D institutions.

o The Group actively progressed with mergers and acquisitions,
completed multiple equity investment projects, including those on
CR lJiangzhong Group, Kunming Shenghuo, Aonuo Pharmaceutical
and others.

o The Group formed a Pharmaceutical Industry Investment Fund,
completed the signing of multiple projects such as Fusen
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Fusen Pharmaceutical”), and
successfully exited some of these projects with an internal rate of
return (IRR) over 30%.
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o There were 56 products from the manufacturing segment achieved
over HK$100 million in sales, including 5 products achieved over
HK$1 billion in sales. Seven major products passed their consistency
evaluations. The Group ranked fifth in the PRC pharmaceutical
manufacturing business, and was in a leading position in nutrition
and healthcare, cold, antihypertensive and other therapeutic areas.

o The Group accelerated distribution business development, its sales
network covers 28 provinces in the PRC and ranked among the top
three in more than 10 provinces.

o The Group proactively promoted international cooperation by
establishing a specific department and setting up an international
collaborative platform. The Group formed strategic partnerships
with multiple multinational pharmaceutical corporations, such as
Sanofi, Takeda, Novo Nordisk and Gilead. The CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial import business achieved sales of over RMB10 billion.
The results of collaboration between CR Sanjiu and Sanofi, Gosun
Pharmaceutical and Roche were better than expected.

o The Group continued to introduce innovative business models. CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial’'s e-commerce platform, CR Pharma
e-Store, has gone live in 20 provinces. In 2019, the B2B online
business transaction value reached over RMB20 billion and the
number of online active users reached over 30,000.

o The Group actively promoted intelligent manufacturing upgrade.
Our subsidiary CR Sanju explored intelligent manufacturing of
Chinese medicine and has gained phased achievements from its
pilot projects at its Guanlan and Ya’an production bases.

Despite the drastic reforms and myriad of challenges, China’s
pharmaceutical industry has enjoyed a number of unprecedented
opportunities. The cumulative effect of government policies has
accelerated the industry’s pace of transformation and upgrade. Overall,
the industry has experienced steady growth, enhanced centralisation
and a further penetration of channels. Meanwhile, frequent large-
scale implementation of new industrial policies reshaped the industry
landscape and structure. The Group believes that the competitive edge
of China’s pharmaceutical industry lies in scale, networks, efficiency and
compliance. Those with better compliance and larger scale are always
stronger, and market share has been largely concentrated towards
the leading enterprises. The trend toward centralisation will eliminate
‘straggling’ enterprises and sharpen competition among fewer dominant
enterprises. Technological innovation and cost control will be the key
factors determining an enterprise’s prospects.
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To CR Pharmaceutical, one of the industry’s dominant enterprises with
aspirations to become the industry leader in China, opportunities always
outweigh challenges. With appropriate measures taken, an emphasis on
innovative transformation, quality development, and adjustments to the
product structure, the advantages of our dominant market position will
be accentuated. Having endured the pain of environmental change, the
Group now looks forward to a better future. As a large-scale industry-
leading pharmaceutical group with a full industrial chain, the Group
will continue to explore and achieve synergies from our integrated
business, strengthen and speed up R&D, as well as accelerate and expand
international cooperation. Through our diversified business, product
portfolio, quality superiority, innovation capability, integrated business
model and compliant operation, the Group continued to strengthen our
market position, in order to become a leading integrator and innovator in
China’s pharmaceutical manufacturing and distribution industries, and to
deliver better value in the new era of pharmaceutical industry.

In 2019, the Group proactively responded to policy changes and market
challenges while motivating the implementation of the Group’s strategy
to steadily continue its merger and acquisition activities and improve
business development across the industry. The Group upgraded its
R&D system, boosted its business structures and product portfolios,
and enhanced operational management. Against the backdrop of
increased challenges, the Group’s total revenue was HK$204,453.9
million, representing a 7.8% increase from the HK$189,689.1 million
recorded for 2018 (representing a year-on-year increase of 12.6% in
terms of RMB), achieving steady growth. In 2019, the revenue of the
three major business segments, namely pharmaceutical manufacturing,
pharmaceutical distribution and pharmaceutical retail businesses,
accounted for 15.0%, 81.7% and 3.2% of the total revenue, respectively.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

BEES W HKD 17.4%
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gross profit
of HK$34,017.7 million, representing a 2.6% decrease from the
HK$34,930.4 million in 2018 (representing a year-on-year increase of
1.7% in terms of RMB). The overall gross profit margin was 16.6%,
representing a decrease of 1.8 ppt over the 18.4% in 2018. This was
mainly due to a faster growth rate in the pharmaceutical distribution
business, which features a lower gross profit compared to that of the
pharmaceutical manufacturing business, and lower average gross profit
margin in pharmaceutical manufacturing and distribution businesses,
which were impacted by industry policies.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a net profit of
HK$5,097.8 million, representing a 32.7% decrease over the HK$7,572.3
million in 2018 (representing a year-on-year decrease of 29.7% in
terms of RMB). The overall net profit ratio was 2.5%, representing a
decrease of 1.5 ppt compared with the 4.0% of 2018. This was mainly
due to a significant decline of results caused by the channel inventory
reduction of Dong-E-E-Jiao of the Group, which turned loss (net profit
attributable to shareholders of the listed company turned from a profit
of RMB2,084.9 million in 2018 to a loss of RMB443.9 million in 2019),
and the impairment of goodwill of HK$722.6 million during the reporting
period. Excluding the impact from the impairment of goodwill, the Group
recorded a net profit of HK$5,820.4 million.

In 2019, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$3,286.4 million, representing a decrease of 17.4%
(representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.7% in terms of RMB) when
compared with that of HK$3,977.6 million in 2018. Basic earnings per
share was HK$0.52 in 2019 (HK$0.63 in 2018). The Board recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.11 per share for the year ended
31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing business focused on
core therapeutic areas and products by consistently diversified
and optimized its product portfolio, strengthened its capability of
academic-based marketing and sales promotion, and facilitated the
industrial transformation and upgrade, and forged advantages in
product quality and cost. At the same time, the Group innovated
its marketing model, enhanced brand influence and control over
the distribution channels, thereby continuously consolidating and
increasing its market share. During the Reporting Period, revenue
in the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing business segment
amounted to HK$33,805.7 million, representing a 3.5% decrease
as compared with 2018 (representing a year-on-year increase of
0.8% in terms of RMB), mainly due to the impact of a significant
decline in the annual results of Dong-E-E-Jiao following the channel
inventory reduction (revenue of Dong-E-E-Jiao in 2019 decrease by
RMB4,379.7 million year-on-year).

The Group's leading position as China’s leading pharmaceutical
manufacturer was unaffected, even though its segment revenue
growth from pharmaceutical manufacturing business slowed
down due to Dong-E-E-Jiao’s falling sales. The Group owns the
widest coverage of pharmaceutical products and therapeutic
areas, including chemical drugs (prescription and OTC drugs),
biopharmaceutical drugs, Traditional Chinese Medicines (“TCM")
(prescription and OTC drugs) and nutritional and healthcare
products. These fully cover all major therapeutic and disease areas,
including where great growth potential of business lies in, including
cardiovascular and cerebrovascular, alimentary tract, metabolism
and endocrine, respiratory, orthopedics, hematology, oncology,
medical nutrition, gastroenterology, pediatrics, genitourinary system,
cough and cold, anti-infection, dermatology, and therapeutic
infusion solutions, etc. In 2019, the Group manufactured over 540
products, of which 300 entered the National Reimbursement Drug
List and 148 were included in the National Essential Drug List. In
2019, there were 56 products achieving over HK$100 million of
sales, including 5 products achieving more than HK$1 billion of
sales. Over the years, all Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing
subsidiaries have formed professional sales and marketing teams
with personnel numbering in the thousands, and established deep
long-term business relationships with approximately 7,000 Class
Il & Class Il hospitals and more than 110,000 primary medical
institutions.
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In terms of product categories, in 2019, the revenue from sales
of chemical drugs was HK$16,494.3 million (of which sales from
chemical OTC drugs was HK$2,600.9 million, accounting for
15.8%), which is 5.8% higher as compared with that of last year.
The increase was mainly driven by the increasing sales from anti-
infection drugs, infusion products, and chronic and specialty drugs.
The revenue from sales of TCM was HK$13,937.2 million (of which
OTC drugs contributed HK$9,424.2 million, accounting for 67.7%),
out of that, E-Jiao series products’ revenue decreased year-on-
year. Even so, the Group still recorded increasing sales from TCM
OTC products for colds, gastrointestinal diseases, orthopedics, and
cardiovascular diseases and formula granules of TCM. The revenue
from sales of biopharmaceutical drugs was HK$217.3 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 27.6%, largely caused by
sales model optimisation. The revenue from sales of nutritional and
healthcare products was HK$944.0 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 20.4%, benefiting from the acquisition of CR
Jiangzhong Group. During the reporting period, sales from TCM,
chemical drugs, biopharmaceutical drugs, and nutritional and
healthcare products accounted for 48.7%, 41.2%, 0.6% and 2.8%,
respectively, to total revenue. Among, OTC products (including OTC
products from TCM and chemical drugs) recorded HK$12,025.0
million of revenue, contributing 35.5% of sales revenues for the
Group's pharmaceutical manufacturing business.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the Group's
pharmaceutical manufacturing business was 63.2%, which was 1.6
ppt lower than that of 2018, mainly due to the declining results
for Dong-E-E-Jiao and its reduced contribution to gross profit. This
led to a lower average gross profit margin for the pharmaceutical
manufacturing segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Subsidiary Dong-E-E-Jiao’s business result showed a downward in
2019, with its annual revenue decreased by approximately 59.7%
year-on-year to RMB2,958.6 million. Gross profit decreased by
70.9%, while the gross profit margin decreased 18.3 ppt to 47.7%.
The net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company
turned from a profit of RMB2,084.9 million in 2018 to a loss of
RMB443.9 million. The change in Dong-E-E-Jiao’s results has made
a relatively heavy impact on the Group’s overall results for the
year. In recent years, there has been a continuous overstock in the
distribution channels of Dong-E-E-Jiao, mainly due to various factors
such as the general macro-environment and gradually receding
market expectations for product Dong-E-E-Jiao’s price increase.
During 2019, Dong-E-E-Jiao mainly focused on destocking in
distribution channels. It imposed strict controls over the dispatch of
goods and the reduction of distribution channel inventory in order
to safeguard the long-term corporate health from adverse impact.
Particular efforts were devoted to destocking distribution channels
in the second half of the year, which made a greater impact on
operating results. With its focus on long-term positive development
after a period of consolidation, Dong-E-E-Jiao has optimised
its development strategies and enhanced clinical and academic
marketing while enriching its product portfolio. It has launched the
“E-Jiao+" and “+E-Jiao"” product series with marketing of ‘instantly
edible E-Jiao’ to integrate with the new consumption model and
transform into digital marketing with a new customer base and
more product variety. Efforts were made to effect a transformation
of marketing model, with the focus shifted from the E-Jiao
business to the nutrition business. With the transformed business
model, organisational change of accelerating the adaptation to
the digitized environment, positive and healthy development of
the Company can be attained. In Ali Health’s 11.11 Product Sales
Ranking of 11 November 2019, E-Jiao blocks presented by Dong-
E-E-Jiao once again took first place, reflecting its high brand
recognition among consumers as well as strong market demand for
E-Jiao products. The Group believes the work of reducing channel
inventories was progressing and that Dong-E-E-Jiao’s results will be
back on track with its continued product line diversification. Led by
experienced, young and energetic management, Dong-E-E-Jiao will
stride confidently into another decade of rapid development.
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The Group recognises great business development potential
for branded OTC drug in the PRC market. The current market
scale for OTC drug is approximately RMB220 billion, which has
increased year-on-year by more than 10% and accounts for
15% of the pharmaceutical market terminal. Future demand for
chronic disease and universal health products from an ageing
population will drive the expansion of OTC drug market beyond
its current scale. As China’s largest OTC drug manufacturer and
an industry leader, the Group possesses strong brand bargaining
power and clearly understands the great commercial value of
such. Under circumstances in which establishing a new brand is
exceeding difficult, owning an existing outstanding brand has
become an OTC enterprise’s greatest asset. After completing the
acquisition and merger of CR Jiangzhong Group, the Group's
leading position in the CHC (“Consumer Healthcare”) area
(including OTC products and nutritional and healthcare products)
was further strengthened, and our brands like “999”, “Dong-E-
E-Jiao”, "lJiangzhong” and “Tianhe” are widely recognised in the
market. The Group has been continuously forging advantages
of quality brand clustering in the CHC area, or self-care field,
becoming a ‘collector’ of brands and increasing and supplementing
its heterogeneous and professional OTC products. According to
the 2019 China OTC Manufacturers Annual Ranking, The Group's
CR Sanjiu, Dong-E-E-Jiao, CR Jiangzhong Group and CR Zizhu
subsidiaries ranked 1st, 4th, 17th and 67th, respectively. CR Sanjiu
is a leading OTC manufacturer in China, which has maintained
its first position for eight consecutive years and has been listed as
a 'Most Valuable Chinese Brand’ by Millward Brown Optimor, a
renowned consulting company, for six consecutive years. Six Group
products — Dong-E-E-Jiao, 999 Ganmaoling, Jiangzhong Jianwei
Xiaoshipian, 999 Xiaoer Ganmaoling, Piyanping, and Jinyuting
— appeared as ‘2019 Top 50 Pharmaceutical Brands’ announced
at the 2019 CPEO Summit. Among these, Dong-E-E-Jiao won
first place for five consecutive years. And within the ranking of
‘2018 China OTC Market Sales’, four out of the top ten are the
Group’s products, and the 999 Ganmaoling granule/capsule
manufactured by CR Sanjiu was named as the best anti-influenza
product in the PCM category (proprietary Chinese medicines) for
eight consecutive years. The Group’s leading advantage in the
CHC industry became more distinctive by cultivating the brand of
cluster, as well as achieving synergies between product, marketing
and sales channels. During the Reporting Period, revenue for
the Group’s CHC business accounted for 39.1% of the revenue
from from the pharmaceutical manufacturing business. Revenue
from CHC business reached HK$13,264 million (representing
RMB11,670 million). CR Sanjiu seized market opportunities and
explored quality resources, accelerated mergers within the PRC, and
drew on its collaboration business experience with multinational
companies to participate in bidding of multinational pharmaceutical
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Management Discussion and Analysis

companies’ premium products’ commercialisation and distribution
right, thereby enhancing the capability of its products. During
the Reporting Period, CR Sanjiu reached collaboration with
enterprises such as Takeda Pharmaceutical (Japan), Nature's Care
(Australia) and Ryukakusan Co. (Japan), concerning multinational
cooperation. The sales growth rate for the Group’s CHC business
has surpassed industry benchmarks, further consolidating the
Group's leading position. Through continuously innovating its
consumer communication channels and expert endorsements, the
Group continued to rejuvenate and professionalise its OTC brands
and enhance the development of its core OTC businesses.

The Group regards TCM business as a key source of future revenue
growth for the pharmaceutical manufacturing business. During the
19th National Congress, general secretary Xi Jinping advocated “

striking a balance between Chinese and Western medicine, inherit
and develop the Chinese medicine business”. According to statistics
from the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the 2018
market scale of TCM decoction pieces in PRC was approximately
RMB220 billion, of which TCM granules contributed RMB18.5
billion or 8.4% of the total. During the Reporting Period, the Group
strengthened its TCM business through subsidiaries CR Sanjiu and
CR Jiangzhong Group, and leveraged its leading-edge to accelerate
the transformation of prescription TCM and exert a greater effort
to promote the development of TCM granules and specialised
TCM. Both revenue and profit of the Group’s TCM granule business
grew rapidly, increased by around 30% year-on-year and greatly
exceeded the average industry growth rate. During the period,
the Group accelerated the expansion of TCM granule business,
developed exquisite decoction pieces and clinical preparations
for TCM, TCM supplements, etc. Due to the new decoction
piece business and the establishment of TCM quality standards,
the Group gradually refined its TCM production chain, including
completion of planning of raw material sourcing at provinces
and cities such as Yunnan, Chongging, Heilongjiang, etc. Sanjiu
Jinchan and Ya'an served as the Group’s core extraction base and
the purchase of herbal TCM was unified to enhance operational
efficiency. The Group also expanded channel coverage to
thousands of Class Il, Class Il and primary hospitals, driving growth
in sales. The Group built a strategic platform from which it can
cooperate with government, universities and medical institutions.
This facilitated the transformation of the results of cooperation
between schools and enterprises and helped realise the expansion
of affiliated hospitals, which enhanced the Group’s brand influence
and further accelerated its development. In the meantime, the
Group has been leveraging its core competitive edge to expedite the
transformation and innovation, including the construction of Smart
Pharmacy with the cooperation of government and enterprises
and assistance from qualified medical institutions. The three parties
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are responsible for Smart Pharmacy’s management and operation.
Currently, the startup of Smart Pharmacy in Guangzhou, Wuhan,
Chengdu and Zhengzhou cities has been completed. The Group
based on ‘industrial automation + informatization’ to upgrade its
‘Smart TCM manufacturing framework’ and improve controllability
of the manufacturing process from the perspectives of process
automation, information development of manufacturing process
management, and interconnection.

The Group was also dedicated to establishing China’s premier
platform for chronic disease management. In view of the ageing
population and increasing medical insurance pressures, China
has attached a great importance to drug usage for chronic
diseases. According to statistics from the Qianzhan Intelligence
Co., the PRC’'s monthly expenses on chronic diseases in 2016
were RMB3.24 trillion, or approximately 70% of total health
expenditure. This number is expected to reach RMB5.5 trillion
in 2020. The World Health Organisation (WHO) also estimated
that China’s expenditures on chronic disease drugs will exceed
US$250 billion by 2025. Control of chronic diseases in the PRC still
has much room for improvement, bring in an enormous chronic
disease drug market. There are 9 major chronic disease products
owned by the Group reached more than RMB100 million in sales,
consisting mainly of cardiovascular and endocrine cures. During
the Reporting Period, subsidiary CR Double-Crane leveraged its
extensive operational experiences in the chronic disease drug
market and its wide channel coverage to accelerate the penetration
of distribution channels and strengthen patient management in
respect to chronic disease drugs and specialty drug usage. The
total revenue for 2019 was approximately RMB9.4 billion with an
annual growth rate of 14.1%, faster than the industry’s average
growth rate, and out of which, revenue of chronic disease drugs
and specialty drug usage grew 15% and 47%, respectively. During
the Reporting Period, CR Double-Crane ranked 14 among the top
100 PRC chemical pharmaceutical manufacturing company, actively
promoted the professional management of chronic diseases and
the integration and synergy of business resources. CR Double-Crane
established a chronic disease department, created highly efficient
chronic disease management platforms, and forged a unified brand
specialising in chronic disease cures, in order to gradually elevate
its brand influence and improve competitive position in the chronic
disease industry. During the Reporting Period, the Group established
expert network and academic platform to enhance influence of
our chronic disease drug brands, and further penetrated into the
primary market after the hierarchical diagnosis and the integrated
health care system were implemented. The Group also focused on
development in county level and leveraged on our core hospitals to
strengthen communication from county-level hospitals to primary
end-users. The Group further optimized sales models and expanded
sales channels for our chronic disease drugs. Sales volume was
boosted with sophisticated management of agents.
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The Group assigns a high priority to consistency evaluation on
the quality and effectiveness of generic drugs. At the end of the
Reporting Period, more than 64 key consistency evaluation projects
had been commenced, including for 44 oral solid dosages and
20 injection dosages. During the Reporting Period, 10 projects
had commenced bioequivalence clinical trials, with 8 products
completing trials. Of the latter, 7 drugs such as Valsartan Capsules
(BB B EE), Mifepristone Tablets CK3ERIER ) (0.2g), Misoprostol
Tablets CKZRIFIEE A ) and Montmorillonite Powder (5 1A £0)
completed application filing. Piperacillin Sodium and Sulbactam
Sodium for Injection CESTA MM FAME E1HER) and Calf
Pulmonary Surfactant for Injection (E57F4-Fh&R EE 1 E]) were
filed for reference drug qualification, 6 products (7 specifications)
passed or were regarded as passing the consistency evaluation.
In January 2019, Mifepristone Tablets (10mg and 25mg) passed
the consistency evaluation and obtained national reference drug
qualification. In March 2019, Hydrotalcite Chewable Tablets (fix
B4 $%NH 8 F) were approved by the National Medical Products
Administration (NMPA) for production and were regarded as
passing the consistency evaluation. In May 2019, Metformin
Sustained-Release Tablets (ZFEAI4EFE F) passed the consistency
evaluation. In September 2019, Finasteride Tablets (3FBFZERZ F)
(5mg) were approved by the NMPA as the first product of its kind
to pass consistency evaluations on generic quality and effectiveness.
In October 2019, Levetiracetam (- Z #7781H) active pharmaceutical
ingredients passed the technical evaluation of the NMPA Center for
Drug Evaluation. Levetiracetam Tablets (£ Z$7F93E ) (0.5g) were
granted drug registration approval by the NMPA, which is regarded
as passing the consistency evaluation according to relevant
regulations of the PRC. In December 2019, Azithromycin Tablets
(F a7 & = F) obtained approval of drug supplementary application
from the NMPA. The drug passed consistency evaluations on
generic drug quality and efficacy. The Group was the second
enterprise to pass the consistency evaluation for this drug.
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In 2019, multiple policies induced changes in the pharmaceutical
market. The Group responded by performing detailed policy
study and actively preparing and participating in the centralised
procurement of drug campaign. The Group also expanded upstream
resources in multiple dimensions, adjusted product portfolio,
developed premium product pipeline, and nurtured self-owned
products. By seizing the market opportunities arising from enhanced
industry concentration brought by the “two-invoice’ policy, the
Group expedited national network development, enhanced terminal
coverage, penetrated into primary medical institutions and premium
private hospitals. The Group also drove innovative transformation
by accelerating the development of emerging businesses such as
medical devices and TCM distribution, each of which have great
market potential. The logistics system was optimised and financing
through multiple channels. In 2019, the Group’s distribution
business recorded double digit compound annual growth in
revenue, operational profit and total assets, achieving its ‘13th
Five-year’ Plan goals a year early. During the Reporting Period, the
Group’s pharmaceutical distribution business recorded a segmental
revenue of HK$170,691.3 million, representing a 9.9% increase
over that of 2018 (representing an increase of 14.8% in terms
of RMB). This was higher than the average growth rate for the
pharmaceutical distribution industry. The gross profit margin of the
pharmaceutical distribution segment was 6.9%, a decrease by 0.4
ppt year-on-year comparing with that of 2018.

SEGMENT GROSS PROFIT
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HK$ million
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During 2019, the Group ramped up efforts in premium products
introduction, acitvely engaged in the distribution of centralised
procurement drugs, and entered into cooperation with
approximately 100 pharmaceutical enterprises whose products
have passed consistency evaluation. The Group also explored
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upstream resources, exerted efforts to strengthen and consolidate
strategic partnerships with upstream enterprises, and developed
new strategic cooperation businesses. The Group sped up the
introductions of premium oncology and innovative medicines,
during the year, 4 drugs included in the NDRL through negotiations
were included in the Group’s product portfolio, respectively
resourced from AstraZeneca plc, Novartis, Jiangsu Hengrui
Medicine, and Merk Sharp & Dohme, Inc. Meanwhile in the period,
16 distribution rights for newly launched Class | innovative drugs
were added.

At the same time, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial has made
progress in adjusting its business model from mainly distribution
to service cooperation. The Group officially set up an international
business subsidiary call “CR International Trading Limited”
and established a multilevel import system, strengthening its
import business development to forge import capability. During
the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group's import drug
distribution was more than RMB10 billion, representing an
approximate 40% increase and met expectation. The Group
strengthened port business construction and the introduction of
imported drugs. During the year, 8 imported drugs with exclusive
distribution rights (mainly from major multinational enterprises
such as CASI Pharmaceutical Inc., Gilead Sciences Inc. and Taiho
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd) were newly added, of which 5 were
innovative drugs. The Group has also made progress in promoting
business innovation for import services, adding 6 Patient Assistance
Programs with Boehringer Ingelheim and Hoffmann-La Roche in the
oncology field. The Group’s annual revenue from import innovation
services increased year-on-year.

The Group continuously optimised its product portfolio,
contributing to an increasing proportion of distribution businesses
of medical device and TCM Herbal Medicine in its total sales
revenue. CR Pharmaceutical Commercial pursued the specialised
development of medical device distribution and accelerated
construction of its medical devices headquarter. The independent
provincial medical device companies with separate online ERP
function were established in 15 provinces. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s medical device distribution business recorded
an annual revenue of RMB13.7 billion, a year-on-year increase of
more than 50%. Supply Processing Distribution projects were newly
introduced during the year in 11 provincial cities.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 45



Management Discussion and Analysis

46

B - AEE D HEEKIERTISA RS
B R B EKNIARE - hnsR it m AR
BEE  RETNAEEMISLE  REE
PRI SEERRE  RAKEMSEME £
BEETEHEL mBEREEHNKE
RIFERER  —T-NFEDHEEKK
WL ELT78% - BE - T —N4F
+ZA=+—H FREEETEHEEE
MBS HEMAEEEEZE2F28EE - &
EMkEAR BPHREE=Z ZfEBk
7,000/ (F18418%K) » EEBEHE
#147,000% © A NMTEEFET55,000% °
BMSBEICES B MBS BUHESHT
SRR EIRANTISELHEE - TEREM
A EEEZEN D HBEES -

REEFE MR (L - FHE( - REL -
SRR FER - TERLBF
B RBEHER  AEESEEGES
PmeE L E 17818 - LR LIERBYR
e RPMENDRE TEREME——XK
SREMNEEIERINBERTE - #E
TRBELENSEYRERRS - RRNHEEE
mkBERMNE=SREYREE - W&
HIMA  EHBERNENE=TREER
LEiRB90% °

2019 F il o EMBEEBER AT

Meanwhile, following the trend of market structure adjustment,
the Group's distribution business expedited the expansion of
medical terminals and the construction of city-scale platforms,
expanded network channels and further penetrated into the
primary market. These facilitated diversified business developments
within advantage regions and increased the end-user market
share. Through continuous business structure optimisation,
revenue from direct distribution to medical institutions maintained
a solid growth, increasing its contribution to total distribution
business revenue to about 78%. As of 31 December 2019, CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial’s distribution network covers 28
provinces, municipalities and autonomous administrative regions.
The Group’s clients included approximately 7,000 Class Il and Class
Il hospitals (of which 418 were newly introduced), over 47,000
primary medical institutions and about 55,000 retail pharmacies.
The Group will continue seizing the historic opportunities arising
from increased market concentration created by the ‘two-invoice’
policy, and continuously expand and strengthen our distribution
network within China.

The Group continued to develop modernised logistics supply chains
featuring the competitive edge of integration, professionalisation,
scaling and standardisation. At the end of the Reporting Period,
the Group's distribution business operated 178 logistical centres.
Logistics warehouses were established in Beijing and Shanghai. The
Group's logistical warehouse in Guangzhou is the only own-bonded
warehouse with construction approved by Guangzhou Customs
with a leading cold chain logistics management system and was
licensed to do modern third-party logistics for distribution of drug
and medical device. During the Reporting Period, the third-party
logistics business revenue increased over 90% year-on-year.
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At the same time, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial exerted
great effort to develop e-commerce. By leveraging its industrial
advantages from the supply chain, it optimised its pharmaceutical
e-commerce platforms and accelerated development of its B2B
platform CR Pharma e-Store (ZERg%k) and the B2C business. At
the end of the Reporting Period, CR Pharma e-Store has gone live
in 20 provinces with an annual transaction value of over RMB20
billion, exceeding its target. During the year, the aggregate number
of active clients was over 30,000. There were multiple live pre-
ordering fairs synchronising with CR Pharma e-Store during the
year. By nurturing end-user consumption habits through the
internet marketing, the number of active users and returning buyers
on CR Pharma e-Store increased. To undertake future business
from the prescription outflow from hospital, CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial also explored its CR Pharma Cloud Prescription (f &
£7) model, which connects medical institutions and community
pharmacies or primary medical center, thereby achieving an orderly
and secure circulation and realizing two-way flow of prescription
information. The Group will continue to promote and implement
innovative business models to further enhance the quality of value-
added services to downstream clients and achieve continuous
growth in corporate value.

The Group has always followed a strategy of integrating distribution
and retail businesses, developing and improving direct-to-patient
(DTP) professional stores, prescription stores near hospitals, and
healthcare shops with distinctive themes, and following the
government policy via standardizing, differentiating and specializing
our services to fully construct comprehensive retail operation
system.

During the Reporting Period, the pharmaceutical retail business of
the group recorded revenue of HK$6,462.8 million, representing
a 18.5% year-on-year increase, or 23.8% in terms of RMB, which
was higher than the industry’s average growth rate, and ranked
10th in the industry. Gross profit margin was 12.5%, which was
2.1 ppt lower compared to 2018. The decrease was mainly due to
the rapid growth of DTP business which deliver high-value drugs
but with relatively lower profit margin. The Group’s DTP specialty
pharmacies recorded a total revenue of about HK$3.5 billion in
2019, representing a year-on-year growth over 45%.
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Under the background when retail pharmacies was transitioning
toward standardisation and professionalisation in reaction to
policy, designated medical insurance resources was tending to
lean toward Class | pharmacies, retail market concentration was
accelerating and prescription was outflowing, the Group further
enhanced the quality of its software and hardware, and operation
standard of its pharmacy stores with full coverage of the retail ERP
system, set up a centralised procurement platform, and integrated
with manufacturers such as Zhejiang Betta Pharmaceuticals, Junshi
Biosciences and others. The Group expanded development of its
DTP specialty pharmacies, successfully introduced 10 innovative
drugs such as Daboshu (Sintilimab), and further enriched nutritional
and healthcare products. The Group improved its development of
prescription stores near hospitals and cooperated with the Chinese
Academy of Sciences, Fuzheng, Huiyinbi Group and Japan'’s Pitta
Mask to create new income streams. As of 31 December 2019, the
Group operated 852 retail pharmacies in total, of which 175 were
DTP specialty pharmacies located in 89 cities in the PRC.

The Group worked to implement brand unification as well as
building the Teck Soon Hong professional retail pharmacy brand.
And on this basis, the Group built a system which integrate online
prescription dispensing, the direct delivery of drugs, medication
consultation, health management services and drug delivery from
prescription outflow and value-added services. On the basis of its
existing drug delivery capability and fundamental resources, the
Group participated in the distribution business of medical device,
equipment and consumable for medium- and large-scale hospitals.
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Concurrently, following the market trend of innovation, the Group
began trial operations for new businesses, expanded its models
for integrating new retail, medicine consultation and treatment,
and developed innovative business models such as ‘combination of
healthcare and medicine’, ‘pharmacy + diagnosis and treatment’,
and ‘internet + pharmacy’. The Group also extended its Chinese
medical treatment, e-commerce and cross-border businesses via
collatoration with WeChat and JD, etc.

R&D and product innovation are important drivers of the Group’s
long-term growth, and the Group is accordingly continuing to
increase investment in R&D activities. During the Reporting Period,
total R&D expenditures were HK$1,435.7 million. The Group
adhered to government policy, development trend of industry
technology, and market demand, continuously improved company’s
core competitiveness via integration of its R&D capability for generic
and innovative drugs on therapeutic areas such as cardiovascular,
respiratory, oncology, gastroenterology and metabolism, central
nervous system, immune system, anti-infection, hematology and
genitourinary. At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
operated 3 nationally certified engineering and technological
centres, 3 nationally certified enterprise technical centres, and 17
provincially or municipally certified research centres. The Group also
established postdoctoral research stations with more than 800 R&D
employees.

As of 31 December 2016, there are 150 products in the Group’s
R&D pipeline, including 67 R&D stage innovative drugs, mainly
focusing on therapeutic areas such as anti-cancer, metabolism and
endocrine, cardiovascular, and classical TCM prescriptions. During
the Reporting Period, the Group obtained 101 patents, filed 91
patent applications, and received 11 awards and project funds from
various levels of government offices. During the Reporting Period, 6
products such as Moxifloxacin Hydrochloride Eyedrops (E& M & 753>
ER&) and Linezolid Tablets (FIZsmefz &) filed with NMPA for
manufacturing and registration application, while 4 products such
as Hydrotalcite Chewable Tablets (fxf& 3R 5% & /), Paracetamol
Oral Solution (¥ ZBEREE O RIR), Levetiracetam Tablets (&
ZAIPE3E Fr) were approved for production, further diversifying
the pharmaceutical manufacturing business’s product lines. On
3 October 2019, the Group’s newly developed innovative drug
NIP292 was approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) for phase one clinical trials, and was granted the Orphan
Drug Designation (ODD) in the U.S. The drug is mainly used to
cure idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis (IPF). The FDA approval for an
Investigational New Drug (IND) was not only an important milestone
for the NIP292 project, but also a breakthrough for the Group
in the development of international new drugs. It also marks the
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Group’s breakthrough in the development of innovative drugs to
cure orphan diseases and will further enhance CR Pharmaceutical’s
reputation for innovation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the integration
of its biomedical platform by spinning-off CR Biopharm (founded
in 2016) and directly holds shares in CR Angde Biotech Pharma,
Protgen Pharmaceutical and Vector Gene Technology. CR
Biopharm pursued the multi-dimensional development of original
biopharmaceutical drugs, improved innovative drugs and biosimilar
drugs, in order to balance between the long-term R&D risks
and value within projects in the pipeline. In line with the vision
to provide patients with quality drugs at a low price, the Group
mainly focused on drugs for digestive and metabolic diseases, and
biosimilar drugs where larger market opportunity lies in, so that
to balance R&D risk and return. The Group also raised its product
differentiation and brand influence by expanding indications of
its existing products. Currently, there are three products in the
market — Bai Jie Yi, Rui Tong Li and Jia Lin Hao — of which Rui
Tong Li has undergone evaluation for inclusion in the 2019 NRDL
with assessment of a high pharmacoeconomics value resulting in
inclusion within the Catalogue. The drug was also approved for
indications of acute stroke and acute pulmonary embolism, both are
now undergoing phase Il clinical research. There are 14 biological
R&D stage products in the pipeline, out of which, 8 are innovative
drugs and 6 are biosimilar drugs, which mainly focused on different
therapeutic areas, including tumour, immunity and endocrine.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has strong capability and extensive experience in
mergers and acquisitions, as well as a proven track record. During
the Reporting Period, the Group steadily implemented high-quality
acquisitions, expanded its business footprint and seize opportunities
arising from the mixed ownership reform of state-owned
enterprises, promoted acquisitions in innovation businesses, applied
advanced management concepts and business models to acquired
entities, enabled the integration of resources, and facilitated
continuous business growth.

For the pharmaceutical manufacturing business, CR Pharmaceutical
completed its acquisition of CR Jiangzhong Group in 2019. A
reorganisation plan for the CR Jiangzhong Group obtained final
approval from the SASAC under the State Council in January
2019, and the supplemental share subscription agreement
has taken effect. Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group)
Co., Ltd. (currently CR Jiangzhong Group.) has increased their
registered capital by approximately RMB129.6 million, while
CR Pharmaceutical Holdings has made a capital contribution of
approximately RMB3,099.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,636.5 million) in cash. The relevant change of business
registration in relation to the acquisition was completed in
February 2019, with the general offer to acquire Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical completed in April 2019. Since completing the
acquisition, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings indirectly holds 43.03%
equity of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical. Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical
is a leading manufacturer of OTC products in the PRC and has
strong brand and high market share in both gastroenterology and
oropharynx. It can collaborate with the Group in various aspects
such as brand, product, manufacturing, R&D and sales channels to
realize synergies with the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing
business, which will further strengthen and enhance the Group's
core competitiveness in TCM self-diagnosis and treatment business,
as well as in product development of herbal TCM, among others,
in order to further strengthen the Group’s market leader position in
the OTC business segment.
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The Group will continue to seek opportunities to rapidly increase
and optimise its product pipeline via international strategic
collaboration, product introductions and joint ventures. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s business segments entered into
15 international cooperation projects, in areas of branded generic
drugs, generic drugs, OTC, healthcare, etc. Among them, in May
2019, CR Sanjiu signed an exclusive agreement in Mainland China
with Takeda Pharmaceutical (Japan) in relation to Alinamin, Japan’s
number one OTC brand. In August 2019, CR Sanjiu obtained
exclusive distribution rights in China for Nature’s Care’s (Australia)
products from the “Nature’s Care pro” series. During the same
month, CR Sanjiu obtained exclusive distribution rights in China
from Ryukakusan, an Japanese pharmaceutical enterprise well-
known for its throat product. In November 2019, CR Sanjiu invested
RMB1.42 billion to acquire 100% equity in Aonuo Pharmaceutical,
which owns Aonuo Calcium, a well-known calcium supplement
brand for children with good market size and growth potential.
The acquisition of Aonuo Pharmaceutical will improve the Group’s
product mix in the CHC business and help to build a leading
children’s healthcare brand.

In respect to the pharmaceutical distribution business, the Group
completed several high-quality acquisitions at the municipal level
during the Reporting Period to further optimise the depth and
quality of its distribution network. In June and July 2019, CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial acquired and subscribed shares of
Zhejiang Int'L Group Co., Ltd. at RMB11.26 per share, with a
total consideration of RMB560.6 million (approximately HK$637.3
million). Upon completing the transaction, CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial holds 20% of equity of Zhejiang Int'L Group Co., Ltd.
As a leading pharmaceutical distributor in Zhejiang province and
an A-share listed company, Zhejiang Int’L Group Co., Ltd. has solid
business fundamentals and cooperation platforms. The partnership
will thus enable the Group and Zhejiang Int'L Group Co., Ltd. to
form a win-win alliance with complimentary advantages, helping CR
Pharmaceutical to further expand sales and distribution channels,
strengthen its business coverage and boost its competitiveness in
eastern China. During the Reporting Period, CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial also completed the acquisition of equity shares in
several municipal-level distribution companies in Sichuan and
Jiangsu provinces.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the pharmaceutical retail business, the Group acquired 25%
equity interest in Tycoon Group through China Resources
Pharmaceutical Retail Group Limited. Tycoon Group supplies a
wide range of proprietary Chinese medicines as well as health,
personal care, skin care and other healthcare products in Hong
Kong, Macau, Singapore and China, and its 2018 revenue was
ranked third in the proprietary Chinese medicine distribution
market in Hong Kong with a market share of approximately 8.1%.
The transaction will further enrich and optimise the Group’s retail
product portfolio, create synergies with CR Care, and strengthen
the Group’s competitive advantage in distribution and retail in the
Hong Kong market.

As a diversified investment portfolio of the Group, China Resources
Pharmaceutical Industrial Investment Fund LLP signed 6 projects
involving businesses such as POCT, IVD, machine intensive delivery,
API, heparin products during the Reporting Period. The Fund
successfully exited after a global offering of Fusen Pharmaceutical
in Hong Kong, with the internal rate of return achieving more
than 30%. At the same time, in order to strengthen internal
collaboration within the Group, the Fund started to work with other
business units of the Group and invested jointly with CR Sanjiu on
an investment projects.

During the Reporting Period, CR Pharmaceutical Investment
acquired approximately 4.85 million shares of Dong-E-E-Jiao,
meanwhile, Dong-E-E-Jiao repurchased approximately 6.174
million shares from open market. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the CR Pharmaceutical Investment directly holds 8.94%
equity interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao and indirectly holds 23.36% equity
interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao through China Resources Dong-E-E-Jiao
Company Limited GEHEFMREAERAF]), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Group now controls 32.3% equity
interests in Dong-E-E-Jiao. The acquisition further strengthens the
overall advantages and synergy of the Group’s pharmaceutical
manufacturing business.
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One of the Group's primary competitive advantages is the business
coverage which encompasses the comprehensive industrial chain
and the synergistic opportunities lied in its integrated business.
The Group is a leading enterprise in the production and sale of
OTC drugs in China and owns several well-known Chinese OTC
brands. To maintain and strengthen its leading position and
competitive advantages in the OTC pharmaceutical business in
China, in November 2019, the Group established China Resources
Pharmaceutical OTC Strategic Synergy Committee. The CEO of
CR Sanjiu serves as committee chairman, while the CEOs of each
main business company (including CR Jiangzhong Group, Dong-E-
E-Jiao, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial and CR Double-Crane, etc.)
serve as deputy chairmen. Key committee members include each
profit centre’s head of business department. The committee’s main
objectives and missions are to leverage the resource advantages of
each brand to achieve mutual empowerment, to jointly enhance
control over downstream customers, to provide positive opinions
and suggestions to the direction and trend of industry policies, to
participate in OTC industry integration, and to seize opportunities
for industry integration and drive product and industry upgrades.

After completing the acquisition and integration of CR Jiangzhong
Group, during the second half of 2019, CR Sanjiu and CR
Jiangzhong Group made good progress in the TCM formula
granules collaborative project by signing a strategic cooperation
agreement and establishing a sales joint venture (CR Jiangzhong
Group holds 51%, CR Sanjiu holds 49%). This focuses on synergistic
development in Jiangxi Province by leveraging the local resource
advantage of CR Jiangzhong Group and the technical capabilities of
CR Sanijiu in the production of TCM formula granules.

The Group has made great efforts in creating synergy between
the manufacturing and distribution business segments to further
deepen the synergy in aspects of market development, price
maintenance and agent management. In 2019, the Group achieved
synergies between manufacturing and distribution businesses in
some key areas.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group also actively explored and realised opportunities for
synergistic development with subsidiaries in other industries within
the CR Holdings. For example, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial’s
retail segment and China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land"”)
jointly promoted synergetic development in senior home business.
At the end of September 2019, Liaoning Teck Soon Hong Pharmacy
of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial reached agreement with
Shenyang Runxinhui of CR Land to provide Runxinhui residents
with resident practicing pharmacist services such as prescription
undertakes and medicine deliveries. In view of the business
opportunities created by new community-centric pharmaceutical
retail developments serving the ageing population in China, in
the near future, the Group will actively explore areas of synergy
between CR Pharmaceutical Retail, CR Land and companies in other
industries, and bring new growth to pharmaceutical retail business
development.

The Group fosters synergistic development between industries
through the reasonable allocation of financing and implementation
of domestic and foreign fund linkages. During the Reporting Period,
approximately HK$13,300 million of offshore loans were obtained,
while approximately HK$243 million in finance costs were saved as
compared to domestic financing. During the year, the Group issued
HK$1,116 million worth of corporate bonds, HK$2,231 million
worth of perpetual bonds and HK$3,349 million worth of super
and short-term commercial paper, with a minimum nominal annual
interest rate of 2.7%. These effectively reduced finance costs for
the year, optimised the Group’s resource allocations, successfully
achieved annual de-leveraging targets (ie, reduced interest-bearing
liabilities) and controlling funds appropriated to accounts receivable
and inventories.

On 24 June 2019, the A-share listed subsidiaries CR Sanjiu, CR
Double-Crane and Dong-E-E-Jiao were included in the FTSE Russell
Global Index.

As the world’s leading equity indexes, FTSE indexes are mainly used
as performance benchmarks and the basis for derivative tools and
other index-linked products, extensively used by North American,
European and Asian investors. The inclusion of the three A share-
listed subsidiaries into FTSE indicates that international investors
are paying attention to and recognising the operating quality,
development prospects and share liquidity of the three companies.
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China’s pharmaceutical industry has entered an era of accelerating reform
with great market growth potential, continuous consolidation trend, and
growing industry concentration. Encircling the development objective of
"13th Five-year Plan’, the Group will adopt ‘Reform and innovate, quality
and development’ as its working theme for the year while it accelerates
the pace of innovation transformation and leverages the core edge of
each business segment. By actively plan for the core areas and core
segments in the industrial chain, the Group will increase investment in
R&D, and strive to breakthrough in innovation. The Group will accelerate
its pace of introducing new products and will strengthen international
cooperation on the basis of compliance. It will strengthen external
acquisition efforts, pay close attention to investment opportunities in
innovative fields, and explore breakthroughs in investment methods.
The Group will continuously optimise its resources allocation, seek
and implement synergies between business segments. The Group will
accelerate improvements to intelligent manufacturing and industrial
upgrade, adjust its business structure and push forward business
transformation. By reinforcing management fundamentals, encouraging
innovative models and improving development quality, it aims to foster
steady, sustainable long-term development, lay a solid foundation for
the '13th Five-year Plan’ strategy, and continuously enhance its core
competitiveness.

In response to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pandemic at the
beginning of the year of 2020, the central government promptly adopted
a series of proactive, efficient and pragmatic measures to curb the spread
of the pandemic within the shortest time. The Group’s business segments,
facing the impact of the pandemic, proactively adjusted their marketing
strategies, expedited innovation of marketing models, and organized
online sales promotion activities. They also proactively seized the short-
to-mid-term market opportunities to accelerate the development of
new products while lowered the impact of the epidemic by fully utilizing
preferential policies from the central government. Production and supply
are ensured to the greatest extent on the premise that the pandemic is
controlled and prevented with stringent standards. The Group will adopt
various response measures in pursuit of achieving each operational goal
for the year.

The Group believes, as we seize the development and reform
opportunities in China’s pharmaceutical and healthcare industry, utilise
the window period of industry consolidation, and effectively implement
the "13th Five-year Plan’ strategy, the Group is poised to become the
leader in China’s pharmaceutical and healthcare industry and continue to
create and improve investment value and return for shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The year 2020 is the final year of deploying the “13th Five-
year Plan’, and a key year for the pharmaceutical industry to
transform, reform and reconstruct its competition landscape. In
response to the industrial competition, market challenge and
development objectives, management of the Group conducted
comprehensive discussions on the Group’s strategic direction,
business selection, competition strategy and development initiatives
via multiple methods, including experts interview, external
research, internal seminar and case study. The Group compared
itself with benchmarking companies after looking into the latter’s
development strategy and initiatives, and systematically review
its core capabilities. The Group interpreted industry policies
and intended to accurately judge industry trends and explore
development opportunities in new areas of business areas. These
actions will lead to the formulation of the strategic ‘14th Five-
year Plan’. At the same time, the Group will pursue development
opportunities to integrate into the Greater Bay Area construction
from the aspects of massive health, technology innovation and
international cooperation.

The Group will seize on good opportunities for national
pharmaceutical innovation and development to increase R&D
investment and innovation to achieve the ‘four breakthroughs'
of R&D innovation and investment, R&D talent team building,
assessment and incentive mechanisms, and innovation models.
These include, but are not limited to:

o Increasing the proportion of the Group’s total R&D investment
to revenue;

o Focusing on high-quality R&D projects such as chemical
innovative drugs, classic TCM prescriptions and biological
drugs. Actively expanding product acquisition channels
and continuing to enrich R&D pipelines in anti-tumour,
immunotherapy, cardiovascular, central nervous and
respiratory systems;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o Speeding up the introduction of R&D professionals,
strengthening construction of R&D teams, enhancing R&D
capabilities, accelerating the transition to independent
innovation strategies;

o Speeding up the establishment of the biopharmaceutical
segment, aiming on innovative drugs as long-term
development aim, integrating advantage resources,
continuously forging platforms of research, manufacture
and marketing, with an eye on the clinical demands that
haven’t been satisfied, focusing on recombinant protein and
monoclonal antibody products, and leveraging on the Group’s
mature capabilities in the industrial chain and commercial
industry;

o Developing high-end drug technologies, products with
advance synthesis technology and special packaging, and
establishing differentiated technological platforms such as
oral sustained-release drugs, inhalants and injection emulsion
drugs;

° Promoting the construction of TCM innovation and generic
drug differentiation technology platforms (TCM, Innovative
Medicine and Health Medicine Research Institute); Enhancing
the efficacy and clinical forensic medical research of the
Group’s TCM and famous and classic prescriptions (including
formula granules and Dong-E-E-Jiao), and consolidating the
application basis of TCM products.

The Group will adapt to policy changes and structural market
adjustments by coping with the impacts of such factors as
centralised procurement, health insurance cost control and
consistency evaluations, and promote the transformation and
upgrading of the pharmaceutical manufacturing business. These
include, but are not limited to:

o R&D will focus on a combination of generic and innovative
drugs, gradually leaping into improved new and innovative
drugs. Upgrading R&D support facilities, exploring diversified
incentive mechanisms and building laboratories in compliance
with national standards;

o Paying continuous attention to changes in the disease
spectrum, focusing on areas such as chronic disease, specialty,
cardiovascular, anti-tumour, central nervous system and
respiratory system, and enriching the product portfolios for
chronic disease, specialty and infusion businesses;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o Transforming production to low-cost, large-scale and high-
quality, creating cost advantages through the entire industrial
chain, and quickly promoting the integration and automation
of production bases;

o Utilising and enhancing the Group’s brand advantages in the
CHC sector, strengthening brand-building and product line
expansion in core categories, accelerating and strengthening
international cooperation with foreign high-quality
OTC products and original generic drug pharmaceutical
manufacturers, accelerating the upgrading of products and
promoting the continuous growth of core businesses;

o Marketing complies with the huge changes in the industry,
deepens the integration of resources in the chronic disease
sector, promotes product participation in centralised
procurement, produces drugs in mass quantity at more
affordable pricing, actively plans for the retail market and
cultivates marketing capabilities that adapt to industry
changes;

o Grasping the development opportunities of the state to
support the TCM industry, exploring famous and classical
Chinese medicine prescriptions, promoting the distribution of
the entire TCM industrial chain, integrating the advantages of
CR Jiangzhong Group while accelerating development of the
healthcare business.

On the basis of extending its geographical presence across
the nation, the Group will continue to deepen its business
development, accelerate its penetration into primary medical and
retail terminals, sharpen the competitive edge, and promote the
transition of the Group’s pharmaceutical distribution business
away from the traditional distribution business to an intelligent
and professional integrated service provider. This will enhance the
Group’s comprehensive service capabilities, including:

o Actively assisting upstream manufacturers in providing
differentiated services such as tendering, market access and
terminal development to enhance their adhesiveness;

o Providing products and services for medical terminals, assist
designing integrated solutions for intelligent supply chain
management and hospital logistics through information and
professional services;
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o Establishing a new channel business division, providing end-
users with diverse low-cost specialist medical services such as
remote diagnosis and home delivery of medicines through
the internet, increasing the convenience and accessibility of
services.

Meanwhile, the Group will further optimise the product variety and
business structure, make progress in the professional distribution
of medical equipment, and build an import business platform for
innovative port-to-terminal services. It will strengthen operation
efficiency and quality, accelerate logistics construction, and seek
for opportunity to establish strategic partnerships with professional
logistics companies such as SF Express. Speeding up the
development of third-party logistics business, vigorously promoting
innovative business models such as DTP, CR Pharma e-Store and CR
Pharma Cloud Prescription while consolidating the market leading
position as a comprehensive solution provider in the pharmaceutical
supply chain, will also be the Group’s focus of work in future.

Mergers and acquisitions have always been one of the key engines
of the Group's rapid development. In 2020, the Group will take
advantage of opportunities for integration and concentration in
the Chinese pharmaceutical industry by accelerating its mergers
and acquisitions. We will leverage on the advantages of the
Group's resources integration by actively taking advantage of the
mixed reform opportunities of premium state-owned enterprises,
especially large-scale integrated projects. Meanwhile, by expanding
the scope of mergers and acquisitions, we can explore new ways
of product and service innovation. Based on the characteristics
of innovative enterprises in the industry, the Group will strive to
obtain the distribution rights of their products through various
methods of strategic equity investment, internal and external
capital cooperation and others. This will further expand the Group’s
business scale and improve business growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is keenly aware of the opportunities arising from
increasing market concentration in medical device distribution
and will achieve external growth through strategic mergers and
acquisitions. It will accelerate the acquisition of quality resources
and achieve forward-looking business deployment and stimulate
business growth by leveraging its pharmaceutical industrial fund
in biopharmaceutical and innovative drugs and other areas. For
the pharmaceutical manufacturing business, the Group will target
companies with exclusive drugs or drug variants with high technical
barriers during its strategic investment in high-growth therapeutic
areas such as highly recognised and professional OTC brands,
and differentiated traditional TCM products such as innovative,
biopharmaceutical, imported and specialised generic drugs in
professional areas. For pharmaceutical distribution and retail
businesses, the Group will focus on distribution companies with
regional advantages, professional machinery circulation enterprises
with adequate scale and premium pharmaceutical retail enterprises.

The Group will explore further synergies in its integrated business,
expand the scope of business synergy, develop innovative
synergistic models, and foster synergies among the pharmaceutical
manufacturing, distribution and retail businesses as well as
subsectors of each business segment in aspects such as market
entry, bidding, terminal expansion and product introductions. These
include:

o By applying a multi-brand clustering strategy in the CHC
segment, establish the OTC strategic committee to form work
models for facilitate synergy;

° Reinforce the coordination planning from headquarter to
scale up synergies inside the Group’s manufacturing and
distribution businesses, facilitate the launch of the Group's
manufacturing products on the CR Pharma e-Store and secure
online and offline sales channels;

o Enable synergy with CR Land’s senior home business,
explore resource introductions in respect to chronic diseases,
healthcare and third-party services, optimise synergistic
business model to enhance profitability, and push ahead with
the construction of CR Mall (Z£/E[E);

o Enable synergy between pharmaceutical business and
financing, continue to seek opportunities for cooperation with
CR Group’s financing and energy segments to form a market
joint force;
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o Support business development in the Greater Bay Area,
leverage the link between funding and capital to drive
collaborative development of the Group’s different business
segments in the Greater Bay Area;

o Improve the shared information platform, strengthen
corporate governance and internal control management
system, plan more in-depth for the construction of integrated
EHSQ management platform, step up in management
innovation, enhance management and operational efficiency
to effectively control operating risk.

The Group will continue to develop and improve international
cooperation platforms and diversify its channels for international
cooperation. Based on its existing business and competitive
advantages and through various means of cooperation including
import of products, distribution agency, entrusted production,
establishment of joint ventures and cooperative development, the
Group will focus on OTC drugs, TCM and high premium prescription
drugs. It will actively negotiate with Japanese, Australian, European
and American pharmaceutical manufacturers with premium brands
to implement international cooperation projects, establish win-
win cooperation in the expansion of the Chinese pharmaceutical
market, and further enhance the optimisation and upgrading of
product portfolios and business models. The Group will focus
on seeking international cooperative opportunities with foreign
pharmaceutical manufacturers which own cutting-edge technology,
advanced business administration, premium brand, cost advantage
and have rich experience in dosage improvement technology.
At the same time, the Group continue its in-depth analysis and
research for China’s pharmaceutical market, and expects to achieve
breakthroughs in planning for overseas businesses.

The year 2020 is crucial for China’s economic transformation and is also
an important period for the changing pharmaceutical industry landscape.
In response to these challenges, the Group will uphold CR Group’s theme
of '‘Reform and innovate, quality and development’, respond to material
changes in the market, and make effective progress in its various projects.
While formulating for the strategic ‘14th Five-year Plan’, the Group will
conscientiously pursue its future development by increasing investment
in innovative transformation, accelerating the development of new
businesses, and consolidating and enhancing its leading industry position.
At the same time, the Group will strictly manage compliance risk, strive
for high quality development, and create good long-term investment
value for shareholders.
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The Group adopts a prudent treasury management policy to maintain a
solid and healthy financial position.

The Group funds its operations principally from cash generated from its
operations, bank loans and other debt instruments and equity financing
from investors. Its cash requirements relate primarily to production and
operating activities, business expansion, repayment of liabilities as they
become due, capital expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$12,524.0 million (2018: HK$16,633.3 million), which were primarily
in RMB and HKD.

As at 31 December 2019, the RMB-denominated, and HKD-denominated
bank borrowings accounted for approximately 95.8% (2018: 77.0%) and
4.2% (2018: 23.0%), respectively, of the Group’s total bank borrowings.
Among the Group's total bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019, a
substantial portion of approximately 88.5% (2018: 91.9%) would be due
within one year.

The Group's current ratio (being the ratio of total current assets to total
current liabilities) was 1.2:1 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 1.2:1).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio (being the ratio of
net debt divided by total equity) was 38.1% (2018: 56.7%).

In 2019, the Group’s net cash from operating activities remained solid
at HK$8,140.9 million (2018: HK$8,247.0 million). The Group’s net
cash from investment activities in 2019 and net cash used in investment
activities in 2018 amounted to HK$1,008.8 million and HK$9,801.0
million, respectively. The Group’s net cash used in financing activities
in 2019 and net cash from financing activities in 2018 amounted to
HK$13,009.9 million and HK$4,667.4 million, respectively.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total bank borrowings amounted
to HK$31,065.7 million (31 December 2018: HK$40,664.5 million), of
which HK$161.1 million (31 December 2018: HK$408.8 million) were
secured and accounted for 0.5% (31 December 2018: 1.0%) of the total
borrowings.

Certain of the Group's trade and bills receivables with an aggregate net
book value of HK$94.0 million (31 December 2018: HK$153.1 million)
have been pledged as security.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(31 December 2018: nil).

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and most of its transactions
are denominated and settled in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risks on certain cash and cash equivalents, borrowings from
banks and trade payables denominated in foreign currencies, the majority
of which are denominated in USD. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not enter into any derivatives contracts to hedge the foreign
exchange exposure.

The Group's capital expenditure comprised mainly additions to property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties and
right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid land lease payment), but excluding
additions resulting from acquisitions through business combination. The
Group's capital expenditure in 2019 amounted to HK$3,402.0 million
(2018: HK$2,614.1 million), which was primarily utilized for expansion
and upgrade of manufacturing facilities, development of distribution
networks, and upgrading of logistic systems. Such capital expenditure
was funded primarily by using cash generated from the Group's operating
activities, bank borrowings and proceeds from the Company’s initial
public offering.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed around 67,000 staff (31
December 2018: 62,000 staff) in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing market rate while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example, medical
insurance and training.
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On August 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings has entered into the Share
Subscription Agreement (“Share Subscription Agreement”) with the
then shareholders of CR Jiangzhong Group for the subscription of the
shares of CR Jiangzhong Group. On September 2018, CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings has entered into a supplemental agreement relating to the
Share Subscription Agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with the
then shareholders of CR Jiangzhong Group to supplement or amend the
terms of the Share Subscription Agreement.

On 30 January 2019, all of the conditions to the effectiveness of the
Supplemental Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
Supplemental Subscription Agreement has become effective. Pursuant to
the Supplemental Subscription Agreement, CR Jiangzhong Group agreed
to conditionally increase its registered capital by approximately RMB129.6
million (the “Increased Registered Capital”), and CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings has agreed to conditionally make a capital contribution
of approximately RMB3,099.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,537.3 million) in cash (subject to adjustment) to subscribe for the
Increased Registered Capital in CR Jiangzhong Group. Pursuant to the
Supplemental Subscription Agreement, the then shareholders agreed
to waive their respective rights to subscribe for the Increased Registered
Capital. Upon Completion, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings directly held
51% equity interest in CR Jiangzhong Group and thereby indirectly held
43.03% equity interest in Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical.

On 22 February 2019, the Company has been notified that CR Jiangzhong
Group has completed its relevant change of business registration for the
Proposed Subscription. CR Jiangzhong Group was accounted for as a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Save for those disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no other
significant investments held, nor were there material acquisitions of
disposals of subsidiaries during the year under review. Apart from those
disclosed in the Annual Report, there were no material investments or
additions of capital assets authorised by the Board at the date of this
Annual Report.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance in order to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
enhance the corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate governance. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. The
management is required to timely report to and seek approval from the
Board before engaging in any significant transactions. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established five Board
committees, namely the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors have the obligations to carry out duties in good faith and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and to act in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors and officers.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman and non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Chuncheng (appointed as Chairman of the Board on 21
March 2019, ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
re-designated as non-executive Director and continue to serve as the
Chairman of the Board on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. HAN Yuewei (appointed on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. LI Xiangming (appointed as executive Director on 29 May 2019 and
appointed as Vice Chairman of the Company on 2 December 2019)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mdm. WENG Jingwen (appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019)

Executive Director
Mr. QIU Huawei (appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22 October
2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May 2019)
Mr. YU Zhongliang

Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019)
Mr. WANG Shouye

Mr. LYU Ruizhi

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographies —Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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During the year, the Board has met the requirements under Rules
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has also complied with Rules 3.10(2), 3.10A and 3.21
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board (with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise).

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties. Details are set out on
page 109 of this annual report.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director, nor between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity of the public
companies or organisations and an indication of the time involved, the
Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments and any subsequent
change to the Company in a timely manner.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of a Director of a listed
company. The Company has also arranged in-house trainings for Directors
in the form of seminars and reading materials.

From time to time, the Board arranges visits for the Directors to have a
deeper understanding of the Group’s business operations and matters
relating to pharmaceutical industry. In April 2019, two independent non-
executive Directors, Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne and Mr. KWOK Kin
Fun accompanied by the then executive Director, Mr. LI Guohui, visited
the CRCare Chinese Medicine Centre in Hong Kong. In October 2019,
four independent non-executive Directors, Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne,
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian and two non-
executive Directors, Mr. WANG Shouye and Mr. LYU Ruizhi, arranged by
an executive Director, Mdm. WENG Jingwen had a three-day site visit in
Nanchang, Jiangxi Province. During the visit, the Directors obtained an
understanding of the business environment and day-to-day operation of
the Group.
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EENFAN2HENSESEERBERAT Participation of Directors in continuous professional development during

the year is as follows:

BESXREREMNE
Nature of Continuous Professional Development Programmes

/9% BRRFEEER
By ] G
LGB ENGE!

HEBHEH
HEXBNENESMNE Reading
Name of Directors regulatory
Receiving training; updates or
attending and/or information  =F-AFMF  ZB-NEFLA

ESff

HRRAAET
EE R
(K=F-NF=A= AR

TERFHTEE

IFAEM-F-NE=A—1-H
BRIRESEIRN-_FTNF
TRAZT-RIBREARAERY
18 LAEAHITESREEY

giving talks at
seminars, conference
and/or forum

Name of Directors

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March
2019)

Chairman and non- executive Director
Mr. WANG Chuncheng
(appointed as Chairman of the Board
on 21 March 2019, ceased to be the
Chief Executive Officer, re-designated

April 2019
28
Visit

October 2019
EitZE
Site visit

FEZEIR) as non-executive Director and continue
t0 serve as the Chairman of the Board
on 22 October 2019)
HOTEEREEHTE Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer
BREEE Mr. HAN Yuewei - -

M-E-NE+E-+-REZE)

HITEERGERE

ZHREER-E-NERA=TAA
EZIANTESTR_E-NE
T-RAZAEZTARIIER)

HTEE  BRIFERAEH

HEXLT(M-F-NFLATA
BZ{)

(appointed on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. LI Xiangming
(appointed as executive Director on
29 May 2019 and appointed as Vice
Chairman on 2 December 2019)

Executive Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Vice Presigent
Mdm. WENG Jingwen
(appointed on 5 July 2019)
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SESXBRARME
Nature of Continuous Professional Development Programmes
B LRS-
E2R/ARE
RE - B8R/ HESHEEER
WEBANERNEE ARBALTY
ENGERAARY  HXRENES

HEBNEHESHS Reading
Name of Directors regulatory
Receiving training; updates or
attending and/or information  =E-REMA  ZE-NETA
giving talks at relevant to April2019  October 2019
seminars, conference  the Company or 28 EZR
BEEfA Name of Directors and/or forum its business Visit Site visit
HITEE  BEEIBERAEH Executive Director; Chief Financial
Officer and Vice Presigent
ZEBLER-T-NFtARA Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019) v v v -
BT
FHITEE Non-executive Directors
PR 4 Mr. QIU Huawei - - - -
(E’\'f MNERRZTNBEZRE (appointed on 29 May 2019 and
TR=F-NE+A=tZHET) resigned on 22 October 2019)
f%&i(ﬁ@_g AFRAZTAB  Mr.CHENRong v v - -
BE) (resigned on 29 May 2019)
REREE Mr. YU Zhongliang v v - -
Bl L Mdm. GUO Wei v v - -
(RZZ-NFRAZTNBEZM)  (appointed on 29 May 2019)
TTEAE Mr. WANG Shouye v v - /
BEELE Mr. LYU Ruizhi v v - v
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive Directors
BRARL Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne v v v /
Bl £pies Mr. KWOK Kin Fun v v v v
BEERE Mr. FU Tingmei v v - /
KRBk Mr. ZHANG Kejian v v - /
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In respect of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 21 March 2019, the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company were two separate positions
held by Mr. FU Yuning and Mr. WANG Chuncheng, respectively. After
21 March 2019, both the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company were held by Mr. WANG Chuncheng. The Board
believed that with the support of the management, vesting the roles
of both the chairman and chief executive officer on the same person
can facilitate execution of the Group’s business strategies and boost
effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under the supervision by the
Board, the interests of the Shareholders will be adequately and fairly
represented. In order to devote more time and attention to approve and
monitor the Group’s strategies and policies, Mr. WANG Chuncheng
ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and has been
re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director and
continued to serve as the Chairman of the Board on 22 October 2019,
Mr. HAN Yuewei has been appointed as the Chief Executive Office of the
Company on the same day. Since 22 October 2019, the Company had
fully complied with the requirements under code provision A.2.1.

In respect of code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, and in respect of code
provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company did not have formal letters
of appointment for Directors. Since all Directors are subject to re-election
by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company and
at least about once every three years on a rotation basis in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, there are sufficient
measures to ensure the corporate governance of the Company complies
with the same level to that required under the CG Code.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Details of the Directors’ service contract are set out on page 110 of this
annual report.
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The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. With respect to regular meetings of the Board,
Directors usually receive at least fourteen days prior written notice of the
meeting to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are
dispatched to the Directors at least three days before the meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and are
adequately prepared for the meetings. When the Directors or Board
Committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their
views known to the Chairman of the Board or the relevant chairman of
the Board Committee prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions made, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board and Board Committee meeting are kept by the
duly appointed secretary of the meeting and are open for inspection by
Directors.
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RZZE-NF BRI TARESZEE% - During 2019, five Board meetings were held and the attendance of each
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Director at the meeting is set out in the table below:

EHFEEEERE
EHEEES R
Attended/Eligible to
attend the Board

TERIMTEE
BRELEE
MR-_Z-hF=ZA-+—B&MD

ERERHATEE

TEA A
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— BT ERARARE NG
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REESLE
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SEELL
(A=F—n45+ AR EEER)

BB ‘
(R=F— 4+ AR BB

A

EfZEE A
R_Z-NERR-+NAREE
WHRZZE—NF+AZ+ZHET)

HPTEF

BRER S .
R=—ZF-NFREAZTNAEHD

RERSEE

- o
(R=—F-NFRA-+HBEZD)

TTERALE

BEELE

B ARTTEE
BRELt
SRE 5T
BEZ %A
R A

Name of Directors meeting

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning 0/1
(resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman and non- executive Director
Mr. WANG Chuncheng 5/5
(appointed as Chairman of the Board on 21 March
2019, ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer, re-
designated as non-executive Director and continue
to serve as the Chairman of the Board on 22
October 2019)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. HAN Yuewei 0/0
(appointed on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Vice Chairman

Mr. LI Xiangming 1/3
(appointed as executive Director on 29 May 2019
and a)ppointed as Vice Chairman on 2 December
2019

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Vice President

Mdm. WENG Jingwen 2/2
(appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui 3/3

(resigned on 5 July 2019)

Executive Director

Mr. QIU Huawei 2/2
(appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22
October 2019)
Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Rong 2/2
(resigned on 29 May 2019)
Mr. YU Zhongliang 3/5
Mdm. GUO Wei 2/3
(appointed on 29 May 2019)
Mr. WANG Shouye 5/5
Mr. LYU Ruizhi 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 5/5
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 5/5
Mr. FU Tingmei 5/5
Mr. ZHANG Kejian 5/5
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The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she
has complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the year.

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors, namely
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (chairman) (resigned on 22 October 2019),
Mr. HAN Yuewei (chairman) (appointed on 22 October 2019), Mr.
LI Xiangming (appointed on 29 May 2019), Mdm. WENG Jingwen
(appointed on 5 July 2019), Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019) and
Mr. QIU Huawei (appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22 October
2019).

The principal duties of the Executive Committee include but are not
limited to the following:

1. to monitor the formulation, revision and implementation of the
Company's strategic plans;

2. to monitor the execution of the Company’s business plans and the
Company's business operations;

3. to monitor the operation of the Company’s subsidiaries;

4.  to approve the scope of authority delegated to the Senior
Management of the Company and its changes;

5. to exercise part of the power on behalf of the Board between
regular Board meetings, with its power restricted to the areas
that are considered by the Board as material and related to the
formulation of the policy and business development direction of the
Company;

6.  to review and approve operational matters which constitutes below
5% (for matters within the business plan of the Group) or below
1% (for matters outside the business plan of the Group) of the
audited net asset of the Group in the previous financial year (except
for notifiable transactions and connected transactions for which
announcements are required under the Listing Rules);
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10.

to review and approve the financing matters within the financing
plan resolved and passed by the Board (including bank loans and
trusts etc.) and their corresponding guarantee matters;

to review and approve on behalf of the Board the financing matters
within the financing plan resolved and passed by the board of
directors of the subsidiaries of the Company (including bank loans
and trusts etc.) and their corresponding guarantee matters;

to exercise the following power in accordance with the needs of
the Company and its subsidiaries:

i. to approve on behalf of the Board banking facilities and/
or financial instruments to be granted to or issued by the
Company for the needs of the Company and its subsidiaries;

ii.  to approve on behalf of the Board the grant of any loan or
other financial assistance to the Company’s subsidiaries and/
or associates;

ii.  to approve on behalf of the Board the provision of corporate
guarantees, indemnity and/or letters of comfort by the
Company for its subsidiaries and/or associates;

iv.  to approve on behalf of the Board the opening of bank or
securities related accounts and other ancillary matters of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries, including appointing the
signatories and approving the terms and mandate for such
accounts; and

v.  to affix the Company’s seal on any instrument or document
related to the above items and approve any one or more
of the Directors of the Company to sign the instrument or
document;

to decide external donation matters which should be reviewed
and approved by the Board in accordance with the “Donation
Management Policy of the China Resources Group”;
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to authorize one or more Directors for executing relevant
documents to be filed and/or submitted to regulatory authorities on
behalf or in the name of the Company;

to deal with any other specific business authorized to this
Committee by the Board; and

to approve on behalf of the Board the relevant arrangements for
the publication of voluntary announcement(s), overseas regulatory
announcement(s) made pursuant to Rule 13.10B of the Listing
Rules, announcement(s) made pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules, next day disclosure return(s), or announcement(s) on the
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principal financial results of the subsidiaries of the Company on
the HKEXNews website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website.

The written terms of reference of the Executive Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2019, eight meetings were held by the Executive Committee
which primarily covered banking and financing matters of the Group.

eHERE,
BHITEBARH
Attended/
Executive Committee members Meetings held
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (chairman of the Executive 5/5
Committee) (resigned on 22 October 2019)
Mr. HAN Yuewei (chairman of the Executive 3/3
Committee) (appointed on 22 October 2019)
Mr. LI Xiangming 5/5
(appointed on 29 May 2019)
Mdm. WENG Jingwen 717
(appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019) 1N
Mr. QIU Huawei 4/5
(appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22
October 2019)
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The Audit Committee comprises six members, including four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne (chairman),
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian, and two
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May
2019), Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019) and Mr. LYU Ruizhi.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but are not limited to
the following:

1. to review and monitor the Auditor’'s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

2. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services;

3. to discuss with the external Auditor before the audit commences,
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations, and
ensuring coordination where more than one audit firm is involved,

4. to monitor integrity of the Group's financial statements, annual
reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

5. to review the Group's financial controls, risk management and
internal control system; and

6. to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2019, three meetings of the Audit Committee were held to
discuss and consider the following matters:

o reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
risk management systems and processes.
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Audit Committee members

B ZEENENEZESEMNBERENRT  Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table

below:

EHERE,
FE& R B

Attended/
Eligible to attend

BRRBZT Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 3/3
(EHEEexRE) (chairman of the Audit Committee)

PRE ST Mr. CHEN Rong 11
R=ZZE—NFRA=-TNBEEHD) (resigned on 29 May 2019)

Eilf 5o Mdm. GUO Wei 2/2
(RZZ—NFRAZT+NLBEZMF) (appointed on 29 May 2019)

aEEEE Mr. LYU Ruizhi 3/3

Bl e bates Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 3/3

WExRfE Mr. FU Tingmei 3/3

SR BT Mr. ZHANG Kejian 3/3

REEZES Nomination Committee

REZEEREMARKEMAK  BE—HF
HTEEEEELEE (TR RZF-NAF=H
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FZAZT - AEZERREZESIR) MR
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(BfEREE - MERERTE)  YRHERNR
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members, including
one non-executive Director, Mr. FU Yuning (chairman) (resigned on 21
March 2019), Mr. WANG Chuncheng (chairman) (appointed chairman of
the Nomination Committee on 21 March 2019), and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne, Mr.
KWOK Kin Fun, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include but are not
limited to the following:

1.

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to develop and maintain a policy for the nomination of the Directors
which includes the nomination procedures and the process and
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to identify, select
and recommend candidates for directorship during the year, and to
review periodically the policy and progress made towards achieving
the objectives set in the nomination policy;

to develop, maintain and review periodically the policy concerning
the diversity of the Board;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
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5. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships with regard to the
nomination policy of the Company; and

6.  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, whether the individual can bring to the Board
the perspectives, how the individual can contribute to the diversity of the
Board, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out
the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2019, three meetings were held by the Nomination Committee
mainly to review the Board Diversity Policy, which included the assessment
of its effectiveness and the appointment of executive and non-executive
Directors and chairman/members of Board Committees.

Attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in the
table below:

eHERE,
BITERRY™
Attended/
REZEEENE Nomination Committee members Meetings held
BEZEE Mr. FU Yuning 0/0
(RZZE-—NF=A=+—HEMEREL (resigned as chairman of the Nomination Committee on
ZEEXH) 21 March 2019)
FEMEE Mr. WANG Chuncheng 3/3
(W=ZZE—NF=A=-+—HEZEA (appointed as chairman of the Nomination Committee
RELZEEIRF) on 21 March 2019
BRIt Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 33
BB L Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 3/3
HIEEEE Mr. FU Tingmei 3/3
SR B Mr. ZHANG Kejian 3/3
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of a Board with
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives. Given the
importance of the Nomination Committee’s role in ensuring the balance
within the Board and to give greater focus and transparency in relation
to the election of Directors, the Company has established the Director
Nomination Policy. This policy aims to set out the approach to guide the
Nomination Committee in relation to the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of the Directors, and to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Nomination Criteria: The Nomination Committee will assess, select
and recommend candidate(s) for directorship to the Board by giving
due consideration to criteria including (but not limit to) reputation for
character and integrity, region and industry experience, diversity in aspects,
commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time,
and potential contributions brought to the Board.

Procedures and Process for Nomination of Directors: The Nomination
Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from third-party agency firm and proposals
from Shareholders with due consideration given to the criteria; the
Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate
in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks, presentations and third party reference checks; upon
considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;
the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
remuneration package of such selected candidate.

Monitoring and reporting: The Nomination Committee will assess and
report on the composition of the Board in the corporate governance
report.

Review of the Director Nomination Policy: The Nomination
Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy periodically to
ensure that it is transparent and fair, remains relevant to the Company’s
needs and reflects the current regulatory requirements and good
corporate governance practice. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for approval.
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The Company’s Director Nomination Policy is available at the website of
the Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include
and make good use of differences in the perspectives, talents, skills,
regional and industry experience, background, gender and other qualities
of the members of the Board. The Nomination Committee reviews and
assesses the composition of the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board on appointment of new Directors, and also oversees the
conduct of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board. The
Nomination Committee also develops and maintains the Board Diversity
Policy and periodically reviews the effectiveness of this Policy and whether
the measurable objectives are achieved and/or should be amended.

Measurable objectives: The Nomination Committee will discuss and
agree annually all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given
time, the Board may seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity
and measure progress accordingly.

Monitoring and reporting: The Nomination Committee will report
annually, in the corporate governance report of the Company, on the
process it has used in relation to Board appointments. Such report
will include a summary of the Board Diversity Policy, the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and progress
made towards achieving these measurable objectives.

Review of the Board Diversity Policy: The Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy annually, which will include an assessment
of its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
approval.

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy is available at the website of the
Company.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, including one
non-executive Director, Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May 2019),
Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019), and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. KWOK Kin Fun (chairman), Mdm.
SHING Mo Han Yvonne, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but are not
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
determined by the Board;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
These include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6.  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During 2019, four meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee
mainly to make recommendation to the Board for the remuneration of
the newly appointed Directors and to review the remuneration policy.

Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out in the
table below:

B IR E
Attended/
FMEEERE Remuneration Committee members Eligible to attend
BREEEGFHEESTE) Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 4/4
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
MEmut Mdm. GUO Wei 212
(RZE-—NFRAZTHAEZE) (appointed on 29 May 2019)
BRER A Mr. CHEN Rong 2/2
(R=—Z—hhFERA-TNBEID) (resigned on 29 May 2019)
BREL L Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 4/4
HIEREE Mr. FU Tingmei 4/4
SR ER S Mr. ZHANG Kejian 4/4
TtEEREES Corporate Governance Committee
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The Corporate Governance Committee comprises six members, including
one non-executive Director namely Mr. WANG Chuncheng (resigned on
22 October 2019), two executive Directors namely Mr. LI Guohui (resigned
on 5 July 2019), Mr. HAN Yuewei (appointed on 22 October 2019) and
Mdm. WENG Jingwen (appointed on 5 July 2019) and four independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. FU Tingmei (chairman), Mdm. SHING
Mo Han Yvonne, Mr. KWOK Kin Fun and Mr. ZHANG Kejian.

The principal duties of the Corporate Governance Committee include but
are not limited to the following:

1. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management on corporate
governance;

3. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
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to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2019, one meeting was held by the Corporate Governance
Committee mainly to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code.

Attendance of each Corporate Governance Committee member is set out
in the table below:

eHERE,
BEHEIRE
Attended/
Corporate Governance Committee members Eligible to attend
Mr. FU Tingmei 171
(Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee)
Mr. WANG Chuncheng 11
(resigned on 22 October 2019)
Mr. HAN Yuewei 0/0
(appointed on 22 October 2019)
Mdm. WENG Jingwen 0/0
(appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019) iVl
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 171
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 1
Mr. ZHANG Kejian 171

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 85 *



EREBHS

Corporate Governance Report

HERRAS

FRARABRGTT —RBEAR - R
—AERAZTN\ARITHBRIBE AR o R
FEOHERRERRERNREA SRR
WS AR I A 2 RB T o

ETREg FHZBEEREXERZEBEMNE
FHRLRRRBERE  BREBRRRFAR
MER BHERBUYNEE (BREEESRERE
BER)NRRBFREG LABIURERRES © WA
BEFNETRR - BREFRNETRRNFARE
FERAE LR -

FRERIIPTEF
BEELEE
(RZZ-NF=A=t+—B&D

FRERIPTEF

FERAEE(R_T-NF=A=+—H
BZEREFEERE RT—NFT
AT ZATBEERARFREFENT
B URERFRTEEREELTE
E-ES)

HITEEREEHNTE
BRELAE RS- NAE+A=+=A
L)

HITEFEREFZE

FRALE
RZZB-NFHEA-ThBEZER
WITESFYN _T-NFt+_-_A-B%&
RERBIER)

HITEF - BIEMEE REIBH

FEZLE
RZZ-hFLALBEZEE)

* 86 2019548 o ZHREEEERAT

ATTENDANCE AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

During the year, the Company held one general meeting, namely
the AGM held on 28 May 2019. Details of matters resolved and the
poll results were published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website after the general meeting on that day.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee attended the AGM to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders. Separate resolution was proposed
at the AGM on each substantially separate issue, including re-election of
each retiring director, and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll.
Detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.

R=Z—NI%F
EA=+NH
BT R
BEXE

Annual general
meeting held
on 28 May 2019

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning ANEAN/A
(resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman and non- executive Director
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (appointed as Chairman of the /
Board on 21 March 2019, ceased to be the Chief
Executive Officer, re-designated as non-executive
Director and continue to serve as the Chairman of
the Board on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. HAN Yuewei (appointed on 22 October 2019) TEANA

Executive Director and Vice Chairman

Mr. LI Xiangming ASEFAN/A
(appointed as executive Director on 29 May 2019
and appointed as Vice Chairman on 2 December
2019)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice
President

Mdm. WENG Jingwen ANEFAN/A
(appointed on 5 July 2019)
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BEKRE
Annual general
meeting held
on 28 May 2019

HITEE  BEHBHEREES Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice
President
TEELE (R NFLARBET Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019) /
HITEE Executive Director
REREE Mr. QIU Huawei TERN/A
RZE-NFRhAZTNLBEEZET (appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22
R-ZE—-NE+AZ+ZBEIT) October 2019)
FEHTTEE Non-executive Directors
BRER ST Mr. CHEN Rong -
R=ZZE-NFREA=-+NEED (resigned on 29 May 2019)
REBREE Mr. YU Zhongliang -
ElE pedan Mdm. GUO Wei TEANA
(RZZE-NFRAZTNLBEZD (appointed on 29 May 2019)
FPETE Mr. WANG Shouye -
BEERE Mr. LYU Ruizhi -
I TESE Independent non-executive Directors
BRRBZ T Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne /
B K& Mr. KWOK Kin Fun v
BIEREE Mr. FU Tingmei /
SR ER A Mr. ZHANG Kejian /
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Remuneration of Senior Management

Details of the remuneration by band of the senior management of the
Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 100 to 104 of this
annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:

AH

Number of
individuals

Remuneration band

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

T H1,000,0007T

7%1,000,001 7T 2% 1,500,0007T
7%1,500,001 7L 28 #2,000,0007T
7E#2,000,001 72 #2,500,0007T
7E%2,500,001 72 7 #3,000,0007T
753,000,001 25 #3,500,0007C
75#3,500,0017C 275 #4,000,0007C
754,000,001 7T 275 #4,500,0007C
75#4,500,0017C 28 #5,000,0007C
755,000,001 7T E 8 #5,500,0007C
7B #5,500,001 7T 28 #6,000,0007C
756,000,001 7T %5 #6,500,0007T
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 124 to 131 of this annual report.
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The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis. The risk
management and internal control systems can provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, and are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the process
of attaining business objectives.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management and
internal control system, and devoted significant attention to internal
control measures of its pharmaceutical manufacturing, pharmaceutical
distribution and pharmaceutical retail businesses. It has adopted stringent
internal control measures and operating procedures to regulate all stages
of its pharmaceutical value chain, from research and development to
manufacturing, distribution and retail. The Group’s internal control system
is designed according to relevant industrial and management standards,
including the GMP and GSP requirements. The Group implements the
procedures for periodic internal control audit, internal risk management,
and error correction and prevention on a regular basis.

With respect to dissemination of inside information, the Company has
adopted its “Information Disclosure Policy” setting out the procedures
of proper information disclosure. Release of inside information shall
be led by the Board. Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the
Company shall not disseminate inside information relating to the Group
to any external parties and shall not respond to media report or market
speculation which may materially affect the trading price or volume of the
Shares.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the
internal audit department include reviewing the financial condition, risk
management and internal control of the Group and conducting audits
of subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis. The internal audit
department is required to report to the Audit Committee and the Board
in relation to its review of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system annually, and if there is any material deficiency, such issue
has to be reported in a timely manner.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and considered the systems to be effective and adequate.
The Audit Committee has also assessed whether the Group’s internal
audit department is adequately resourced and reviewed its effectiveness.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 89



PFREBHRS

Corporate Governance Report

BN &
WEBHNBE-F - NE+-A=+—ALF
FESBR LA 2 RV B RO BB R S BURRS 2 A
BE#FIT :

BR#% 35!

Type of services

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately as follows:

SEE (BT T)
Amount (HK$°000)

ZEARTS Audit services 16,935

IERZEBR TS Non-audit services 669

st Total 17,604
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The Company Secretary, Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter, is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong. Mr. LO, aged 70, was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 20 May 2016. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1976 and
has been in continuous practice since qualification. He is currently a
partner of Messrs. Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. Although Mr. LO is not a
full time employee of the Company, he reports to the Board and in his
capacity as Company Secretary advises the Board on governance matters.
The primary contact person of the Company with Mr. LO is Mdm. Weng
Jingwen, the executive Director, chief financial officer and vice president
of the Company. Mr. LO confirmed that he had fulfilled the 15 hours of
Continuing Professional Development training requirement of a solicitor
of Hong Kong in respect of 2019.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGMs provide opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will normally attend the AGMs to
answer Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also be invited to attend
the AGMs to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor’s independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’” communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and the
Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at http:/www.
crpharm.com, where up-to-date information on the Group’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from members of the Company representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meeting. Such requests (a) must state the general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and (b) may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company in
hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company
for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: crpharm-
ir@crpharm.com); and (b) must be authenticated by the person or
persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the Companies
Ordinance, the directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date
on which they become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of
the Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Besides, Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that members
may request the Company to give, to the members who are entitled to
attend the AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at its annual general meeting. The Company
must give such notice of resolution if it has received requests that it do
so from (a) the members of the Company representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 members who have a right to vote on the resolution at
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate. Such requests
(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by email: crpharm-ir@crpharm.com);(b) must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given;(c) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company
not later than (i) six weeks before the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company that is required under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive notice
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of the annual general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the
meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable
after, it gives notice of the meeting.

Article 90 of the Articles of Association provides that the Company may
from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board; no person, other than a retiring Director or a person
recommended by the Board, shall be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing from a
shareholder of his intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected as a Director shall have been lodged with the registered office of
the Company; unless otherwise determined by the Directors and notified
by the Company to the Shareholders, the period for lodgement of the
notices referred to in paragraph (2) of this Article shall commence on a
day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting designated for such
election of Director(s). If the Directors should so determine and notify
the Shareholders of a different period for lodgement of the said notice
referred to in paragraph (2) of this Article, such period shall in any event
be a period of not less than seven days, commencing no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the said notice of the meeting and ending no
later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at the general meeting, the following documents
must be validly served at the registered office of the Company, namely
(1) his/ner notice of intention to propose a resolution at the general
meeting;(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his/her
willingness to be elected;(3) the nominated candidate’s information as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (4)
the nominated candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her
personal data.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 17 December 2018.
Subject to the relevant criteria, the Company mat distribute not less than
20% of the Group’s annual distributable profit, excluding one-off gains, as
dividends to the Shareholders. Such declaration and payment of dividends
shall remain to be determined at the absolute discretion of the Board
and subject to all applicable requirements (including without limitation
restrictions on dividend declaration and payment) under the Companies
Ordinance and the Articles of Association.

The Company will regularly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify
the Dividend Policy at any time, and Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the
Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Company’s Dividend Policy is available at the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
Room 4104-05, 41/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: crpharm-ir@crpharm.com

Tel No. : 852-2593 8991

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholding to
the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level

54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or fax number:
2861 1465.

During 2019, there is no change in the Articles of Association.
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Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr. WANG Chuncheng, aged 57, was appointed as a Director in
December 2014, designated as an executive Director in June 2016, was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company from June 2016 to October
2019, has been the chairman of the Board since March 2019 and has
been re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director
since October 2019. Mr. WANG also serves as an executive vice president
of CR Holdings and the chairman of CR Sanjiu and CR Jiangzhong Group.
Mr. WANG has over 20 years of experience in corporate management.
He was the chairman of Dong-E-E-Jiao from January 2015 to November
2019 and was the chairman of CR Double-Crane from January 2015 to
December 2018. Mr. Wang served as a general manager of the standing
board office of CR Holdings, the chairman of Teck Soon Hong Limited,
and the chairman of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited
(ZFE M4 4 (@) B Q7)) and the chairman of CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial. Mr. WANG holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from
Jilin Institute of Finance and Trade (currently known as Jilin University of
Finance and Economics) in Changchun, the PRC.

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. HAN Yuewei, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in October 2019. He also serves
as the chairman of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a director of CR Sanjiu and a director
of CR Double-Crane. Mr. HAN served as an executive director of China
Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (“CR Medical”) (listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1515) from October 2017 to October
2019, during which he served as the chief executive officer of CR Medical
and the general manager of China Resources Healthcare Group Limited,
the controlling shareholder of CR Medical. Mr. HAN worked for CR
Land from October 2010 to October 2017, during which he served as
deputy general manager of Shenyang Region, deputy general manager
of Shenzhen Region, director of engineering and vice president of CR
Land. Prior to joining CR Land, Mr. HAN worked as the deputy director
and director of the Bureau of Public Works of Shenzhen Municipality (%
JITZETHZE) from April 2002 to October 2010. Mr. HAN obtained
a master’s degree in construction economics and management from
Tsinghua University (K2 ) and a bachelor’s degree in construction
management from Tsinghua University in July 1993 and July 1991
respectively.
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Vice Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. LI Xiangming, aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director
in May 2019 and subsequently appointed as Vice Chairman of the
Board in December 2019. Mr. LI was appointed as the chairman of CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial in February 2019. Mr. LI currently serves as
a vice president of China Association of Pharmaceutical Commerce and
a chief supervisor of Beijing Pharmaceutical Association. From December
2015 to February 2019, Mr. LI successively served as party committee
vice secretary, executive deputy general manager and party committee
member of the Company and party committee secretary and general
manager of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial. Mr. Ll is a traditional Chinese
pharmacist. He obtained an EMBA degree from University of International
Business and Economics, China.

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President

Mdm. WENG Jingwen, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director,
chief financial officer and vice president of the Company in July 2019,
has 12 years of experience in financial management and auditing and 8
years of experience in strategic development and business analysis. Mdm.
WENG also serves as a director of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a director of CR Double-
Crane and a supervisor of CR Sanjiu. She served as a director of CR Sanjiu
from December 2015 to November 2019. Mdm. WENG joined China
Resources Group in 2004 and served as a general manager of internal
audit department and strategic controller of China Resources Gas Group
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange), Stock
Code: 1193), deputy strategic development controller of CR Holdings
(with a focus in pharmaceutical and healthcare areas). Mdm. WENG was
previously engaged in financial management and auditing job in the
International Business Machines Corporation and PricewaterhouseCoopers
before joining China Resources Group. Mdm. WENG obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Zhejiang University and an MBA
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. YU Zhongliang, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in June 2016. Mr. YU also serves as a senior deputy chief strategy officer
of the Strategy Management Department of CR Holdings. Mr. YU has
over 30 years of experience in investment, business analysis and strategic
development. Mr. YU was successively the strategic development
controller, an executive director and a vice chairman of China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1313). Mr. YU holds an MBA degree of York University in Toronto,
Canada.

Non-executive Director

Mdm. GUO Wei, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
May 2019 and appointed as a deputy financial director of the Finance
Department of CR Holdings in April 2017. Mdm. GUO has been a director
of CR Sanjiu since April 2018 and has been a director of and CR Double-
Crane since December 2015. Mdm. GUO holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics from University of International Business and Economics, China
and a master’s degree in law from Peking University, China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Shouye, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in May 2018, joined the BSCOMC in 2010 and is currently the chief
financial officer of BSCOMC. Mr. WANG was a director of the Company
from October 2011 to June 2016. Mr. WANG was also a non-executive
director of CSC Financial Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6066), from August 2016 to February 2018. Mr. WANG has
over 10 years of experience in financial management. He was the director
of finance and audit division of Beijing Coal Corporation, the director of
finance and audit division, the director of finance and audit department,
the director of finance department, and the director of finance and price
department of Beijing Jintai Hengye Co., Ltd. bt R&FIEEBRETA
@), a subsidiary of Beijing Jingmei Group Co. Ltd. At R RHEEEER
EEAFDand the director of finance department of Beijing Golden Tide
Group Co. Ltd(IER&FREEBRAF]), a subsidiary of Beijing Jingmei
Group Co. Ltd. Gb R KL BEFREE LR . Mr. WANG graduated
from Fuxin Mining Institute majoring in statistics in 1992 and graduated
from the School of Continuing Education of Renmin University of China
in 1997 majoring in investment and economics management. Mr. WANG
obtained a master’s degree in business management and economics from
Liaoning Technical University in 2006. He is also a professor level senior
accountant and senior statistician in the PRC.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. LYU Ruizhi, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
May 2018. Mr. LYU joined BSCOMC in 2010 and is currently the general
manager of the investment management second division of BSCOMC.
Mr. LYU has many years of experience in investment management. He
was the vice manager of the securities department of Beijing Capital
Development Co., Ltd. Gt R B &R Z WD AR A 7)) and the vice general
manager of the investment management division of BSCOMC. Mr. LYU
was a part-time director of Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd (db;54& M /5ER
AR F]) (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600166) from September 2015 to July 2018. Mr. LYU graduated from
the department of investment economics of Renmin University of China
in 1995 majoring in investment economics management and obtained
a master’s degree in accounting from the School of Business of Renmin
University of China in 2002. He is also an economist in the PRC.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne, B88s, Jp, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2017. Mdm. SHING was
appointed as a Justice of Peace of the HKSAR in 2013 and awarded
Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2017. Mdm. SHING is currently the chairman
of Yinn Advisory Services Limited and an independent non-executive
director of CSSC (Hong Kong) Shipping Company Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3877). Mdm. SHING was a partner of
Deloitte China for over 26 years until May 2016. She is also a member
of the 10th, 11th and 12th Jiangsu Provincial Committee of the
CPPCC. Mdm. SHING is a founding member and former president of
the Association of Women Accountants (Hong Kong) and the former
chairman of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Taxation
Committee. Her professional qualifications include fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Mdm. SHING's current public appointments include
treasurer of the Council of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts, member of the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of
the Independent Commission Against Corruption, member of the
Communications Authority, member of the Advisory Committee on Built
Heritage Conservation, court member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and advisor and member of the Finance Committee of Our
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Hong Kong Foundation. In 2006, Mdm. SHING received the National
Hundred Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs Award in Great Hall of
the People in Beijing. She also received the Outstanding Alumni Award
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007. Mdm. SHING has been
consecutively named from 2001 to 2015 in International Tax Review as
one of the World’s Leading Tax Advisors in Hong Kong and Mainland.
Mdm. SHING graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and obtained a Higher
Diploma in Accountancy and is 2016/2017 University Fellow of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun, 88s, /p, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. KWOK also serves as an
executive committee member of Rehabilitation International and global
vice chairman of Social Commission of Rehabilitation International, the
co-chair of the Conference Organizing Committee of Rehabilitation
International Asia & Pacific Regional Conference 2019, the chairman of
Incheon Strategy Group Committee of Asia and Pacific Disability Forum, a
vice chairman of The Hong Kong Joint Council for People with Disabilities,
a vice chairman of The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation, the council
member of Fu Hong Society, a member of Ethics Research Committee
of Hospital Authority Kowloon Central and Kowloon East Clusters, a
member of Voting Members Committee of Riding For the Disabled
Association, the chairman of Accessible IT Development Association
Limited, a professional committee consultant to the Disabled Research
and Professional Committee of the China Association of Rehabilitation of
Disabled Persons (March 2019-March 2023), a professional consultant to
the Professional Committee of Shenzhen Smart Assistive Tech Association,
and an off-campus co-operative instructor to PHD students in the field of
athletic rehabilitation in the Sports Institute of Soochow University (2019-
2022). Mr. KWOK has over 30 years of experience in disability research
and medical research ethics. He successively served as a senior lecturer, a
principal lecturer, a university senior lecturer and an associate professor of
the City University of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2009, and after retirement
served as full-time and part-time senior research fellow. Mr. KWOK was
appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the government of Hong Kong in
1997 and received the Bronze Bauhinia Star awarded by the government
of Hong Kong SAR in 2005, “Kazuo Itoga” Memorial Prize awarded by
the government of Shiga Prefecture, Japan in 2006, and the Promoter
title of “Asian and Pacific Decade of Persons with Disabilities, 2013-
2022" awarded by United Nations Economic and Social Commission for
Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP) in 2012. Mr. KWOK holds a bachelor’s
degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong, a master’s
degree in social science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a
Ph.D. degree in philosophy from the University of Nottingham, the United
Kingdom.
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Independent non-executive Director

Mr. FU Tingmei, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2016. Mr. FU has over 20 years of experience
in investment, finance, law and business management. Mr. FU currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1788), Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1658) and COFCO Meat
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1610). Mr. FU was an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0392) from July 2008 to June 2017 and an independent
non-executive director of CPMC Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0906) from June 2008 to July 2019. Mr.
FU holds a master’s degree in law and a Ph.D. degree in law from London
University, the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Kejian, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2016. Mr. ZHANG also serves as an independent
director of Yifan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002019), an independent director of Hunan
Fangsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 603998), an independent director of Zhejiang
Hisoar Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 002099) and the Chief Scientist of The South
China Center for Innovative Pharmaceuticals. Mr. ZHANG has over 20
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry of PRC. He was an
independent director of CR Double-Crane, a company listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600062) from February 2016 to June 2018.
He was employed as a professor of School of Pharmaceutical Sciences
of Sun Yat-sen University and the director (Pharmacy Administration) of
The South China Center for Innovative Pharmaceuticals, a researcher at
the Institute of Medicine, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences (7 B8
BRL BB 2 FERT), and successively served as a deputy director of
Pharmaceutical Evaluation Center (%2 =F 9 »)and a deputy director
of Medical Device Evaluation Center (B/&E g3 H T2 7T+ L1) under the
State Food and Drug Administration of the PRC (R & %R EE &
I2/F). Mr. ZHANG received a master's degree in pathophysiology from
China Medical University in Shenyang, the PRC and a doctor’s degree in
pharmacy from the School of Pharmaceutical Sciences of Chiba University
in Chiba, Japan.
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Mr. QIU Huawei, aged 52, is a director and president of CR Sanjiu,
a director of CR Jiangzhong Group. He used to be the chairman of
Shenzhen San-jiu Pharmaceutical trade Co., Ltd. CRYITT = N EEEE
Z7BBRAF])and a senior vice president of CR Sanjiu. Mr. QIU holds
a bachelor’s degree in genetics and genetic engineering from Fudan
University, is a senior engineer, and concurrently serves as the vice
chairman of the Shenzhen Nutrition Society (ZYITT & HZE=), the
executive president of China Non-Prescription Medicines Association (1
SEE 7 B E), a vice president of Chinese Rural Health Association (FF
B ERETE 7 E) and a vice president of China Association of Traditional
Chinese Medicine (FREI Z5i7&) .

Mr. FENG Yi, aged 58, was appointed as the chairman of CR Double-
Crane in December 2018. Mr. FENG has served as a deputy division
researcher and director of the organization bureau, a deputy general
manager of human resource department of CR Holdings, a deputy
general manager of China Resources Snow Breweries (Panjin) Co., Ltd.
(FEHSIEE (81%) BR2A7F)), a deputy general manager of China
Resources Land (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (FEEE i QL) D BR AT, the
chief human resources officer, vice president and senior vice president
of CR Bank, a senior vice president of the Company, and a supervisor of
CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao. Mr. FENG obtained an EMBA degree from
Peking University in Beijing, the PRC.

Mr. MU Hong, aged 57, was appointed as a director of CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial in March 2019 and the general manager
of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial in November 2019. Mr. MU
currently holds various internal positions including chairmen of CR
Guangdong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (EEERBEAR DA,
CR Shandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (EBILEREHR AT,
CR Liaoning Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ZEHEEBEHR A7), CR
Heilongjiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. GEE BT E 2GR A F))and
CR Jilin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. GEHE MEBEHFRR R F]),the rotating
chairman of China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing Pharmaceutical
Logistics Branch and the vice chairman of Beijing Logistics and Supply
Chain Management Association. Mr. MU started his career in China
Resources since 1994 and successively served as the general manager
of China Resources Beer (Liaoning) Co., Ltd. (ZE;BEEH (5 %) A7),
the chairman and the general manager of China Resources (Shenyang)
Sanyo Compressor Co., Ltd. (ESEB=FBEME® AR 1 7)), the
deputy chairman of CR Pharmaceutical, the general manager of CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial. Mr. MU is an engineer who holds an
EMBA degree awarded by Nanjing University Business School located in
Nanjing,Jiangsu Province.
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Mdm. LU Xiaoging, aged 51, currently serves as a deputy secretary,
a director and a general manager of CR Jiangzhong Group and the
chairman of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical. She served as a the director
of the general office, human resources controller, the head of the
Organization department of the Party Committee, party committee
vice secretary, deputy general manager, general manager, and deputy
chairman of Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd, currently
known as CR Jiangzhong Group. Mdm. LU holds a bachelor’s degree
in pharmacy from Jiangxi University of Traditional Chinese Medicine, a
master’s degree in law from Zhejiang University, an EMBA degree from
Tsinghua University. Mdm. LU is also a practising pharmacist and an
associate chief pharmacist.

Mr. GAO Dengfeng, aged 47, holds a master’s degree in MBA. Mr.GAO
has been working in Dong-E-E-Jiao from September 1995. He used to
be a sales representative of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a sales manager,an office
manager, a marketing manager/director, a director of south west and
north west regions, a director of high-end product segment, a general
manager of Jiangsu sales branch, a general manager of Suwan sales
branch, a director of human resources department, a general manager
of a healthcare product company, a general manager of an e-commerce
company, the associate president, the vice president, etc. Mr. GAO serves
as a party committee vice secretary and the president of Dong-E-E-Jiao.

Mr. WU Jun, aged 57, was appointed as a senior vice president of the
Company in December 2013. Currently, Mr. WU also serves as a director
of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a supervisor of CR Double-Crane. Mr. WU has been
a director and the general manager of China Resources Machinery
and Minmetals (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (ZEBH AR (@) AR A F), a
deputy general manager in the enterprise development department of
CR Holdings, a director and deputy general manager of CR Investment
& Development Company Limited ((EB1& EFZE AR R F]), a deputy
general manager in the internal audit department of CR Holdings and
a vice president of the Company. Mr. WU obtained the qualification of
senior engineer in China and he obtained a master’s degree in mechanical
engineering from Tianjin University and an MBA degree from University
of San Francisco in San Francisco, the United States of America.
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Mr. CHEN Hong, aged 59, was appointed as a senior vice president
of the Company in December 2013. Mr. CHEN is also a supervisor
of CR Double-Crane. Mr. CHEN is also a supervisor of CR Double-
Crane. Mr. CHEN has been a deputy factory manager of Beijing Second
Pharmaceutical Factory (Jb R 5 —®E4ER), currently known as China
Resources Saike Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. GEHBERIBEZFRET AR,
the chairman of Beijing Saike Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (4t BRI BL A
FRE{EAR]), currently known as China Resources Saike Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. GEHERIEZEBREEAF]), a vice general manager of Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. It REZEEFEFREEAF]) and the vice
president of the Company. Mr. CHEN was awarded prizes like “Capital
May Day Labor Medal” (B#3 —458)#8%), “Model Workers in Beijing”
and “National May Day Labor Medal” (2B —4&)#8%). Mr. CHEN
obtained the qualification of assistant engineer in China and he attended
undergraduate class majoring in economic management in the Party
School of Beijing Municipal Committee of the CPC (R At R HEERK) .

Mr. YIN Huijun, aged 49, was appointed as a senior vice president of the
Company in June 2017. Currently, Mr. YIN also serves as the chairman of
China Pharmaceutical R&D Center Co., Ltd. (7 Bl E8 LR 5 BAZE AP VB R
A]), the chairman and general manager of CR Biopharm, a committee
member and a deputy secretary-general of Medical and Health sector of
All-China Youth Federation (FZ 2K FE), the vice chairman of the 4th
council of the Chinese Pharmacists Association, a Ph.D. tutor of China
Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences, a graduate student tutor of Gansu
University of Chinese Medicine, a professor of the Nankai University and
a researcher of the National Center for Nanoscience and Technology. Mr.
YIN has served as the cardiovascular laboratory officer of Xiyuan Hospital
under China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences (the former China
Academy of Traditional Chinese Medicine), a standing director of Specialty
Committee of Cardiovascular Diseases of World Federation of Chinese
Medicine Societies, a vice president of Affiliated Hospital of Gansu
University of Chinese Medicine and the chief of international cooperation
department of China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. Mr. YIN was
awarded the “Star of Science and Technology” by TCM Society and the
Second Class Prize for Progress of National Science and Technology (BZ
B —%48) . Mr. YIN obtained the qualification of researcher issued
by China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. Mr. YIN obtained a
doctor’s degree in Chinese internal medicine from Heilongjiang College of
Chinese Medicine (currently known as Heilongjiang University of Chinese
Medicine (2&e)T R E %K 2)) in Harbin, the PRC. Mr. YIN conducted his
postdoctoral research in Institute of Genetics and Developmental Biology,
Chinese Academy of Sciences.
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Mr. WU Jianjun, aged 48, was appointed as an vice president of the
Company in September 2019. Mr. WU had been a vice director of
Workshop, a vice head of Sales Division and a vice head of Foreign Trade
Division of Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (3t (L — D BR AR,
an assistant researcher of Enterprise Reform Office of Beijing Municipal
Commission of Economy and Information Technology (3t R & & (>3
PNE ), a vice head of Enterprise Reform Office of the Stated-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing, an assistant
to the general manager of Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Jb R EE BEE
EBREEAR]), a director of China Resources Pharmaceutical (Beijing)
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (FEHBHE (L) EXERBRA
A]), a senior director of Production and Manufacturing Division of CR
Pharmaceutical, a general manager of the general manager’s office of CR
Pharmaceutical and a vice president of the Company. Mr. WU holds an
executive master’s degree in Business Administration awarded by Tsinghua
University in Beijing, the PRC.

Mr. MENG Qingsheng, aged 51, was appointed as a vice president of the
Company in October 2016. Mr. MENG has engaged in the Information
Technology (IT) consultancy and management business for over 20 years.
Mr. MENG has extensive experience in areas like corporate IT strategic
planning, system structural design, project management and the training
of professional personnel. Mr. MENG successively held positions in
SSA China Co., Ltd., Platinum China Co., Ltd. and Oracle China Co.,
Ltd.. Mr. MENG has also acted as a deputy director of the Information
Management Department of CR Holdings.

Mdm. TANG Na, aged 43, was appointed as the chief legal advisor of the
Company in March 2014. Mdm. TANG also serves as a supervisor of CR
Sanjiu and a supervisor of Dong-E-E-Jiao. Mdm. TANG served as a partner
of Concord & Partners and a director of legal affairs of CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial. Mdm. TANG obtained the qualification of PRC lawyer and
the corporate counsel qualification. Mdm. TANG obtained a bachelor of
law degree from China University of Political Science and Law in Beijing,
the PRC and attended postgraduate courses majoring in urban economics
in the School of Economics at Renmin University of China in Beijing, the
PRC.

Mr. JIN Song, aged 44, was appointed as an assistant president of the
Company in June 2016. Mr. JIN served as a division-level consultant at
the State Food and Drug Administration of the PRC (currently known as
the China Food and Drug Administration of the PRC). Mr. JIN obtained a
master’s degree in international cooperation policy from Ritsumeikan Asia
Pacific University in Kyoto, Japan.
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Mr. ZHAO Bingxiang, aged 47, was appointed as an assistant president of
the Company and the chairman of China Resources Zizhu Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. GEBEEM2ZZE AR A F))in September 2016. Mr. ZHAO had
served as a regional sales manager and a marketing officer of San-jiu
Pharmaceutical trade Co., Ltd. (= "B #Z 5B R A F]), a deputy general
manager of San-jiu Tongda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (= W EBEZEE AR
Ad]), a senior researcher of the R&D center of CR Sanjiu and a general
manager of China Resources Sanjiu (Ya'an) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (3£
=N (FER) BEEAGRAE]). Mr. ZHAO has been named as an excellent
entrepreneur and an outstanding entrepreneur in Sichuan province,
he has received the State Scientific and Technological Progress Award
— second-class and the Sichuan Scientific and Technological Progress
Award — first-class. Mr. ZHAO is a professor-level senior engineer and
he holds a bachelor’'s degree from the School of Pharmacy of Shenyang
Pharmaceutical University, a master’s degree from the Peking University
School of Pharmaceutical Sciences, and a doctor’s degree from the
College of Chemical and Biological Engineering, Zhejiang University.

Mr. TAO Ran, aged 54, was appointed as vice president of the
Company in June 2017. Mr. TAO also serves as a supervisor of CR
Sanjiu, a supervisor of CR Double-Crane and a supervisor of Dong-E-
E-Jiao. Mr. TAO has been a deputy chief of Import Division | of China
Resources National Corporation (currently known as China Resources
Company Limited), a senior manager of Investment Division, a general
manager of Strategy Division and a deputy general manager of China
Resources Textiles (Holdings) Co., Ltd. and a senior director of Strategic
Development Division, a general manager of Strategic Development
Division of CR Pharmaceutical. Mr. TAO holds a bachelor’s degree in
engineering awarded by Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai and
a master’s degree in economics awarded by School of Economics and
Management of Beihang University.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing, distribution
and retail of an extensive range of pharmaceutical and other healthcare
products. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 132 to 133 of this annual
report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.11
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$0.13). Such
final dividend will not be subject to any withholding tax in Hong Kong.
The final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on 28 May 2020 and the final dividend
will be distributed on or about 23 June 2020 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 June
2020.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22 May
2020 to 28 May 2020, both days inclusive, in order to determine the
identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM, during
which period no share transfers will be registered. To be eligible to
attend the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2020.
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The register of members of the Company will also be closed on 5
June 2020, in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders
to receive the final dividend, during which no share transfers will be
registered. To qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2020.

A review of the Company’s business, a discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year, the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position, certain important events occurred since the end of the Reporting
Period and the future development of the Company’s business have been
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

The Group shall comply with the relevant provisions governing
environmental protection and appraisal of environmental impact, as well
as national and provincial standards of environmental quality established
by various government authorities. The Group has carried out the relevant
environmental impact assessments and has obtained all the required
permits and environmental approvals for its manufacturing facilities. To
ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations on pollution
control, the Group has also established waste water treatment and waste
management facilities at its pharmaceutical manufacturing sites.

To the best knowledge and information of the Company, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws, regulations and other applicable
requirements that have a significant impact on the Group during the
Reporting Period.

The Group recognizes the importance of good governance to its
sustainable growth and strives to maintain effective communication
with its stakeholders, including its Shareholders, investors, employees,
customers and suppliers.

In addition to the above, general information regarding the Group’s
performance on environmental and social-related policies, as well as
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group and an account of the Company’s relationships
with its key stakeholders are discussed throughout this annual report.
Further details will be also disclosed in the Company’s Corporate Social
Responsibility Report 2019 to be published within three months from the
date of this annual report.
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A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last five
financial years is set out on page 31 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 3.6% (2018: 3.8%) of the Group's total
revenue and our single largest customer accounted for 0.8% (2018:
1.0%) of the Group's total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 13.5% (2018: 11.0%) of the Group's total purchases
and our single largest supplier accounted for 3.3% (2018: 3.2%) of the
Group's total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity pages 136 to 137.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, amounted to approximately HK$1,119.2 million.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in notes 27, 29 and 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (appointed as Chairman of the Board on 21
March 2019, ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
re-designated as non-executive Director and continue to serve as the
Chairman of the Board on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. HAN Yuewei (appointed on 22 October 2019)

Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. LI Xiangming (appointed on 29 May 2019 and appointed as Vice
Chairman of the Company on 2 December 2019)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mdm. WENG Jingwen (appointed on 5 July 2019)
Mr. LI Guohui (resigned on 5 July 2019)
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Mr. QIU Huawei (appointed on 29 May 2019 and resigned on 22 October
2019)

Mr. CHEN Rong (resigned on 29 May 2019)
Mr. YU Zhongliang

Mdm. GUO Wei (appointed on 29 May 2019)
Mr. WANG Shouye

Mr. LYU Ruizhi

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

In accordance with article 78 of the Articles of Association, Mr. HAN
Yuewei, Mr. LI Xiangming, Mdm. WENG Jingwen and Mdm. Guo Wei
shall retire from office, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

In accordance with article 88(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. YU
Zhongliang, Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne and Mr. KWOK Kin Fun shall
retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 27 April 2020.

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 94 to 104 of this annual report.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be
independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 and remain
so as of the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
parent company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year and up to the date of this annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 9 and 10 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Group are
set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year was the Company, its parent company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of
the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

IEARRAF]
IRz
N
Approximate
Percentage of
B RemitE FisEzROEB Hr #E Shareholding in
RRERE Capacity/Nature of E Number of Long/short the Company
Name of Shareholder Interest Shares held position (%)
REEBHERAR REGEEE R 3,333,185,612 & 53.04
China Resources Company Limited™ Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
EERM RESEEER 3,333,185,612 & 53.04
CRIM Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
CRC Bluesky Limited™ SRR EE 3,333,185,612 & 53.04
Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
EHEE HESEEER 3,333,185,612 & 53.04
CR Holdings™ Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
FHEE(BE)BRARD EmEAA 3,333,185,612 4f& 53.04
CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited™ Beneficial owner Long position
IERBEEH L EEHEE R 1,296,238,849 i1 & 20.63
BSCOMC® 3 Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
IEREERREZRARARS RESEEER 1,094,800,000 41& 17.42
Beijing State-owned Capital Operation Interest in controlled Long position
and Management Center Investment corporation
Holdings Limited®
EREEROREEEERAA BERBEBA 1,094,800,000 ff& 17.42

Beijing State-owned Capital Operation
and Management Center Investment
Management Limited®

Beneficial owner

Long position

* 112 20195485« spunenaspAq
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Notes:

(1)

)

3)

Save

CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited (“CRH (Pharmaceutical)”) directly held
3,333,185,612 Shares. CRH (Pharmaceutical) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CR Holdings. CR Holdings is a beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC
Bluesky Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by CRI. CRI'is an ultimately
beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited.
By virtue of the SFO, each of China Resources Company Limited, CRI, CRC
Bluesky Limited and CR Holdings is deemed to have an interest in the Shares
held by CRH (Pharmaceutical).

By virtue of the SFO, BSCOMC is deemed to have an interest in the
201,438,849 Shares held by Beijing Equity Investment Development Fund
(Cayman ) L.P., an exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman
Islands, by reason of a series of funds and corporate structures. Each of
which, individually, is interested in less than 5% in the voting Shares.

Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and Management Center Investment
Management Limited (“BSCOMC Investment Management” , formerly
known as Beijing Pharmaceutical Investment Limited) directly held
1,094,800,000 Shares. BSCOMC Investment Management is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bejjing Stateowned Capital Operation and Management
Center Investment Holdings Limited ("BSCOMC Investment Holdings ",
formerly known as Beijing Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited), which is in
turn wholly owned by BSCOMC. By virtue of the SFO, each of BSCOMC and
BSCOMC Investment Holdings is deemed to have an interest in the Shares
held by BSCOMC Investment Management.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were

not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 12 December 2017 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to effectively retain
and attract exceptional talents through a further optimized
remuneration structure, align the interests of the employees and
Shareholders, and effectively motivate both the management team
and key employees, thereby fostering the long-term development
of the Company and maximizing the interests of the Shareholders.

There are 199 incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme,
who are the Directors (excluding non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), senior management
(including general managers, deputy general managers, heads of
the finance department and those personnel with such functions,
board secretaries and other senior management pursuant to
the Articles of Association), and other key employees whose
management and technical skills may have a direct impact on the
results of operation and strategic development of the Group.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and
all other schemes of the Company (if any) shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 628,450,646 Shares, representing 10% of the Company’s
total issued shares as at the date on which the resolution approving
the Share Option Scheme is passed at the extraordinary general
meeting.

The Company may seek approval from the Shareholders at a
general meeting of the Company to grant share options exceeding
the above 10% limit, provided that share options in excess of such
limit are granted to those incentive targets specifically identified by
the Company before such approval is obtained.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued in relation to
the first grant of the share options to the incentive targets under
the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s
total issued Shares.
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Unless approved by the Shareholders in the general meeting of
the Company, the total number of Shares which are issued and
will be issued upon exercise of the share options (including both
exercised and outstanding Share options) granted to any one of
the incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company within any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total issued Shares from time to time.
Where further grant of share options to an incentive target would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to such incentive target
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total issued Shares,
such further grant must be separately approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting of the Company with such incentive target and
his/her close associates (or his/her associates if such incentive target
is a connected person) abstaining from voting, and in such case,
the Company will send a circular to the Shareholders disclosing all
relevant information necessary under the Listing Rules.

The limit on the number of securities which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and other schemes (if any) shall not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company in
issue from time to time, and no share option may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
if this will result in this limit being exceeded.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for ten (10) years from its
effective date, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to the terms
therein.

The incentive targets under each grant of the Share Option Scheme
may only exercise the share options two (2) years after the grant
date.

Once the conditions to the exercise are satisfied after the two-
year restriction period commencing from the grant date, the share
options may be exercised by three (3) years thereafter with the
proportion of 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options in each
year.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 11 5
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The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of the followings:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the grant date (which must
be a trading day) as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet; and

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five (5) trading
days immediately preceding the grant date as stated on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the grant date.

The incentive targets, subject to the fulfillment of the relevant
conditions and within the relevant exercise period, may apply with
the Company in respect of the exercise of the share options granted
to him/her and shall pay the relevant subscription amount within 28
days.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company have entered into a non-
competition agreement (the “Non-competition Agreement”) with CR
Holdings on 14 September 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted a review of
the compliance with the Non-competition Agreement by the Company
and CR Holdings in respect of year 2019, including but not limited to the
review of the Non-Competition Agreement and internal confirmations
by the Company and CR Holdings. Having made all reasonable enquiries,
nothing has come to the attention of the independent non-executive
Directors that, except for the Retained Business (as defined in the
Prospectus), CR Holdings has engaged in, participated in or assisted
others to engage or participate in, or procure its subsidiaries (other than
the Group) to engage in, participate in or assist others to engage in, any
business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business within the PRC during year 2019.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had any
interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

On 6 May 2019, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings entered into a loan
agreement with CR Leasing in respect of a loan in the maximum facility
amount of HK$3 billion with annual interest rate to be determined based
on the applicable market rate offered by the People’s Bank of China for a
term of three years.
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Amended Procurement Framework  CR Holdings
Agreement (Note 1)

BIETREER R (Wit 1) #£H%E

Amended Procurement Framework  CR Holdings
Agreement (Note 1)

EnRBnHEEERREWHE)  EEEE

Products and Commodities Sales CR Holdings
Framework Agreement (Note 1)
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Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Bank
(Note 2)
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Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Bank
(Note 2)
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Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Bank
(Note 2)
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Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Trust
(Note 2)

B S 1EhEE (Hi22) EHER

Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Trust
(Note 2)
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The Group has entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2019:

LEHRAIFAAR
FELR “E-NERFEE
Annual cap permitted Transaction
(= under the amount
Nature Listing Rules in 2019
BEETT HKSmillion  BEE T HKSmillion
W REm IR 152.5 6.1
Procurement of supplies and products
RBRE 50.0 36.2
Procurement of services
EmkBmEE 117.3 333
Sales of products and commodities
FHREBRTEARSERER(ER 3,157.3.0 22173
FEAS)
Maximum daily deposit amount placed
with CR Bank (inclusive of interest
receivable)
ERRTRTRANSRERNEER 1,691.4.0 620.2
BREEBE RIS
Maximum daily principal amount and
interest in relation to financial products
to be provided by CR Bank
EFRTROBTFRENEMERER 169.1 195
kB E=REEARAS
Maximum service fees and commissions
for other financial products and
services to be provided by CR Bank
EREARTRANSRERNEER 3383 &
BREEBE RIS Nil
Maximum daily principal amount and
interest in relation to financial products
to be provided by CR Trust
ERERRENE DS RER KRGS 78.9 it
EmREEARAS Nil

Maximum services fees and commissions
for other financial products and
services to be provided by CR Trust
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FEER ZE-NERG5ER

BRZBEAL Annual cap permitted Transaction

RHERERS Connected E3=1 under the amount

Continuing Connected Transactions Parties involved Nature Listing Rules in 2019

BEET HKSmillion ~ BEE T HKSmillion

B ARG (W23 Bl RREFREL TRENSRRERE 309.0 71.8
Strategic Cooperation Agreement  CR Leasing miER=RBERKAS

(Note 3) Maximum service fees and commissions

for the financial services and products
to be provided by CR Leasing

HEERRE (i) ERE HE B B B i M 1,465.9 678.2
Sales Framework Agreement (Note 4)  CR Health Sales of medical and pharmaceutical

products and consumables

HisE - Notes:

1. ARER=ZF—F+FF+A=F+HHEEFTEFT L 1. The Company has entered into a procurement framework agreement
FRAENE L 1% ([ =B —C FERBIEZE IH:E)) - 1% with CR Holdings on 30 October 2017 (the “Procurement Framework
UE - ZNEE [B] R T 7] 3 R 5 (B R FR AR A Agreement 2017 ), pursuant to which the Group may from time to time
Emm (BEREH - K RERBMHESD - 8 purchase from CR Holdings and its subsidiaries various types of supplies
TEELEFREIERAZE R —REFH AL A and products (including raw materials, ingredients, apparel and software
22 B 2 [B] X ERFE 2N A i) WA R IR TS (B 15 W AR products, but excluding the procurement of utilities by the Group from CR
% RARERE RS BEBFEERERTHAE Holdings and its subsidiaries in the Group’s ordinary and usual course of
ZIRIETFEZIRE - BT G52 EEEELL A business) as well as services (including logistics services, company secretarial
FIZ )BT i RS R IT BT SR - % services and services of an integrated e-commerce and internet based
THERF R EsE - ZERIZAIRE) - IR EH service platform, but excluding IT technical support services, property leasing
PIaVEF - —F—+ FEHRIBEIEL T my R R = services, and construction, decoration and furniture services which are
E—tFFA=THEE EE2=F—/1F1+= covered by separate agreements entered into between CR Holdings and
H=+—HiF A EFTHEREREGEE the Company) in support of our business. The Procurement Framework
H o RZF-NEFZHZ++H  FLFEEZE Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 30 October 2017 until 31
HEE G = F— F IR G g R 5T v — December 2018, subject to renewal by mutual consent and negotiation
IEIRFENER a5 ([ =B — N F B IEF 7% ) between the parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has renewed
HRR =F—NF—A—HFBEITR -FE_FE the Procurement Framework Agreement 2017 and entered into the
FTZA=A+—HAE - procurement framework agreement with CR Holdings for a term from

1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020 (the “Procurement Framework
Agreement 2019 ).

FLRARZFE—NF=F =+ HHEEEEE] On 27 March 2019, the Company entered into the Amended Procurement
TANEE] —E— N EIRENE R i ([T =& Framework Agreement 2019 with CR Holdings for a term commencing
—NEFBEEGZ])  HRR =T NF=H on 27 March 2019 and ending on 31 December 2020 (the “ Amended
ZFttHFBIER - FE_FEFF A=+ —HAK Procurement Framework Agreement 2019") to reflect the amended
I KRB FE— N FIRIEIER [in B [ BT scope and the relevant proposed annual caps for the transactions
B ZEAEIEFTHE R REFE LR - —F contemplated under the Procurement Framework Agreement 2019. The
—NFEFRENE R 55 5 A BT —F— N FHRAE Procurement Framework Agreement 2019 has been replaced by the
ELGHER N AERZF—NF=H=++H Amended Procurement Framework Agreement 2019 and has ceased to
CES have effect on 27 March 2019.

ARARZF—NF=A =1+ HEAEFEET On 27 March 2019, the Company has entered into a Products and
VEmR Bt EIER I o UL - AEE AT Commodities Sales Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group
5 ) 2B 5 B B B 2 A (R &k may from time to time supply products and commodities, which mainly
a5 (R a5 ERT5) REER LB m £ comprise pharmaceutical products, to CR Holdings and/or its subsidiaries
BFE S ER - that are not hospitals including, among others, supermarkets.
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The Company has entered in to a strategic cooperation agreement with CR
Bank on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017" ), pursuant to which the Group may place deposits with CR Bank
and use other financial services and products of CR Bank, including (but not
limited to) the provision of letters of credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals,
bill of exchange and discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and
foreign exchange settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals, financial and
cash management services, financial advisory services and other financial
services and products as agreed by the parties. The CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 20 May 2017
until 31 December 2018, subject to renewal by the parties. On 27 December
2018, the Company has renewed the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2017 and entered into the strategic cooperation agreement with
CR Bank for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020.

The Company has entered in to a strategic cooperation agreement with CR
Trust on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017" ), pursuant to which the Group may use the services and products
provided by CR Trust, including (but not limited to) cash management,
asset management, custodian trust loan services, assignment of receivables,
aavisory services in relation to redemptory monetary capital for sale, and
other financial or trust services and products as agreed by the parties. The
CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 has a term commencing
from 20 May 2017 until 31 December 2018, subject to renewal by the
parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has renewed the CR Trust
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 and entered into the strategic
cooperation agreement with CR Trust for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2020.

The Company has entered in to a strategic cooperation agreement with
CR Leasing on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2017" ), pursuant to which the Group may use the financial
services and products provided by CR Leasing, including (but not limited to)
financial leasing, leasing and the related consultancy and guarantee services,
and factoring in relation to the Group’s principal businesses. The CR Leasing
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 20
May 2017 until 31 December 2018, subject to renewal by the parties.

The Company has entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to
the CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 with CR Leasing
on 7 May 2018, pursuant to which the term of the CR Leasing Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2017 has been extended from 31 December 2018
to 31 December 2019, subject to renewal by the parties, and the original
annual cap for the financial services and products to be provided by CR
leasing for the year ended 31 December 2018 was revised.
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The Company has entered in to a strategic cooperation agreement with CR
Leasing on 9 December 2019 (the “"CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2020” ). The CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2020 has a term commencing from 1 January 2020 until 31 December
2020.

4. The Company has entered in to the a sales framework agreement with CR
Health on 12 May 2017 (the “Sales Framework Agreement 2017" ),
pursuant to which the Group may from time to time supply medical and
pharmaceutical products and consumables, including prescription medicines
and over-the-counter (OTC) drugs to CR Health, its associates and/or
the hospitals that are managed by CR Health and/or its associates. The
Sales Framework Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 12 May
2017 until 31 December 2018. On 31 December 2018, the Company has
renewed the Sales Framework Agreement 2017 and entered into the sales
framework agreement with CR Health for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of Company to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 118 to 121 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted as connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and is in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, the Company had
no connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which
fell to be disclosed in accordance with the provisions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in relation to the disclosure of connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions.

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other donations made by
the Group amounted to HK$21,085,000.

The name of directors who have served on the board of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual report
is available on the Company’s website at www.crpharm.com under”
Investor Relations — Corporate Governance”.

The Articles of Association provide that every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities (including any such liability as
mentioned in Section 468(4) of the Companies Ordinance) which he/she
may sustain or incur in the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be
liable for any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be
incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office
or in relation thereto, provided that this article shall only have effect in so
far as it is not invalidated by the Companies Ordinance.

So far as may be permitted by the Companies Ordinance, if any Director
or other person shall become personally liable for the payment of any
sum primarily due from the Company, the Board may execute or cause
to be executed any mortgage, charge, or security over or affecting the
whole or any part of the assets of the Company by way of indemnity to
secure the Director or person so becoming liable as aforesaid from any
loss in respect of such liability.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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The events after the Reporting Period are disclosed in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee had, together with the management and external
auditor of the Company, reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 66 to 93 of this annual report.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued Shares, the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by the public
at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual
report.

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited
by Ernst & Young. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming AGM
to reappoint Ernst & Young as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
WANG Chuncheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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To the members of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 132 to 308, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Impairment of goodwiill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives

ABHERTEHFHHEEREZRE

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
lives as at 31 December 2019 were HK$19,306
million and HK$2,186 million, respectively. The
impairment tests performed by management
regarding various cash-generating units
("CGUs") involved significant judgement for the
determination of the value in use of the CGUs.
RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 EEERAFE
RFHPNEENEES R REE19,306 88T
KE#2186BETT - BREERTRAREESSE
L ([ReELEM])ETETRSELBLRE
REERRENS REAHE -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’s
estimates involved in the impairment testing.
The accounting policies and related disclosures
are included in note 2.4, 3, 17 and 18 to the
financial statements.

ENRERRMENAE  EREENERE
et - WIRARES T8 - SETEER MAEEE
BENM B mARME24 3 1718
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful lives included, but were not limited to:
HIFIEEAGERAMERAFHNHE LRERHRERNHIZFREENR
0

- Considered the reasonableness of the determination of the CGUs;

- ZERETHSELBEMMNAIEN

- Evaluated the models used in determining the value in use of the
CGUs;
-  FHMEAREERSELBEUEREENER

- Compared the cash flow forecasts to approved budgets, the
historical operating results and other relevant market and economic
information to ensure the reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts,
as well as tested the underlying calculations;

- HReREMAELEERE  BELSEE REMBRRT SN
BEEEETHL  URERREAEEANSEN - WinESHH

Al

Reviewed the reasonableness of key assumptions used in the
impairment testing models and sensitivity analysis performed; and

-  BEEREAFREMGRESTHAABERKRENEEN &

- Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures of impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements.

- HMEEAMBRRPRENERENEENE



Independent Auditor’s Report

Control over Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (“Dong-E-E-Jiao”)

BRI (7B IR 2 & ([ RETFTE) HI7Z #IHE

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the
Company assessed the Group's practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of Dong-E-E-
Jiao, an investee of the Group, unilaterally
by considering the Group’s absolute size of
holding in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the relative size of
and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by
the other shareholders and the practical right to
appoint the majority members of the board of
directors of Dong-E-E-Jiao.

MR A MR HE © ERFES
RBEZRE EEERNRMMBREERENRHE
AR R P AR AR SR IE R D BUAR R - AR
BEZERMMBEEGKEMHKENERE
N ARG BEEEAEEITETEEREY
KRM M BIEEEENEREN -

This is a key audit matter due to the significant
judgement associated with management'’s
assessment of control over Dong-E-E-Jiao.

A E IR S R B e R B AR P Y
NEARHE - ISR EIR -

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of control over Dong-E-E-
Jiao included, but were not limited to:

A B R F o] AT iR ST AERE < AR Fr BB TR

- Reviewed the basis of management’s assessment of control against
the requirements of relevant accounting standards;

- EEesHERREReR e R E ORI &5

- Assessed the impact of the Group's absolute size of equity interest
held with reference to the percentage of equity interest in Dong-
E-E-Jiao owned by the Group, the voting rights of the Group
conferred by the statutory documents of Dong-E-E-Jiao, and other
evidence such as composition of the board of directors, resolutions
of the shareholders’ and board of directors’ meetings of Dong-E-E-
Jiao; and

= R BEEEBRAERMMBHKRER DL - RWBIEE X4 RE
4uJWW%NWW§$ EX - RRABRENEFESRAZE)
BT EXEBNKRER UMt SEESENRURENTE
h Rk

- Assessed the impact of the relative size of the equity interest held
by other shareholders and its extent of dispersion with reference
to the number of the other shareholders, the percentage of equity
interest and voting rights held by the other shareholders.

- EREMBIREFTRERE - FTERER DL MAIRFIRERE - AR
R E AR R VAR E R AR B WA R E 9 BEE

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 127



Independent Auditor’s Report
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BARMBRAMBERNET  RANEER
BIEEMES  HUERT  ZEREMEEES
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HEDE - BAIEEEARE -
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RAWAMBRE - UHERBRESEYH
BROBRETFEHRRFRERMERNEKR
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it - BF BEQAREREER BESEEERX
FILEE  SRBEEMBEROBERISR -

BT REEMY BEARNEFEETEY
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HE2_Z—NFE+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2019

2019 PAONES)

53 BETR BEFT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(g E51)
(restated)
Uz REVENUE 5 204,453,869 189,689,107
SHERM A Cost of sales (170,436,179)  (154,758,728)
EF GROSS PROFIT 34,017,690 34,930,379
EHblA Other income 1,886,013 1,592,296
Hiplzs M Es1E Other gains and losses 6 (39,234) 3,357
HE R HERAX Selling and distribution expenses (19,188,523) (18,340,880)
THAX Administrative expenses (5,203,768) (4,793,429)
HibfAx Other expenses (1,260,626) (1,351,850)
BB A Finance costs 8 (3,712,401) (2,934,277)
DIEBE QT A EEEEF| Share of profits of associates and joint
ventures 140,417 76,881
FREE R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 6,639,568 9,182,477
FriSBifx Income tax expense 11 (1,541,765) (1,610,153)
F N A PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,097,803 7,572,324
(L Attributable to:
KARERA Owners of the Company 3,286,419 3,977,603
IEPERR A Non-controlling interests 1,811,384 3,594,721
5,097,803 7,572,324
KRB EBIREREE A EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
AT ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 13
AR R EE (B T) Basic and diluted (HK$) 0.52 0.63
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE2_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2019

F R A
Hith 2 EEE
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TEREREEEF S E R
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Hib2mizs (E518) F58
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FAEEKEEER
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ZAN/NCIE 2PN
FEIE R s

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Other comprehensive loss that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:

Share of changes in translation reserve of
associates

Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive loss that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences arising on translation
to presentation currency

Gain on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment
properties, net of tax

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BET T
HK$°000

5,097,803

(1,773)

(1,989,254)

(1,991,027)

201,382

201,382

(1,789,645)

3,308,158

2,447,406
860,752

3,308,158

BT T
HK$'000
(geE51)
(restated)

7,572,324

(39,094)

(3,096,384)

(3,135,478)

(713,390)

30,924

(682,466)

(3,817,944)

3,754,380

1,504,627
2,249,753

3,754,380
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—NWF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2019
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Prepaid land lease payments
Investment properties
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in joint ventures
Interests in associates

Other non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepaid land lease payments
Other current financial assets
Amounts due from related parties
Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Short-term debentures
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Bank borrowings

Bonds payable

Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated with the assets

classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

BERAR

L4
Notes

14
16(b)
16(a)

15

17

18

19

20

21

31

22

23
24
16(a)
21
42

25
25

36

26
27
28
16(c)
42
29
30

36

BET T
HK$’000

16,322,310
5,507,549
1,724,234

19,306,440
6,049,195

96,602
4,735,488
412,215
856,088
2,072,276

57,082,397

22,332,374
63,772,489
26,403,362
3,230,581
65,183
4,614,611
12,524,016

132,942,616

132,942,616

60,076,785

1,651,904
614,389
14,100,989
27,486,200
2,288,443
452,959

106,671,669

106,671,669

26,270,947

83,353,344

BT T
HK$'000
(geE51)
(restated)

14,652,228
2,590,622
1,541,437

19,804,854
4,954,664

44,290
3,267,362
222,673
621,419
1,218,427

48,917,976

21,527,923
54,847,015
123,128
28,023,549
2,402,557
57,895
3,428,676
16,633,301

127,044,044
222,180

127,266,224

56,198,259
3,423,868
1,711,938

4,057,107
37,362,593

603,263
103,357,028

1,341
103,358,369

23,907,855

72,825,831
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

2019 PAONES)

PR BT T BET T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(g E51)
(restated)
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
RITENK Bank borrowings 29 3,579,485 3,301,928
EESH Bonds payable 30 5,663,955 6,847,740
HEaE Lease liabilities 16(c) 1,632,967 =
BIEFIIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 31 1,506,573 881,272
HEmIERBEE Other non-current liabilities 32 1,388,543 1,326,119
IERB B EATE Total non-current liabilities 13,771,523 12,357,059
EEFE NET ASSETS 69,581,821 60,468,772
R EQUITY
RAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
IEEN Share capital 33 27,241,289 27,241,289
E Reserves 13,470,059 12,071,733
40,711,348 39,313,022
FEVERR Non-controlling interests 35 28,870,473 21,155,750
R TOTAL EQUITY 69,581,821 60,468,772
BZRE sz
Han Yuewei Weng Jingwen
EZE EZE
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2019

KOTFEARE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BAEE GERHER  ANGR UREMER EXNIER  REER £ FihEE

Capital
reserve

Statutory Property  Exchange Non-
surplus Merger revaluation  fluctuation Retained controlling
reserve reserve TEServe reserve  eamings interests

ML EuTL i ao T BT o BT T BT o
) 00 HSO0 0 s om0 s st s 00
R-T-NF At 31 December 2018

tZA=1-1 41280 (6,479,849) 150,883 (513,534) 2645  (1546379) 20234367 39313022 21155750 60,468,772
FAEEUBIEEE] et of adoption of HKFRS 16

S\EHTENH)  Morell) - - - - - - (69,247) (69,247) - (69,247)
RZE-NE At January 2019 retated)

-R-REE5) 41280 (6,479,849) 150,883 (513,534) 2645  (1546,379) 20165120 39243775 21,155,750 60,399,525
i Profitfor the year - - - - - - 3M6A9 326419 181138 5097803
EmEpaE Other comprehensive incomel{oss)

i/ (&%) forthe year
AERZREENEN  Bchange diffeences arsng on

SREENEREE  tendationto presentaton currency

of foreign operations - - - - - (1,040,163) - (1,040163)  (049,091)  (1,989,254)
DRBEATELEE  Shareof changes i anslaion resene

LS of asocites - - - - - (23) - @) s m)
BREREMEREZR  Gan on revaluaton of property, plant

£ FERRENNE  and equipment upon ransferto

] investment propertes, net oftax - - - -0 - - M -
EmrEdReE Total comprehensive income

forthe year - - - - 0138 (1040305 3286419 2,447,406 860,752 3308158
FERERE Capital contrioution from non-

controling interests - - - - - - - - 171,169 171,169
B ERERY Isuance of financil instruments

SRIAMHY dlassfied s equity (ore 34) - - - - - - - - B0 2230746
WETBAR W77 Acquistions of subsidaries ote 37) 5 s s = 5 5 s - 600981 60091
HENBLE (W) Disposalof subsidares (ore 38) = = = - - = = - (134550) (134550
WA Acquitons of non-controling

nterests** - (162,847) - - - - - (162,847)  (300,131)  (462,978)
R NERGRE 2018 fineldividend declared Mo 12)

W) - - - - - - (816,986)  (816,986) - (816,986)
AEEHBBERNEE  Disrbutions o holders of financial

TifEE insruments clasfied as equity - - - - - - = - (M%) (199
M3ARRRERRS  Dividend dedred to non-ontroling

shareholders - - - - - - - - (11220 (1.122,299)
RE-NE At31 December 2019
t-A=1-f 724289 (6,6426%)* 150,883 (1353) % damearr  (2586,774)* 22,634553F 40711348 28870473 69,581,821

@ ZEREROERAEIBEREXIAZESRH *
BB 13,470,059,000T (= F—/\4F : B
12,071,733,0007T) °

* RHE-F-AFF-A=A—AUEE K
£ EY AT EBEERNRG ERA TH
S35.4% FRIE K R BEESN. 74 % R HE = it
51 RITATE TG FRIELBO0.94% HBE15 -

136 201954« EMEEEEARAR

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$13,470,059,000 (2018: HK$12,071,733,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired additional
35.4% equity interests in Vector Gene Technology Co., Ltd., and additional
0.74% equity interests in Dong-E-E-Jiao. Dong-E-E-Jiao also repurchased
0.94% of its shares during the year.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE Yearended 31 December 2019

EIN
Attributable to owners of the Compan

AOER LTRERE  oHER NREERR B REEN

Statutory Property ~ Exchange
Captal surplus Merger — revaluation fluctuation Retained controling
(restated) capita fesenve Tesene resenve resenve fesenve eamings Interess

T o 50 AT T T BT RETT 37 T BT

S0 0 st s 0 1 s s 0 W
AE-N\E-R-B A1 January 2018 V241289 (4812239 150,883 (513534) 195,321 957521 18507540 41726780 21269311 62,996,093
R Profit for the year - - - - - - 3OMEB 39MEN 35T 75034
EpEpaE Other comprehensive Incomefoss)
b/ (B8 fortheyear:
AEEENEEER  Dchange differences arsng on
ErELhzE fransaton to presentation curency
of foreign operations - - - - - (2.464.806) - (4648000 (1344968 (3,809.774)
MibEnaER Shre o changes n ranlaton resene

Eid) of assciates - - - - - (90 - (3009 SN (1
ERTRANEHERL  Gainonrevalation of property,plnt

% BEREED  and equipment upon ranslerto

W& RHE investment propertie, et of tax = = = = 3094 = = 30924 = 3094
ERrEYReE Total comprehensive income

forthe year - - - - 3094 (50390 3977603 1504627 2249753 3754380
HERREE Capital contiouton from non-

controling shareholders - - - - - - - - 186,611 186,611
YEMBLAME])  Acquistions of subsiciaries lote 37) e e e g e e . = 9,636 94,63
WEHnRER Acquistons of non-<ontroling ineress - (1667611) - - - - - (eETEN) (137604 (B0365)
EE-E-LERGRE 2017 fineldividend declared Mot 12)

W) S S - - - - (691207 (691,297) - (691,297)
BIfRIRB A1) Specil diidend pad (e /2) - - - - - - (1559479 (1559479 - (1559479
M3ARRRERRS  Dividend dedred to non-controling

shareholders - - - - - - - - (1268517)  (1.268517)
RoE-NE At31 December 2018
+-A=1-f 141289 (6,479,849) 150,883 (513534) 2645 (1546379 2034367 39313022 21155750 60,468,772
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE2_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2019

LiE BT AT
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
(i =751)
(restated)
BEETHMERLRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRBA AR A Profit before tax 6,639,568 9,182,477
HTFIRIERE - Adjustments for:
MEKAK Finance costs 8 3,712,401 2,934,277
SBE DR KA BT ERT Share of profits of associates and joint ventures (140,417) (76,881)
FMESA Interest income 7 (636,181) (453,748)
B EHA Dividend income 7 (8,047) (2,216)
HEME - BEREEEERMER  Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment 6 6,421 7,048
HEEVEENER,/ (W) Loss/(gain) on disposal of intangible assets 6 1,588 (18,037)
HERBA Ak Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 6 (1,091,295) =
HERE ARk Gain on disposal of associates 6 = (550)
BOABEFTAEENEMEERN  Fairvalue changes of financial assets at fair value
AnEEZS through profit or loss 6 (47,683) (88,167)
REMELRBEE Fair value changes of investment properties 6 14,433 (81,354)
W% - BERRENNE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 1,432,208 1,311,302

ERREAENE(CE-\F: Depreciation of right-of-use assets (2018:

BN T SR ) amortisation of prepaid land lease payments) 7 684,638 99,065
B EESE Amortisation of intangible assets 7 248,001 206,101
HESRIGEFERDZAFESE  Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables, net 6 446,927 91,224
SEMEIFIEFERZARESE  Impairment loss recognised on other receivables, net 6 29,651 8,270

BIE - BERREER BRN Impairment loss recognised on items of property,

AESE plant and equipment 6 37,318 22,545
HEERRREESE Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 6 722,587 20,109
TR 8 Government grants (101,700) (90,010)
FHENRETENERE Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories 7 67,099 44,359

12,017,517 13,115,814

FE®M,/ B (Increase)/decrease in inventories (537,474) 29,484
ECPEE el Increase in trade and other receivables (7,804,509) (3,370,677)
TEMRBRRs H FBIR D/ () Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from

related parties 217,567 (257,095)
HinEnsBEmRD Decrease in other non-current assets = 17,462
B I REMENFIELM Increase in trade and other payables 6,189,599 223,660
ANBEGRD) /Em (Decrease)fincrease in contract liabilities (282,208) 318,057
FE{ BRR A FOE R D Decrease in amounts due to related parties 6,929 (8,422)
HindEnsa &L/ (fd) Increase/(decrease) in other non-current liabilities 188,015 (9,821)
JER JE R B R IR AN Increase in amounts due to non-controlling interests 10,248 20,101
REmBRe Cash generated from operations 10,005,684 10,078,563
ERAEHR Income tax paid (1,864,745) (1,831,598)
RETBMERERETH Net cash flows generated from operating

activities 8,140,939 8,246,965
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE2_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2019

LiE BT AT
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
(i =751)
(restated)
REFTBMERLRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEME - BERREEEFEZIE  Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 91,506 27,993
HERMRSHEMEEMETE Proceeds from disposal of other current financial assets 39,017,906 16,988,082
u”jﬁﬂﬂ/ éﬁﬁﬁﬁ?"x Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 41,219 21,717
HERBA Disposal of subsidiaries 38 185,868 (148)
ET&W@E??T?KQEB?%%E Net changes in pledged bank deposits (1,052,744) (232,331)
EBHE Interest received 697,948 716,102
EMERIE ERER AR S Dividend received from unlisted equity investments 8,047 2,216
BUERE = R EIRE Dividend received from associates 21,913 54,485
B NEER Repayment from associates 119,062 (2,095,274)
YRR B Receipt of government grants - 83,887
BRELER Repayment of entrusted loans 89,537 =
RSER S Deposits for items of property, plant
and equipment paid (52,104) (3,144)
BENBVEERS Deposits for intangible assets paid (17,463) (12,035)
BEWE  WERREER Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment (1,596,697) (1,513,502)
BEREME Purchase of an investment property - (8,736)
BEEVAE Purchase of intangible assets (374,248) (446,648)
B TSI Prepayments for land lease payments - (2,624)
WEEHB AR BB/ (1)3E £ Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash received/(paid) 37 1,143,153 (338,733)
LEHEARRAELE Disposal of associate and joint ventures 11,164 =
RERBEARIRAELE Investment in associates and in joint ventures (1,174,527) (136,126)
E%Eﬁﬂﬁiﬁ@]ﬁmﬂﬁ? Purchases of other current financial assets (35,628,402) (21,053,648)
BTUEENTE LA Prepayment for acquisitions of subsidiaries (93,773) =
§1'JLLE¢WW§H§§%Q Payment for acquisitions of associates in prior years = (1,284,556)
THBEFEWRENBA TW\IE\ Payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years (428,573) (567,979)
RETBRE/ (IR Net cash flows from/(used in)
BeRhEFE investing activities 1,008,792 (9,801,002)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-ZT-NF+-A=+—HILHFE

REZDHERERE

RITERAERR

BTESMERR
ﬁ%ﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁ
PRER AR
?ﬂ“@ﬁﬁmmﬁﬂlﬂ

PSR R
SRR TE
EEFITHER

BEEERES
EEEMEFENE/ (B8)
BERNES
XNHEEAE
ERHE
EftRE

B RIRE
YRR
RIEEH G EL &

MEED (A FEREREFR

BERBELZEYRD) /12 mEsE
R—A—BRRL LB LEEY
INEEREFNTE  FH
FREGRALEEYD

e kR SENEHIN

HRARBRARAMTRE K
RITH
ﬂﬂmﬂﬁmx@ﬂmﬁﬁ

REREXRMTRENREEEY

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings

Proceeds from issuances of bonds

Proceeds from short-term debentures

Advances from an intermediate holding company
Proceeds from issuance of financial instruments

classified as equity, net

Capital contribution from non-controlling shareholders
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of other borrowings

Repayment of bonds payable

Repayment of short-term debentures
Proceeds from/(repayment of) asset-backed securities

Payment of lease liabilities
Interest paid

Dividend paid

Special dividend paid

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Restricted time deposits with maturity less than

three months

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

statement of cash flows

140 010545 « =pmzemaraa

Year ended 31 December 2019

i

Notes

25

25

BETR
HK$'000

55,823,978
1,116,350
3,349,050

10,122,062

2,230,746
171,169
(72,814,336)
(369,022)

(6,698,100)

791,207
(653,954)
(3,614,790)
(816,986)

(462,978)
(1,184,249)

(13,009,853)

(3,860,122)
16,636,337
(228,074)

12,548,141

12,524,016

24,125

12,548,141

BB
HK$'000
(g E31)
(restated)

76,973,500
4,552,255
3,423,868
3,002,493

198,036
(67,933,640)

(2,350,507)

(2,984,931)

(2,835 035)

(691,297)
(1,559,479)
(3,368,025)
(1,759,795)

4,667,443

3,113,406
14,174,734
(651,803)

16,636,337

16,633,301

3,036

16,636,337
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+-A=+—H 31 December 2019

1.

NEIREEER

RAT B~ RREBEME IHBHBRA
T HBROREBBARSHERAT L
BA-E-AFHA-HNBRER -
EEEERA T AZENER (BE) HRAT
(MEmEm (R | —SREBRLRS
(HEBRELES ) ERRINAR) - M
B AT ATEEEERAR ([HEE
) — AR AREAE (B E )R
MEBLE) -

ARABEEMMPFRBURETEEFEE
B26ERAREAE - ARRINMEIBEEE
WEAEREFEEE2RERANELE
4104-05% -

ARARR—RKREERAF - AEETER
SBREDRERNEE DHERTE -

BB TER
AARTENBRAMEEMT -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with effect from 28 October 2016. Its immediate holding
company is CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited (“CRHP"), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate
holding company is China Resources Company Limited (“CRCL"),
a state-owned enterprise established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The address of the registered office of the Company is 41/F, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
principal place of business of the Company is Room 4104-05, 41/F,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and retail of
pharmaceutical and healthcare products.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERBEERERAR (EHBHER])
H3)c)

China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited Company ("CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings") (Note (3)(c)

ERRELEERAR ([EHBELE])
(M GIb)

China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment
Company Limited (“CR Pharmaceutical
Investment”) (Note (3)(b))

By
B ES

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business

e/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

B,/ HER

PRC/Mainland China

ERTLER/
dAftRA  ARARERERSE FEXEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
registered attributable Principal
share capital to the Company  activities
2019 2018
ARH 100% 100% #REER
15,000,000,0007T
RMB15,000,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ARH 100% 100% #REER
500,000,0007T
RMB500,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

141



RO MR ERRME
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

1.

RNEAIREEER (&

BENBRRNER (&)

EF=NBEROERAD(EE=/])
G E )

China Resources Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ("CR Sanjiu”)
(Notes (1) and (3)(d)

ERRMWBER AR ([ZEHRMME)

(WaEan)

China Resources Dong-E-E-Jiao Company
Limited ("CR Dong-E-E-Jiao") (Note (3)(b)

REFR#E) ) BN)E4)

Dong-E-E-Jiao (Notes (1), (2), (3)(d) and (4))

ItREEEEERETAEWHEG)E)
Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(a))

ERTITERERECLA(EBIHER))
(M GIb)

CR Jiangzhong Group Co., Ltd.
("CR Jiang Zhong Group”) (Note (3)(b))

T EERNBRAR (NTHREE])
(1)~ G &)

Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical)
(Notes (1), (3)(d) and (4))

* 142 20195485« sMBEEEARAR

1.

e,
it 2R S A
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

E /AN

PRC/Mainland China

E /AN

PRC/Mainland China

E/PEN

PRC/Mainland China

HE/ R
PRC/Mainland China
HE/ R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ AN

PRC/Mainland China

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BERTZER/
AfRA
Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR¥
978,900,0007T
RMB978,900,000

AR¥
422,771,6757C
RMB422,771,675

AR¥
654,021,5377C
RMB654,021,537

AR¥
2,320,000,0007T
RMB2,320,000,000

AR¥
254,102,0417C
RMB254,102,041

AR¥
525,000,0007T
RMB525,000,000

FARRMEREES EEXK

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Company
2019 2018
63.60% 63.60%
63.60% 63.60%
56.62% 56.62%
56.62% 56.62%
2217%  21.22%
2217%  21.22%
100% 100%
100% 100%
51% =
51% =
21.95% -
21.95% -

Principal
activities

Manufacturing
and sale of
pharmaceuticals
products

REEK

Investment holding

BREENHE

Manufacturing
and sale of
pharmaceutical
products

REER
Investment holding
EnEEREE

Manufacturing
and sale of
pharmaceutical
products

BREENHE

Manufacturing
and sale of
pharmaceutical
products



RO MR ERRME
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+-A=+—H 31 December 2019

1.

RNEAIREEER (&

BENBRRNER (&)

EREREERNBBAR (EHERE)
(W13 d)

CR Double-Crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("CR Double-Crane") (Notes (1) and (3)(d)

ERREREWHGI)

CR Pharmaceutical Commercial Group Co., Ltd.
("CR Pharmaceutical Commercial”)
(Note (3)(b))

AIEB=NEEE ZERDRWEE0)

Shenzhen Huarun Sanjiu Medicine Trading
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

FINEBNFEEBR R HG)0)

Shenzhen Huarun Jiuxin Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

ZHRBESRLRWZE0L)

China Resources Shandong Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

ERREBREERAR W)

China Resources Liaoning Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

1.

S
L B R A
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

B/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

B/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

B,/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

B,/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

e/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

B/ HE R

PRC/Mainland China

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRTEER/
AR AR

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR
1,043,237,7107C
RMB1,043,237,710

AR
5,191,703,3567C
RMB5,191,703,356

AR
60,000,0007T
RMB60,000,000

AR
500,000,0007T
RMB500,000,000

AR
500,000,0007T
RMB500,000,000

AR¥
150,000,0007T
RMB 150,000,000
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FORRMEREES EEXE

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Company
2019 2018
59.99% 59.99%
59.99% 59.99%
100% 100%
100% 100%
63.60% 63.60%
63.60% 63.60%
63.60% 63.60%
63.60% 63.60%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal
activities

Manufacturing
and sale of
pharmaceutical
products

o+

N

e
=

mef

Trading of
pharmaceuticals
products

o+

4

i

Sale of pharmaceutical
products

o+

4

ImtE

Manufacturing of
pharmaceutical
products

o+

4

e

Sale of pharmaceutical
products

ERiHE

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

1. RAREEERGE 1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BENBRRNER (&)

Ha W ERTLER/
aEfit B R 5 AfRA  AQAREREEILE FTEXK
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
business share capital to the Company  activities
2019 2018
ERENHBERR R R HAGIL) R B/ R ER AEH 100% 100% ZmiEeE
505,146,8007T
China Resources Henan Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB505,146,800 100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b) products
THEBEXEREE DR (W G)b) RE/ R ERM ARE  59.99%  59.99% ERLERMEE
82,608,7007T
Double-Crane Pharmaceutical (Anhui) PRC/Mainland China RMB82,608,700 59.99% 59.99% Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b)) and sale of
pharmaceutical
products
ITREBEELLEREFRRAEZC) FE/TENM ARE  59.99%  59.99% HREE
59,326,8007T
Double-Crane (Beijing) Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB59,326,800 59.99% 59.99% Sale of pharmaceutical
Management Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(b)) products
EHRRRERR DR HAGIL) RE/ R ERM Nz 100% 100% ZmiEeE
50,000,0007T
China Resources Nantong Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b) products
ERILBEBRARWZGIL) i,/ NG 100% 100% #miEE
330,000,0007T
China Resources Hebei Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB330,000,000 100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(b)) products
ERIHBERR DR HAGIL) VT AR 100% 100% ZmiEeg
500,000,0007T
China Resources Jiangsu Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b)) products
ERLOBOLR) BEERARMAGIL)  +E/TENM AEE 100% 100% ZmiEeE
16,000,0007T
China Resources Purenhong (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China RMB 16,000,000 100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(b))
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+-A=+—H 31 December 2019

1. RAREEERGE

BENBRRNER (&)

ERRERERRAR
(Hi(3)b)

China Resources Tianjin Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(b))

ERPBEERAR (EHLED
(Wi GIb)

China Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“CR Hubei Pharmaceutical”)
(Note (3)(b))

ERNRERBEERLRWZBI)

China Resources Hunan Shuangzhou
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(b))

EHERBEAR AR ([EHERBE))
(Wit G)a)
China Resources Guangdong Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. ("CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical”)
(Note (3)(a))

FRBE(LBARRAMW LI

China Resources (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(Note (3)(b)

RN REEERAR WZGIb)

China Resources Hunan Ruige Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)(b))

ERERBEERLRWHGIL)

China Resources Qingdao Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

1.

MR,
AR ES

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business

B/ HER

PRC/Mainland China

B/ HER

PRC/Mainland China

B/ HER

PRC/Mainland China

B/ HER

PRC/Mainland China

B/ HER

PRC/Mainland China

RE/HER

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ERTERER/
LR
Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

ARE
200,000,0007T
RMB200,000,000

ARE
352,000,0007T
RMB352,000,000

ARE
50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

ARE
405,755,0007T
RMB405,755,000

ARE
50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

ARE
100,000,0007T
RMB100,000,000

ARH
100,000,000
RMB100,000,000

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 145 *

FRREERERI FRER

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable Principal
to the Company  activities
2019 2018
100% 100% Zmifs
100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
products
60% 60% ZEmiHE
60% 60% Sale of pharmaceutical
products
100% 100% Zmifs
100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
products
70% 70% ZEmiHE
70% 70% Sale of pharmaceutical
products
70% 70% ZEmiHE
70% 70% Sale of pharmaceutical
products
51% 51% ZmiHg
51% 51% Sale of pharmaceutical
products
100% 100% ZmHE
100% 100% Sale of pharmaceutical

products
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

1. RAREEERGE

BENBRRNER (&)

EHEHBEARDT W)

China Resources Jilin Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

ERENSRBEERATLFWZGIL)

Beijing Saike Changsheng Pharmaceutical
Company Ltd. (Note (3)(b))

SRR (LD BEARANWROL)

China Resources Xinlong (Shanxi)
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

BREBENEZBRARWAGIL)

China Resources Shenghuo Pharmaceutical
Holdings, Inc. (Note (3)(b))

SREX (80 BERAT LR HEZGIL)

Double-Crane Pharmaceutical (Hainan)
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))

* 146 2019545 « EMBEEEEARAR

1.

ML,
BT E S
Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business

RE/ PR

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ PR

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ PR

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ PR

PRC/Mainland China

BERTEER/
FRLEN
Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

ARE
200,000,0007T
RMB200,000,000

ARE
2,800,0007T
RMB2,800,000

ARE
51,000,0007C
RMB51,000,000

ARE
88,067,0007T
RMB88,067,000

ARE
75,000,0007T
RMB75,000,000

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARREERERSE TEEH

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Company
2019 2018
100% 100%
100% 100%
59.99% 59.99%
59.99% 59.99%
60% 60%
60% 60%
63.60% 63.60%
63.60% 63.60%
59.99% 59.99%
59.99% 59.99%

Principal
activities

BmiHE

Sale of pharmaceutical
products

BmiHE

Sale of pharmaceutical
products

BmiHE

Sale of pharmaceutical
products

i+

3

EmitE

Manufacturing of
pharmaceutical
products

i+

3

EmitE

Manufacturing of
pharmaceutical
products
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Bist

(1) FEF=RRAFBIRFYES S ZA
_E T RS R )T AR B TR LR
RGH LT o

2 REEZFE-—NF+ZA=1+—HIUF
B REEYE R B EESN0. 74 % R
B Utsh - RO B IR F A E0.94 %
BR1G + #RE - K5 ] BB
21.22% 38 0%522.17% °

(3 RBER TR A8 % R BRI
I

@ FHEEEERA

(b)  BREERA

© SIEEELE]

@ BROERAA]
BEBBBEERBANFEEFES £

HFIRE B 2 Bl BN FEEFE

ERBIEER BT BT ERLE 0 RAE
AEENLTREIE R ] - EFEZBAFE
ZYE A8 1 AR BRI AT SR BB

(4)  AREBAIEEFR AL ELEREER
b - AR ER T ©

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

“)

CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, CR Double-Crane and Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
additional equity interests of 0.74% in Dong-E-E-Jiao and Dong-E-E-
Jiao also repurchased 0.94% of its shares during the year. As a result,
the Group's equity interests in Dong-E-E-Jiao increased from 21.22 %
to22.17%.

For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their legal entity types
are as follows:

(a)  sino-foreign equity joint venture

(b)  limited liability company

(©)  wholly foreign owned enterprise

(d)  joint-stock limited company

Except for CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, which are held directly by the
Company, the remaining subsidiaries above are held indirectly by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

These entities are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of

the Company’s control over them through non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries.
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The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, and
certain debt and equity investments that are measured at fair value.
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Compensation
Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and Annual
improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which is not applicable
to the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of
the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
("HK(IFRIC)-Int 4"), HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for
most of the leases under a single on-balance sheet model to
recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged under HKAS
17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application on 1 January 2019. Under this method, the
standard has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019, and the
comparative information for 2018 was not restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.
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Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land,
buildings and other equipment. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether the
lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except
for two elective exemptions for leases of low value assets
(elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected
by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019 and included in lease liabilities. The right-of-use assets
for most of the leases were recognised based on the carrying
amount as if the standard had always been applied, except
for the incremental borrowing rate where the Group applied
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

For the other leases, the right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation) previously
included in investment properties and measured at fair value,
the Group has continued to include them as investment
properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to be measured
at fair value applying HKAS 40.

The difference between the operating lease commitments
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 and lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 1 January 2019, the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 by the Group is mainly due to discounting of future lease
payments, reclassification of accrued lease expenses to lease
liabilities and the election not to recognise lease liabilities for
certain leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application or for leases of low-value,
and lease payments for the additional periods where the
Group considers it reasonably certain that it will exercise the
extension options not to recognise as at 31 December 2018.
The leasee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 ranged from 2.62% to 5.00%.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 1 53



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

—“Z—NF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2019

154

BERZE (B

REER -_ZE-NF—-A-BEAE
BB HREERNFE1SFFEERNUAT
BEEUENEREEE

s HRNHEEHBEMAERZARE
ToEARKILENHEERBRE
HEEH%

e HWHAAEMAMUSEWEEAR
AERE-RRE

s RYIRERAGEEREEE
B BIBR I ZEEAR A

s WEHBELER/RILHEEN
BEE  ARFERETHES

HNEMOBRBREHEZHEE &
EEVETHNNEREABMCOER
BENMAGBZGERE - Bt - ©
“E-NF-A—H ERAREER
HEAGEERIEAREEESER
FITRERNEERABEREE A
RERERNFIR) -

20195 % « EHBEEEABR LA

Impact on transition (continued)
The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

o Applied the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application

o Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

o Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

o Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease.

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts
of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial
application for leases previously classified as finance leases.
Accordingly, the carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets
and the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were the carrying
amounts of the recognised assets and liabilities (i.e., finance
lease payables) measured under HKAS 17.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(a) HKFRS 16 (continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as finance
leases (continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1
January 2019 was as follows:

2, O
Increase/
(decrease)
BT T
HK$'000
&= Assets
fFAAREEEEN Increase in right-of-use assets 4,649,002
M - BB NERER D Decrease in property, plant and equipment (11,589)
TE{ L b T & FRIE R Decrease in prepaid land lease payments (2,713,750)
EERIBEEL Increase in deferred tax assets 23,477
4B EIE N Increase in total assets 1,947,140
=R Liabilities
HEaBE BEEEEMN Increase in lease liabilities and total liabilities 2,016,387
{RE BT Decrease in retained earnings (69,247)

REBNKETEWER T NF—H—
BRABTBVBREERF 165 - RE U
TE ZBEBRRANLERERTTEIL
BERBEMENFTESIERE 7R
REREHERES

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
the comparative amounts in the financial statements were
not restated and continued to be reported under the
requirements of the previous standard, HKAS 17, and related
interpretations.
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Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for
such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group assessed its business model for its long-
term interests in associates and joint ventures upon adoption
of the amendments on 1 January 2019 and concluded that
the long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
continue to be measured at amortised cost in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation, the
Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions
arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based
on the Group's tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing
policy will be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly,
the interpretation did not have any significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the
effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting.
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement
of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
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The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held
for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of
the post-employment benefit plan;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or a jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

2.71% t0 4.75%

9.5% to 19%

Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%

Furniture and fixtures 9.5% to 19%

Motor vehicles 19%

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset (2018: leasehold
property under an operating lease) which would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this
to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, such as certain
trademarks, are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 to 15 years.

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their stand-
alone prices. A practical expedient is available to a lessee, which
the Group has adopted, not to separate non-lease components and
to account for the lease and the associated non-lease components
(e.g., property management services for leases of properties) as a
single lease component.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leasehold land
Building
Other equipment

2 to 50 years
2 to 50 years
1to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of buildings, machinery and equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the lease payments and related
payments (including the initial direct costs), and presented as a
receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for manageing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 175



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

—“Z—NF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2019

176

RESBEERBHKASIZAABERA
HivzmEWaEt8ETHBNTE  TELE
ARBINAERAREERSH S (THER
XNAERFBNRERE - TREHE
A AAWFARRINAERFEZHRE
REZ EREENRERRAABENAER

e

AEEEESREENEHEAERINAE
BHESREENELRDRE - FHERE
ERERELERARNMANETRE

EEMEE  AMEFRE - REHERAD R
KBNS REESERA T REEAKEL
BNRERENEBEATRENEHE
E - MRAAEBEEREMEEREER
AEMNEREESERRENRERENIE
ENEBEAFESMEE - RARXLAE
BEARAENEREEEBBRRRANER

s

PEEREENEREERRSE R AR
SEAREBEILEEENBNER - 8
REERANTS —REEER DI ERIFTR
EHRARNEENTREERE °

TREENRETERAD ST HEW
BN

B BR S BB ERE R E R AR
EARTEW A RE S hIRRIE < B - R
R EIERRE T EEM NS MERREST
HER -

20195 % « EHBEEEABR LA

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 financial Instruments.
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted
for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments
are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the debt investments.

The Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to
adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity
instruments when all the following conditions have been met:

o The financial instruments have no contractual obligation to
pay cash or other financial assets to others, nor to exchange
financial assets or liabilities with others under potential
unfavourable circumstances;

o The financial instruments will or may be settled in the Group’s
own equity instruments: if the financial instrument is non-
derivative, it should not have the contractual obligation to be
settled by the Group delivering a variable number of its own
equity instruments; if the financial instrument is derivative,
it should solely be settled by the Group delivering a fixed
number of its own equity instruments in exchange for a fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets.

Financial instruments classified as equity instruments are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a weighted average method and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the
higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general policy for provisions above; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the amount of income
recognised in accordance with the policy for revenue recognition.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the
grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary assets
and released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.
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Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or at
a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a qualifying
asset, the initial carrying amount of the government loans is
determined using the effective interest rate method, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities” above.
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or at a below-
market rate of interest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received, is treated as
a government grant and released to the statement of profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Sale of pharmaceutical products

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Some contracts for the sale of pharmaceutical products provide
customers with rights of return and volume rebates, which give rise
to variable consideration.

()

(ir)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future
rebates, the most likely amount method is used for contracts
with a single-volume threshold and the expected value
method for contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable
consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied
and a refund liability for the expected future rebates is
recognised.
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Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is
recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the
goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned,
less any expected costs to recover the goods, and any potential
decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Group updates
the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to the
expected level of returns, and any additional decreases in the value
of the returned goods.

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some
or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer
and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will
have to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.
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Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme or state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the local
government in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of the
group’s entities, each entity takes into consideration the currency
that mainly influences sales prices for goods and services; the
currency of the country whose competitive forces and regulations
mainly determine the sale prices of the entity’s goods and services;
and the currency that mainly influences labour, material and other
costs of providing goods or services; and the currency in which
financing activities were made and the currencies in which receipts
from operating activities are retained.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the average exchange rate for the period.
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The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the average exchange rate.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period.

On 21 November 2017, the directors of China Resources Bio-
pharmaceutical (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CR Biopharm”), an indirectly
100%-owned subsidiary of the Company, approved to dispose
of a 14.12% equity interest in Hefei Tianmai to the controlling
shareholder of Hefei Tianmai. As stated in the share subscription
agreement between CR Biopharm and the controlling shareholder
under which CR Biopharm acquired a 20% equity interest in Hefei
Tianmai in December 2016, if Hefei Tianmai did not obtain the
GMP licence as at 31 December 2017, CR Biopharm can sell back
the 14.12% equity interest in Hefei Tianmai to the controlling
shareholder (the “Sell-Back”) at an agreed consideration. As a
result, the carrying amount of HK$1,146,564,000, representing
the fair value of the 14.12% equity interest in Hefei Tianmai as at
31 December 2017, was reclassified from interests in associates to
assets classified as held for sale.

As stated in the agreement between the controlling shareholder
of Hefei Tianmai and CR Biopharm signed in August 2018, the
payment will be arranged by instalments. As at 31 December
2018, CR Biopharm has not received payment from the controlling
shareholder of Hefei Tianmai and thus the carrying amount of
HK$1,093,841,000, representing the fair value of the 14.12%
equity interest in Hefei Tianmai, remained as assets classified as held
for sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group retained the remaining 5.88% equity interest in Hefei
Tianmai as interests in an associate as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 due to the fact that CR Biopharm had two directors
in the board of the directors of Hefei Tianmai, which is considered
having significant influence over the entity.

During the current year, as agreed with the controlling shareholder
of Hefei Tianmai, the Group terminated the Sell-Back transaction.
Therefore, the financial statements for the periods since Hefei
Tianmai classified as held for sale is amended accordingly. The
amendments of corresponding comparative amounts included:
(i) decrease in share of profits of associates and joint ventures,
and profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company
by HK$60,287,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018; (ii)
decrease in total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Owners of the Company by HK$60,287,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018; (iii) increase in interests in associates and decrease
in assets classified as held for sale by HK$1,033,554,000 and
HK$1,093,841,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2018; and (iv)
decrease in retained earnings and total equity by HK$60,287,000
as at 31 December 2018; and (v) decrease in basic and diluted
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company by HK$0.01.

In addition, certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation and disclosures.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The Group has accounted for Dong-E-E-Jiao as a subsidiary of the
Group, whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group directly holds 8.94% (2018:
8.12%) in Dong-E-E-Jiao and indirectly holds a further interest in
Dong-E-E-Jiao through CR Dong-E-E-Jiao, a 56.62% subsidiary
of the Company which holds a 23.36% (2018: 23.14%) equity
interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao. The remaining 67.70% (2018: 68.74%)
of shareholdings of Dong-E-E-Jiao are owned by thousands of
shareholders that are unrelated to the Group. As at 31 December
2019, The Group's equity interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao was 22.17%
(2018: 21.22%).

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group
has control over Dong-E-E-Jiao based on whether the Group has
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of Dong-E-E-
Jiao unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors of the
Company considered the Group’s absolute size of holding in Dong-
E-E-Jiao and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by the other shareholders and the fact that, the Group has
the practical right to appoint the majority members of the board
of directors of Dong-E-E-Jiao. After assessment, the directors of
the Company concluded that the Group has sufficient dominant
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of Dong-E-E-Jiao and
therefore the Group has control over Dong-E-E-Jiao.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the
Group's deferred tax on investment properties, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in
fair value of investment properties on the basis that the deferred
tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner
in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting period to
recover the carrying amount of the investment properties.

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the
fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards of incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out on and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for
leases of property/warehouses due to the significance of these assets
to its operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable period
(i.e., three to five years) and there will be a significant negative
effect on production if a replacement is not readily available.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication of impairment, in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on the higher of the fair value less cost of disposal and value in
use calculations. These calculations and valuations require the use
of judgment and estimates on future operating cash flows and
discount rates adopted. In case where the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment assessed are higher or less
than expected, a material reversal or recognition of impairment
of property, plant and equipment may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such recognition
takes place.

At the end of each reporting period the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generated unit to which the asset
belongs.

When determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
and intangible assets have been allocated, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows, a material impairment loss/further impairment loss may
arise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the ageing of trade
receivables for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms
of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group'’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

The carrying amount of interests in associates is reviewed for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 whenever certain events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Group determines the recoverable
amount which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use is based on the estimations of future
expected cash flows from the associates and a suitable discount
rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less than or more
than expected, or there are favourable or unfavourable events
and changes in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
future estimated cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise or
reverse.
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RANSTTBERERL - EEENMLEREH
EERBHEENTARANBRESES - BIX
FREV TR 3 K TR BRI BRI H RER o

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the net realisable value is lower than the cost of inventories. The
identification of obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement
and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories.
In cases where the net realisable value of inventories assessed
are less than expected, a material recognition of allowance for
inventories may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which such recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets of HK$856,088,000
(2018: HK$621,419,000), in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences have been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the taxable future profits
generated are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits
estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in Note 2.4 to
the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding the expected
future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied
and the expected period of benefits.
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Management has determined the operating segment based on the
reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used to make
strategic decisions. The board of directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), considers resource
allocation and assesses segment performance from a different
business type perspective.

Specifically, the Group has four reportable segments as follows:

(@  Pharmaceutical manufacturing business (Manufacturing
segment) — research and development, manufacture and sale
of a broad range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products

(b)  Pharmaceutical distribution business (Distribution segment)
— distribution, warehousing, logistics, and other value-added
pharmaceutical supply chain solutions and related services
to pharmaceutical manufacturers and dispensers, such as
hospitals, distributors and retail pharmacies

(©)  Pharmaceutical retail business (Retail segment) — operation
of retailing of pharmacy stores

(d)  Other business operations (Others) — property holding

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the
reportable segments of the Group.

Inter-segment sales are conducted at prices and terms mutually
agreed amongst those operating segments, with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

The board of directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of revenue and segment results.

Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of other income, other gains and losses,
administrative expenses, other expenses, share of results of
associates and joint ventures and non-lease-related finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

. all assets (including investments in subsidiaries and the
amounts due from group entities within the Group) are
allocated to reportable segment assets other than deferred
tax assets and tax recoverable; and

o all liabilities (including the amounts due to group entities
within the Group) are allocated to reportable segment
liabilities other than certain other payables, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities, short-term debentures, bank
borrowings, bonds payable and other non-current liabilities
(other than lease liabilities).

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 December 2019

HESH P ik ity
Manufacturing  Distribution
segment segment Others
BRI BRI BT BETL BETT
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
ke Segment revenue
ShapsaeE External sales 30,692,657 167,093,588 6,462,839 204,785 204,453,869
HERIEE Inter-segment sales 3,113,038 3,597,698 - - 6,710,736
33,805,695 170,691,286 6,462,839 204,785 211,164,605
#e: Elimination:
BEIHREEE Elimination of inter-segment sales (6,710,736)
7 e Segment revenue 204,453,869
PHEE Segment results 6,765,276 7,736,419 72,893 142454 14,717,082
L0 Other income 1,886,013
Lt REE (5ii6) Other gains and losses (Vote 6) (39.234)
TBER Administrative expenses (5,203,768)
ELiER Other expenses (1,260,626)
BENA(TERERERRETS) Finance costs (other than interest on
lease liabilities) (3,600,276)
Share of profits of associates and
MIBERARAECERR joint ventures 140,417
3 iibagil Profit before tax 6,639,568
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4. DEERGE
% BB R S ()

RE-T—\F+-A=+—ALFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 (Restated)

(&)
A AEAD -0
Manufacturing Distribution
segment segment Others
AETT AETT AETT BETTL BEITL
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$1000 HK$000
Al Segment revenue
NFHEE External sales 31,939,850 152,150,542 5,454,635 144,080 189,689,107
PEEEE Inter-segment sales 3,103,805 3,178,293 = = 6,282,098
35,043,655 155,328,835 5,454,635 144,080 195,971,205
#H - Elmination:
BEpHHSEE Elimination of inter-segment sales (6,282,098)
P Segment revenue 189,689,107
NS Segment results 8,689,898 771410 105,959 78921 16,589,499
EtlA Other income 1,592,296
Lt REE (5i6) Other gains and losses (ote 6) 3,357
RS Administrative expenses (4,793,429)
EET Other expenses (1,351,850)
BERKA Finance costs (2,934.277)
AMEBERARAELERR Share of profits of associates and
joint ventures 76,831
KB AT Profit before tax 9,182,477
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4. DEEFRE 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PHEERERE Segment assets and liabilities
AT RIRAREREEDTEHAEEMEE R The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
BENDHT reportable and operating segments:
—E-hF+=A=+—8 31 December 2019
HERY PN RED At i
Manufacturing  Distribution
segment segment Others  Elimination
e e W7 e WA w7
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HHEE Segment assets 63,187,695 112,685,186 4124305 20383763  (11,277,207) 189,103,742
BLHEBEEW:#31) Deferred tax assets (Mote37) 856,088
qhEHE Tax recoverable 65,183
BgE Total assets 190,025,013
HHRE Segment iabiltes 16524590 63302055 2998725 18864916 (23434179 78,256,107
*olGE Unallocated liabilities 42,187,085
af Totalliabilies 120,443,192
—ZE-NF+-A=+—H8E=E%) 31 December 2018 (Restated)
REnl oE0E TEME 1) it
Manufacturing ~ Distribution
segment segment Others Elimination
TR TR Gt Gt T BT
HK§ 000 HKs 000 Hks 000 Hks 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
PHAE Segment assets 55,306,801 106,839,747 3,960,300 18,317,298 (8919,260) 175,504,886
EibaaEms) Deferred tax assets (Vore37) 621,419
AREHE Tax recoverable 57,895
aEE Total assets 176,184,200
HHEE Segment liabilities 15,140,972 55,297,571 1,753,478 7636920 (17853,129) 61,975,812
*ol&E Unallocated liahilites 53,739,616
BafE Total liabiltes 115,715,428
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4. DEER (& 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Hith B &R Other segment information

HE-_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2019

HEAH PEAH ZELH Bt
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others
BT BETR BETR EETR EBTR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000

STAREAPEENTE Amounts included in the measurement

of segment results:
% BRREENE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 832,651 233,702 31,595 6,826 1,104,774
PRRAENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 75,710 278,526 143,946 11,335 509,517
B AEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 59,380 144,398 - - 203,778
EHRHFALAEZEMAHA Amounts regularly provided to the

TEABEES S HERNTE hoard of directors of the Company but

not included in the measurement of

segment results or segment assets:
RENE D EEEDMELNBE Loss arising on change in fair value of

investment properties - - - (14,433) (14,433)
BAREMERERANHE Impairment recognised on trade and

other receivables 208,857 250,154 28,708 (11,141) 476,578
FHRRETEEE Allowance for slow-moving and

obsolete inventories 55,960 11,139 - - 67,099
% - BR R ERRNRE Impairment recognised on property,

plant and equipment 35,280 1,559 - 479 37,318
HABEIAE Impairment recognised on goodwill 240,654 481,933 - - 722,587
W% BERRENE *Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 164,704 151,59 3,192 7,944 327,434
HEREAENE *Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,248 67,656 707 86,510 175,121
B EERE *Amortisation of intangible assets 42373 1,829 21 = 44,223
HARER **(apital expenditure 1,903,850 1,144,305 81,361 272,431 3,401,953
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4. DEEFRE 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Hitb D EER (&) Other segment information (continued)
BE_Z—)\F+_A=+—RHLEFE Year ended 31 December 2018

SEND AEAH At
Manufacturing Distribution
segment segment Others
BETT BETT RETT RETT BETT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

STAREAPEENTE Amounts included in the measurement

of segment results:
% BRREENE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 738,958 222,890 23,827 - 985,675
B iR A Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 6,420 2,822 = = 9,42
BYEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 57,504 96,079 = = 153,583
EHRHFALAEZEMFHA Amounts regularly provided to the

TEABEES S HERNTE hoard of directors of the Company but

not included in the measurement of

segment results or segment assets:
RENE D EEEDAEEONE Gain arising on change in fair value of

investment properties - - - 81,354 81,354
HEAREMENFERTORHE Impairment recognised on trade and other

receivables 67,065 30,525 733 (AN 99,494
FHRREREEE Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete

inventories 44,097 262 - - 44,359
W% - BRERRERANAE Impairment recognised on property, plant

and equipment 22,545 - - - 22,545
HABEINAE Impairment recognised on goodwill 20,109 = = = 20,109
¥ BERRETE *Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 154,749 151,765 3532 15,581 325,627
WE R il £ *Amortisation of prepaid land lease

payments 60,981 27,354 % 1,390 89,823
B EERE *Amortisation of intangible assets 36,124 16,394 S S 52,518
AR **Capital expenditure 1,856,200 679,704 48 541 29,676 2614121

i TR 15 AL ET & a1 & Depreciation of right-of-use assets/amortisation of prepaid land

HENFE#Y - WE  BERRETER

> BAEXEENF  BERRE  REY **
® FAREEE(2018F - ANLHHEE
HIE) RAEGAE (T EREWENE L 7T

ELZEE)AEN -

lease payments, depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of intangible assets are included in administrative

expenses.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid
land lease payment) and intangible assets excluding assets from
acquisition of subsidiaries.
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4, DEHERE 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
IR E R Geographical information
(@) KESIESEF Yz (a) Revenue from external customers
2019 PAONES]
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HR B A Mainland China 203,500,944 188,584,682
s> Hong Kong 952,925 1,104,425

204,453,869 189,689,107

Ll E R T E R B P i o The revenue information above is based on the locations of the

customers.

(b) IEHFE( EE| 7B EE (b) Non-current assets by geographical location
AEENKEETZUNPE - REF The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC and
EHREENEEDHIERDEEY substantially all non-current assets are located in the PRC by
LRAFE o location of assets.

FHEIEEFHNER Information about major customers

&S B (A R E P R M B A R No revenue from customers in each reporting period individually

HUNEEEI10% © amounted to over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

5. W= 5. REVENUE
Wamp T : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
2019 2018
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
PNSES SNl 6 Revenue from contracts with customers 204,290,140 189,574,548
2R B E A HOR Y W s Revenue from other sources
REREMENAS WAL Gross rental income from investment
property operating leases:
HENK - BEEENK Lease payments, including fixed
payments 163,729 114,559

204,453,869 189,689,107
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5. W& (& 5. REVENUE (continued)
REEFEHINNE Revenue from contracts with customers
() W ER ()  Disaggregated revenue information
BE-E-NF+ZA=+—HLHF For the year ended 31 December 2019
E
HENT PHEA e At ix:
Manufacturing  Distribution
segment segment segment Others  Elimination
BT AR BT BT 8T NI
HKS 000 HK 000 HK 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
WEEANER Timing of revenue recognition
RR(ERTES Ata point in time 3752537 170690880 6,454,759 102700 (6,710,736) 204,290,140
REEFRANNEES Total revenue from contracts
with customers 33,752,537 170,690,880 6,454,759 102,700 (6,710,736) 204,290,140
HE_Z—\FF+A=1T—HILF For the year ended 31 December 2018
£3
BENH HEAH ZENH Aft iz
Manufacturing ~ Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Elimination
oI EETT EETT BT BT BT
H 000 HES 000 Hes 000 ks 000 ks 000 e 000
WsERNEE Timing of revenue recognition
RESE R Ata paint in time 35115531 155256959 5454635 2951 (5282,098) 189,574,548
REEFRONUEER Total revenue from contracts
with customers 35,115,531 155,256,959 5,454,635 29,521 (6,282,098) 189,574,548
TREINARE BERERO AR The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
EPRNENEENREAREBESR in the current reporting period that were included in the
MABITHRAEERRHNEGE 2 contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period
o and recognised from performance obligations satisfied in

previous periods:

2019 PAONES)

BEER BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ARSHIEHN Revenue recognised that was included in
BEMNRE contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
EmidE Sale of goods 1,711,938 1,393,881
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5. Ik (4)
REFZFESHHWES ()
(i)  JBITET
BN AL EETE TSR
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6. HfttlmkEE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(1)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of pharmaceutical products

For sale of pharmaceutical products, revenue is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred. The trading
terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
Some contracts provide customers with a right of return
and volume rebates which give rise to variable consideration
subject to constraint.

The remaining performance obligations as at 31 December
2019 are expected to be recognised within one year.

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2019 2018

P BT T BT T
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
HEWB A RIHW S Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1,091,295 =
HEBE QR IR Gain on disposal of associates = 550
HEEFEER (E18) /U5 (Loss)/gain on disposal of intangible assets (1,588) 18,037
HEME - BB MREEIE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (6,421) (7,048)
BUE - B M EREER Impairment recognised on property,
BREEE plant and equipment 14 (37.318) (22,545)
HE 5 EBGIRERT Impairment recognised on
BEESE - JFEE trade receivables, net 24 (446,927) (91,224)
SEE M FE U R IB FERR Y Impairment recognised on
BIERESE - JFEE other receivables, net 24 (29,651) (8,270)
HEERERNBEBE Impairment recognised on goodwill 17 (722,587) (20,109)
LARnEETEAHSE Fair value changes on financial assets at
FFAEENESREER fair value through profit or loss
~RBEZS 47,683 88,167
KEMENRBEZY Fair value changes on investment properties 15 (14,433) 81,354
EHAh Others 80,713 (35,555)
(39,234) 3,357
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AEBEOBRBATEM TR, GEA R T

BIRBERN

)
BERHFX

(T REEEFHH)
TER¥®
RRENIET IR
R

1 2 35 BN
WE - BELREBITE

EREEENE
(ZF—\F : AL
HERREH)

B EESH

IR RETERE

MR R ERARHNFERA
g s GT AR S)
REMER TREREMNRK

Rt AHERENED
HERK

PEE 5 B 1RH RR

B

B A

BT 8 Bh

S ON

REMENHEEWALLER

B IR E Y EWERFA S UL Less: direct operating expenses arising from
rental-earning investment properties

AMEEHNEZREELER

Directors’ remuneration

Employee benefit expense (excluding

directors’ remuneration)
Wages and salaries

Retirement benefit scheme contribution
Total

Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(2018: amortisation of prepaid land

lease payments)

Amortisation of intangible assets
Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete

inventories

Cost of inventories recognised as

cost of sales

Research and development expenditure

(included in other expenses)

Minimum lease payments under

operating lease

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Foreign exchange loss, net
Donations
Dividend income

Government grants

Interest income

Gross rental income from investment

properties

Bt

Notes

14

16
18

BT
HK$°000

11,083

8,073,331
770,352

8,854,766

16,935
1,432,208
684,638
248,001
67,099
169,467,387

1,154,293

52,152
30,191
21,085
(8,047)
(457,889)
(636,181)

(163,729)

39,307
(124,422)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BETT
HK$'000

15,840

7,352,368
734,386

8,102,594

13,296
1,311,302
99,065
206,101
44,359
153,748,713
1,015,244

636,122

257,388
38,115
(2,216)
(348,213)
(453,748)

(114,559)

36,414
(78,145)
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8. REMA 8. FINANCE COSTS
2019 2018
BT TR
HK$"000 HK$'000
IRITERFE Interest on bank borrowings 3,167,939 2,714,277
JERTESFIE Interest on bonds payable 388,495 219,883
KB —RHAHEERDBAERFE Interest on borrowings from an
intermediate holding company 48,629 4,931
HEBENE Interest on lease liabilities 112,125 =
W W BERERENERE Less: interest capitalised in property,
B (HaE) plant and equipment (Note) (4,787) (4,814)
3,712,401 2,934,277
Wit : BRMEFEIRRF RIRGE BIEEEAE Note: Capitalised interest arose from funds borrowed specifically for
B2 REXEEHE  154.75% (= F the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets and from the general
—/VE - 4.69%) EEREFIEFFESE borrowing pool which is calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of
HBEEEERFS 4.75% (2018: 4.69%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.
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9. EERERSITTHRAENME Q.

R EMARA - BB R AEGIFE383(1)@)
(0)  (ORMOERRR (HEESEHZER) R
PIF2HARBEAFEENEZTREZERITRA
RS -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:

BT T BT T

HK$000 HK$'000

we Fees 1,200 1,268
Haie Other emoluments:

e R HEAERL Salaries and other allowances 9,471 14,417

RIREFIFT B Retirement benefit scheme contributions 118 155

HAth Others 294 541

9,883 15,113

11,083 16,381

tREERESTRARNMSEREARR
AIRBEMFRITESR - WITEFRIFNTE
EREMZHE - FAMEEEIESTTR
ABWEXFBREEAME 2 25 -

(a) BUFHITES
FAMBIIFRTESZ NN
T

The above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration only
included remuneration during the tenure of each Independent non-
executive director, Executive director and Non-executive director of
the Company. There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

2019 PAONES)

BEFT BEFT

HK$000 HK$'000

BRIt Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 300 300
il xabten Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 300 300
HEERE Mr. Fu Tingmei 300 300
R B Mr. Zhang Kejian 300 368
1,200 1,268

FRAEEHEESL N FBUIERTEEN There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

HaE M (=T —N\F : &) -

non-executive directors during the year (2018: Nil).

213

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



fm O B 15 SR R B 53

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

9. EENBSTHAENEE 9.

(=
(b) BWTES - FUTEEREET
BAS

BREEEEAAKENEREUTE
(TERHATE]) » REXEE ZH M
BREBERSBRATE RHEHOMRE -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive
Mr. Han Yuewei is the chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the
Group and the emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

Hek  RURAE
253 Et2E

13 Hfth
Salaries Retirement
and other benefit scheme

Fees allowances  contributions Others
RETT RETT AETT BETT AETT
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
“E-nf 2019
S Executive directors:
EREREWH) Mr. Han Yuewel (Vote a) = 446 2 52 518
TEELE W) Mr. Li Guohui (Note b) - 652 10 107 769
SEZRT Wi Mdm. Weng Jingwen (Note ¢) = 606 39 135 780
ERBAE W) Mr. Li Xiangming (Note - 2,895 23 - 293
DERRE Wite) Mr. Qiu Huawel (Vote ) = 570 8 - 578
- 5,169 105 294 5,568
FHNES: Non-executive directors:
SEERE W) Mr. Fu Yuning (Note ) = = - - -
TENRE Wiy Mr. Wang Chuncheng(g) - 4,302 13 - 4315
BT (Win) Mr. Chen Rong (Note /) = = = - -
DEat W) Mdm. Guo Wei (Vote = = = - -
FEREE Mr. Yu Zhongiang - - = = =
BERRE Mr. Lyu Ruizhi = - - = =
TFERE Mr. Wang Shouye - = = = -
- 4,302 13 - 4315
- 9,471 118 294 9,883
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BREEAFR-_FT—NF+A
T HREERBITEERERE
HITE -

CFEEEFER-ZE-—NELAR

BT -

PEELLTR _FE—NF+ARA
EEZERHTTEEREENEE -

EEHELER - E—NFRA
T NHAEZFABHTEERR
CE-NFEF+ A -HEZES
EESHT/E -

BEEFER-E—AFASA
= A BREEARTTEFRR =
FAEFA = ARENTE
o

BEELZLR _F—-—ANF=H
T HEHEHBTEE -

ITEHAELR -_E—NE=H
At HEZTAREFSTE -
RZF—NFF+A=ZF+ZHTH
EFARFEEHTE + WHE
BINTEEREEHTEES
FF o

BRELERZF—NFAHA
ZTNABEHHTESE -

HBRLLTR - F-NFRA—TN
ARZERHBTEE -

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

Note f:

Note g:

Note h:

Note i

Mr. Han Yuewei was appointed as an executive director and
the CEO on 22 October 2019.

Mr. Li Guohui resigned on 5 July 2019.

Mdm. Weng Jingwen was appointed as an executive director
and the Chief Financial officer on 5 July 2019.

Mr. Li Xiangming was appointed as an executive director on
29 May 2019 and was appointed as the Vice Chairman of
the board on 2 December 2019.

Mr. Qiu Huawei was appointed as an executive director on
29 May 2019 and resigned as an executive director on 22
October 2019.

Mr. Fu Yuning resigned as a non-executive director on 21
March 2019.

Mr. Wang Chuncheng was appointed as Chairman of the
Board on 21 March 2019, ceased to be the Chief Executive
Officer, re-designated as non-executive Director and continue
to serve as the Chairman of the Board on 22 October 2019.

Mr. Chen Rong resigned as a non-executive director on 29
May 2019.

Ms. Guo Wei was appointed as a non-executive director on
29 May 2019.
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9. EERESTHAENME 9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

=3 REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) BITES - FHITESERESIT (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
BAE (& the chief executive (continued)

Hek  RINEHHE

)= 3t Hf
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Others
BT AETT AETT AETT BETTL
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BN\F 2018
HTES: Executive directors:
TENEE Mr. Wang Chuncheng - 5,638 78 178 5,894
REEE Mr. Song Qing
R=F-N\ENAABET) (resigned on 6 August 2018) = 5347 59 140 5,546
PEELE Mr. i Guohui - 3432 18 23 3673
- 14,417 155 541 15,113
HTES Non-executive directors:
SRERE Mr. Fu Yuning = = = = =
RREE Mr. Chen Rong = = = = =
BERRE Mr. Lyu Ruizhi
R=Z-N\FRAT \BEZD) (appointed on 18 May 2018) = = = = =
RBREE Mr. Yu Zhongiang = = = = =
TFERE Mr. Wang Shouye
R=Z-N\FRAT \BEZD) (appointed on 18 May 2018) = = = = =
IREEE Mr. Wang Chenyang
(W=B-\ERATN\BEM) (resigned on 18 May 2018) = = = = =
IRat Ms. Wang Jing
(W=B-\ERATN\BEM) (resigned on 18 May 2018) = = = = =
- 14,417 155 541 15,113
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10. A ReHHMES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FAREGEaTMEEREMEZEE (2T The five highest paid employees during the year included two
—NF: —F  TEERELE  #ER directors (2018: one, not include Mr. Song Qing as he had resigned
ZE-NFENARHEHET BFEZHEH on 6 August 2018), details of whose remuneration is set out in Note
HBEHR EXHFI - BT =R (=T —N 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
F B WIIARAREZTSZEETRAE three (2018: four) highest paid employees who are neither a
WS F{EENFAFHIAT director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2019 2018
BT T BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e LEMER Salaries and other allowance 12,364 17,380
R FIET B Retirement benefit scheme contributions 141 340
12,505 17,720
FEERIERTBRABZESHMER Z The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
FHBA T SROAZAT employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:
2019 2018
BT T BEFIT
HK$000 HK$'000
78#3,000,001 7T E##53,500,000T  HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 -
714,000,001 727 %4,500,0007T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 3
75#4,500,001 7T E 4 #5,000,0007T  HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 -
75#5,000,001 7T E A #¥5,500,0007T  HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 - 1
3
BHEZZT-NFT+-A=T—RHILFE K No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
SEVERAEEESFMAT(BEEER individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to
BE) I EMFHMIERMBASESINE join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
AEERMNEBXBREE (- N\F during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:Nil).

&) o
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BB BIRE BRI RERBY
Fl#916.5% (ZF—/\F : 16.5%) KB K&t

i o

REFBEEEMAETE(REMETRD) &
CEMSTORERED - PEMBARE =
TENF—H—BRR25% T EH
HET XA % E M B A AR -

ETETELENHNBAREEREHOR
SRMELEMEER T[S xMhR]HE
% REI=F  SREWNEHPFELER
15%MRREFRMEHHEK o

Btz o - RIBEBI[2012]1298 R BT
[2011]585% « ANEEE THEAMME AR
HERIBAFEEIMBENEREE - &
RIEBE—— 2 T _THFKIERFES
15%KEERE o Bt - JHIR15% T E
T ERVEATIIE S o

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year.

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards, except for those
subsidiaries described below.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China were accredited
as “High and New Technology Enterprise” by the Science and
Technology Bureau of relevant provinces and other authorities
for a term of three years, and were registered with the local tax
authorities to be eligible for a reduced 15% enterprise income tax
rate.

Apart from that, according to the Guo Shui [2012] No. 12 and
Cai Shui [2011] No. 58, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group
are engaged in the encouraged business activities under the
Development of Western Region Program, and a preferential tax
rate of 15% is granted for an extended period from 2011 to 2020.
As a result, the tax rate of 15% is used to calculate the amount of
current taxation.

BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BNEATEIE Current

REEEH ((RREMERBH])  PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT") 1,749,840 1,823,546
BBNEN Hong Kong Profits Tax 136 3,555

BEFERE TR (BEEME) Under/(over) provisions in prior year
PR EEPTIET PRC EIT 54,002 (12,980)
BEBENGEH Hong Kong profits tax (20) (847)
1,803,958 1,813,274
RIERRIA (H17E31) Deferred (Note 31) (262,193) (203,121)
FRRIEX H A Total tax charge for the year 1,541,765 1,610,153

218  20io54#% - suREEEERAR



Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

—NF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2019

R E A (KB =B QRN EFEFTE) R
FEB RSB BATE M 2 38 A THIA R S BR

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax

ERBREAE AR 2 EER - ARER
iR (BUAERR) HERB R 2 HIRMT

at the statutory rate for Mainland China, where majority of group
companies are domiciled, to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, is as follows:

BT BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
B A B4 A Profit before tax 6,639,568 9,182,477
&E%M$I¢¥% STEFTEMTIIE Tax at the PRC EIT rate 25% (2018: 25%)
T—\F : 25%) 1,659,892 2,295,619
15355%“& DEEDEEEDN Tax effect of share of results of associates
BB E and joint ventures (35,104) (34,292)
EREHEBARFEWAZIREZZ  Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes (14,079) (9,601)
ERBHEAA MBS 2fHIEFE  Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 304,394 156,487
25 R A E B0 Special deduction of research and
development costs (135,864) (123,567)
REBBEMEFTEMNAEH Income tax on concessionary rate (345,947) (551,805)
EEBKLEEEENTRMENTE  Effect of different tax rates of group entities
operating in Hong Kong (804) (1,858)
A ARERNIEESE Utilisation of tax losses not recognised (37,916) (60,993)
BB AR TR A HRE B £ 5 Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised (59,523) (4,226)
RERBIBEENTRIEZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 160,741 84,195
RERAUMBEREENRIARE Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised 51,587 (2,307)
BEFE (BERE)BETR (Over)/under provisions in previous years 53,982 (13,827)
& BB D Reversal of dividend withholding tax = (195,504)
Hth Others (59,594) 71,832
FABIEZ N Tax charge for the year 1,541,765 1,610,153

RIBET[2018]35% - AP B AMIEINRAST
BRSBTS EMHEHREE - AREA
b 70 IR A B e B ] SR E AR B R B A
MBARKKS - ABSZSMB LR AIHE
—HERE - AtBEFEZFHRREEREAD
BE BR—FT-hFt-_A=1t—BHE
EERMIEHR (ZT—\F - ) -

A BRI RER T 78 %67,128,000 AT
SHREANEMLRS K

According to Guo Shui [2018] No. 3, the dividend withholding tax
will be provided when the dividend is paid out of Mainland China.
The Group is in a position to control the quantum and timing of the
distribution and decides to retain the dividend in the subsidiaries in
Mainland China for the further development of such subsidiaries.
Therefore, the deferred tax liability provided in previous years
was reversed and no deferred tax liability was provided as at 31
December 2019 (2018: nil).

The Group also recognised deferred tax expenses of HK$67,128,000
in other comprehensive income.
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0

(ii)

HOBHR—E-R"F+ATLER
WALAIBRERMEE  FHE
H(B%)  IREERLOREER
BRAB(TERBEERE] - BIE
It REEKREBR AR &Beijing
Equity Investment Development Fund
(Cayman Il) LP.(39 R4 A E] EHAIA
RABRZRF)ER_ZTE—RF+
RAB#ERAE2,227 8B E TR
AR S (MEFRIRERERZER]) -

REARFABHAE-_ZT—NF+
A+ NBWRAE EEFESEMH
ZERINARAWBE 209K R
Fl - EFHREERERRESE
#1,559,479,408.507T © EhiRiE
BARERRRAZES IR EE
SEH(B#) RIEtRREREIRS
FEH1,122,825,174 12 T R B 1
436,654,234.387L >  HE T — )\
F+ZA=+—8 HBHiRaBE
2,227 8BEEBLEE_E— \FERHN
75 1#1,559,479,408.50 T 2 [A1 M &
B (5 5) Rt RBEE IR B BEURS o

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
October 2016, CRHP, BSCOMC Investment and Management
Co., Limited (“BSCOMC Investment”, formerly known as
Beijing Pharmaceutical Investment Limited) and Beijing Equity
Investment Development Fund (Cayman II) L.P., being the
then shareholders of the Company prior to the listing of the
Company, approved a Special Dividend of approximately of
HK$2,227.8 million on 9 October 2016 (the “Special Dividend
Shareholders’ Resolution”).

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 18
October 2018, the board of the directors announced that,
taking into account the distributable profits attained by the
Company, the board of the directors resolved to declare a
special dividend in the amount of HK$1,559,479,408.50,
of which HK$1,122,825,174.12 and HK$436,654,234.38
would be distributed to CRHP and BSCOMC Investment,
respectively, pursuant to the Special Dividend Shareholders’
Resolution. Up to 31 December 2018, the Special Dividend
in an aggregate amount of HK$2,227.8 million, including of
HK$1,559,479,408.50 declared in 2018, has been fully paid
to CRHP and BSCOMC Investment.

BT T BEF T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERNERADRNANAFLAIEILE  Dividend for ordinary shareholders of
Frigh% & the Company recognised as distribution
during the year:
“E-\FREA-GREERK Final 2018 — HK$0.13 per ordinary share
B0 3T (ZE—N\F - (2018: Final 2017 — HK$0.11 per ordinary
R FR-EGREBR share)
P5#0.117T) 816,986 691,297
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RBEHBRE  AARESEZEM
BE-_Z-NF+-_A=1+—RHIt#F
[k 3 R HARY B AR I i AR %5011
TT(ZZE—\F : B¥0.137T) © 858
BN BB (ZE—N\F : B
817EEIL) ' HEEFRRAEERE
R bR - HREE -

20195 % « EHBEEEABR LA

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of
HK$0.11 (2018: HK$0.13) per ordinary share, in an aggregate
amount of HK$691 million (2018: HK$817 million), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.
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12. RE (&

RBEHEERE  WBRRNES
BEEBERNEREBR = - B
B EEHERRIhEERE—F
—NWE+-A=Z+—BHLEFEHK
HRE  BESESRATRL @R
AREA3.09 ~ AR¥20.05 - AR
#3040 R ARE30.05 - 2FED 5
AARMEA20,927,0007T (FHER B
469,901,8577T) + AR¥130,804,307
L (HHE R B%146,023,3897T) »
ABR#317,144,2647T (FEE R IE
354,043,9997t) K A R ¥ 157,500,000
(FES N E#175,825,1257T) » HERRE
IR AR S A T B A B R AR B R
BHENBARMNERERREAS EiE
% FEEER -

13. AR A EARERIEEAR
LERABR

ARRIEBEAESRE ARG BRERRN
TERTHEE

2019 PAONES)

12. DIVIDENDS (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019
in respect of CR Sanjiu, Dong-E-E-Jiao, CR Double-Crane
and Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical of RMB43.0 cents, RMB20.0
cents, RMB30.4 cents and RMB30.0 cents per ordinary
share, in aggregate amount of RMB420,927,000 (equivalent
to HK$469,901,857), RMB130,804,307 (equivalent to
HK$146,023,389), RMB317,144,264 (equivalent to
HK$354,043,999) and RMB157,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$175,825,125), respectively, has been proposed by the
directors of the subsidiaries, and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the subsidiaries in the forthcoming general
meeting of the respective subsidiaries.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculations of the basic earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company are based on:

BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&E51)
(Restated)
B Earnings
AR EEREREFHAAT] Profit attributable to owners of the
BB AEE &R Company used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 3,286,419 3,977,603
RMEE Number of shares
AR EEREREFHFA Weighted average number of
B TS mAR N T £ ordinary shares in issue during the
year used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 6,284,506,461 6,284,506,461

HREBEE-_Z—NEFR-_ZTE—NF+=A
=+ — B FEWEBRTEEEE LA
HEREHERFNERNTRERRT -

Diluted earnings per share equals to the basic earnings per share
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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14. )% - BEKRKE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BF  HERRE RENEEE RE  BAREE HEIR
Machinery Furniture ~ Construction
and Leasehold Motor and in
Buildings  equipment improvements vehiles fixtures progress
AETR AT YT eI BT BT BETR
HKS'000. HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
A Cost:
RZE-N\E+ZA=T-H  At31 December 2018 11,394,987 5,826,248 478,663 330,613 1,659,422 1,105,350 20,795,283
A BERRSENZ 6% Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
%+ - - (11,589) - - - (11,589)
RZE-NE-A-B(EEH])  At1 January 2019 (restated) 11,394,987 5,826,248 467,074 330,613 1,659,422 1,105,350 20,783,694
hE Additions 192,336 341,972 67,343 43,998 332,575 1,165,425 2,143,649
ik Disposals (24,116) (385,705) (16,616) (43,807) (90,001) (10,844) (571,089)
WEEHB LA Wit37) Acquisttion of subsidiaries (Aote 37) 1,209,810 280,281 1219 10473 74,942 57135 1,633,920
HENBLA W) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) - - (383) (327) (3307) (166,955  (170,932)
BEERENE Transfers to investment properties (189,773) = = = = (1575 (191,348)
ERERANE Wit 15) Transfer from investment properties
Note 15) 140,046 - - - - - 140,046
] Transfers 694,754 375,527 28,436 (1,469) 127,962 (1,225,210) -
3% Exchange realignment (293,799) (156,465) (8,310) (8,105) (56,101) (32,640) (555,419)
RZE-NETZAZT-H  At31December 2019 13,124,246 6,281,858 538,863 331,376 2,045,492 890,686 23,212,521
ZiHE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-NE-A-A At 1 January 2019 2031108 2,754,205 270,629 159,275 851,43 - 6,066,480
ERzHE Provided for the year 450,923 582,678 43,702 48,634 306,271 - 1,432,208
& Disposals (11,401) (308,630) (13,509) (39,746) (60,125) - (433,411)
HENBRE W) Disposal of subsidiaries (lote 38) = = (343) (310) (2,806) = (3.459)
BRSRENE Transfer to investment properties (74,361) = = = - = (74,361)
A Transfers 2,020 1,990 1,309 (2,027) (3292) = =
BHA% Exchange realignment (47.117) (81,147) (5.802) (5129) (28212) - (167,467)
RZZ-NET-A=T-H  At31December 2019 2351172 2,949,116 295,986 160697 1,063,019 - 681999
HE Impairment:
RZT-nE-A-H At 1 January 2019 6,665 34,014 162 - 393 35,341 76,575
iR Provided for the year 2318 31319 296 63 3312 - 37,318
& Disposals (1,175) (38,046) - (1) (519) - (39,751)
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties (1,280) - = = = = (1,280)
5 5% Exchange realignment (401) (1,379 0} = (25) (835) (2,641)
RZZ-NETZA=T—H  At31December 2019 6,137 25,908 457 5 3,161 34,506 70,221
RETE: Net carying amount:
RZZ-NETZA=T—H  At31December 2019 10,766,937 3,306,334 242,420 170,627 979,312 856,180 16,322,310

222 2019545 « EEREEEERA

el



RO MR ERRME
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+-A=+—H 31 December 2019

14. )% - BEKXME (B 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
BHRRE REMERE g GARRE FEIR
Machinery Fumiture  Construction
and Leasehold Motor and in
Buildings equipment  improvements vehicles fixtures progress
BT BT BT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost:
WZE-\5-A-A At 1 January 2018 112103% 6,034,249 466,190 I8 1442490 1109937 20,636,086
& Additions 2409 337815 42,067 49876 BLA4 127933 2156207
L Disposals (541000 (293324) (17.27) (74,607) (78,035) (13057)  (530400)
EETREREMER(:236)  Transfer to assets held for sale (Wote 36) s (62,112) 5 (4,486) (290) (385,592) (452,480)
VENBAR (W37 Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 258,560 43861 911 2,662 5,630 1736 313,360
HENBAR W) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) (1,036) (42,408) - @®) (1,044 5 (44,49)
BRERENE Wit 15) Transfers to investment properties
(Note 13) (61,320) = = = s (2,607) (63.927)
BRERENE Wit 15) Transfer from investment properties
(Note 13) 5,993 - = = s g 5,993
BRERAIHAEHE Transfer to prepaid land lease payments
(Hit16) (Note 16) - - - - - (107,367) (107,367)
g Transfers 385,764 147,786 2,189 667 91,860 (628,266) =
LS Exchange realignment (573,362) (339,619) (15,417) (16,315) (85,613) (87367) (1,117,693
RZE-NETZAZT-H  At31 December 2018 11394987 582648 478,663 B0613 1659422 1105350 20,795,283
ZitHE: Accurnulated depreciation:
W=Z-\5-A-R At 1 January 2018 181225 2,644,401 244,396 189,867 697,660 - 5588577
FEit Provided for the year 384,874 566,041 40138 54,997 265,252 - 13130
HE Disposals (32787  (245529) (1,800) (71,079) (67,607) = (418,802)
ERERIENENEEWHE36) Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 36) = (47,978) = (4,486) (200 = (52,664)
LEMBAR W28 Disposal of subsidiaries (Aot 38) (500) (36,413) = ) (677) = (37,597)
ERERENE Wit 15) Transfer to investment properties
(Note 13) (31,06 = = = = = (31,06
ERBE Eichange realignment (101,670) (126,297) (12,105) (10,017) (43,185) - (293,274)
RZE-\ETZAZT—H  At31December 2018 2031108 2,754,225 270,629 159,275 851,243 - 6,066480
W Impairment:
WZE-\5-A-A At 1 January 2018 = 51,408 162 = 3M 257977 300,858
EREHE Provided for the year 6,665 9447 - = 138 6,205 20,545
e Disposals - (10,182) - - - (1,111 (11,293)
BRESEEHENEE H36)  Transter to assets held for sale (Note 34) = (14,134) = = (56) (14908  (229,099)
ERAE Exchange realignment - (2,525) - - = (12,912) (15.437)
W-E-NE+-A=1-8  At3! December 2018 6,665 34,014 162 - 393 35,341 76,575
BESE: Net carrying amount:
WZE-\E+ZA=1-H  At31 December 2018 9357214 3,038,009 207872 171,338 807786 1,070,009 14652228
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224

HRAEEETYE  BERRENEA
MIBERFINRE  ZEWE  BERK
ENEREAEHERERE  BE-_E—AN
F+-ZA=+—BLFEEERRERS
B8 %37,318,000L (ZE— \F : B
22,545,0007T) ° HHEAEER KB FER
BESMERBEBERE

REE BTN B A, o

RZEMTERRER AR - REE MR
BR-_ZE-hF+_A=+—HzZEEE
AE#2,112,542,000T (ZF— \F : B
1,904,037,0007T) 2 & EWHE 2 FEEFTARE
BIWEAAREENIERBEREES - NEBEE
BREAZEMEMWEEGAREARY - K
NAEEFRE  AHEBITHERZE
Z B BRAEEEIE -

NEEBREE A H144,439,0007T (=&
—\£ : /5183,328,0007T) (WIEFT T G ##
EAAREEERE TIRITERAIER (H:E
29) °

BE-_Z—-—NE+-_A=+—HB1It&E
& B%4,787,000L (ZE—/)\F : B
4,814,0000) A ERAZEEMEETERET

2 o

BHE-_Z-—hhE+-_R=+—BIEE -
AEBRABYLE=F /REMNBAFH
AETURPEAMOYE  WEEE
FTERAMEEREME (HiE15) - W%
RERABRNERERARBEDFOE
##115,707,0000T (ZE— \F : B
32,865,0007T) KB #384,217,0007C (=&
—\4F : #B#74,097,0007T) - RAEES
MEEEER Z58%268,510,0007T (Z &
—\%E : /B¥41,232,00070) EL5 6 2E K
mAP RS AE G o

20195 % « EHBEEEABR LA

Due to physical damage and technical obsolescence in respect of
the Group's certain property, plant and equipment, the carrying
values of these property, plant and equipment were impaired and
impairment losses of HK$37,318,000 (2018: HK$22,545,000)
have been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have been determined
based on their respective values in use.

The Group's buildings are all situated in Mainland China.

At the date of the approval of these financial statements, the
Group had not yet obtained the building ownership certificates
of certain buildings with a carrying value of HK$2,112,542,000
(2018: HK$1,904,037,000) as at 31 December 2019 and the Group
is still in the process of application of title certificates. The Group
continues to possess these properties without objection from the
relevant authorities. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the risk of the relevant government authorities confiscating these
properties is relatively low.

The Group's buildings with a carrying value of HK$144,439,000
(2018: HK$83,328,000) were pledged to secure the bank
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 29).

The interest expenses of HK$4,787,000 during the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$ 4,814,000) were capitalised into
construction in progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group rented
out certain properties located in Mainland China to independent
third parties/fellow subsidiaries and transferred owner-occupied
properties to investment properties (Note 15). The carrying
amount and fair value of the properties were approximately
HK$115,707,000 (2018: HK$32,865,000) and HK$384,217,000
(2018: HK$74,097,000) on the date of transfer, respectively. The
excess of HK$268,510,000 (2018: HK$41,232,000) of the fair value
over the carrying amount was recorded as a revaluation gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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14. Y% - BMEKRE &

HE-T-NAE+-_A=1t—HIEE @A
BYE=H /REMBARHBENETIRE
MERERGRER (BEXFRBERAEH
MENR)BBEME - BEREE - RNE
AR ME QR EEBE140,046,0007T
(ZZ—)\4F : %5,993,00070) FEWE -
TS R AR VB AN HERR,

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain investment
properties which had been rented out to independent third
parties/fellow subsidiaries have been transferred to property,
plant and equipment upon the change of their uses, evidenced by
commencement of owner occupation. The fair value of properties
at the date of transfer amounting to HK$140,046,000 (2018:
HK$5,993,000), represented the deemed cost of property, plant
and equipment.

15. IREY) % 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2019 PAONES
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
75’\ A—B8REE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,541,437 1,413,085
NE Additions = 11,342
5( BB AR (B7E37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) = 44,193
REZPERN AR BEEEFE Net change of fair value recognised in
profit or loss (14,433) 81,354
BREME - BEKRE W 714 Transfer from property, plant and
equipment (Note 74) 384,217 74,097
BREMHE - BEKRE W 714 Transfer to property, plant and
equipment (Note 74) (140,046) (5,993)
b H % Exchange realignment (46,941) (76,641)
FAREEE Carrying amount at end of the year 1,724,234 1,541,437

HEREFHEMEN QDA BER - AERERIK
RERRBUEXSERMEMETTHE -
EEERBYABREXMEMTIAE
VARESZ I & B (R B 5T AR Y g A B

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the
Group’s policy to engage independent professional qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. Management works closely with
the independent qualified professional valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation technigue and inputs to the model.
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15. REY% (/&) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

AEEEENERN-_F-NF+_A=1—
BRARBEDENBLAEREXMAER
REEXEENEARARHETHOMGEMZE
Be-RN=_F-NF+=-A=1+—H 2R\
BIRBAEETE - ZEMENMAAHHE
B MTIEESRREE L EMEERN
mpdE R E MR - MSHE2ENE
AHAEM NS IA AT ALY ES EA
HARERIERTE - BAIRKRTD2EhERALE
RMEHERXZ B REDTEE L EL
BUAGRYEREENTIS TR RRAE
BIREMEFANREE - RERPRANG
ENELEELEEL - REEMENLAE
BER  MENREAZR/ERSRRER
3o

NARBEEBR
TRINFAEBREMEN N A BEAERE
P

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2019 has been arrived at based on valuations carried
out by Pan-China Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., an independent
qualified professional valuer. As at 31 December 2019, the fair
value was determined based on the income approach, where the
market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed
and discounted at the market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well
as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
discount rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysis of sales transactions of similar commercial properties in
the PRC and adjusted to take into account the market expectation
from property investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s
investment properties. There has been no change from the
valuation method used during the year. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties:

FRAE R B = A5
ETHAREBETE
(=%

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2019
using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

2019 2018
BT T B TIT
HK$"000 HK$/000
BT SENAREBEME Fair value measurement for:
R BB EEME SN Commercial property units located
in the PRC 1,724,234 1,541,437

RERBIRE —REE — RENER &I &
EASERE=F -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and into or
out of Level 3 during the year.
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15. REWZE (&) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
NREEER(B) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
TREREMEMEMBAERNEEER Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
ABUEHE : inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

HESMETSH
fHERH EATABERAZE Range or weighted average
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2018
BEEE WA ) BR%E (i) Discount rate 7.6% 7.7%
Commercial property units  Income approach (i) FHEARS (i) Average monthly rental RN RMIBS-122 BYK RMBY7
EEAR) (per square meter) ARMB-122C per square meter ARBITL per square meter

16. HE 16. LEASES
AEBEREMBEA The Group as a lessee
REBBELCEMA LM - EFREMEE The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, building
EXEBEREHESH AT AN —RM and other equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments
RNFAMBEEARERE T - HER2E were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
506 - RBEZZTHEKTSELFE with lease periods of 2 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will
R - HE T RIEFHHEEA2E504 - be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of land and
AR E —RIBAS1Z105F - EMRE building generally have lease terms between 2 and 50 years, while
—RHEEA12M@A KA T &S ABBIET other equipment generally have lease terms between 1 and 10
REBE - —RME  BUEAEEEREER years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months
LONER R A HAEEE - ETHESHNE or less and/or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
BEORBIEERE - restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside

the Group. There are several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options.
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16. HE (& 16. LEASES (continued)
AEBERFEHEA R The Group as a lessee (continued)
@ BENLHEENT (R -FE—NF (a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019)
7/77/5,2/?7/}
PAONKS]
BT
HK$'000
AR Cost
R At the beginning of the year 3,194,970
= Additions 2,624
EEATERTR W7 14) Transferred from construction in progress (Note 14) 107,367
HE Disposals (56,396)
W BE M B A =) (B77£37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 89,348
VE AR Exchange realignment (151,526)
RER At the end of the year 3,186,387
e Amortisation
REH] At the beginning of the year 430,163
FNEE Provided for the year 99,065
HH 5 FRE A 8H Written off on disposals (44,860)
HE 5, R Exchange realignment (26,277)
RER At the end of the year 458,091
WA Impairment
REH) At the beginning of the year 15,247
IE 5 Exchange realignment (701)
RER At the end of the year 14,546
FIREE Net carrying value
RER At the end of the year 2,713,750
bar)iv= Analysed into:
BNEREL 5 Current portion 123,128
JEBNHAEE 2 Non-current portion 2,590,622
AEEHEN LIHEEN BB R The Group’s prepaid land lease payments comprise leasehold
TrrP R E 2 R E R - interest in land situated in the PRC on medium term leases.
R-ZE—)\F+-_A=+—8 A£EBEA The Group's prepaid land lease payments with a carrying value of
BE5%112,321,0007c I FES £ F &5 5% HK$112,321,000 were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings
F LB RE FASEENE TIRITER granted to the Group (Note 29) as at 31 December 2018.

(FftsE29) o
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16. HHE (&
REBERFRBA (B
b) EAEEE
AEBERREENREDERE NS
BT

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

BF HAhz%E
Other
Building equipment
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
RZE—hF—H—H As at 1 January 2019 2,743,877 1,897,468 7,657 4,649,002
NE Additions 1,402 843,263 869 845,534
AW BB ARRE Additions as a result of
(H17237) acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 37) 787,655 2,044 - 789,699
WERX Depreciation charge (87.629) (594,573) (2,436) (684,638)
bE H % Exchange realignment (50,417) (41,464) (167) (92,048)
R-ZZT—HLFE+=-A=+—H Asat31 December 2019 3,394,888 2,106,738 5,923 5,507,549

—E-NF+-A=+—H K&EH
IREI{E{E A %69,143,000 7T
R EZ T3 T AR AR A LR
ATFRITE R FFFE29) -

(c)

HEABMNREELRFREFHNT

The Group’s right-of-use assets in respect of land with
carrying value of HK$69,143,000 were pleged to secure
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 29) as at
31 December 2019.

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

()

2019

HEEE

Lease

liabilities

BT

HK$'000

R—A—RZIREE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,016,387

HEE New leases 814,817
AU g —FH B R RIRE (B/:237) Additions as a result of acquisition of

subsidiaries (Note 37) 2,044

FNMERHNEIE N Accretion of interest recognised during the year 112,125

(D Payments (653,954)

b 5 Exchange realignment (44,063)

Nt A=+—HBzKEE Carrying amount at 31 December 2,247,356

DT Analysed into:
BPERER 5 Current portion 614,389
JEBNHAER 5 Non-current portion 1,632,967

HEABNIBERDITRER I
FRARMIFEAS

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45 to the
financial statements.
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16. HE (& 16. LEASES (continued)
REBIEREMBA B The Group as a lessee (continued)
(d) BHEREZ RN LEELT - (d) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

BT
HK$000
HEaEFB Interest on lease liabilities 112,125
FRAEEENERX Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 684,638
HEHAERFBREEREEZT—NF Expense relating to short-term leases and
T A=t+—HBszAEREMEE other leases with remaining lease terms ended
BHAMNER on or before 31 December 2019 52,152
RERERNB LT Total amount recognised in profit or loss 848,915
(o) MEZHEBREREBEBRERNGBREM (e)  The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in notes 39(b)
7¥39(b) ° to the financial statements.
REBEATLEA The Group as a lessor
REBREBESEHELTHEAAEKEYE The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
(Mt3%15) - HEMNKER—REXKHAL X operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
MRFEEBEERTATHTEASIEDR require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
FHE AEERFRAEINEASRAL periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
E#163,729,0000T (ZE— \F : B conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
114,559,0007T) + HFFIEE R M EIREHM was HK$163,729,000 (2018: HK$114,559,000), details of which
75 ° are included in note 5 to the financial statements.
R NFR-_ZE—N\F+_A=+— At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the undiscounted lease payments
H - NREEREBET AR S HER AR receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
MREBFERARERERAESNZTAT operating leases with its tenants are as follows:
2019 AONES
BT T B TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 79,335 34,731
FE_ZFhF (BIEEEMSE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 223,435 73,661
FHFEUE Over five years 155,093 102,887
457,863 211,279
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17. B& 17. GOODWILL
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
2% Cost
REH] At the beginning of the year 19,998,438 20,726,448
U BE I BB A =] (B77£37) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 37) 745,233 225,064
[ERIEEE=S Exchange realignment (523,206) (953,074)
RER At the end of the year 20,220,465 19,998,438
ZFHRE Accumulated Impairment
REH) At the beginning of the year 193,584 181,836
BRI E B8 (Wite6) Impairment loss recognised (Note 6) 722,587 20,109
[E 5 Exchange realignment (2,146) (8,361)
RER At the end of the year 914,025 193,584
IRENFE Net carrying value
RER At the end of the year 19,306,440 19,804,854
2R ERIE Impairment testing of goodwill
RETRENR  BERAEERAEAE For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks
BRI IZ (NP s 18FT#H ER) E D BEL = R with indefinite useful lives (as disclosed in Note 18) have been
ReELBU(REEAEN]) - ReESE allocated to individual cash generating units (“CGUs") which are
BAUWEEREA=E  (NERHHE  QEF in three categories: (1) distribution of pharmaceutical products,
BIAEEZED : RQ)ERTE - AENKRE (2) manufacturing of pharmaceutical products in the PRC, and
BEHREFREER) ESEETRRGE (3) retailing of pharmaceutical products. The carrying amounts of
HEN - BT goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) allocated to the

different CGUs are as follows:

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 231



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

—“Z—NF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2019

BT T BT
HK$000 HK$'000
BEmanis Distribution of pharmaceutical products
REEEBNM Cash-generating units:
AFA Company A 2,014,213 2,059,212
NFIB Company B 1,471,723 1,504,603
/NCl[@ Company C 996,774 1,019,042
~RID Company D 600,317 786,333
~AJE Company E 787,440 805,031
~alF Company F 579,410 592,355
RAIG Company G 537,324 549,328
AAH Company H 385,826 527,957
NG| Company | 368,549 376,783
NG Company J 201,783 263,551
RAK Company K 234,941 240,190
~EIL Company L 231,848 237,027
NSV Company M 217,869 222,736
NI Company N 215,666 220,485
NSV Company V 193,635 197,961
RAIX Company X 190,516 194,772
RAY Company Y 166,799 170,525
NIV Company Z 153,816 157,253
NAIAA Company AA 39,608 169,799
Hity Others 1,699,065 1,765,178
11,287,122 12,060,121
BEMAEE Manufacturing of pharmaceutical products
MEEESBN Cash-generating units:
~AO Company O 2,445,028 2,499,651
NG Company P 1,575,692 1,610,894
~AlQ Company Q 950,342 1,167,970
~AEIR Company R 452,450 462,558
NG Company S 343,887 351,570
~aT Company T 305,708 312,538
NCI Company W 297,359 304,002
A A]AB Company AB 283,002 289,324
~a]AC Company AC 172,117 175,962
2 \]AD Company AD 104,076 106,401
Hith Others 989,334 361,299
7,918,995 7,642,169
ZnTE Retailing of pharmaceutical products
REEESBN : Cash-generating units:
NGV Company U 100,323 102,564
19,306,440 19,804,854
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RETRENH  BECIREERREE
EBA o ZERSELBEVHNAINESED
ENFEREEFEET - 287 EHAR
SRETER - WA IEE AR E 7 FH
BEHHEEREETAI%E24% (ZZF—N
F i 3%E25%) FA12% (ZFE—NF :
12%) M FEUHBREFENUHERE RE
£ BBRAFHNZERSEABMRER
EFA3% (ZE—N\F 3% WNEBEEE
EHER| - RENENBRITEERTEA -
EEREEKANES HERBTEN LT
BARKRIEPES) - EIEERE - ZEBERA
AREEr g reE8RENREeESE
BUMRAAERRRSEAEBMNNSER
WEISEE - EXRA - RIREHRBEZRR
BB EREINRE RS ©

BAE A @ Uk £ 585 1#53,927,989,000 Tt &
ER(E B 18 A 8 1£481,933,0007T © HIHA %
MR ERR - R E NS S TEE
BAURD - BEHBESRENELRD o F
It AEERERRER 85 481,933,000
ik

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to individual CGUs. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs
have been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period with average
sales growth rates of 3% to 24% (2018: 3% to 25%), and
discount rate of 12% (2018: 12%) per annum. These CGUs' cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of individual CGUs to exceed respective
recoverable amounts of CGUs. In the opinion of the directors, no
material additional impairment loss of goodwill was identified at
the end of the reporting period.

An impairment loss of HK$481,933,000 based on recoverable
amount of HK$3,927,989,000. Due to intense competition in the
market of pharmaceutical products, which resulted in decrease
in sales of certain CGUs as compared to the budget and a
corresponding decrease in expected future cash flow of those CGUs
accordingly. As a result, the Group recognized an impairment loss
of HK$481,933,000.
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BETRENR  BERAAERAIERAF
HREZEE S EEERRSELSMN - 3k
MARME @ ZEREELEMNATREE
BINERZ AN AR BEREEXNNGTE
BE BIELMABIME ZEHSESE
BUMAIKE &R DENFERAEESEE
E o ZETERARARSRERA - LER
B ERERFHRTFIHEERERES
3%E37% (ZE—N\F 4% E33%) KA
M%E13%(ZE—\F : 11%E12%) 1
FREMAEFTENMISTEEREE - AR
FHNZERSELENRSREFEA3%
(ZZE—N\F : 3%) IR EIEREHR - 18
REDENRBRITEERTEN - SERERE
FXANEY BB TR B A G R Ti5 AR RIEH
BE) c TRERS  ZSEBRETHIMEEE
AlREME B TS B EER RS EE BN
REAERERSEFENMNZATRES
BHoEEZRE  RRSHAMESHEN
BAREINGERAE -

RAE A B & 5E8#1,371,242,0007T (—F
— \£ : 78#217,336,00070) sH E KR E
&8 A8 5240,654,00070 (ZF— )\ & -
7#5%£20,109,0007T) © BB I5EE A
R BT EHEREL I EEEEATA
L BHBRSRETALRD - Bt - A%
B R E 1B %240,654,0007T (- =
—\4F : ##20,109,0007T) °
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives have been allocated to individual CGUs.
For listed companies, the recoverable amounts of these CGUs
determined based on the fair value of the company and disposal
costs. For unlisted companies, the recoverable amounts of these
CGUs have been determined based on value in use calculations.
That calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period with
average sales growth rates of 3% to 37% (2018: 4% to 33%), and
discount rates of 11% to 13% (2018: 11% to 12%) per annum.
These CGUs' cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of individual CGUs to exceed
respective recoverable amounts of CGUs. In the opinion of the
directors, no material additional impairment loss of goodwill was
identified at the end of the reporting period.

An impairment loss of HK$240,654,000 (2018: HK$20,109,000)
based on recoverable amount of HK$1,371,242,000 (2018:
HK$217,336,000). Due to intense competition in the market of
pharmaceutical products, which resulted in a decrease in sales
of certain CGUs for the year as compared to the budget and a
corresponding decrease in expected future cash flow of those CGUs
accordingly. As a result, the Group recognised an impairment loss
of HK$240,654,000 (2018: HK$20,109,000).
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RETRENR  BEEIEEENREE
HEEA o RAUNTIRE SR C ENMERE
ENEEE - ZAtETERAHERER
B NEREHERERFHRNPBEE
RIHERIERER8% (ZT—/\F : 8%)
KA12% (ZF—NF : 1M%)WFEA
A ENMBREREE - BEAFHHN
REELBMRSREEAIR (ZF—N
F 3% MR RERMEN - ERETIE
MEBITRERIEN - SERERKRANE
FIENBEEN LTS ARRERES) - E
BERR  ZEBEROEMEIEATENE
BT eguZReELEUNRAERBHR
ARE SR - EERA - RREDRTER
RIEENEREINUERE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGU. The recoverable amount of Company U
has been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period with a sales
growth rate of 8% (2018: 8%), and a discount rate of 12%
(2018: 11%) per annum. This CGU'’s cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2018:
3%). The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of that
CGU to exceed its respective recoverable amount of CGU. In the
opinion of the directors, no material additional impairment loss of
goodwill is identified at the end of the reporting period.
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18. B EE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ERIRMR  FENR BE BERZHRE  EFBE
Deferred
Patents Non-patent development  Customer
and licences  technology Trademarks costs relationships
BRI BT BB BRI BB BT BRI
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
ZE-A&E+ZA=t-B  31December2019
XA Cost:
RZZ-n$—F—H At 1 January 2019 204,755 344,197 1,474,496 891435 2,975,359 198370 6,088,612
RE Additions 24,436 1221 - 333,639 47,178 296 412,770
e Disposals (2,918) (15,048) (23,582) - (21,824) - (63,372)
WEKBAR (Wi237) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 37) 167,221 31,275 929,871 1,027 49,693 - 1,179,087
HEWBAE (H38) Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 38) - (58,177) - - - - (58,177)
L Transfers - 60,509 - (60,509) - - -
s Write-off - - - (52,257) - - (52,257)
[ A% Exchange realignment (10,603) (11,025) (60,023) (23,682) (65,994) (2,690)  (174,017)
RZZ-NFF+ZA=T—H At31 December 2019 382,801 358952 2320762 1,089,653 2984412 195976 7,332,646
ZtHs - Accumulated amortisation:
RZZ-NE—A-A At 1 January 2019 79,482 213,030 57,665 - 696,699 81467 1,128,343
ERGHR Provided during the year 42,635 35,775 - - 163,661 5,930 248,001
HE Disposals (1,443) (5,757) (238) - (11,652) - (19,090)
HEMBAF Disposal of subsidiaries
(Hist38) (Note 38) - (@1,11) - - - - @1,11)
B AR Exchange realignment (3.437) (7,666) (4,479) = (18,181) (1,708) (35,471)
RZF-NETZA=1—H At31 December 2019 731 193611 52,948 - 830527 85689 1,280,012
I - Impairment
RZZ-nE-A-A At 1 January 2019 4,749 856 - - - - 5,605
HE Disposals (1,475) - - - - - (1,475)
5% Exchange realignment @) (648) = S = = (691)
RZE-NE+ZA=1+—H At31December 2019 3,231 208 - - - - 3,439
REFHE Net carrying amount:
WZE-NETZA=+—H At31December 2019 262,423 165,133 2,267,814 1,089,653 2,153,885 110,287 6,049,195
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8. BIVEE (&

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

SRRER  FEERRD e BERZNA  KFHE
Deferred
Patents  Non-patent development ~ Customer
andlicences  technology  Trademarks costs  relationships
BUTR BHTR TR TR TR TR BUTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-\ETZA=1+-H  31December 2018
A : Cost:
RZT-\F-A—-A At 1 January 2018 279,600 320531 1518816 577,318 2,870,838 199371 5,766,474
NE Additions 1,169 2,517 - 439528 = 3434 446,648
it Disposals (38,475) - - - (516) - (38,991)
WEKBAR Wi237) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 37) = 23,731 = 8,666 245097 - 27749
g% Transfers (24,456) 21,015 25,483 (22,042) = = =
ks Write-off - - - (67,177) = = (67,177)
AR Exchange realignment (13,083) (23,597) (69,803) (44,.858)  (140,060) (4,435 (295,:836)
R=Z-NE+-F=1+—8 At31 December 2018 204,755 344,197 147449 891435 2,975,359 198370 6,088,612
KiTEE Accumulated amortisation:
R=Z-NE-A-A At 1 January 2018 97,190 205,675 60,541 - 57534 81,176 1,019,906
ERGHR Provided during the year 25,031 24,036 319 - 153,607 3,108 206,101
tE Disposals (35,287) = = = (24) = (35,311)
B XA Exchange realignment (7452)  (16,681) (3,195) - (32,208) 2817) (62353
RZZ—F+-FA=T—H At31 December 2018 79,482 213,030 57,665 - 696,69 81467 1,128,343
A Impairment
R=Z-\F-A-A At 1 January 2018 4,822 1,286 = = = = 6,108
5 % Exchange realignment (73) (430) = S = = (503)
RZE-\F+ZA=+—H At31 December 2018 4,749 856 - = = = 5,605
RETHE Net carrying amount:
R-Z-NE+-F=1+—H At31 December 2018 120,524 130311 1,416,831 891,435 2,278,660 116903 4,954,664
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R-ZE-hE+-A=1+—0  LiEEE
E (REmEAEH%2,186,305,0007T (= F
—\% : ##1,321,659,0007T) B9 \IE (=
T—\F : MIB) BN (B IRM 521 7Rt
PERFARORESELEN)) BEEBRAIE
BFH - %S EFEAEREREN 5 HM

BRI R R 5Z& 154
R FL AT 5E 104
[EEE 5Z204
EFPER 10E204F
EHAh 5E 104

mEfT c R=ZFE—NAF+=—A=+—8H
R4 A8%2,186,305,0007T (=& — )\
4« ##51,321,659,0007T) EIZH 4]
BRRERAEESE - A EERAERE
EReEESEmZVAEIETEE - K
SEEBECETLENR  BEERED
BHEAME - mEBY BERREEY R
MEEREEE  HERERITE  EE
EnEHAREE RS RFEMNS ' &
I EAITERBUBRER - Fitt - ANEBEEE
BEZHEEERNERFS  RERZER
ERH-—EgaERMRSRAEHE - miEET
FTEEY BEEWMTENFERATHABRE
Bl R AREEEREENRERA
BERE R EITRE A, - BRIRERF AT
BRI 7308 -

20195 % « EHBEEEABR LA

The above intangible assets, other than eight (2018: four)
trademarks with a total carrying value of HK$2,186,305,000 as at
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$1,321,659,000) (which are allocated
to the CGU of Company O in Note 17), have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:

Patents and licences
Non-patent technology

51to 15 years
51to 10 years

Trademarks 5 to 20 years
Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
Others 5to 10 years

As stated above, the trademarks with a total carrying value
of HK$2,186,305,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$1,321,659,000) are renewable continuously every ten years at
minimal costs. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group would renew the trademarks continuously and has the
ability to do so. Various studies including product life cycle studies,
market, competitive and environmental trends, and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the Group,
which support that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. As a result, the trademarks
are considered by the management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because they are expected to contribute to
net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be amortised
until the useful life is determined to be finite. Instead they will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. The details for the impairment test are
disclosed in Note 17.
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19. REEEFENER

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2019 PAONES)

DIEEEFME

Share of net assets

BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
96,602 44,290

AEERAGECENEHRKFIARE &
IR RE BRI B RS TR I R 42 IR -

AEER—_F-NE+-_A=1—HNEE
BEMEFBHIMOT

R

XY

Place of

Registration and
Name of joint venture operation

AR

Registered
capital

The Group's trade receivable and trade payable balances with the
joint ventures are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture as at 31 December
2019 are set out below:

b REE
B
Percentage
of voting
power

BEREER MEEF EEEK
Profit

sharing

Ownership

interest Principal activities

FTREFEBERR  PE/PEAM AR 18,360,000 51% 51% 51% BERKEE
BRRAR(ERES
B2 Wit

Beijing Protgen PRC/ RMB18,360,000 51% 51% 51% Pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Co., ~ Mainland China packaging
Ltd. (“Protgen Ltd.") production

(Note)

Wiat REEEZEENAZIE  KERUH
REFMAR =52 — U LFAREHR
E & BT EEE AR

TRMLASEEEN L TEANA B0 %0
IR AR

Note: Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association of Protgen
Ltd., operating and financial decisions shall be carried by more than
two-thirds of the votes of the shareholders and accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group is sharing control of Protgen Ltd
with other joint venture partner.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

2019 PAONES)

BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$"000
FRDEEE (BB, EF Share of the joint ventures’ (loss)/profit
for the year (6,059) 4,202
FANEEELEHMEERE Share of the joint ventures’ other
comprehensive income for the year - 313
AEEREGEEFRENERRRE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the joint ventures 96,602 44,290
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20. REE N AR RERS

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

(g%

(restated)

PMEEEFE Share of net assets 4,735,488 3,267,362

REFBRBLNTINE S R H i el 28 A The Group’s trade and other receivables and trade and other

R85 REMEN SNSRI REH payables balances with the associates are disclosed in Note 42 to
SAWE o the financial statements.
REFR-_ZBE-NE+-_A=+—ANFE Particulars of the Group’s principle associates as at 31 December

BB N E BT 2019 are as follows:

K e R

BELRLR

Name of associates

EESE
Place of

registration
and operation

iffER

Registered
capital

Percentage of
voting power

Rip 2t
Particulars of
issued
shares held

Ownership interest

AEREENMBERARAR(RERE) a) +E/HERE  AR¥800,0046007T 2000% #ER SRl% - BR - EEREE
Hefei Tianmai Biotechnology Development Co., Ltd PRC/ RMB800,004,600 Registered capital  Research and development, production
("Hefei Tianmai") (Note a) Mainland China and sale of pharmaceutical products
IRBEERERAA 8/ e 4,200,007 2630% #EX 2OME LR EERGE
Beijing Hanmei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/ UsD4,200,000 Registered capital  Research and development, production
Mainland China and sale of pharmaceutical products
FENEARAA(ERRE]) W) hE/ERE  AR¥30843341717T 4000% AR HtEREHE HE  RELEAMER
ReERIR
China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB 3,084,334,171 Registered capital  Financial leasing, leasing, factoring
("CR Leasing") (Note b) Mainland China and other related consultancy and
quarantee services
WIEREERAERAR RIS Hito hE/hER  AR%249,000,0007 2000% #HER ERl%  BR - LEREE
Zhejiang Int'L Group Co. Ltd. ("Zhejiang Int'L") (Vote ¢/ PRC/ RMB 249,000,000 Registered capital  Research and development, production
Mainland China and sale of pharmaceutical products
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Hieta -

Hiatb -

Kitc

R-FE—+F+—H-+—H ZEF4£
Y EHER EF SN AR R
FHEAIEXE14.12% K1 - HK20184F
12H31H - EFEYBEL KR EESE
KEBZRREN I - B R=ZF—+
F+—A=+—HAN=F—N\F+=AH
=F—H  BHEXZE14. 12 IEH LA
EBEIF BRI ERIFIEHERE -

R-DFE—F+F+-_A=+—HE-ZF
—NFF+ZA=1+—H FXEERER
Br5.88% B IEAXZR1EABRIBE L Al/
B HREBLYBENEMNSEE
EEEXEEZEEFESA - FUHREBEZ
EREEAFET -

S EREIERRE A - AFER
F RIS EIEREEFF 7 R 0 215K
X5 o Bt - BREIEXRERSEEF
EL Y B 2 HAEAIR 5 #R 2% 2 fEHE
JEIEET © 1E AT LB 2 BB IZ 5T Y77 1551
RffaE2.5

R-_E—+F+-A=-+1H XRaEl
2 ENE N A ZE SRR E
HEEFEEEEHE (5E)FRAA]
([ZBHE (BE)]) (R e RRE
JHBIR L GRS ENE R 7)) 5 &4
FEERHE20% 1 - BRIEBBARK
889,400,000 (1HERE#992,817,000
JT) o B EBRIYLHE T 16 ZNTEH
HEREEFMRFME  REBHE
HI40 % R FETER B & R Al ay s

RZF—NF=ZF+HH  EFEE
PERREFEEGXAEZTHE (F
BT UIELE S B =rAEE
16 5] &9 HE 1) 12 10 2 8 & £ AR K =
AB#3,084,334,1717T (102 RE¥K
3,443,196,4527T) °

EHEHEpER BN ENAR+EH
HHERARM11.267T (FHERER12.80
TT) Z(ETE R AT T 54549,787,987 iR
1o RBTZH e  ZEHEHGEIFEN
ST Z1520% 1 -

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

On 21 November 2017, the directors of CR Biopharm approved
to dispose of 14.12% equity interests in Hefei Tianmai to the
controlling shareholder of Hefei Tianmai. As at 31 December
2018, CR Biopharm has not received payment from the controlling
shareholder of Hefei Tianmai. As a result, the fair value of 14.12%
equity interests in Hefei Tianmai remained as assets classified as
held for sale as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018.

The Group retained the remaining 5.88% equity interest in Hefei
Tianmai as interests in an associate as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 due to the fact that CR Biopharm had two directors
in the board of the directors of Hefei Tianmai, which is considered
having significant influence over the entity.

During the current year, as agreed with the controlling shareholder
of Hefei Tianmai, the Group terminated the Sell-Back transaction.
Therefore, the financial statements for the periods since Hefei
Tianmai classified as held for sale is amended accordingly. Details
of the amendments of corresponding comparative amounts are
included in note 2.5.

On 28 December 2017, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings and CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial, indirectly held wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, acquired 20% equity interests in CR
Leasing each from China Resources Leasing (HK) Company Limited
(“CR Leasing HK”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company's controlling shareholder, China Resources Co., Ltd. at
an aggregate consideration of RMB889,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$992,817,000). As the Group has appointed 2 out of 5 directors
in CR Leasing upon the completion of acquisition, the 40% equity
interests in CR Leasing were recognised as interests in associates.

On March 14, 2019, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings and CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial entered into a capital contribution
agreement with CR Leasing HK, by which the three parties agreed
to increase the capital of CR Leasing in the same proportion to RMB
3,084,334, 171(equivalent to HK$ 3,443,196,452).

CR Pharmaceutical Commercial subscribed 49,787,987 shares of
Zhejiang Int’L at a price of RMB11.26 (equivalent to HK$12.80)
per share in June and July 2019. Upon the completion of the
subscription, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial held 20% equity
interest in Zhejiang Int’L.
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20. REFE QR NVER (&

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

T R AR AR [ E] 1| S B K B R RN The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

BB EH

of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

2019 PAONES)

FADNEEE R AN
FANHBE QAR EMEHEER

REBENEE R RIRENREAAE

BT BETT
HK$"000 HK$000
Share of the associates’ profit for the year 146,476 72,679
Share of the associates’ other
comprehensive loss for the year (1,773) (36,674)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in the associates 4,735,488 3,267,362

21. ERS FERBEREE 21. OTHER CURRENT/NON-CURRENT

FINANCIAL ASSETS

2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEIRES  BAREER (Wita)  Assets backed securities,
at fair value (Note a) 532,586 385,217
5 eI IE K RN AR Trade and bills receivable,

RARBER H7D) at fair value (Note b) 20,756,903 19,088,152
FLEMRERE - AR Unlisted equity investments,

BEs (Watc) at fair value (Note ¢) 412,215 74,467
B ER  BARBER (Witd) Financial products, at fair value (Note d) 4,946,093 8,549,773
BIER  REHEKAR (Hite) Financial products,

at amortised cost (Note e) 167,780 148,613
45T Total 26,815,577 28,246,222
paR)ilE Analysed into:

MEVEE Current assets 26,403,362 28,023,549

EMBEE Non-current assets 412,215 222,673

26,815,577 28,246,222
Hiita - 2 o8B0 = F R B E T ZEH 17 Note a: The amounts represent the Group’s investments in asset-backed

242

B EREETE=FRPEETZE
ERHRB A o ZEBFTDEALE
EEABwiTE - RZE—NF1ZA
=t AZEMRARESFER =—F =
FENAZIH -

Hiitb - AEBERBERAAFERRE DT

R EHE SRR R ERFEHE R B
B IRIZ B BRI TR & B R B I 7K 75
BARBEFAR M EH R 2 HE
o

2019 F i » EHBESBER AR

Note b:

securities with returns linked to the performance of those securities
which are issued by independent third parties in the PRC. These
securities are measured at fair value through profit and loss. The
subordinated tranche of securities as at 31 December 2019 will
mature in September 2020.

The Group has classified trade and bills receivable that are held
within a business model both to collect cash flows and to sell
upon transition to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income under HKFRS 9.
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21. HAth
(&
Hiztc -
Hiatd -
Hizte -
22.

B FERBERERE
HEBYIE b AR BN A HA T
BHLIUA RO o I L
ERTELFRITE  HRRIHE
B - BRI BRI BRI EORS
AR ISR -

BAABESRE 2B EECERER
BRTT R B EIEFA RSB -

EERE A AB D 2 FEY
TERX  JEEREAA BE ARG
BHTHEE -

R SRR 0 2 B B B I RAR
BHIEHER - ZEBEDABEREE
HHAEEE - EBIEHE T -
NzBEERBEEXAFE - HFF
EHEENE N BNRENEE T
K (i) BEENEEHRIETE A5
ALE)FIELTH o

HttIERBEE

21. OTH

ER CURRENT/NON-CURRENT

FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

The Group's unlisted equity investments represented investments
in unlisted private entities established in the PRC. These unlisted
entities are principally engaged in research and development,
distribution and related operations of pharmaceutical products.
They are measured at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9.

Financial products at fair value included structured deposits entered
into by the Group with banks and financial institutions. These
structured deposits (where the effect of structured element is not
material) are designated as financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial products at amortised cost include financial products with
principal and interest guaranteed. The assets are classified to be
measured at amortised cost as they meet the following condiitions: (i)
the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and, (ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principle
and interest on the principle amount outstanding.

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2019 PAONES)

BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$/000
WM - WEREEZS Deposits for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment 274,658 278,026

WEFEREEEZS (2T —N\F - Deposits for acquisition of right-of-use

TR T B ERIBIR ) assets (2018: Deposits for acquisition
of prepaid land lease payments) 65,149 11,869
WERFEELZS Deposits for acquisition of intangible assets 43,870 26,407
REAEWRIA Long-term receivables 976,025 863,750
LZEEX Entrusted Loan 380,452 =
A E A Prepaid investment 317,043 25,765
Hitb Others 15,079 12,610
2,072,276 1,218,427
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23. FE& 23. INVENTORIES
2019 PAONES]
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 2,505,818 3,047,482
BEMR Packaging materials 23,285 20,637
E&m Work in progress 1,263,572 1,232,322
BIRK Finished goods 18,539,699 17,227,482
22,332,374 21,527,923

24. B 5 R H MR 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

A ESE Bills receivable 2,270,974 2,559,563
E S EWGRIA Trade receivables 52,680,136 44,797,057
BB R Impairment allowance (832,206) (436,084)
51,847,930 44,360,973

TEf5RIE Prepayments 3,662,142 3,425,706
E b GRIE Other receivables 6,150,906 4,637,120
VERIEREL] Impairment allowance (159,463) (136,347)
5,991,443 4,500,773

63,772,489 54,847,015

REBE—RAEBZIEFPETNF30E270
AWEEH YA RETRFHEEHLR
£360K MUHBRTREEFNESER
HEEERME - ERBEOHRNF302
180K °

AEENE ZRWFEREREKAEER
ZMBAR - AELE BMEARKR—
RRZH B AR E QR HNKED
AEHA41,991,000T (ZZF — )\ : B
36,954,0007T) * & #253,0007T (=& —/\
F : J5¥E782,0007T) - HB%43,365,000
TT(ZZE—N\4F : H%44,008,0007T) &
B#174,864,000 (ZZE — N\F : B
256,536,0007T) ' 2 ERIBEAEE R E
ERFRENBUGEEGRREES -

244 oi9ns e EpEEEEERAR

The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 to 270
days to its trade customers, which may be extended to 360 days for
selected customers depending on their trade volume and settlement
terms. The bills receivable generally have maturity period ranging
from 30 to 180 days.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due
from the Group's fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates
and associates of a fellow subsidiary of HK$41,991,000
(2018: HK$36,954,000), HK$253,000 (2018: HK$782,000),
HK$43,365,000 (2018:HK$44,008,000) and HK$174,864,000
(2018:HK$256,536,000), respectively, which are repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the Group.
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B 5 K HMEWRIR (&

=l

24, 24,

RZF-NFRZF-N\FTZA=1—
B AEEENER A BNRERREEN
H S REBHRH RO :

Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of loss
allowance, based on the invoice date at 31 December 2019 and
2018 is as follows:

2019 2018

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

0230k 0 to 30 days 19,055,572 16,743,995
31260k 31 to 60 days 7,556,805 6,757,515
61290k 61 to 90 days 5,023,435 4,286,534
912180k 91 to 180 days 10,795,980 10,084,492
1812365K 181 to 365 days 7,275,886 5,726,756
AT Over 1 year 2,140,252 761,681
51,847,930 44,360,973

RZE—NEFRE—N\F+-_A=1+—
A AEEREREEREHE A ENERRSTT
W

An ageing analysis of the Group’s bills receivable, based on the issue
date, at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 PAONES)

BETT BEFT

HK$'000 HK$'000

0&E30X 0 to 30 days 1,264,215 317,149
31260K 31 to 60 days 233,886 393,062
61290K 61 to 90 days 262,085 432,406
91£180K 91 to 180 days 510,788 1,416,946
2,270,974 2,559,563
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24. BS R EHMBEWRIE 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
BB 5 R B ab i U =m0 R E S R R The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and
BEIT : other receivables are as follows:
2019 2018
BT s
HK$'000 HK$'000
B S RWKIA Trade receivable
) At beginning of year 436,084 372,681
SRR ENE €] Amount written off as uncollectible (2,860) (1,335)
BEEE  FEE Impairment losses, net 446,927 91,224
Rk Exchange realignment (47,945) (26,486)
RER At end of the year 832,206 436,084
H{th FEURFRIE Other receivables
R At beginning of year 136,347 154,023
SRR ENE € -] Amount written off as uncollectible (1,014) (13,803)
BEEE - FRE Impairment losses, net 29,651 8,270
[E 5 A5 Exchange realignment (5,521) (12,143)
RER At end of the year 159,463 136,347
B S RBGRERES T A& W A EEA An impairment analysis on trade receivables is performed at each
BB mE TN ETEAEERBE - kX reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
TiREABROERX M EECT R 5 508 losses. The rate is based on the ageing of the trade receivables
E S REBGIERNRER ST Mt E o 58 R due from various customer segments with similar patterns. The
MEMEER - BEBRERNREHBAE calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
RWBRBA S - BN RARREEAR T value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
TERIMEIE R A SEER o available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions

and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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4. B5 R HAMEWFIR (&

TXESEBAREE SRR RS
BB R M0 E EER B

RZZB-AF+ZA=t—H

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group'’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

REAE BEHEEESE
Gross Expected
carrying credit
amount losses
BEFT BETT
HK$'000 HK$000
TEEEEE B EFTE Individual evaluation of

expected credit losses 411,142 40,353

BBACERBASTHTESEEEE  Assessment of expected credit loss by
credit risk portfolio 52,268,994 791,853
52,680,136 832,206

HME

Less than
1year

EREERRR Expected credit loss rate 0.42% 15.91% 3261% 91.42% -
EELEEETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 49,849,959 1,877,744 362,928 178363 52,268,99
BHEEER(BYTT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 211,639 298,795 118,366 163,053 791,853
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4. EF R EMEWFIE (42 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

H-ZT—N\E+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2018

fREAE EHEEEE

Gross Expected
carrying credit
amount losses

BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

T EEBEMNERTE Individual evaluation of
expected credit losses 80,109 -

BBACERBRASTHTESEEREE  Assessment of expected credit loss by

credit risk portfolio 44,716,948 436,084
44,797,057 436,084

HME

Less than

1year
BHEERER Expected credit loss rate 0.47% 9.88% 25.71% 95.24% =
SHEEEETT) Gross carying amount (HK$'000) 43,726,182 730,239 130,539 129988 44,716,948
BHEEBE(RYETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 206,600 72,116 33,565 123,803 436,084

AR — BRI RE - AR
BEEEEGANERRRE TS ERER

MEPHBREZEEF  REERRSETE
EER - ARBEERR - HARCERA
MR T L BEORRE — S EHEBE
EREHE -

R-_E—hhFE+_A=+—8 K&
ENEHFESERRBEBREREE
AB193,978,000 L (ZTE— N\F : B
#153,096,0007T) * LAER®E THRT
B (HE29)  EEBEBKZREAE
#620,403,000 L (= — \F : B
1,189,792,0007T) * LAYE(RFEN =45 (M 5E
26) °

* 248  oionst e EpEmeEERAR

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group
considered whether there had been adverse change in the credit
standing of the debtors from the date credit was initially granted.
The concentration of credit risk was limited as the Group’s customer
base comprised of a large number of customers. The directors of
the Company believed that there was no further credit provision
required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts already
provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged trade and bills
receivables of HK$93,978,000 (2018: HK$153,096,000) to secure
certain bank borrowings (Note 29) and pledged bills receivable of
HK$620,403,000 (2018: HK$1,189,792,000) to secure the bills
payable (Note 26).
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25. IR TER HEKIKR  25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH

TEEBEY

EQUIVALENTS

2019 PAONES)

e MRTTHER
V5
AR ENRIENE EIRRITIFR
ERERERIBALR=EA
) EL A 5 R Il 3K

ERERERIBAEE=A
) LA S PR Il 3K

BT BETR
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Cash and bank balances 17,138,627 20,061,977
Less
Pledged bank deposits for bills payable 3,305,633 3,193,308

Guarantee deposits and other restricted

deposits with original maturity less than

three months 24,125 3,036
Guarantee deposits and other restricted

deposits with original maturity more than

three months 1,284,853 232,332
EERIRITE AR Total pledged bank deposits 4,614,611 3,428,676
BeMRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,524,016 16,633,301

REBERITERBIEAE820,813,3647T
(== — \% : #%1,556,802,6907T) RE|
HER=@A%ZZE—F NI ERE TR
RS EMNEI 0% E2.1% (T E—)\F ¢
1.43%%E2.25%) M8 - ZFRITERAR
RS R A AN E B R IB R B B 78 2 1+ 51

=/

R-Z—hE+-_A=+—H  KEEHD
RITHEBIEN T 0% E4.57% (ZF— \F ¢
0%%E4.18%) TS FF 5T A -

R-E-hE+-A=1+—08 XKEBHDIE
HIRTERIEBERBITRE (BIEEMNE
) miKE FIRITER - BIERNT0.30%
£1.55% (ZF—/\F : 0.30%=1.69%) 1
TISFFETE ©

Included in the Group’s bank deposits of HK$820,813,364 (2018:
HK$1,556,802,690) are time deposits with original maturity more
than three months but less than one year, which carry interest
at market rates ranging from 1.10% to 2.1% per annum (2018:
1.43% to 2.25%). These bank deposits can be withdrawn at any
time at the Group's discretion without penalty.

Bank balances of the Group carried interest at market rates ranging
from 0% to 4.57% (2018: 0% to 4.18%) per annum as at 31
December 2019.

Pledged bank deposits of the Group represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities including bills payable and
carrying interest at market rates ranging from 0.30% to 1.55%
(2018: 0.30% to 1.69%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.
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6. EZ REMBENFIE 26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2019 2018
k=4 BT BT T
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
E S EMNFE Trade payable (a) 29,471,893 27,227,869
ARE ST Bills payable (@) 13,259,163 12,281,222
JEstE & Accrued salaries 1,912,778 1,600,012
FERTFIE Interest payable 93,616 304,111
HE AR Other tax payables 667,354 1,314,669
HE At RIE Other payables 13,940,109 12,360,798
FEfTRE R Refund liabilities 24,884 17,086
FUEEM B ARIMEZIE  Payable for acquisitions of subsidiaries 706,988 1,092,492
60,076,785 56,198,259

et - Note:

(@)  EREEEmAFIGE A TF30E 120K ° (a)  The average credit period on purchases of goods range from 30 to
JE(Z 1M H T F302 360K HTHR - )R 120 days. The bills payable have maturity period ranging from 30
ZE-NFF+ZA=1+—H  FEE% to 360 days. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bills payable of
#6,210,204,0005T (= E—/VF : FI HK$6,210,204,000 (2018: HK$7,125,681,000) were secured by
7,125,681,0007T) 49 17 5215 #7 7 % B B the Group’s bills receivable with an aggregate carrying amount of
A8 1B BE%620,403,000T (ZZF—/1 HK$620,403,000 (2018: HK$1,189,792,000) (Note 24) and pledged
F : jEE,189,792,0007T) (Wfat24) 49 fE bank deposits of HK$3,305,633,000 (2018: HK$3,193,308,000)
W i% R % #3,305,633,0007T (= F—/1 (Note 25).

F : JBH163,193,308,0007T) (Hi7£25) B2
PRERITIE A ATHELR ©

REBERERHNE FREMNRIBRER An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on the

DT invoice date, is as follows:

2019 AONES

BT T B TIT

HKS$'000 HK$'000

0230k 0 to 30 days 19,549,147 16,405,519
31E60K 31 to 60 days 3,659,134 4,092,276
61290K 61 to 90 days 1,589,073 1,971,968
HiB0K Over 90 days 4,674,539 4,758,106

29,471,893 27,227,869

250 oionam e mpmmeEsRa
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26. E5 R EMENTIEE
AEEERNET BB ERNERA T
o -

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the Group’s bills payable, based on the issue
date, is as follows:

2019 PAONES)

BT BT T

HK$000 HK$'000

0£30K 0 to 30 days 11,473,614 9,581,425
31£E60K 31 to 60 days 507,708 616,290
61£90K 61 to 90 days 440,988 852,340
HBIBIOK Over 90 days 836,853 1,231,167
13,259,163 12,281,222

27. EHIRE &
AR ZEWNB AR EBEZITBRERA
RI([EEBEER]ERN_Z—N\FLAR
AERRFEBET - N\FE B
HEESs -  —T— ) \FE-—HBREHRE
FETA R A ARK3,000,000,0007T
(78%3,423,868,0007T) * HAR A270K
ZEMAREEFEI68% R FHKA A
3,828,4627T ° 2018 F #ITH AR & H 7N
FO2HER - — T NFWERTRIR

28. ENERE

27. SHORT-TERM DEBENTURES

China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited (“CR
Pharmaceutical Holdings”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has completed the issuance of the first Ultra Short-Term
Debentures 2018 in the PRC on 5 September 2018. The first Ultra
Short-Term Debentures 2018 was issued in a principal amount of
RMB3,000,000,000 (HK$3,423,868,000) with a term of 270 days
and a coupon rate of 3.68% per annum and the transaction cost
was HK$3,828,462. The short-term debentures issued in 2018 was
fully redeemed during the year. No short-term debentures was
issued in 2019.

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2019 PAONES)

BETR CUSEE
HK$000 HK$'000
B P HABR K Short-term advances received from
customers
BEmiHs Sale of goods 1,651,904 1,711,938
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29. SRITERK

29. BANK BORROWINGS

2019 PAONES)

BT BT T
HK$000 HK$/000
RITENK Bank borrowings
BHEA Secured 161,089 408,849
EARAR Unsecured 30,904,596 40,255,672
31,065,685 40,664,521
FEEEREEERBEERD) : Carrying amount repayable
(based on scheduled repayment terms):
—F A Within one year 27,486,200 37,362,593
—FLAEBDRME More than one year, but not more than
two years 1,875,639 153,117
MEREBDRAF More than two years, but not more than
five years 1,703,846 3,148,811
31,065,685 40,664,521
W mEVBEE TR REEEE Less: Amount due shown under current
liabilities:
—F AR EEA Due within one year (25,577,234) (30,762,593)
—FUREIAREHAEZEIERIET  Due within one year and contain a
repayment on demand clause (1,908,966) (6,600,000)
(27,486,200) (37,362,593)
IERBEEIR NI —F1& Amount due after one year shown under
FEN SRR non-current liabilities 3,579,485 3,301,928

AEEETRITERHATEBAER

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings were secured by:

2019 PAONES)

BT MR
HK$'000 HK$'000

EREEE TB TS RIE Right-of-use assets/Prepaid land lease
(Btst16) payments (Note 16) 69,143 112,321
BFHizt14) Buildings (Note 14) 144,439 83,328
B S REWGRIE K W R (I it24) Trade and bills receivables (Note 24) 93,978 153,096
307,560 348,745

AEEFEMEBTERRE TR ERME
REOFEHEBREMNES R B3.83% (=ZF
—\&F :3.53%) &%4.32% (=ZF—)\F :
4.32%) °

252 oionsm e zpmmeEsRAn

The average effective interest rates of the Group’s floating rate
bank borrowings and fixed rate borrowings were 3.83% (2018:
3.53%) per annum and 4.32% (2018: 4.32%) per annum
respectively.
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30. BfI1ESH

30. BONDS PAYABLE

2019 PAONES)

BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&HF (Hiata) Bonds 1 (Note a) 2,288,443 2,282,580
&H2 (W atb) Bonds 2 (Note b) 4,521,583 4,565,160
BH3 (M itc) Bonds 3 (Note ¢) 1,142,372 -
7,952,398 6,847,740

FEfT&%E - Amount repayable:
—FLAA Within one year 2,288,443 =
F_EZFERF In the second to fifth years 5,663,955 6,847,740
7,952,398 6,847,740

Hiita : RZF-RFELANA - EBEEERE

Hizth

Kietc -

FHEEARKEI00TEITHESEAAR
#2,000,000,0007T HIFEIRFEIE_F T (& 5
([1E%1))  ZEEFFEL20%518 °
EFIER-_FE-_FF+H/\AZH - &
FI189E7TEHBARM6,322,0007T °

R-ZFE-NENAZ++H  HHEEE
R B 7T A % BB RN R #2,000,000,000
TCRIERIRIE LB ([1B52)) ° &5
2EF R EEARKEI00TTERE  ZEE
FFIFEL21%518 o BHFHFR-FE=—
FNAZFEHEE - EHF2METTEH
BAR6,312,0007T °

R-FE—/\F+—HAHA » EEEHEE
SRIZ 7 ETEA LB 100T i — 7T
HEEE AN 2,000,000,0007T I
FIELTIES2 @ HEEFFIFE4.04%
FTE e BHFIBR —FE-—F+—HAFA
BEH - EF289%FTEHABARK
6,312,0007T °

REZFE—NFAA=Z+=-H ZEHFE
BRI 5 EEA R 1007 #7742
LEERARM1,000,000,0007T #7HEH
FEIEFTES ([1E53)) @ HEEFF
K3 78%F1E o BHFIFR-ZFZ—F
AAZFPIEEE o (E5H389%7TEH
BN RH#870,0007T -

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

On 9 July 2015, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured
non-listed bonds (“Bonds 1”) in an aggregate amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a
fixed rate of 4.20% per annum. The Bonds 1 will mature on 8 July
2020. The issue fee of Bonds 1 amounted to RMB6,322,000.

On 27 August 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured
non-listed bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB2,000,000,000
(“Bonds 2”). Bonds 2 were priced at par at RMB100 each, carrying
interest at a fixed rate of 4.21% per annum. The Bonds 2 will
mature on 27 August 2021. The issue fee of Bonds 2 amounted to
RMBE6,312,000.

On 5 November 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings further
issued unsecured non-listed Bonds 2 in an aggregate amount
of RMB2,000,000,000 at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest
at a fixed rate of 4.04% per annum. The Bonds 2 will mature
on 5 November 2021. The issue fee of Bonds 2 amounted to
RMB6,312,000.

On 22 May 2019, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured
non-listed bonds (“Bonds 3”) in an aggregate amount of
RMB1,000,000,000 at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a
fixed rate of 3.78% per annum. The Bonds 3 will mature on 24 May
2022. The issue fee of Bonds 3 amounted to RMBS870,000.
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30. BNEZ &
HEEHRRE-E-NFR-F-N\F
+= A=t - BIEENEBREIIMT -

30. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The movements of these bonds during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are set out below:

2019 PAONES)

BMT BET
HK$'000 HK$'000

REFRIREE Carrying amount as at the beginning
of the year 6,847,740 4,665,382
HEBITESFWIH TS HIE Proceeds received from issued bonds 1,116,350 4,552,255
BN Repayment = (2,350,507)
FEETFE Interest accrued 137,551 =
IE AR Exchange realignment (149,243) (19,390)
RERIEREE Carrying amount as at the end of the year 7,952,398 6,847,740

31. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets
Details of deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as follows:

31. IELERIE
EEREEE
RZF-hEF+=A=+-BR=F-/N\F
tZA=+—RREHBARAENFEWT

BER
BERE HERE EtER HERE
Impairment of Provision and Lease
assets Tax losses accruals liabilities
8T AT e AT AT AETT
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
RZE-N\F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2018 234,251 1118 274873 - 35,153 621,419
ReERIBREEZ 6N E Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 - - - BATI - B4TT
RZE-NE—F-H &) At 1 January 2019 (restated) 234,251 1118 274,873 2471 35,153 644,896
R BRRA MR /HAR Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
EEREWE ) consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Vote 71) 93,728 104,706 (8,830) 12,893 4,405 206,902
WEMB AR W:#37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Vote 37) 38,449 = = = = 38,449
HENBAR W) Disposal of subsidiaries (Aote 38) (10,992) = = = = (10,992)
i35 Exchange realignment (12,076) (4,419 (5,555) (514) (603) (23,167)
RZE-NETZA=+-AZ (Gross deferred tax assets at
EEHEAELS 31 December 2019 343,360 177,429 260,488 35,856 38,955 856,088
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31. IRIERRIE (48 31.

ELERIREE (7)

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

R
BERE HERE &R Eft
Impairment of Provision and
assets Tax losses accruals Others
AETT AETT AETT BETTL BEITL
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 1000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R=%-\#—A-H At 1 January 2018 194,301 72,324 264,459 63,002 594,086
ERRGABERNHIR) /FA Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
RERBE Wit11) consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (Note 1) 46,627 8,466 15,074 (22,915) 47252
BB AR (W37 Acquisition of subsidiaries (Aote 37) 2,340 = = = 2,340
381 Exchange realignment (9,017) (3,648) (4,660) (4,934) (22,259)
RZE-\FTZA=1—H At 31 December 2018 234,251 77,142 274873 35,153 621,419

EERIAEE

R-B—hE+-A=+—BR-ZE—N\&F
+= A=+ —-RBEEHEREOFEDNT :

Deferred tax liabilities
Details of deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as follows:

GG
FEEM
MMEEHE
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
Revaluation of  acquisition of
properties  subsidiaries
BETR AETR A8 AETR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
RZE-NE-A-R At 1 January 2019 360,043 454,315 66,914 881,272
FRRGABRRRZENGEERAIR/ GTA) Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
WEERE W 11) the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the year (Note /1) 70,319 (68,134) 9,652 11,837
REHBLAR HH37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Aote 37) = 662,860 = 662,860
i3k Exchange realignment (15,373) (31313) (2.110) (49,396)
RZE-NFT-A=1-H At 31 December 2019 414,989 1,017,728 73,856 1,506,573
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31. IRIERRIE (48 31.

EEHIAEE (F)

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

B
FEEn  HERAM
MEEEE AN REH
Fair value
adjustment
arising from ~ Undistributed
Revaluationof ~ acquisition of earnings of
properties subsidiaries subsidiaries Others
BT AETT RETT AETT BETTL
HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKs 000
R=E-\§-A-H At 1 January 2018 308,016 490,989 93,800 71,638 964,443
FRARNGABERAIR/GIA) Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
WEERE W) the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Note 71) 37272 (73,876) 101,704 (25,465) 39,635
FRBE W) Reversed during the year (\ote 11) = = (195,504) = (195,504)
WEMBAR Hi#37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Vote 37) S 35,040 S S 35,040
EREE Exchange realignment 14,755 2,162 = 20,741 37,658
RZE-N\E+-A=1+-A At 31 December 2018 360,043 454,315 - 66,914 881,272

R-TE—AFE+-A=+—8 KEEH
FILINFL B 18 A5 1 3,248,995,0007T (=
T—\%F : B#¥2,510,676,0007T) - R—F
—hWE+=ZA=+—8 REERHEES
18/5#1,086,579,0007T (ZF— \4F : B
341,825,00070) ERELEHIBEE - R
—T-NAF+ZA=+—8 " HTHHE
E5188%2,162,416,000C (T — N\5F : 8
#£2,168,851,0007T) R AR KRB F) i 2 %
TER - WARHERTABELEHIEELE - RZF
—hE+-A=+—8 XEMNHEEE
FEEEIEE212,192,000T (ZE— N\

R BB N A TR fEm

The Group had unused tax losses of HK$3,248,995,000 (2018:
HK$2,510,676,000) as at 31 December 2019. Deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses amounting
to HK$1,086,579,000 (2018: HK$341,825,000) as at 31
December 2019. Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$2,162,416,000 (2018:
HK$2,168,851,000) due to the unpredictable profit stream as at
31 December 2019. Included in the unused tax losses was a loss of
HK$212,192,000 (2018: HK$106,655,000) at 31 December 2019
that may be carried forward indefinitely. Other tax losses will be
expired in the following years:

2019 PAONES)

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-NF 2019 = 491,249
—E-EFE 2020 436,287 497,313
- 2021 369,902 411,232
T 2022 236,047 325,619
—Eo=fF 2023 370,561 336,783
—ECopE 2024 537,427 =
1,950,224 2,062,196
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BRATYIIEE RN IAE EXW AR :

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

SEHET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

AMBERERE Deductible temporary differences 701,014 557,323
REVATIBE R Unused tax credits 2,162,416 2,168,851
2,863,430 2,726,174

BRELaE B BT IR E EY ARHER - R
R BERE BT K] BT A FERBUE I ] A
KR LS REVIEE o

RIERBEEREEE - RRREAMKLZ
INERERINRIREE TR S BBIK
10% B - BEAREE T NF—A
—HREY  WEARZETLF+ A
=+ —HEBREEZEF - MR BRI
BEEBaEER 2 METBHEELD - A
AMREYER RGBT - RSB 2 @A
EAE5%10% ° Bt + AEEERRFE
N 2 B AR A T NF—A—
ARRELZ BFIDIR RSB

RIERF[2018]35% 7 - WBINEEE R
HBENDIRBENEERENEIRES - B
TEME G T ET IR B EER SN R A
B o2 RAEEE—+tF—A—HRRE
B o AR ER B AT 6 B 9 Ik 5k RE K B
ISR TE R HAFR B A M BB A R RIS LAER
BZEMBARE— PR - AL - RNiB
FEEHRNECHESBEERDANR=Z
—NEFEF+ZA=+—HEZZE—N\F+=A
=+ —AMETIRECHIERE -

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the above items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The applicable rates
for the Group are 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

According to Guo Shui [2018] No. 3, if foreign investors invest
directly their distributed profits in the investees, the related
withholding tax is not provided until the dividend is paid out of
Mainland China. The announcement is effective from 1 January
2017. As the Group is in a position to control the quantum and
timing of the distribution and decides to retain the dividend in the
subsidiaries in Mainland China for the further development of such
subsidiaries, the deferred tax liability provided in previous years
was reversed and no deferred tax liability was provided as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.
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HitERBEE 32. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

32.

BT T BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT Bh() Government grants (i) 601,126 674,869
TS EAREAEG) Provision for restructuring of business (i) 566,980 461,252
EAth Others 220,437 189,998
1,388,543 1,326,119

() #H=EZZE-—NLF+=ZA=+—8Lt
FE - AEEBRFEBPIREUVEE
17,515,636 L (=T — )\F : B
83,887,0007T) T E) - AR A
AEEZRAETHAEPLEBEY
¥ BERREBREED - AEER
WMEMRFT A @M GRG - WER
ERAEEMAE A F A S B R
ZEHF MEBEE-_ZFT—-NE+-A
=+ —RALEFE  ARERERER
B867,014,931L (ZF—NF + B
#90,010,0007T) FEF#EED

(i) MEFENEGEARBESERS
ST

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
received new government grants from the government
authorities amounting to HK$17,515,636 (2018:
HK$83,887,000) to subsidise the construction of certain
research and development centres and the purchases of
property, plant and equipment of the Group. The Group has
complied with the conditions attached to the grants as at the
end of the reporting period and will transfer the grants to
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Group recognised these government grants to profit or loss
amounting to HK$67,014,931 (2018: HK$90,010,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The movements of the provision for restructuring of business
during the years are set out below :

2019 PAONES)

BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

REXBEREE Carrying amount as at the beginning
of the year 461,252 577,293
NE Addition 159,348 -
FNEH Utilisation during the year (44,242) (37,086)
IE W AR Exchange realignment (9,378) (78,955)
RERMERTEE Carrying amount as at the end of the year 566,980 461,252

258

EBBEREREREANERBEEEER
BEAR  FEHITEE  HmERh R
BRARLFERFSEEXRNARAREA
TREERANES

2019 F i » EHBESBER AR

The provision for restructuring of business represents funds set
aside for the retirement of employees in restructuring of Beijing

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., CR Jiangzhong Group, Hunan Xiangzhong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and China Resources Jinchan Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
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33. kA 33. SHARE CAPITAL
an) Shares
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERITRER Issued and fully paid:

6,284,506,461 (ZZ— )\ &F : 6,284,506,461 (2018: 6,284,506,461)

6,284,506,461) B L BAX ordinary shares 27,241,289 27,241,289

34. PREARENERMTE 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED AS

EQUITY
2019 2018
BT T BEFIT
HK$000 HK$'000
ZE-NFE R ERARES 2019 first tranche perpetual
corporate bonds 2,230,746 -

KHPREHFEEEEZESiER - EHE Approved by China Securities Regulatory Commission, CR

BB RNRRERE T - NFE
AERES ((ZE—NFXEQRESR]) -
R4 5 A ARE2,000,000,0007T © HHEE
HAE=F  ERBHEERAEENSTES
EREFER = FHF R EEE CER AT
BEHAANE) o« —TB—AFEKBERTEEFHD
FEMERFE3 4% °

ARREERA  AEEYESHBRHER
TR -NFKERAREFNASEIELE
R - Bt - ZFEFERD B REES

FN - DREESEARZNSRTIAREES
AFHA11,949,000 T (ZE—/\F : &) -

DEAERNESRTIEDENAKEN D&
PR s o

Pharmaceutical Holdings has completed the issuance of 2019 first
tranche perpetual corporate bonds in the PRC (“2019 Perpetual
Bonds”), with a principal amount of RMB2,000,000,000 with an
initial term of three years, which may be extended for a new term
of three years or repaid in full (together with all accrued interest) at
the end of every Interest Term at the election of CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings. The coupon rate for the 2019 Perpetual Bonds is 3.94%
per annum.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has no contractual obligations to repay the principal or to pay any
distribution for 2019 Perpetual Bonds, and therefore, these should
be classified as equity.

During the year, distributions attributable to holders of financial
instruments classified as equity amounted to HK$11,949,000 (2018:

nil).

The financial instruments classified as equity are included in non-
controlling interests of the Group.
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35. EEEAFEREZNID 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

EENEBLE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRINTAEBERERIFERIERNIES The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of
BB A RIS the Group that have material non-controlling interests:
ALK kRS PR FERER
IEERNY AR R RS iR/ (Bi8) itk ERES
Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests and voting rights held Profit/(loss) allocated to non- Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business by non-controlling interests controlling interests non-controlling interests
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
TR BETR RETR RETR
% % HK$000. HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AR e/ R E R 71.83 78.78 (394347) 1951866 8720504 10,192,529
Dong-E-E-Jiao PRC/Mainland China
EEEE E/PER 40.01 40.01 492,681 484813 3924991 3658325
CR Double-Crane PRC/Mainland China
EH=N i/ hER 36.40 36.40 904,168 669,621 5460373 4,887,081
(R Sanjiu PRC/Mainland China
ERITMEE HE /A 49.00 = 361,979 = 4,287,238 -
(R Jiangzhong Group PRC/Mainland China
EEMLER e/ R E R 40.00 40.00 46,018 51,374 448,152 439,881
CR Hubei Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China
EERRER e/ R E R 30.00 30.00 186,879 201,849 534,621 403,167
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China
ERRAE TR ERN AN EE B QR Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
HEENVBERMESHNTX - TXHHTH subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
ERMERERAKE QA TEERANESEE o below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
ESO)E Dong-E-E-Jiao
2019 2018
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEBEE Current assets 9,147,596 12,289,549
FREBEE Non-current assets 3,861,983 3,540,097
mENAEE Current liabilities (1,757,242) (2,814,330)
EREBBE Non-current liabilities (63,091) (85,635)
FEPERR Non-controlling interests (53,738) (30,754)
SRR A BB A B S Equity attributable to owners of
Dong-E-E-Jiao 11,135,508 12,898,927
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35. B RFERERED 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BENB LT (A MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
SR bl B (4 Dong-E-E-Jiao (continued)
2019 2018
BT BEFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 3,362,625 8,711,493
53 Expenses (3,868,827) (6,234,433)
FR(EE), & (Loss)/profit for the year (506,202) 2,477,060
SR PP 2R B A FEIE (B518) S5 (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of
Dong-E-E-Jiao (504,533) 2,474,995
FEIRRR AR RS EAL (B51R) s 7 (Loss)/profit attributable to the
non-controlling interests (1,669) 2,065
F R Profit for the year (506,202) 2,477,060
SRR FA] BB A (G EoAth Other comprehensive (loss)/income
2HE (BB) ks attributable to owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao (1,906) 45,576
FRHMEE (BB, Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (1,906) 45,576
PP B A AR 2T (F518) Wzt Total comprehensive (loss)/income
| attributable to owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao (506,439) 2,520,571
IR S R 2 (B518) WNZ5 4858  Total comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to non-controlling interests (1,669) 2,065
FAEE (EE) WEia5E Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (508,108) 2,522,636
A IR RS AR Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2,931 2,374
rEFESNRS (RE) /RAFEE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities (1,272,930) 1,197,867
WEESHNIRESRAFEE Net cash inflow from investing activities 2,087,343 76,110
BB EEIMIRE R R R Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,057,341) (786,526)
MEN Z5E Exchange difference ) 3
Be (R, RAFRE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (242,935) 487,454
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35. EEEARFERERAIFD
BERHEARGE

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EHEE

(continued)
CR Double-Crane

2019 2018

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

MENEE Current assets 6,741,310 5,860,772

JEmENEE Non-current assets 5,847,618 5,901,558

mENAE Current liabilities (2,613,882) (2,428,667)

EmBAE Non-current liabilities (288,970) (307,661)

FEPERR Non-controlling interests (82,666) (78,382)
EHERES ABGER Equity attributable to owners of

CR Double-Crane 9,603,410 8,947,620

2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$"000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 10,661,972 9,764,195
M Expenses (9,449,890) (8,589,592)
FEREF Profit for the year 1,212,082 1,174,603
EHEEES ARG RF Profit attributable to owners of
CR Double-Crane 1,199,202 1,149,841
FE2E AR e i FE A ) Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests 12,880 24,762
145 ) Profit for the year 1,212,082 1,174,603
EREREAS AR HA Other comprehensive (loss)/income
2w (&518) Wz attributable to owners of CR Double-Crane (3,110) 3,871
IS RS TR G b 2T (B518) /Uez8  Other comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to non-controlling interests (522) 651
FRHEAZE (B518) /W Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (3,632) 4,522
EHEREE ARG EEWEETE Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of CR Double-Crane 1,196,092 1,153,712
IR EREE 2 E WS B Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 12,358 25,413
FAZHEWRERE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,208,450 1,179,125
BT eI AR e AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 6,493 50,262
KETREIRIR S A EEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,636,393 1,743,932
FEEEMIRE R FEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,215,314) (977,584)
BB EEIMIRE R TR Net cash outflow from financing activities (596,529) (953,429)
PEHZ%R Exchange difference (30) 52
W& F 5 Net cash outflow (175,480) (187,029)
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35. EEE RFERERAVF D

BEREHNEARGE

EBH=H

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)
CR Sanjiu

2019 PAONES)

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 11,490,366 9,788,264
JEmENEE Non-current assets 10,952,205 10,789,117
mENAE Current liabilities (7,471,940) (7,209,021)
EmBAE Non-current liabilities (589,947) (621,866)
FEERR Non-controlling interests (355,037) (388,926)
ER=NHA AL Equity attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 14,025,647 12,357,568

2019 PAONES)

BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Weas Revenue 16,709,478 15,940,402
M Expenses (14,278,301) (14,189,546)
F R A Profit for the year 2,431,177 1,750,856
ER = NEE AEHRET Profit attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 2,400,958 1,700,055
I AR e i PR ) Profit attributable to non-controlling

interests 30,219 50,801
145 ) Profit for the year 2,431,177 1,750,856
EH-NEAARGEMZARE Other comprehensive income attributable to

owners of CR Sanjiu 6,139 2,980
FRNHAM D E R Other comprehensive income for the year 6,139 2,980
ER=NHE ARG EWGERE Total comprehensive income attributable to

owners of CR Sanjiu 2,407,097 1,703,035
IR S R 2 NG A Total comprehensive income attributable to

non-controlling interests 30,219 50,801
FAZEWRERE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,437,316 1,753,836
BT eI AR i e AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 20,056 3,497
KETREIMIR S A EEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,241,085 2,268,887
KBRS R R Net cash outflow from investing activities (581,201) (1,057,408)
BB EBEIMIRE R TR Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,013,989) (513,603)
PEH Z%R Exchange difference 1,094 411)
WEMAFEH Net cash inflow 646,989 697,465
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35. B RFERERED 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BERHEARGE

= TIRER

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
CR Jiangzhong Group

BT

HK$'000

MENEE Current assets 6,306,073
ERBEE Non-current assets 2,195,146
mENEE Current liabilities (2,306,296)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (236,155)
eI Non-controlling interests (2,681,259)
EHTHREEES AEGER Equity attributable to owners of CR Jiangzhong Group 3,277,509

BT T
HK$'000
Wz Revenue 2,474,767
Bz Expenses (2,014,135)
FNEF Profit for the year 460,632
EETHEEES AEEER Profit attributable to owners of CR Jiangzhong Group 193,438
IR E R EE R Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 267,194
FNHEF Profit for the year 460,632
EEIPEERAE ABGEMEEWEE  Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of
CR Jiangzhong Group -
FRNHAM R E R Other comprehensive income for the year -
EHTIPEEHBAE ABGE2EIKRELE  Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of
CR Jiangzhong Group 193,438
IR S R 2 NG AR Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 267,194
FAZEWRERE Total comprehensive income for the year 460,632
BT eI AR i e AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 95,186
KRB A EEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 864,534
FEEEMIRE R FEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (895,632)
MEESNIR SR FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (3,071,270)
EHZER Exchange difference 59
RERHFEE Net cash outflow (3,102,309)
WA TSR R MIEE37(a) Rt TR - il BREE The above disclosures in relation to CR Jiangzhong Group were
BIPEENRRAMEREER I EE made for the period since acquisition date of CR Jiangzhong Group
Z B - as disclosed in note 37(a) to the financial statements.
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35. R B AFERERNID
BEREHNEARGE

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

CR Hubei Pharmaceutical

2019 PAONES)

oy prihla

BHER BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mEBEE Current assets 4,299,745 4,119,098
JEmENEE Non-current assets 643,716 571,986
mENAE Current liabilities (3,974,001) (3,714,786)
EmEBBE Non-current liabilities (8,343) (8,729)
FEERR Non-controlling interests (106,176) (88,087)
=PI REREE A Equity attributable to owners of
FE(E HE CR Hubei Pharmaceutical 854,941 879,482

2019 PAONES)

BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 7,256,579 7,567,996
M Expenses (7,170,239) (7,466,952)
F 1A 5 ) Profit for the year 86,340 101,044
i hriblE Profit attributable to owners of
A AR EF CR Hubei Pharmaceutical 67,203 82,784
FE2E AR e i FE A ) Profit attributable to non-controlling
interests 19,137 18,260
F R H| Profit for the year 86,340 101,044
BT IR E AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 16,383 3,054
KBTS R FEE Net cash outflow from operating activities (265,510) (142,011)
BEEHRS (R, HWAFE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing
activities (6,489) 21,347
BEEBIR S RAFE Net cash inflow from financing activities 241,887 107,310
RE M FEE Net cash outflow (30,112) (13,354)

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019 265



RO MR ERRME
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

35. R B AFERERNID
BERHEARGE

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EHEREH

(continued)

CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical

2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mEBEE Current assets 13,229,589 10,533,611
JEmENEE Non-current assets 773,355 754,691
mENAE Current liabilities (12,283,017) (9,906,838)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (243,827) (290,787)
FEERR Non-controlling interests (131,129) (108,520)
EHEREEES ABGER Equity attributable to owners
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical 1,344,971 982,157

2019 PAONKS]
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Weas Revenue 28,907,979 25,235,739
M Expenses (28,351,349) (24,624,993)
F R A Profit for the year 556,630 610,746
EHEREEER AR Profit attributable to owners of
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical 528,216 584,138
FE2E AR e i FE A ) Profit attributable to non-controlling
interests 28,414 26,608
145 ) Profit for the year 556,630 610,746
BT IR E AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 24,144 25,328
ETRERIREMAEEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,554,485 2,886,293
BEEHHRS (R, TWAFE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing
activities (776,411) 118,493
BB EEMNIRE R R Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,794,196) (3,021,876)
BREmLFRE Net cash outflow (16,122) (17,090)
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RZZE—)\F+ANB  #EH=ZNLEH  H
EEeRFHEHERI=ZNAERAR LA (A
TEERERIN=N1)82.89% KB HE AT & 2
B NHRPBRERE - B AQR2%
MEBARERBERERRARSEM - HR
FEHETFI=N17.11% MR o REFET
BAHEERYIZNEI100%A%HE

RZE—NE+—A=+ N8 " FI
A ERGHERLEEBHAEERRS
e Ltm mMFINFREEREEAR
RAIKABER - ZLERZTE—NF—
BIAARY1,116,886,0007T (HHE NiB
1,274,690,0007T) FIRETRK - R=ZT—N
F+-—RB=+—8  FY=NEoEAEE
PENREERSE -

RIBE-N\+ZA=+—BOBAIFHELE
HARII=NEE REZHNWT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

On 8 October 2018, CR Sanjiu announced the decision of its board
of directors to dispose of 82.89% equity interest of Shenzhen Sanjiu
Hospital Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Sanjiu”) to comply with CR Sanjiu’s
long-term development strategy. In the meantime, China Resources
Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, announced its decision to dispose of 17.11% equity
interests of Shenzhen Sanijiu. In total, the Group plans to dispose of
100% equity interests of Shenzhen Sanjiu.

On 28 November 2018, 100% of the shares of Shenzhen Sanjiu
were listed for sale on Shanghai United Assets and Equity Exchange
and Shenzhen Xinshen Hospital Management Co., Ltd. became
the buyer. This disposal was completed at a consideration of
RMB1,116,886,000 (equivalent to HK$1,274,690,000) in January
2019. As at 31 December 2018, Shenzhen Sanjiu was classified as a
disposal group held for sale.

The assets/liabilities of Shenzhen Sanjiu classified as held for sale as
at 31 December 2018 are presented below:

W - BB KRR #Z14)
HMIERENEE

B 5 M E MR

Re RRITHS

DERFHEHENEE
H At FE 3R S B E T &

HEEREADBSRIEREN
BEABNAE

HHEHESERABNEEFE

BT T
HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 170,718
Other non-current assets 51,178
Trade and other receivables 7
Cash and bank balances 277
Assets classified as held for sale 222,180
Other payables and accruals (1,341)
Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale (1,341)
Net assets directly associated with the disposal group 220,839

FRIN=NHBER_F-NF—HEK  H
BN EIRKME38()

The disposal of Shenzhen Sanjiu is completed in January 2019,
details of which is included in note 38(a) to the financial statements.
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RAEI =AM BN T EE B i
DRARZFE—NFLA=+HER=
T—N\FNA+INEETFET A%
(EE)AREEAR(IhER] -
BAEEMITEE) ERNZBREETL
B REHE LT RE G - ABE
BIRETEHNARKES 099458 T
(FENBE3,636.588T) ([RE])
7975 20 R BE T A S B A £ 8 N sk A%
o REZREFR - HARK1,040.8
AETTHEERLEE1,221.1587)
ERIERI R EEEL AT BREE
3R T (ol e A EL B A R URER A
AREEETERNSEEALF
EBEFHEER - R_ZE—NF A
—+=H BT EENRDRE
FERK TR SR B RR A EE A B B R
ES1%BRENHB AR - IHEE
AREERENANELENR - H
BEREIPEERMERAR ([IF
BEDRE TR EEAE—RNVLE
WEHFR S EMNAR - TBHE
HE - B RS HOTCEm RIERRE
BEM R_E-—NF+=-A=1+—
B AEEEBIHEEBEFEL
FREERA3 03% HIRAE o

20195 % « EHBEEEABR LA

CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a share subscription agreement and
a supplemental subscription agreement on 30 July 2018 and
14 September 2018, respectively, with the then shareholders
of Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangzhong Group”, currently known as CR Jiangzhong
Group) for the subscription of increased registered share
capital of Jiangzhong Group by way of capital contribution
of approximately RMB3,099.4 million in cash (equivalent
to HK$3,636.5 million) (the “Consideration”). Out of the
Consideration, approximately RMB1,040.8 million (equivalent
to HK$1,221.1 million) shall be treated as an interest-bearing
shareholder’s loan to Jiangzhong Group, save for the amount
of repayment of any outstanding entrusted loans receivable
from its associate which shall be contributed to the reserve
capital of Jiangzhong Group. On 22 February 2019, the above
share subscription of Jiangzhong Group was completed and
Jiangzhong Group became a 51%-owned subsidiary of CR
Pharmaceutical Holdings. Jiangzhong Group is a large-scale
pharmaceutical enterprise specialised in traditional Chinese
medicine and directly holds equity interest in Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical”).
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical is a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, research and development, distribution of
Over-the-Counter medicines and healthcare products. As at
31 December 2019, the Group, through Jiangzhong Group,
indirectly held a 43.03% equity interest in Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical.
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37. EBE 0t (E) 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
BE-E-NWF+ZA=t—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
(&)
@) YWIETHEE(E @) Acquisition of Jiangzhong Group (continued)
LR EE BRI EE KB ERIER The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
HOAAREBEAT : Jiangzhong Group as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

RULEBRSFERR

ZAREER

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

BETR

HK$'000

W - BB NERAE (W 14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 1,572,641
FRAEEEWZ16) Right-of-use assets (Note 16) 769,182
mILEEWE18) Intangible assets (Note 18) 1,156,214
B N B RERS Interests in associates 286,595
HEMIEmEemEE Other non-current financial assets 388,027
EERIBEE (W5#31) Deferred tax assets (Note 31) 37,707
HMIEmEEE Other non-current assets 1,503,925
B8 Inventories 300,257
B 5 Rk E A e RIE Trade and other receivables 2,716,937
B RhIEBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,875,777
B 5 R HAERFIR Trade and other payables (2,492,543)
aHaE Contract liabilities (221,590)
TEIRITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings (2,373,184)
FERTTRIR Tax payable (33,817)
HmIERBAE Other non-current liabilities (131,708)
RIERIRBE (WE31) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) (659,439)
BRAARBEFENTRBAFEERTE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 7,694,981
eI e Non-controlling interests (5,998,151)
W E A RE (HE17) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 17) 718,487
2,415,317

UTHHFREE - Satisfied by:

Re Cash 3,636,486
IR EELHRRER A shareholder’s loan to Jiangzhong Group (1,221,169)
2,415,317
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37. EBE 0t (E) 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
BE-ZE-NWF+ZA=t—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
(&)
(b) WERMHTIE L F]RER (b) Acquisition of other subsidiaries and businesses
RBE-Z-NF+-A=+—HBLt During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
FE FEBURSREAHARE acquired the following companies or businesses which were
101.6BETHEERLQAEK113.58 engaged in the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
EBT)RBEBATEEZERREREE products at an aggregated cash consideration of RMB101.6
NRISRER - AEBKEZEWNB A million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.5 million). These
FHEREEARBEITEMISHEN subsidiaries were acquired as part of the Group's strategy to
B —E05 - expand its market share in the pharmaceutical industry.
P gt e
ST 18 L B A1 ADL
Percentage of
Name of acquirees Date of acquisition interest acquired
MII=NEBEEZERAF —E-NAEt+—A-+HA 100%
Sichuan Sanjiu Pharmaceutical Trade Co., Ltd. 25 November 2019
B BEREXERAR “T-NEFRA=+=H 51%
Tieling Spring Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 23 May 2019
ERERBEERAR —ET-NEFE=A=+~"H 70%
China Resources Huaian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 26 March 2019
EHEMBEGRAT] —E-hF—-A=Z+—H 70%
China Resources Luzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 21 January 2019
EHEARBEGRAR] —E-hF—-HA=Z+—H 70%
China Resources Nanchong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 21 January 2019

BT R AR i H A
Business acquired from the following companies Date of acquisition
ERMRINEB LG R AT —E-NFZAZ=+N\H
China Resources Chuzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 28 February 2019
EHATERBEEARAA —E-hEFWMA=1H
China Resources Weifang Yuandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 30 April 2019
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37. ¥ &6t () 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
BE-E-NWF+ZA=t—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
(&)
b) YWIERMHTE 2 7] R EH () (b) Acquisition of other subsidiaries and businesses
(continued)
R 22 S U R H (R Bl 3 AR SR B i 5 The information for these acquisitions was disclosed on an
TERX - HEBZERENERHRE aggregated basis as they were individually immaterial to the
MELERE - NEHER - ZENE Group. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
NAIREBOAIBANEERBENR of the subsidiaries and business acquired as at the respective
REBENT dates of acquisition are as follows:
RUKEB ISR
ZEED R EE
Provisional
fair value
recognised on
acquisition*
BET
HK$'000
W - W NERE W 14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 61,279
FRAEEEWHZ16) Right-of-use assets (Note 16) 20,517
mILEEWZL18) Intangible assets (Note 18) 22,873
RIETRIEE &= (H77731) Deferred tax assets (Note 31) 742
HA3EmeEE Other non-current assets 28
FE Inventories 33,818
B 5 &H W IE Trade and other receivables 97,428
B MhIBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17,335
B 5 R EAMERFIE Trade and other payables (109,725)
AHEaE Contract liabilities (585)
HEaE Lease liabilities (2,044)
ST RERIT REABIER Interest bearing bank and other borrowings (25,788)
FEfBIR Tax payable (1,897)
BERIR R E (HiE31) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) (3.421)
BRARBEFEZIHIFEELTE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 110,560
FEVERR A Non-controlling interests (22,830)
WEgRE 2 BB (HfaE17) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 17) 26,746
I EE R B IS Gain on bargain purchase (1,003)
LRe#E Satisfied by cash 113,473
& RGN BB R 2 7] B TE A # @ Additional assessment is required to determine fair value of
B & EEF ERWE Ay 2 B 1 the net identifiable assets on the acquisition date for China
FIELBEONGTIE o Ut - AR FIE Resources Chuzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Thus, the net
EFEARAEHE - WRKEA identifiable assets may be subsequently adjusted, with a
HiE 1218 F A B AR L A RE corresponding adjustment to goodwill within 12 months after

- the acquisition date.
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37.

(B0t (E
E_E-NF+ZA=+—HLEE

(#&)

RUKER  ESREMEBRFBBHRAALE

{E/A7512,814,365,0007T ° E 5 K EHAME

W IEM R A XS TEAE12,910,928,000

77: o

AEBEEFERBRIIHAEE3 596,000
T ° ZER GBI ET ASRBLE
mERAEMAS o

AEEP YR A BEARSHEENKNRE
AEMBENHEERE - ERAREERSN
HEABZEBHE  WETABIARKRE
M IRRA N HEEAFIGRR -

WRELRE EARtETEBEETEY
REE - DiERTESEZEREMES HK
RBIE I 7T TR R UE - R IE
£ RRMSER - ANEERIZEHIEREE
ZHEE o mREENEIL T A T BAIEY
BENERIRE - WA SHBE DR -

& F WP E £ R ETREIN A AT HNRR -

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

The fair value of trade and other receivables as at the date of
acquisitions amounted to HK$2,814,365,000. The gross contractual
amount of trade and other receivables was HK$2,910,928,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$3,596,000 for these
acquisitions. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in other expenses in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present
value of the remaining lease payments at the date of acquisition.
The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the
lease liabilities and adjusted to reflect the favourable terms of the
leases relative to market terms.

Goodwill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the
combination included the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development, the assembled workforce and
the control premium of the acquirees as the acquirees are engaged
in various areas relating to the manufacturing, distribution and
retail in the pharmaceutical and medication industry. These benefits
were not recognised separately from goodwill because they did not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was expected to
be deductible for tax purpose.

BET T
HK$'000

MEZZERIEZHETRELTHUT -

An analysis of the cash flow in respect of these
acquisitions is as follows:

ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,893,112

RERE Cash consideration (3,749,959)

B RIR SR A ERE Net cash inflow on acquisitions 1,143,153
272 01955 ¢ EUBEEEMERAT
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WK R F EEE RSB INE TS FR(E F R FI A8
#5462,625,0007T  WUEH EERF ALK
5 A2 752,586,000 ©

BERBEBERZE—NF—A—HEKX &
B F RSB EES AE 8 204,799,251,000
JC  MmF A F & & 7E15,248,007,000
T o iz S ERMERFIR A - AU R
BERZZT—NF—A—HERNELTE
SEMERSE RS R EES - T
ERARIREERATAA -

AEERBLEF-ABBE+RUEERE
EREENQAR  RREREAARE
650,827,000 T (&R E#E 742,782,000
JL) c ZER S EHERAKEEAR - WHEZ
EMB AR EEMASEIREANER - &
ERBRAE R HRIMES - AR BEE
jﬂ% °

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Included in the profit for the year was HK$462,625,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by the acquirees. Revenue for
the year included HK$2,752,586,000 generated by the acquirees.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2019, total
group revenue for the year would have been HK$ 204,799,251,000,
and profit for the year would have been HK$5,248,007,000. The
proforma information was for illustrative purposes only and was not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would had been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2019, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.

The Group acquired ten companies which were engaged in
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products from
independent third parties at an aggregated cash consideration
of RMB650,827,000 (equivalent to HK$742,782,000). Those
transactions had been accounted for using the acquisition method.
These subsidiaries were acquired so as to provide human resources,
economies of scale and synergy to the Group and to expand in
pharmaceutical industry.
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37. ¥%56t#E)
BE-2—\&t+-A=t—HiLEE
(&)

WU R TS BT

Name of acquirees

EREIREERAT IR ILBEEGRAT)

China Resources Zhenjiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Jiangsu Nanshan Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.)

EHETEREARAR AIHESBERREXERAR)

China Resources Lianyungang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Lianyungang Dezhong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)

EFEEA( LS BEERARRIE UEHABERRAD
al)

China Resources Guobang (Shanghai) Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shanghai Guobang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)

HEELBERRAOR

Guoyao Guang'an Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

RROMEBERR AT

Zhangjiakou Namei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

AP RERR AR

Hunan Xiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Pt e
Ao

Percent of
interest acquired

Wk B H

Date of acquisition

—T—-N\F=ZA=1+—H 70%
31 March 2018

—E-N\F=A=1+—H 70%
31 March 2018

—=-N\F—H—H 51%
1 January 2018

- N\FHRA+H 70%
10 May 2018

—F-N\Ft+—A—H 70%
1 November 2018

—E-\FNA+XH 86%

16 August 2018

BT ARWEN XS

Y B H

Business acquired from the following companies

PREG R B B R R

Shanxi Kangcheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
LHEERBEFR AR

Anhui Qiaoling Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
ML B EBR AT

Huaibei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
AREFRBEERARLA]

Nanjing Xinye Pharmaceutical Industrial Co., Ltd.

Date of acquisition

=T /\&+ZA=t—H
31 December 2018

=T /\&+=ZA=t—H
31 December 2018
—E-N\F+=—A=+—8H
31 December 2018
—E-NF+HA—H

1July 2018
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37. ¥ &6t () 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
BE-ZE-\F+ZA=1t—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)
(&)
AHBAEERAERKEB BN AR EED The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the dates
3 of acquisitions were as follows:
U g B FERR
HEEQREE
Provisional
fair value
recognised on
acquisition*
BT T
HK$'000
M - BB K& HE14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 313,360
Bt T ERIE H a2 16) Prepaid land lease payments (Note 16) 89,348
| EE Wit18) Intangible assets (Note 18) 277,494
BEWEWiE15) Investment properties (Note 15) 44,193
ERBERMEE Non-current financial assets 2,283
EERIBEE (W:231) Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 2,340
HfthmEh&EE Other current assets 603
FE Inventories 197,329
B 5 R E b FEUEIE Trade and other receivables 576,876
Re RIRTTER Cash and bank balances 93,581
B 5 R H R FKIE Trade and other payables (772,611)
IRITREABE K Bank and other borrowings (85,962)
HEmIERBEE Other non-current liabilities (91,440)
FIETREAE (WE31) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 31) (35,040)
BAREBETENAHAFEELT Total identifiable net assets at fair value 612,354
IR Non-controlling interests (94,636)
WHEE RS (Wit17) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 77) 225,064
AT & 2 1+ Satisfied by cash 742,782
* B AP & EFE RN AR A 1B *  Additional assessment is required to determine fair value of the net
EFELBEINGTIEG o Bt - AT B EF identifiable assets on the acquisition date. Thus, the net identifiable
ERIRERFEE - LR HEARE 12184 assets may be subsequently adjusted, with a corresponding
BB 1E L FEfEFREE - adjustment to goodwill within 12 months after the acquisition date.
iz - R fﬁ/?ﬁl/;‘z;%‘ E" B REFR % FATHE R Note: The receivables acquired in these transactions with a fair value of
AEEREES 76,876, 000T £ & 4_?7‘?( H HK$576,876,000 had gross contractual amounts of HK$576,876,000
HIAE A #) % B8 /38 15576,876,0007T * 7B at the relevant dates of acquisition, which are expected to be

BRI o collectible.
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37.

EBE oA
EZE-N\F+ZRA=T—-HLHFE
€
WREERE EARETEEETEY
REE - DiERTESEZEREMES HK
ABIE YIS 7T TR R RUE - W IE
£ RRASER - ANEERIEHIEREE
ZHMzR o AR ZFENE I TG AT
BENERITE - WA SHBEDFER -

& F W FTE A R ETREIN A BB R

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the
combination included the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development, the assembled workforce and
the control premium of the acquirees as the acquirees are engaged
in various areas relating to the manufacturing, distribution and
retail in the pharmaceutical and medication industry. These benefits
were not recognised separately from goodwill because they did not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

BT
HK$'000

BERRBHBARNRSIREDITNT

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of subsidiaries is as follows:

RERE Cash consideration 742,782
REFWET A BTN SR Amounts unpaid and included in other payables (310,468)
EWERS KRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents acquired (93,581)
WEE B A R R3R &R F 58 Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries 338,733

276

WU R 7 EE A BRBINE TS IR (G T R F A8
#44,551,0007T ° #UREETT EEMF AR
BB #1,165,164,0007T °

BRUBER - N\F—A—HB%K &
A& B = B R A5 190,436,933,000
TC - ME N R B 7,627,378,000
T o iZAEEERHEMR G A - R RERIK
BERZZT—/\F—A—BZEHNERLTAR
EEMEREESMUNE RAEEEE - IV
VERRIREBENTEA -

2019 F i » EHBESBER AR

Included in the profit for the year was HK$44,551,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by the acquirees. Revenue for
the year included HK$1,165,164,000 generated by the acquirees.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2018, total
group revenue for the year would have been HK$190,436,933,000,
and profit for the year would have been HK$7,627,378,000. The
proforma information was for illustrative purposes only and was not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would had been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2018, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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38. LEMBAE]
E_E-NF+ZA=+—HLEE
(a) HERII=ZN
RZZE—NE— A AEEURER
BARYE1,116,886,0007T (FBE 1%
#1,246,835,0007T) HE&E RN =hz
100% B TR IIFT R BB B R A R
NSTIE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(@) Disposal of Shenzhen Sanjiu
In January 2019, the Group disposed of a 100% equity
interest of Shenzhen Sanjiu to Shenzhen Xinshen
Hospital Management Co., Ltd. at a cash consideration of
RMB1,116,886,000 (equivalent to HK$1,246,835,000).

BT T

HK$'000

ReRE Cash consideration 1,246,835

EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of:

M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 166,987
HibFEme&EE Other non-current assets 50,060

B 5 &AM EWFIE Trade and other receivables 1
R & MIRTTHE R Cash and cash equivalents 3,559
BN EMENFRIE Trade and other payables (1,273)
219,334

FE b EE Exchange realignment 35,040
HE—RHB QAR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,062,541

(b) HERTE
RZZB—NFENA  AEEURER
B AR #165,846,8007T (HHE NE
183,864,0007T) &2 B A (1R 523
BRAR(THFED 51 %88 FEM
PP REERHBRAR -

(b) Disposal of Pianzaihuang
In September 2019, the Group disposed of a 51% equity
interest of China Resources Pianzaihuang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.("Pianzaihuang”) to Zhangzhou Pianzaihuang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. at a cash consideration of
RMB 165,846,800 (equivalent to HK$183,864,000).
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38. HEMBRATR (& 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HLHF For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
E (&
(b) HERFEGE) (b) Disposal of Pianzaihuang (continued)
BHTR
HK$'000
HeRE Cash consideration 183,864
EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of:
M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 486
| EE (HiF18) Intangible assets (Note 18) 16,406
EERIBE E (HaE31) Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 10,992
TE Inventories 8,276
B 5 &AM EWFIE Trade and other receivables 26,301
ReERREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 248,316
B 5 R EAEFRIA Trade and other payables (36,185)
AR Non-controlling interests (134,550)
140,042
M 5, SR Exchange realignment (15,068)
HE—RKB R AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 28,754
HE B ARNRe RIRSEE MR An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
NFEDWNNT - the disposal of the above subsidiaries is as follows:
TR
HK$000
ReRE Cash consideration 1,430,699
[l Amount received 437,743
HERSRIASEED Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (251,875)
HE—XRMNBARMNES RAESEEY Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
R AJERE - HIBRTIA the disposal of a subsidiary, net of tax 185,868

el
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38. HEWB AT (&
BE_Z—/\F+-A=+—HLHF
E
R-ZZE—N\FRA=-+HA ' ~EEWHBER
RIZHEBEESRET AR ((LHES])
HAERIN Bll45 B8 R AR (D B BR A 7] ([ER)1 Al
BT E R - BRI R - HNEE
BRAZHEBN2ENB AR LB ER
BEEERAE([ZHEBRENEREAR
#9,711,0007T - ZIER=ZZT—N\F A
ZHNHEZER  RHEBEAHTHESE
KRG - LA RS EARA

ABDE-

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

On 25 May 2018, Anhui Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Anhui Double-crane”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into an
investment agreement with Suzhou Chuangyang Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Chuangyang”). According to the
agreement, Suzhou Chuangyang shall invest RMB9,711,000 into
Anhui Double-crane Pharmaceutical Packageing Co., Ltd. (“Anhui
Double-crane Packageing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Anhui
Double-crane. Upon the completion of the investment on 29 June
2018, Anhui Double-crane lost the control over Anhui Double-crane
Packaging and the investment was accounted for as a joint venture
using the equity method.

BT
HK$"000
EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of:
Y% - B MERAE (i 14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 6,899
HibmehEE Other current assets 86
TFE Inventories 1,861
B 5 At ERIE Trade and other receivables 12,345
RE RBITHES Cash and bank balances 148
BN E M ENFRIE Trade and other payables (11,460)
9,879
BRALE —RWE QAR Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 502
RHEE BB TIRED Fair value of the remaining investment at the date of
ALl the disposal 10,381

HE—FKWBRRAINA T LREEEY
B RO T

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

BT T

HK$'000

EWRENRE Cash consideration received =

EHEReRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 148
HE—XRXMBARMES KRS EEMH Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

mFEE the disposal of a subsidiary (148)
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9. AREMBIMEBRMET

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

() BMELDELENEEE (@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
Efi-%  Ef@E
mEER HE/RE
ROEY  EHRES AR B
Amount
duetoan Finance lease
intermediate  payables/
Bank  Short-term Bonds  Dividend holding lease
borrowings debentures  payable  payables  company liabilities  Others (i)
BETTL AT BT AT AT BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-2-)\&+-A=+-H At 31 December 2018 40,664,521 3423868 6,847,740 91,303 3,002,493 - (8,779,981
FABERRE RN 16%MFE  Fffect of adoption of HKFRS 16 - - - E - 2016387 E
R-E-N\F-P-H(EE3) At 1 January 2019 (restated) 40,664,521 3423868 6,847,740 91303 3002493 2016387  (8,779,981)
RERLTE() Financing cash flows (i)
BIERAEEE Proceeds from bank borrowings 55,823,978 S 5 - - - -
[BEETET Repayment of bank borrowings (72,814,336) 5 5 5 5 - -
EEEMRER Repayment of other borrowings E E E E E - (369,022)
E—FRRERAFR Advances from an intermediate holding company = = = - 10,122,082 = =
EEHMEE Proceeds from issuances of bonds = - 1116350 S S S S
EffIE Interests paid = 5 5 5 5 - (3,614,790
EfRE Dividend paid - = - (816.986) = = =
EERESHEIR Proceeds from short-term debentures - 3349050 5 5 5 S S
[RERERES Repayment of short-term debentures - (6,698,100) = = = = =
BERBERNETE Proceeds from asset-hacked securities = s s s s - 791,07
B ERERR S Dividend paid to non-controling shareholders = S - (1124220 S - (60,025)
SAEER Payment of lease liablities = 5 5 5 - (653,954 5
3R] Non-cash changes
IR AR (Wit37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 2398972 5 5 S 5 2,044 5
ERBHRE Accounts payable factoring 5,167,717 = = = = = =
SEER Foreign exchange translation (216,290) (74.818)  (149,640) - 91,303 (44.063) -
ERRERE Final dividend declared = 5 - 816986 5 5 5
PETHBEERNEBIEAEA  Distributions to holders of finandial instruments
classified as equity - - - 11,949 - - -
ERERRETRERAE Interest of bond payables and bank borrowings 4113 - 137988 = = = -
WHFERREERRE Dividend declared to non-controling shareholders = = - 1,122,095 = = =
ik New lease - - - - - 814817 -
ERERNHELN Accretion of interest recognised during the year - - - - - MIs -
RZE-NFTZA=1-A At 31 December 2019 31,065,685 - 195239 101323 13215858 224735 (12,032,611)
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39. e HEEMERMETE E) 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
() MELDELENEELEH #H) (a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

Efi—%
hEER
EHRES  EAES  BGRE  AFRE

Amount

due toan

intermediate

Bank  Short-term Bonds  Dividend holding
borrowings debentures  payable  payables  company  Others (i)

BB BB AR it AT BB

HES 000 ks 000 HES 000 K000 Hes 000 K000
K-E-\5-A-A At 1 January 2018 32,209,788 - 4BE5382 582581 - (2.960,015)
HERLRE() Financing cash flows (i
ROEFMETE Proceeds from bank borrowings 76,973,500 = = = = =
[EEROER Repayment of bank borrowings (67,933,640) = = S S S
El—FRRERAFR Advances from an intermediate holding company = = = - 3002493 =
BOESMETE Praceeds from issuances of bonds s - 455,055 s = =
[EEEMES Repayment of bonds payable = - (2,350507) = = =
BfiflE Interest paid 5 = 5 = - (2835035
BfikRIRE Special dividend paid 5 = - (1,559479) S S
ERkE Dividend paid s = - (691,97) = =
RBRARFETA Proceeds from short-term debentures - 3423868 = = = =
[EREEERES Repayment of asset-hacked securities 5 = 5 = - (2,984931)
WFEERERE RS Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders s s - {1,759,795) 5 =
FRLED Non-cash changes
WEENB AR (Wit37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 85,96 S S S - -
MEER Foreign exchange translation (671,089) - (19390) S S S
BRRHIRE Spedial dividend declared = = - 1559479 = =
ERRERE Final dividend declared s = - 691,97 s s
WFEERRRE RS Dividend declared to non-controlling shareholders = = - 168517 = =
RZE-\E+-A=1-A At 31 December 2018 40,604,521 3423868 6,847,740 91303 3,002,493  (8,779.981)
()  HEmEARGEREenEX IR (i) The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds and
TT1E X FIE (T B 55 BT {5 X A S 2 repayment from bank borrowings and bonds payable in the
IR FEE consolidated statements of cash flows.
(i)  BMTEFERS - BELIFES (i) Others represents interest expenses, proceeds from asset-
Fr{Z01E ~ 311U BN E 2 Al 58 5] backed securities, payment of consideration for acquisition of
BB RIFFRERLE - additional interests in subsidiaries and capital contribution from

non-controlling shareholders.
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39.

MERERERMET (E

(b) HEZREF LA
HARSRRRZAERSRMER
o -

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
cash flows is as follows:

BT T
HK$'000
i /R e & E R Within operating activities 72,038
EREEBHER Within financing activities 653,954
725,992

40. HAREE 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

REBEEZZ-—NFRZZE-N\F+=A
=t+—RHILEE  AEEOEEETEKRE
BUGEEE S REAMENRIE  R>)RERTT
AR ETRNEBEANEERS - ARAES
RE - AEEEBEZSEBEEREBRNE
AERMKERER  BIZRPENEEE
B - AEEHABEEFHRENETCRH
B URHEAZNEEEREMBEKER
HRERRE  REAZMEEEERCAIRE
WEEHRTPEMNBRITEHRER - R
It - HEEERAETERGE MBREA
R REERSMERAREBAZEES
£ R B AR RN R R 0] pe R ER R = RS
T

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
(i) endorsed certain bills receivable for the settlement of trade and
other payables; and (ii) discounted certain bills receivable to banks
for raising cash. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these bills receivable, and the Group’s obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in accordance
with the commercial practice in the PRC and the risk of default
in payment of the endorsed and discounted bills receivable is low
because all endorsed and discounted bills receivable are issued and
guaranteed by reputable banks in PRC. As a result, the relevant
assets and liabilities were not recognised on the consolidated
financial statements. The maximum exposure to the Group that
may result from the default of these endorsed and discounted bills
receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

2019 PAONES]

BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$000
B REMEMRENES Endorsement of trade and other payables 9,427,242 7,014,212
AR ERNESERS Discounted bills for cash-raising 9,159,477 7,239,375
MAEEDBSERDAEABRE Outstanding endorsed and discounted bills
K EUR R B receivable with recourse 18,586,719 14,253,587
282 0195 %% « EMBELEERAT
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41, EIE 41. COMMITMENTS
(a) AEBERBEHRETIERK (a) The Group had the following capital commitments
E: at the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
PUEE A TSI ATAVE AR B - Contracted, but not provided for in relation
to the acquisition of:
W BEREE  BEEER Property, plant and equipment, intangible
EREEE T A EHIE assets and right-of-use assets/prepaid
land lease payments 511,599 575,393
KBEHB AT, BE N T Investments in subsidiaries/associates 1,491,444 3,630,187
2,003,043 4,205,580
(b) R=ZZE—NEFE+=ZA=+—H (b) Operating lease commitment as at 31 December
ZISEE AR 2018
R-ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—H0 ' && As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments
ERBEATREAEHE 2 RRKIE for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
HENFREZ BB RMT operating leases which fall due as follows:
2018
BT
HK$'000
—5R Within one year 350,117
F_EENF (BREREREMRSF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 629,420
FHFEE Over five years 101,415
1,080,952
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42. BB HIRE 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
() EXEBAIXS () Significant transactions with related parties
RZEVBRERAFRNEMRZS The Group entered into the following transactions with
Sh - REBFRNEBEBABUATR related parties during the year in addition to transactions
5 : detailed elsewhere in these financial statements:
IHEEE Sales
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEDE Joint ventures 8,904 5,019
RRWBAF] Fellow subsidiaries 307,297 284,085
—ZRERKMB R F 8 E R A Associates of a fellow subsidiary 404,244 530,464
liS/NE]| Associates 84,384 22
FREERE Purchases
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEPE Joint ventures 44,827 18,118
RRMEAR] Fellow subsidiaries 92,246 38,074
[ dl/NC] Associates 49,563 37,011
BENEEE Management fees paid to
2019 2018
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
/NG Associates 5,217 2,716
—XKERWER T E QT Associates of a fellow subsidiary = 1,798
EEI NG Fellow subsidiaries 12,569 12,961
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42. BB I EE (42 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EBEXEBAIRZ (&) () Significant transactions with related parties
(continued)
HET# Lease payments
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$000
il Associates 7,922 6,773
BEL =N Fellow subsidiaries 26,855 28,352
ETREE Service fees paid to
2019 AONES
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EELI=PN! Fellow subsidiaries 29,252 20,712
o NC] Associates 3,091 12,777
eI Non-controlling interests 179,596 138,031
e GENEYNGITE) S NE] Associates of a fellow subsidiary 54 =
EWFE LA Interest income received from
2019 PAONKS]
BT T BT
HK$"000 HK$000
[N Associates 154,117 38,561
EFIEHE% Interest expenses paid to
2019 AONES
BT BT
HK$"000 HK$000
HEEAR A A Intermediate holding companies 48,629 4,931
[Nl Associates 63,494 55,724
A S I9HRABRE T 1 BV IR RIE These transactions are all at the terms agreed between the

faxi) relevant parties.
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42. BB I EE (42 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(I EXREEHLER () Significant balances with related parties
REEE RN B IA T ERAEER - The Group had the following significant balances with its
related parties:
JEYW BT 5 R Amounts due from related parties
2019 AONES]
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B S REWEIE (Kita) Trade receivables (Note a) 260,473 338,280
H b e EkIE (BT 7Eb) Other receivables (Note b) 2,966,279 2,062,774
TEfIFRIA (B 7tc) Prepayments (Note ¢) 3,829 1,503
3,230,581 2,402,557
Miita - BEZELZE Note a: Trade receivables
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EESG VNG Fellow subsidiaries 41,991 36,954
BENE Joint ventures 253 782
NS Associates 43,365 44,008
—REARMEBARMEE QA Associates of a fellow subsidiary 174,864 256,536
260,473 338,280
REMERR - REBENEEAH The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables with
H JE UL FA B 77 B 5 FOE R BREE D AT 10 related parties based on invoice date at the end of each
N reporting period is as follows:
2019 PAONES]
BT T B TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0£30H 0 to 30 days 212,778 287,871
31£260H 31 to 60 days 874 1,561
61290H 61 to 90 days 560 1,376
912180H 91 to 180 days 2,075 1,824
H#BiE180H Over 180 days 44,186 45,648
260,473 338,280
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“T—NF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019

42. B EE (A

() EREIHS R (E)
Krato - EfbfERZE

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
@

Significant balances with related parties (continued)
Note b: Other receivables

2019 2018

BT T BT

HK$"000 HK$'000

B RKIE AR Fellow subsidiaries 2,744 801
EEbE Joint ventures 3,643 =
BEEERAR] Immediate holding company 17,967 17,967
=N Associates 2,910,098 2,023,780
FEIERR Non-controlling shareholders 31,827 20,226
2,966,279 2,062,774

BT RS & A B8 15 2,908,091,750
TT(ZZE—)\F : #%2,014,376,000
JC) * ¥%25.23% £6.09% P EAR
RIT(TPEARET)) Ahey—F 5
BRFE MRS EER (Z2—N\F -
53k 10EE &) 5B /) H fib FE YRR
AN ZE TR R WA B E I
MEREE - BIEER T —NF
+=—A=+—HBk=ZE—N\F+=A
=+ — BB S RIE TR B
- BB S REMBKIETESR
—FERULE -

Wistc - 7E{THE

Except for the other receivables due from associates of
HK$2,908,091,750 (2018: HK$2,014,376,000), which bore
interest at the lending rate of between 5.23% to 6.09% or
bore interest at 5 basis points (2018: 5 or 10 basis points)
mark up of People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") benchmark one-
year lending rate, the remaining receivables are unsecured
and interest-free. No provisions are made against the
receivables from related parties as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018. The trade and other receivables are
expected to be received within one year.

Note c: Prepayments

2019 2018

BUET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEI)=EPNG| Fellow subsidiaries 3,829 1,473
iRl Associates - 30
3,829 1,503

AmIEmEEE Other non-current assets

FEHMIERBEEF  NARIEYN—
fE B & A &) /8 368,395,500 T (=
T—)\F : F)  %6.09%:HE(=ZF
—NF )

Included in other non-current assets is an amount due from
an associate of HK$368,395,500 (2018: Nil), which bore
interest at the lending rate of 6.09% (2018: Nil).
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42. BRI EE (12 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(1) EREAWHT &R () (1)  Significant balances with related parties (continued)
JET BT 5 R Amounts due to related parties
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B S RIE (Hita) Trade payables (Note a) 16,019 17,302
H Ao FE 508 (B72b) Other payables (Note b) 14,084,970 4,039,805
14,100,989 4,057,107
Mita - BZENFE Note a: Trade payables
BT T B TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEL =N Fellow subsidiaries 718 1,387
SERE Joint ventures 6,062 10,619
il /NS Associates 9,239 5,296
16,019 17,302
REREPRR  AEBEERERAHY The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables with related
HY 5 BARE 70 B B SRR BRI D AT 1A parties based on invoice date at the end of each reporting
IS period is as follows:
2019 2018
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$"000
0Z£90H 0 to 90 days 15,238 16,341
91%F365H 91 to 365 days 567 733
thiAE365H Over 365 days 214 228
16,019 17,302
izt - BT E Note b: Other payables
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IR A Non-controlling interests 841,255 926,364
N Associates 13,551 1,062
AR A A Intermediate holding company 13,215,858 3,093,796
EEL =N Fellow subsidiaries 2,852 18,583
BB Joint ventures 11,454 =
14,084,970 4,039,805
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42. BB EE (A

(I

()

(V)

BEREE LSRR (E)

BT —EREMNPEERARBE
1,116,350,000C (=& —/\F : &
#3,000,000,0007T) © 1R E FH =
3.92%:T B RS — P EERA S
#12,000,000,0007T * & BIRITR
EFREMESEAEZ (ZF—N\F
2.77%) FH B H EAb FET FRIBAN - 3%
EFBOEMNKEBERR 28K
RERERE -

ERH i B B R I B AR VX
5.,/ 458k

AN - AEEE R B EBBED EE
TIRITR SRR (RBUNEHER)
RIMZIAR S » BREFNR - BREHE
—RIRITEE - ENRFRITRS
MEE - AARIESERBIELERHK
BUESX-

\uﬂ$} \|

T

ARRESRHMEEZEEEN
SHFHMANT
FEEEANBHIFH

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(I

(1

(IV)

Significant balances with related parties (continued)
Except for the other payables due to an intermediate holding
company of HK$1,116,350,000 (2018: HK$3,000,000,000),
which bore interests at the lending rate of 3.92% and another
intermediate holding company of HK$12,000,000,000, which
bore interest at 5 basis points mark up of HIBOR (2018:
2.77%), the remaining payables are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Transactions/balances with other PRC government
controlled entities

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placement, borrowings and other general
banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
which are government-related entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the natures of those banking transactions,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management was as follows:
Compensation of key management personnel

2019 PAONES)

BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e BRI Salaries, allowances and bonuses 18,953 20,446
RIRBFIET B R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 277 363
19,230 20,809

TREBEABNFHRARREERE
ZREARRETGBHELETE °

b EEEA20) P B ER A E R HTE A
Al —R[F KB R R A HE A R
HE - MR ER KB A RARE
ENBERARNERE REE A
BRI LT RAIE14AE TR

ENFERS

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by the management of the Company having
regarding to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

The related party transactions in respect of sales to fellow
subsidiaries and associates of a fellow subsidiary, purchase
from certain fellow subsidiaries, management fees, service
fees and interest expenses paid to associates as disclosed
in note 42(I) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. BERE D 2 EMT A
ESBTARBINEE R 2 RAEMT -

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

—E-hF 2019
EHMEE Financial assets
BOREE
BROREETE STERHSEHA
BEZEHA REHERA Hfr 2 El
ERfEREE TENSREE SREE
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value L ENE] through other
through profit assets at comprehensive
or loss amortised cost income
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EtERESREARE Wit21) Other non-current financial assets (Note 27)
RiERE Equity investments 412,215 - - 412,215
Eth3EREEE (Wit22) Other non-current assets (Note 22)
ZHER Entrusted Loan - 380,452 - 380,452
RERGE Long-term receivables - 976,025 - 976,025
HihFBHERMEE Witz Other current financial assets (Vote 21)
BEHIRE Asset-backed securities 532,586 - - 532,586
BEER Financial products 4,946,093 167,780 - 5,113,873
ZIRWTERENER Trade and bills receivables - - 20,756,903 20,756,903
B 5 REMEYBEH224) Trade and other receivables (Note 24) - 60,110,347 - 60,110,347
JE B 7 208 (Hrit42) Amounts due from related parties (Note 42) - 3,226,752 - 3,226,752
BERER Pledged deposits - 4,614,611 - 4,614,611
BeRBLEEN Cash and cash equivalents - 12,524,016 - 12,524,016
b Total 5,890,894 81,999,983 20,756,903 108,647,780
Ea= =L Financial liabilities

ZESE A
STRNEREE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BT T

HK$'000
B 5 Rk HA I8 (Kit26) Trade and other payables (Note 26) 57,471,769
JE 1~ REBS: 5 T8 (M2t 42) Amounts due to related parties (Note 42) 14,100,989
RITER Bank borrowings 31,065,685
HEaRE Lease liabilities 2,247,356
JERIES Bonds payable 7,952,398
st Total 112,838,197
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43. ZEREI D 2R T B (& 43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
=F-N\F 2018
EHMEE Financial assets
BAAEEE
BEZHHTA
BEERA Hib2EREH
STENEREE SREE
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value Financial through other
through profit assets at comprehensive
or loss amortised cost income
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
HhbErBeniE Wiz Other non-current financial assets (Note 21)
RiERa Equity investments 74,467 - - 74,467
BERRE Asset-backed securities 148,206 - - 148,206
Hth3EREEE Wi Other non-current assets (Note 22)
RERKT Long-term receivables - 863,750 = 863,750
EthrBemEE W21 Other current financial assets (Note 21)
BERES Asset-backed securities 237,01 = = 237,01
EER Financial products 8,549,773 148,613 - 8,698,386
BIRUTERENER Trade and bills receivables = = 19,088,152 19,088,152
B5 REMEYGE Hi24) Trade and other receivables (Note 24) - 51,421,309 - 51,421,309
FEM BB IR (Wit42) Amounts due from related parties (Note 42) - 2,401,054 - 2,401,054
BEREN Pledged deposits - 3,428,676 - 3,428,676
BeRBLSED Cash and cash equivalents - 16,633,301 - 16,633,301
et Total 9,009,457 74,896,703 19,088,152 102,994,312
Ea= =L Financial liabilities

1RESHR AR
AEMEREE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BT T

HK$'000
B 5 K H M RTRIR Trade and other payables 53,266,492
FE 1< AR 5 5RIE Amounts due to related parties 4,057,107
IR E 5 Short-term debentures 3,423,868
RITENK Bank borrowings 40,664,521
[ERES Bonds payable 6,847,740
#Et Total 108,259,728
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44, TRITEZAREBERAR 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

EBEER
FEEeRmTAZREERARBEER
EEERRBESEEEERIN) HF0
T

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

SREE AREE
Carrying amounts Fair values
2019 2018 2019

BT T BEFIT BT T BEFIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FFASERBIBEMEIE Interest-bearing bank and

RIT R EME R other borrowings included

in non-current liabilities 3,579,485 3,301,928 3,445,900 3,294,790

ERTES Bonds payable 5,663,955 6,847,740 5,508,455 6,784,514

#RET Total 9,243,440 10,149,668 8,954,355 10,079,304
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H o
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EERTAAABEFENBERIER - B
BREERABFVHEEREBFZESS
HoNBEREAH - BHBPIOTERTA
MEESEPTEEHETEANIESH -
MEREFEVEEREZRAE - (AEBE
Ko i R PR IRTA PP B % 4 T B 745 e Sy £
ER BRI

20194FF iR » EHBRESBEERA

el

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets included in trade and
other receivables, other current financial assets, financial liabilities
included in trade and other payables, short-term debentures,
amounts due from/to related parties and loans to associates
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.
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EREERBBZAABEFABRGMIE
BENFREB)RFETNEMNR ST
BEHMTAZESEA - RMEGHAREBER &
ERATIT AR

RITEFNRABEIIREERLUER - &
B R\ M RIS HE T AMIRITHXALIRTE
HARRASREFE - R_F-NEF+_A
=1+—R  ARERFITEROTEORR
WHERLTERX - KEBAKENTELY
Rk - BNEFNARBEREUENES
MRETS N XRERBARRBESRER
o

LB AN AR BETRA AL EE
AERTISERIL R FNERRAERR
ERMSOEERMEET - ZEEERE
ERETE AR BERRKBEEAE
g EH AR (FET)  XAECHATEL
BARGESBEERGRBIINEEEER
HERAE -~ BOR - rEREHEA AN ([EV/
EBITDA DE#kmREX((MAaX)EH) -
EETRAI LB A BN E B ERR AR
AERE RSGBBERERBEARFESR
BENRERATE LB ARZ BFENIERE
B2 MRREREEERTETIGE - TR
E2E AR IF LB B R BRI & A
AEAREBE - EFAGERAENEEZ
At AR EE(REEBHRRKRAR M8
AN EBEEHEREAR) ARE A
REMRZRINEBE -

AEEREIF EWRE (B AHRTH
TR ER) - AEBEREBEEABUHR
REBHTANTSMNXERBRRERSRE
MEREGFZERLTRENAABIE -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 was assessed to be
insignificant. The fair value of the bonds payable is estimated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using an equivalent
market interest rate for similar bonds payable with consideration of
the Group's own non-performance risk.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates.
The valuation requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and
strategy, and calculates an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple and price to earnings (“P/E")
multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit
or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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44, THMITEZNAREBERAR 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

BERERE) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NABEER Fair value hierarchy

TRERAEEeRIANA A EBETEE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
3 of the Group's financial instruments:

BARBEFEZEE Assets measured at fair value:

R-E-NFE+=-A=+—8H As 31 December 2019

UTSIARETHANEBEE
Fair value measurement using

EXTEE EXTTER

ERMIZHRE BARE BAHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(E—2) (FE=H) (E=H)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BRI BETL BRI BRI
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAEEFEEESEH AL Finandial assets at fair value through other
PEYENEREAE comprehensive income:
BORUET REUEE Trade and hills receivables - - 20,756,903 20,756,903
BRAEEFEEEEHHABE  Finandal assets at fair value through
NepEE: profit or loss:
BRI Asset-backed securities - - 532,586 532,586
BEER Financial products - - 4,946,093 4,946,093
b B Equity investment - - 412,215 412,215
@t Total - - 26,647,797 26,647,797
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44, THMITEZNAREBERAR 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

BEERGE) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NREBERBR ) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
R-ZE—)\&+=-A=+—H As 31 December 2018

WA AL BB
Fair value measurement using

= EATABR
BRI NRE o A2k AR
Quoted prices Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs IS
(E—R) (=) (=)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AETT BETT it e AETT
HK$1000 HKS 1000 HKS 000 HKS/000
BRAEEFEEESEH AL Finandial assets at fair value through other
PEYENEREAE comprehensive income:
BoRNESRENER Trade and bills receivables - - 19,088,152 19,088,152
BRABESEEEFHHABEN  Financial assets at fair value through
SREE: profit or loss:
EERAER Asset-backed securities - - 385,217 385,217
BHER Financial products - - 8,549,773 8,549,773
RiERE Equity investment = = 74,467 74,467
st Total - - 28,097,609 28,097,609
BARBEFENEE Liabilities measured at fair value:
FEER_Z-NF+_A=+—BE=F The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
—\F+-A=+—HBHIEEFEEAARAR value as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.
BEAENEEMAE -
FR F—RRE_GAREBEFTECHL During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
mEE . TEISREERSRA G ARE between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
HE=ZLNBER(CE—N\F : &) o for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2018: nil).
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44, THMITEZNAREBERAR 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

BEENRE) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
BARBENENEEREZENOT : Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
R-BE-NFE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2019

UTSIARETHANEBEE
Fair value measurement using

EXTEE EXTTBR

ERMIZHRE HARE BAHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active Observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(E—2) (FEZH) (E=H)

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BRI BETL BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIER Bank borrowings - - 3,445,900 3,445,900
e S Bonds payable - - 5,508,455 5,508,455
@zt Total - - 8,954,355 8,954,355

RZB-—N\F+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2018

TSI TNAA BEE

Fair value measurement using

ENGIE
EEMHARE BARE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(E-) (E=H) (&E=%)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BRTL BETT BEFT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000
RITER Bank borrowings - - 3,294,790 3,294,790
R ES Bonds payable - - 6,784,514 6,784,514
5t Total = - 10,079,304 10,079,304
TR Z Al SHE 1 AT T HE AR SR B PR e T % The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
Z2EESGNRETEBRZENRERITES premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
B o participants would take into account when pricing the investments.
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AEBETZLRT ARG SRITER &
MEx  ReEMASFEVUARSERTF
R ZFERTANTIZANIAREEN
REBRED - AEEHBESRUGIAR
BHRNFASZEAMEREENAE
EHELERRKESL

AEMSET AFE LN BRRAFIEE
B VB - EEER LRSS AR -
EERES LA TR RRNBEL L
T

AEBEHNTISNEEERER T E
EAREEZF B R BN RMES
BGAER -

AR BB B A BE Je A & 5 R
BERRA BT AR IR SRR -

UTSREERRIMDKREENZSES
REEFEHREE - FTEARS0E
Heh(ZZ— \F : SOfEEDh) # sk
BARKEBEEHF KRR IEEE)
HIRFAS o

THZ B RERNFE EF TS0
BEZ  MAEEMESRHTE
AAEEREE_T—hLhF+=A
=+ —BHLEFENFREFED IR
L/ INAB12,062,0007C (—
—\4F : ##10,665,0007T) °

ERERA  AASREHRARIL
TR ERE RO - B
BN AREREBF R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings, bonds payable, cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for manageing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt
obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix
of fixed and variable rate debts.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming that those
balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) increase or decrease which represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates is used.

If the interest rate on floating rate borrowings had been
50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the profit for the year of the Group would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$12,062,000 (2018:
HK$10,665,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting period does not reflect
the exposure at the end of each reporting period.
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45. B E R EIE B AR RBUR

(4.

(b) INEER
NI RARBNINSSHENEBEE
REBABRBEHRNERE &
TEBEEANEENE S K HAME LR
H-HhEemEE BRI
HFOR - EEMBTER B kB
SEEY BHREAMEMNTOR - R
e - EHRESREMNES

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which
are mainly trade and other receivables, other financial assets,
amounts due from/to related parties, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings, short-term debentures and bonds payable of the
Group, at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

&E
e
AR

=N
e
AR

BT T
HK$'000
Assets
United States dollars (“USD") 62,104
RMB 121,391,228
Liabilities
usb 187,247
RMB 113,063,473

PAONES)

BEFIT
HK$'000
BE Assets
e usb 106,667
AR RMB 101,255,007
aE Liabilities
e usb 119,502
AR RMB 113,578,288
REEEIRERBEY ERINEEE The management of Group manages the foreign currency
RBIREBINER - NERBR risk by closely monitoring the movements of foreign currency
AT S ATAATINE B BA S K0 2R NS exchange rates. The Group currently has not entered into any
[EER o EIRE MM ERE B RN foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against foreign
by o currency risk. Management will consider hedging foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
298 201955 « EMBEEEERAT
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45. B RREEBBEREBER
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HREAHT

AEEBTBXAREIBDEEYE -

TEBRREBEHR - AERERRBA
EHN (ANEBEERBBENAAE
B PARBEXAJELEANG

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the

BEYFEEMESHFTE) K Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
RX[E o monetary assets and liabilities).
—E-NF 2019
EN BB AR
L7/ (TH&) B,/ (i)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
usp/ profit
RMB rate before tax
BETT
% HKS$000
B AR A If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against the RMB 5% 416,388
W8 AR HE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against the RMB (5%) (416,388)
—T-N\F 2018
ETHARKER PR AT A
£/ (TH) #m,/ (R)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
uso/ profit
RMB rate before tax
BETT
% HK$'000
A% ARBRE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against the RMB 5% (902,754)
s HE L ARBHE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against the RMB (5%) 902,754
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45. BiEEREREBERBEK 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(48, AND POLICIES (continued)

(9

EERE
AEEERNEREEAENE =T
EITRS - ARENBRRRABEER
IMEEMETRZNEPIGAMRERE
RARBEFE - I AEERFEEE
FEM IR SR - BURIRMIARAK
RAIFBRREEMRE TR EE
TZRHME  AEEEERNEE
Rt - AEETERTEES -

RAM O RFREER
TREFINT ZA=+—HEREE
MEERR(ZZREANER
BRIFBATBEKALE N ER
HEER RN EEERREER
BRI A AR EARFEERENS -

R-B-NF+=A=t+—H

(9

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts
is not significant. For transactions that are not denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

As at 31 December 2019

1218 B
BHEEEHE ZHREBEERE
12-month ECLS Lifetime ECLs

F—IEER FIRER F=PEER Bt

Simplified

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Approach
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEiensaeEs Other non-current assets* 1,356,477 = = = 1,356,477
EnemEE: Other current financial assets* 167,780 = = 20,756,903 20,924,683
B 5 REfERTIA Trade and other receivables 6,150,906 - - 54,951,110 61,102,016

(Bist24)*+ (Note 24) **

[N BEs 7 0E Due from related parties* 2,966,279 = = 260,473 3,226,752
[RECIEZA Pledged deposits 4,614,611 = = = 4,614,611
Be kB2 ZEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,524,016 = = = 12,524,016
At Total 27,780,069 - - 75,968,486 103,748,555
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45. I EREEBERBEK 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(&) AND POLICIES (continued)
() EERBGE) () Credit risk (continued)
AWM RFARIEE (E) Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
R=Z-NFE+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2018
12{8A
BHEEEE 2HREEEER
12-month ECLS Lifetime ECLs
E—fEE R E=FRE Gl s
Simplified
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Approach
BT BETT BETT BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Higpnsha e+ Other non-current assets* 863,750 = = = 863,750
EneepEEr Other current financial assets* 148,613 - - 19,088,152 19,236,765
B REMEWFIE  Trade and other receivables 4,637,120 - - 47,356,620 51,993,740
(Bizt24)*+ (Note 24) **
L BB 7y IR Due from related parties* 2,062,774 = = 338,280 2,401,054
BERER Pledged deposits 3,428,676 - - = 3,428,676
RekReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 16,633,301 - S = 16,633,301
FeE Total 27,774,234 - - 66,783,052 94,557,286
* A EREEEFEE T EZHNE S &2 For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
JEWFENE - EREGERENE approach for impairment, information based on the provision
FIBE BRI TR 5124 matrix is disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.
> HABGREMBRIENEHE **  The credit quality of the financial assets included in trade and
EREEEEEEENETREY other receivables is considered to be “normal” when there
R K (5 BB g B A MF I A is no information indicating that the financial assets had
WRBIIEFE ] - BRI - 2HEEL a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
1EERSR 1#53 43 AT 3 [ RAR) © Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.
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45. I EMREEBEREE 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(12 AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) RBESERE (d) Liquidity risk
EERRSESRRE - RNREBER In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
WHFBBEEERATENESRES and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
ZEVKT - AUAREEN L ER adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
HESKBRERSRERBNTE - operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
ERETERBITERNERER flows. The management also monitors the utilisation of bank
WRETEREHEWA) ° borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants, if
any.
TRAMASEIFTES A BT The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
BERNEBIER - TRIOVRESRA maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
BEMARRBE S RERAEE A has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
NFH&RFBEGRE - ZXRBIEFNL of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
EkReRenE - BFERERTE Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
FlE - RENRSFBIRBEZME AR and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
BRI R E o at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

BB
nETIRE  REXRE 151/ N RETENE HHE

Weighted Total
average  Repayable Within 1to2 Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 1year years 2years  cashflows amounts
BETT AT YT BT BETT BETT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000

“E-NETZAZt-B 31 December 2019

o RAMERFE Trade and other payables - - 57471769 - - STATT69 57471769
EfBEAE Amounts due to related parties - - 14100989 - - 14100989 14100989
HEakE Lease liabilties - - 614,389 513183 1825628 2953200 2,2473%
Hirtes Bank borrowings 429 1990861 26850635 1877077 1800387 32518960 31,065,685
EfifE% Bonds payable 410 - Q50765 4645004 1132998 8285654 7,952,398

1990861 101,545,434 7,035,264 4759013 115330572 112,838,197

ZE-\E+ZA=1—B 31 December 2018

BARAMERNTE Trade and other payables - - 5326649 - - 53266492 53266492
EfEsATE Amounts due to related parties - - 4057107 - - 4057107 4,057,107
Rl Bank borrowings 403 6613008 31726515 157600 3288068 41785191 40,664,521
EfiER Bonds payable 415 = 4181 2566761 4753473 TE04415 6,847,740
REHES Short-term debenture 368 - 3518369 - - 3518369 3423868

6,613,008 92,852,664 2,724,361 8041541 110,231,574 108,259,728
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BERERKEEERRITERIET
AEXEIEE ST 1R B KEE |6
F#R - RZFE—NF+=-A=+—
H @ ZSHRTERNRORELNAS
#1,990,861,0007T (ZZF—/\F : &
#£6,613,008,0007T) ° Lit RAEEH
MBI - RARIBEERAEITR
ANAIBEI T E BB EKAREK -
RARESRIEE  AEEMZSFRT
B FASIRRITE R R AT AT E R
HEIR SRS AR A (EIE -

FEEEREER  BEREEET
BRTHELE  LEBEEREE
S RIE R T8 AR R AR A
% -

AEEMNEAREREEEFEE
FEHFE27 ~ 29 %309 B FE HY K2 B At
A% - RITERREMNES) Nk
RERBSEEBY RARAEAA
i (BIEDBITRAE - (REB%
FI R EAbREE)

AEBERETMBREEARHERE - F
RERBEN—Hn  BEEZREE
REARSEEARRRR - RIZE
EENEEBER  AEEHERIKN
P B R BEATHBRIA R BT B (B
BRAGY  FEERRBEE -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019, the
aggregate carrying amount of these bank borrowings was
approximately HK$1,990,861,000 (2018: HK$6,613,008,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary right to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank borrowings of the Group will be repaid after
the end of reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bank borrowing agreements.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes the short-term debentures, bank borrowings and
bonds payable disclosed in notes 27,29 and 30, respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
retained earnings and other reserves.

Management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a periodic basis. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall structure
through the payment of dividends and new shares issues as
well as the issue of new debts or the repayment of existing
debts.
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45. BIiEE R EIE B E R BER
(4&
) BARRTE(H)
RNRERAR Y BB B ENT -

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

2019 2018

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000
R—F A2 IRITIER Bank borrowings within one year 27,486,200 37,362,593
R—F A ERES Bonds payable within one year 2,288,443 =
MHIRE S Short-term debentures = 3,423,868
R—F1& 2 IRITIER Bank borrowings more than one year 3,579,485 3,301,928
R—F &2 ERES Bonds payable more than one year 5,663,955 6,847,740
B REMREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (12,524,016) (16,633,301)
FERE Net debt* 26,494,067 34,302,828
B Total equity 69,581,821 60,468,772
BARG B R Gearing ratio** 38.08% 56.73%

* FEEERRTEXEE  H & Net debt equal to total bank borrowings, total debentures and

BEZ L E &5 AR 2 K

o ARAMELERFAEG LA
aitH -

46 FHEHABREIE

1. RZZE—hFt+—A=+NB K&
B2 FATEE= SRR
ERMHBRAR ([BEFEENEET
(BrEEZAR)  UARE,4208
BT (HEEREE1,585F8T) IKEE
BE LSRG (FE)REGREA
B (DRHEEE])100%BHE - R-F
“EE-AR REREREEE
W I EEE S L FENETRK -

2. RIZ-ZTFE—F BEOHUTRK
RERE((FEMA ) BEETER
HARARBEERE - RIFHASENES
BAFE-—ENERERE  FE2

BECRR D REENERIER KR

BRENER - ARERZIEIR

BRERER  FHEEHAEEME

AR R ERROFEL EHERR

fE - BEARERR B FHEDE

EITH

304 019 e EHEEEEARAR

total bonds payable less cash and cash equivalents.

**  Gearing ratio Is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity.

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. On 28 November 2019, CR Sanijiu, a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Harbin
Gloria Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Gloria Pharmaceuticals”)
to acquire 100% equity interest of Aonuo (China)
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Aonuo Pharmaceutical”) held
by Gloria Pharmaceuticals. The total transaction price was
RMB 1,420 million (equivalent to HK$1,585 million). The
acquisition of Aonuo Pharmaceutical was completed on 2
January 2020 upon the change in business registration.

2. The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") in January
2020 continues to spread throughout China and to countries
across the world. The COVID-19 has certain temporary impact
on the business operations of the Group, and the degree
of the impact depends on the situation of the epidemic
preventive measures and the duration of the epidemic. The
Group will monitor the development of COVID-19 closely,
assess and react actively to its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group. Up to the date of this
report, the assessment is still in progress.
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Director

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset

Investments in subsidiaries
Due from subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from the immediate holding
company

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables and other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to the intermediate holding
company

Bank borrowings

Lease liability

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

BT
HK$’000

2,172
1,291
19,486,254
14,375,454

33,865,171

874
7,829,642

17,967
93,462

7,941,945

2,522

12,010,200
1,312,500
1.341

13,326,563
(5,384,618)
28,480,553
28,480,553

27,241,289
1,239,264

28,480,553

and is signed on its behalf by:

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

HEX
Weng Jingwen
BEEHEE

Director

BETT
HK$'000

1,195

19,673,640
12,110,785

31,785,620

3,878
4,148,354

17,967
2,891,409

7,061,608

19,020
564,049

3,002,493
6,949,063

10,534,625
(3,473,017)
28,312,603
28,312,603

27,241,289
1,071,314

28,312,603

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020
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47. QAR EEARR TR (& 47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

1=

et - Note :
FEEFEHZNT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
0 5 1B REBE A #st
Translation Retained
reserve earnings Total
AT AT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-NF—HA—H At 1 January 2018 255,241 825,709 1,080,950
FRHEF Profit for the year - 2,376,340 2,376,340
MEEEMEN =T Exchange differences arising on
translation (135,200) - (135,200)
FAREE)wFHREE Total (loss)/profit and comprehensive
(M%) Was4aza (expense)/income for the year (135,200) 2,376,340 2,241,140
BERZE—EFRARKRE 2017 final dividend declared - (691,297) (691,297)
B ERIRE Special dividend paid = (1,559,479) (1,559,479)
RZZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 120,041 951,273 1,071,314
FANE B IS TR 2E A Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
F16ITE = (65) (65)
RZE-NF—-A—HGEEY)  At1January 2019 (restated) 120,041 951,208 1,071,249
FREF Profit for the year - 985,001 985,001
FREFNREERREE Total profit and comprehensive
income for the year - 985,001 985,001
Bk )\FREPKE 2018 final dividend declared - (816,986) (816,986)
RZZE-—NF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2019 120,041 1,119,223 1,239,264
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AE PEBBE ARNAREBETRDEEDN
10% ° BRI () BRfE A &I & AR T RN ED &
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BARREEITROBEN1% o BIERMD
BT EI R E AT 8 (20 E) B Z ATl m ok
T2 B0 BRI T(R 18 Pl TR T 2 BH
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B A ER R m AR IR AR (0 R RS T B R AR A )
R E M EIERE -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 12 December 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to effectively retain and attract
exceptional talents through a further optimised remuneration
structure, align the interests of the employees and Shareholders,
and effectively motivate both the management team and key
employees, thereby fostering the long-term development of the
Company and maximising the interests of the Shareholders.

There are 199 incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme,
who are the Directors (excluding non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), senior management
(including general managers, deputy general managers, heads of
the finance department and those personnel with such functions,
board secretaries and other senior management pursuant to
the Articles of Association), and other key employees whose
management and technical skills may have a direct impact on the
results of operation and strategic development of the Group.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and
all other schemes of the Company (if any) shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 628,450,646 Shares, representing 10% of the Company’s
total issued shares as at the date on which the resolution approving
the Share Option Scheme is passed at the extraordinary general
meeting. The total number of new Shares that may be issued in
relation to the first grant of the share options to the incentive
targets under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the Company’s total issued Shares. The limit on the number of
securities which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and other schemes (if any) shall not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue from time to
time, and no share option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if this will result in
this limit being exceeded.
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The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the grant date
(which must be a trading day) as stated on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet; and (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding the grant
date as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the grant date. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for ten years
from its effective date, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to the
terms therein.

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 30 March 2020.
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